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Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 
Moderator ........................... Carl Cheshier 
Assistant Moderator ........................ Tim York 
Clerk ............................... Keith Burden 
Assistant Clerk ....... . ................ John Hibbard 
Executive Secretory-Treasurer .......... Melvin Worthington 

2002 
Indiana: Chris Cloy 
Kansas: Dole McCoy 
Kentu cky: James Patton 
Mexico: Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mid-Atlantic: Joy Baines 
Mississippi: J. L Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexico: Tim Byers 

General Board 
2003 

North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast: Jim Nason 
Northwest: Brent Nix 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
O~ahoma: Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
South Carolina: Sigbee Dildo 
Tennessee: Charles Thigpen 
Texas: Keith Woody 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 

2004 
Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: Charles Marshall 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atl. Canada: Fred Hanson 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Tim Owen 
Georgia: William Smith 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: Ernie Lewis 

Executive Committee 
Moderator: Carl Cheshier, P.O. Box 7208, Moore, OK 73153 
Assistant Moderator: Tim York, 12 708 Copley Rood, Ashland, KY 41102 
Clerk: Keith Burden, P.O. Box 512, Locust Grove, OK 74352 
Assistant Clerk: John Hibbard, 928 Yellow Brick Rood, Modesto, CA 95351 

2002 
J. L. Gore (MS) 
Gene Norris {MI} 
Nathan Ruble (MO) 

2003 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (0~ 
Glen Johnson (VA) 
Charles Thigpen {TN} 

2004 
Rick Cosh (AL) 
David Joslin (AR) 
Doice McAlister (CA} 

Board of Trustees of Free Will Baptist College 
Chairman: Gory Fry, 401 South Main, Mountain Grove, MO 65711 

2002 2004 2006 
Archie Ratliff (NC) Richard Bowers (AL) Richard Barnes (VA) 
Lorry Montgomery (GA) Billy Hanna (GA) Gory Fry (MO) 
Gene Outland {IL) Steve Ashby {IN} A. C. Allen (SC) 

A- 14 

Board of Foreign Missions 

Chairman: Doug Uttle, 1103 East L Street, Russellville, AR 72801 

2002 2004 
Bill Jones (lX) David Shores (I L) 
David Williford (FL) Terry Eagleton (TN) 
Bill Von Winkle (TN) Sherwood Lee (SC) 

Board of Home Missions 

Chairman: Jim Puckett, P.O. Box 7527, Moore, OK 73153 

2003 2005 
Ron Porker (LA) Harold Blankenship (NC) 
Loyd Locklear (MI) Robert Thebeau (MO) 
Jim Puckett (OK) Lynn Wood (OK) 

2006 
Randy Wilson (0~ 
Doug Uttle (AR) 
Milton Worthington (MI) 

2007 
Matt Upton (CA) 
Jerry Atwell (MS) 
Bobby Shepherd (AR) 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 

Chairman: Ron Barber, 525 S. Main, Ste. 500, Tulsa, OK 7 4103 

2003 2005 
William Ferguson (MI) Ron Barber (OK) 
Roger Harwell (MO) Henry Von Kluyve (NC) 
James Lowe (OH) Milburn Wilson (TX) 

Master's Men Board 

Chairman: Cliff Donoho, 4029 Calumet Drive, Antioch, TN 37013 

2003 2005 
Cliff Donoho (TN) Mike Mounts (OH) 
Clarence Lewis (TN) Don Neal (IN) 
Thurmon Pate, Jr. (TN) Ernie Taylor (IL) 

2007 
Bobby Bowers (SQ 
Craig Cook {TN) 
Jock Word (NC) 

2007 
Roy Copeland (OK) 
Charles Wolden (MS) 
Rudy Taylor (MI) 

Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Chairman: Henry Von Kluyve, P.O. Box 568, Beaufort, NC 28516 

2003 2005 
James Lowe (OH) Ron Barber (0~ 
Roger Harwell (MO) H~nry Von. Kluyve (NC) 
William Ferguson (MI) Milburn Wilson (TX) 

Plus directors of national agencies: 

2007 
Bobby Bowers (SC) 
Craig Cook (TN) 
Jock Word (TN) 

Matt Pinson (FWBBC) James Forlines (FM) 
Lorry Powell (HM) Marjorie Workman (WNAC) 
Kenneth Akers (MM) Alton Loveless (SS & G) 

Melvin Worthington (Exec. Off.) 
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• 

. Sun~ay School and Church Training Board 
Chauman: David Sutton, 1412 East Main, Moore, OK 73160 

2002 2004 
Dav~d Sutton (OK) Will Harmon (AR) 
David Reece (VA} Brion Hampton (TN) 
Nuel Brown (CA) Michael Waddell (TN} 

2006 
Edwin Hayes (OH) 
Dennis Wiggs (NQ 
Jeff Crabtree (Canada) 

. Commission for Theological Integrity 
Chauman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2002 Leroy Forlines (TN) 2005 Daryl Ell" (IL} 

~~~~ ~~~~:~~~~~g(~~b 2006 Paul Har~san {TN) 

Historical Commission 

Secretary: Jock Williams, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011 
2002 Jock Williams (TN) 2005 Dorrell Holley (TN) 
2003 Paul Kennedy (CA) 2006 Joe McKnight (SC) 
2004 Robert Picirilli (TN) 

Media Commission 
Chairman: Steve Faison, 719 N. Cleveland Street, Arlington, VA 22201 

2002 Kevin Norris (MI) 2005 Doug K"t (NQ 
2003 Steve Faison (VA) 2006 Ron Hu~~er {TN) 
2004 M1ke Jones (SQ 

Music Commission 

Chairman: Randy Sawyer, 124 General Pemberton Street, Stanley, NC 28164 

2002 Douglas Little (AR) 2005 Chris Truett (NQ 
2003 Jerry Carraway (TN) 2006 Scott Bullman (OK) 
2004 Randy Sawyer (NQ 
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Proceedings 
The 65th annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met July 15-19, 2001, at Cabo Center in Detroit, Michigan. 
"While We Wait" was the theme for the meeting. Dean Jones served 
as the convention manager and Randy Sawyer coordinated the music. 

Sunday School-July 15, 2001 

The Sunday School session began at 10:00 a.m. as Chad Donoho 
led the congregation in singing "Let's Just Praise The Lord," "Praise Him, 
Praise Him," "To God Be The Glory" and "My Tribute." Glen Johnson 

read scripture, welcomed the assembly and led in prayer. 
Chad Donoho sang "No One Ever Cared For Me Like Jesus." 

Charles Walden from Booneville, Mississippi, was introduced as the 
adult teacher. The lesson topic was "The King of Righteousness." The 
scripture text was Psalm 72:1-19. The session concluded at 10:45 a.m. 

Sunday Morning-July 15, 2001 
The morning worship service was called to order at 11 :00 a.m. 

as Chad Donoho led the congregation in singing "We Have Come 
Into This House," "Maiesty," "King of Kings" and "0 Come, Let Us 
Adore Him." Glen Johnson led in prayer. The congregation contin­
ued to worship by singing "He Keeps Me Singing," '~II That Thrills 
My Soul," "The Haven of Rest" and "0 What A Savior." 

Richard Bowers called for the convention offering and led in 

prayer. Pianist Jonathan Snow presented the offertory. 
Pastor David Bishop from Atkins, Arkansas, was introduced as the 

speaker. Before he spoke, a trio called Evidence song "He Touched Me." 
Rev. Bishop read Luke 13:18-19 for a sermon text and spoke on 

the subiect "The Kingdom of God" or "The Church." Glen Johnson 

prayed the benediction. 

Sunday Evening-July 15, 2001 
At 7:00 p.m. Zach Hinson led the congregation in singing "When 

We All Get To Heaven" and "We Shall Behold Him." North Carolina 
pastor Rick Cason welcomed the congregation and led in prayer. 

Zach Hinson led in the singing of another medley of hymns 
which included "I'll Fly Away," "All Hail, King Jesus," "The King is 
Coming," "Until Then" and "What A Day That Will Be." 

Reuben Cason called for the convention offering and led in 

prayer. Angie Deel sang "Were It Not For Grace." 
Rick Cason introduced Danny Dwyer, pastor of First FWB 
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Church in Florence Alab b . 
Before he s k M' ama, to nng the evening messa e 

Broken Arr!~ bklah~~:g~~nag !;
1
ioAfroCm B~f~hadny FWB Church

9

i~ 
R D 

' m rucr re Wrth Ch · t " 
ev. wyer read Matthew 25 ·14- . ns . 

spoke on the subl'ed "Watch W :t 3d0Wforkhrs sermon text and 
. , ar an or " R. k c d 

conventron announcements. Debe To I d. rc ason ma e 
ments. Rick Wilson led in the d' . yl or ma e WNAC announce­

rsmrssa prayer. 

Monday Evening-July 16, 2001 
The 7:00p.m. worship servi b . h h 

singing "Crown Him With Ma~e ~gan w),t t e sonvention Choir 
Nome On High." Worship leode~ Mrkwns . and Lord, I Lift Your 
rn srnging "My Savior's L " e Lewrs led the congregation 

M I ove. 
i ton Worthington presided d . h 

Stephanie Young from the D t 't ~rng t ~ service and introduced 
She welcomed the conventi;nr~~ onv~ntron and Visitors Bureau. 
some of the city's more not bl Detr~rt and spoke briefly about 
Gene Norris brought official e at~radrons. Promotional Secretary 
Michigan State Association of gFrree 'wn~sll tBo th~ convention from the 

Cl rk K ·h ee 1 aptrsts 
. e . ert Burden called the 65th : . 

Assocrahon into official session and introd~~;de~tron _of the Natrona! 
Carl Cheshier announced the ap . t ft e offrcers. Moderator 

C d 
. porn ments to our committees· 

re enhals Committee: · 
Glen Johnson-. ~ir~inia (Chairman) 
J. L. Gore- Mrssrssrppi 
Ernest Harrison- Oklahoma 
Carl Vallance- West Virginia 
Tim York- Kentucky 

Nominating Committee: 
Ric~ Cash- Alabama (Chairman) 
Dorce McAlister- California 
Chris Clay- Indiana 
Nathan Ruble- Missouri 
Keith Woody- Texas 
Tim Owen- Florida 
William Smith-Georgia 

Resolutions Committee: 
David Sutton- Oklahoma (Chairman) 
Charles Thigpen- Tennessee 
Edwin Hayes- Ohio 
Jay Baines- Mid-Atlantic 
David Williford- Florida 
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Obituary Committee: 
Sigbee Dildo-South Carolina (Chairman) 
Richard Bowers-Alabama 
John Hibbard-California 
Fred Hanson-Atlantic Canada 
Mike Jones-South Carolina 

The Convention Choir sang "The Old Rugged Cross Made The 
Difference." The congregation sang "There Is A Redeemer," '~t The 
Cross," "By His Grace" and "Grace Greater Than Our Sin." 

Milton Worthington called for the convention offering and led in 
prayer. Undivided, a women's trio, sang "It's Shoutin' Time In 
Heaven" and "We Are Laborers Together With The Lord." 

Milton Worthington introduced Leonard Pirtle, pastor of Reioice 
FWB Church in Owasso, Oklahoma, to bring the evening message. 
Before he spoke Undivided sang "The Way Maker." 

Rev. Pirtle read Luke 19: 12-27; 24:49, Acts 1:4 and I Corinthians 
1 :6-8 for his sermon text and spoke on the subiect "Occupied." Milton 

Worthington led in the prayer of benediction. 

Tuesday Evening-July 17, 2001 
The service began at 7:00p.m. with the Men's Chorale singing 

"Step Into The Water." George Harvey welcomed the congregation 

and led in prayer. 
The congregation sang "He Keeps Me Singing." Worship leader 

Kevin Justice explained that the music in the evening service would 
be excerpts from the Media Commission's video proied He Keeps 
Me Singing- A Free Will Baptist Gathering. 

Carolyn Adams sang "Sheltered In The Arms of God" and Doug 
Little sang "The Love of God." The congregation sang "God Is So 
Good," "I Feel Like Travelin' On," "I ' ll Fly Away" and "Heaven's Jubilee." 

George Harvey called for the convention offering and led in prayer. 
During the offering the Riggs Family sang "The Longer I Serve Him." 

A clip of Bill Gardner singing "Ship Ahoy" from the He Keeps Me 
Singing video was played for the congregation. Following the song, Ron 
Hunter presented a special shadow box gift to the Bill Gardner family. 

Gene Norris, pastor of Riverside Fellowship FWB Church in Clinton 
Township, Michigan, was introduced as the speaker for the evening serv­
ice. John Gibbs sang "Beulah Land" and a quartet sang "Going Home." 

Pastor Norris read Luke 19:11 - 13 for his sermon text and spoke 
on the subiect "The Dash Between The Dates." George Harvey led 

in the benediction. 
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Wednesday Morning-July 18, 2001 
Moderator Carl Cheshier called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

He read Ephesians 3: l-1 0, shared devotional thoughts and led in prayer. 
The clerk read the report of the Credentials Committee. A motion 

carried to receive the report and seat the delegates. 
The clerk read a partial report of the General Board. A motion 

carried to receive Item # l of this report. 
The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee 

recommending the election of board members at the conclusion of 
each report. A motion carried to adopt this recommendation. 

Executive Secretary Melvin Worthington gave the report of the 
Executive Office. He presented a plaque to Raymond Lee for 16 
years of service as usher coordinator. Dr. Worthington presented a 
plaque to Jack Williams for 24 years of service as convention coor­
dinator. A motion carried to receive the Executive Office report and 
adopt the budgets contained in the report. 

Director William Evans gave the report of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation. David Brown gave the financial report. A motion car­
ried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

President Tom Malone gave the report of Free Will Baptist Bible 
College. This report included the recommended changes to the By-Laws 
and Rules of Decorum of Free Will Baptist Bible College. Treasurer Tom 
Sass presented the financial report. Board member Larry Montgomery 
explained the Trustee Board's decision to promote Brother Malone to 
the office of chancellor and begin the search for a new president. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

A motion carried to remove from the table the recommendation by 
the Board of Trustees to change the name of Free Will Baptist Bible 
College to Palmer College The Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
Following discussion on the matter, a motion carried for the previous 
question. The motion to approve the recommended name change lost. 

Billy Hanna (GA) was elected to fill an unexpired 2004 term on 
the Bible College Board of Trustees. 

Director James Forlines gave the report of the Foreign Missions 
Department. Treasurer Rob Conley presented the financial report. 
Board Chairman Doug Little shared information regarding the 
finances of the Foreign Missions Department. A motion carried to 
receive the report, approve the revision of the 2001 budget reflecting 
changes in the "Vision Budget", and adopt the revised 2002 budget 
that included a salary freeze for administrative personnel for 2002. 

The moderator declared a lunch break at 11 :45 a.m. 
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Wednesday Afternoon-July 18, 2001 . 
. York called the afternoon session to 

Assistant Moderatorre~d Matthew 5:14 and led in prayer. 
order at 1 :30 p.m. He the report of the Sunday School 

Director Alton Loveless gave t A otion carried to receive the 
and Church Training Departmen . m 

report and adopt the bu~get. th eport of the Home -Missions 
Director Larry Pow~ gave ~~de to Earl Hendrix and J.D. 

Department. Presentations ~ere H e Missions Board members. 
Norris for t~eir years of service ~ono(;esser for 23 years of service 
A presentation was made to T ryCh I . CH (CPT) David Trogdon 
to Home Missions. U.S. Army . ap aln 

brought greetings to :he co~t::~~;d to receive the Home ~issions 
There was a motion an h b d t. There was a motion and 

Department report and addd: t e "u Je that the Home Missions 
second to ame~d by a oll:g, toa~ames Munsey in AIM mega­
Department p~bhsh an ap d I g~ The motion to receive the Home 
zine." The motion to amen od .ado t the budget carried. 
Missions Department report an p ·red 2003 term on the 

Ron Porker (lA) was elect~ t:n fi~~' ~:~~ell (MS) and Bobby 
Home M1ss1ons Board. Matt . P the Home Missions Board. 
Shepherd (AR) wer~ edleded to _slx-~~ar ;~~ro~~ request from the Virginia 

A motion came to r~c~t~e Stet A~soc·lation of Free Will Baptists 
· · "The Vtrgtnta a e ~ f F 

State Assooatton: . C mmittee of the National Association o ree 
requests that the Executtve ff· . I . vesti ation of the National Home 
Will Baptists perform, an ? toast ~~ me~s and involvement in the sian­
Missions Department s adions, Ma e and the results be brought back 

f 
· ·onary James unsey, . , 

der o veteran mtssl . d bl. hed in Contact magaztne. 
to the national_body In 2~02 ~:n:r~l '~oard report was considere~. 

The remOinder of t e . th Master's Men Department s 
The clerk read Item #2 regardt_n~ t~ g ·,n the Rest of the Family 

. hd from part1ctpa 1n request to Wit raw I #2 
Offering. A motion carried to adopt ~~m Ch~rlotte North Carolina, 

The clerk read Item #3 rec?mm:n ~~i~m carried t~ adopt Item #3. 
as the site for the 2011 conveh:~~n. ert:ined to changing the Treatise_ by 

The clerk read ~t~m # 4 w ~o~nt for representation fees. A motton 
removing the speoflc dollar eo table until Thursday, July 1 9' 2001 . . . 
carried to lay Item #4 ';'5th h h ld authorize the Music CommiSSIOn 

The clerk read Item w ~~ hou b k A motion carried to adopt 
to publish a new Free Will Bapttst ymn oo . 

Item #5. . . Committee for General Board 
A partial report of thef Nllom_lnatlng elected to serve 2004 terms: 

members was read. The o owing were 
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Rick C?sh (AL), Charles Marshall (AZ), David Joslin (AR), Fred Hanson 
(Atlantic Can~~a), Doi~e McAlister (CA), Mark Thomas (CO), Tim 
Owen (FL), Wdham Sm1th ~GA), Earl Jenkins (ID) and Ernie Lewis (IL). 

~he cl~rk read a part1al report of the Nominating Committee. 
Dav1d Josl1n (AR), Doice McAlister (CA) and Rick Cash (AL) were 
elected to three-year terms on the Executive Committee. 

Director William Evans gave the report of the Boord of Retirement 
Presentation~ were made to Jack Daniels and Wayman Fields for thei~ 
yea~s of serv1ce on the board. Ray Lewis gave the financial report. A 
mot1on carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Bobby ~owers (SC), Craig Cook (TN) and Jack Ward (NC) were 
elected to s1x-year terms on the Retirement Board. 

~NAC president Debe Taylor gave the report of the Woman 
Nat1onally Active for Christ. A motion carried to receive the report 
as information. 

Director Tom Dooley gave the report of the Master's Men Department 
A p~esentation was made to George Beal for the First FWB Church i~ 
Austintown, Ohio, as Master's Men chapter of the year. A motion carried 
to receive the report, adopt the budget, and place the Master's Men restat­
ed charter on the table until the 2002 national convention 

Roy Copeland (OK), Charles Walden (MS) and R~dy Taylor (MI) 
were elected to six-year terms on the Master's Men Board. 

L~roy Forli~es gave the report of the Commission for Theological 
lntegnty. A mo~1on carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Po~l ~arnson (TN) was elected to a five-year term on the 
Comm1ss1on for Theological Integrity. 

A motion carried to recess until 9:00a.m., July 19, 2001. 

Wednesday Evening-July 18, 2001 

The evening service began at 7:00p.m. with the Convention Choir 
and ~embers fron: Truth and Peace singing "Favorite Song of All." 
Worsh1p leader Chns Truett led the congregation in singing 'jesus Saves" 
"Song for the Nations" and "I'll Go Where You Want Me To Go " ' 

_Sherw~od Lee gave the welcome and called on Buddy Seay to offer 
the 1nvocat1on. The Truth and Peace choir sang "Here Am I, Send Me." 

~arry Pow~ll introduced all home missionaries present for the 
se_rv1_ce by_ hav1ng them stand. James Forlines introduced all foreign 
n:1ss1onanes present for the service by having them stand. A special 
v1deo present?tion . tit!ed "Safely Home" was shown, honoring 
deceased fore1gn m1ss1onaries and staff members. 

Sherwood Lee called for the convention offering and led in prayer. 
For an offertory the Convention Choir sang "Reach The World." 
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The congregation sang "Trust and Obey," "Take My Life an~ Let 
It Be," "Here I Am," "Follow Me" and "Prais~ You." James_ Forlmes 
made 0 presentation to Carlisle Hanna for h1s more than f1fty years 

of service as a missionary in India. 
Rev. Carlisle Hanna, missionary to India, was introduced as the speak-

er for the evening service. A praise team sang "I Will Trust :ou. Lord." 
Brother Hanna's sermon text was taken from II Connth1ans 4:1-7. 

He spoke on the urgency of taking the gospel to the world. Sherwood 

Lee dismissed the service in prayer. 

Thursday Morning-July 19, 2001 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 ~.m. Assistant Clerk 

John Hibbard read Philippians 1 : 1-11 and led 1n prayer. 
Ron Hunter gave the report of the Media Commission. A pres­

entation was made to Scott Bullman for his hours of labor on the 
He Keeps Me Singing project. A motion carried to receive the report 

and adopt the budget. . 
Kevin Norris (MI) was elected to fill an unexp1red 2002 term on 

the Media Commission. Ron Hunter (TN) was elected to serve a 

five-year term on the Media Commission. . . 
Randy Sawyer gave the report of the Music Comm1ss1on. A 

motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Jerry Carraway (TN) was elected to fill an unexpired 2003 term 

on the Music Commission. Scott Bullman (OK) was elected to serve 

a five-year term on the Music Commission. . . 
Thomas Marberry gave the report of the Historical Comm1ss1on. 

A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Joe McKnight (SC) was elected to serve a five-year term on the 

Historical Commission. 
The derk read Item #4 of the General Boord Report. A motion carried 

to remove this item from the table. A motion carried to adopt Item #4. 
Dean Jones gave the report of the National Youth Conference. 

A motion carried to receive this report as information .. 
Melvin Worthington gave the report of the. Educati?nal Task 

Force. A motion carried to receive this report as mformatlo~. 
The clerk read the Registration Committee report. A mot1on car-

ried to receive the report as information. . 
Melvin Worthington gave the Budget Comm1ttee report. A 

motion carried to receive this report. . . 
The clerk read the Obituary Committee report. A motton earned 

to receive this report. Sigbee Dildo led the convention in prayer. 
The clerk read Item # 1 of the Resolutions Committee report. A 

motion carried to adopt Item # 1 . 
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The clerk read Item #2 f th R I . 
was a motion and second oto ~does~ utlons Committe~ report. There 
amend Item #2 by deleting the .xth p Item #2. A motion carried to 
lowing statement· "Be ,·f f rth Sl I padrahgraph and substituting the fol-
. · u er reso ve t at the f 1 . 

VIde the Publications Committee . . no !ona agenoes pro-
publication's financial costs and ~d~~~nf ~nfhd/lio?, relating to their 
adopt Item #2 as amended carried. IO sc e u es. The motion to 

The moderator appointed the folio . 
Publications Committee: Nathan R wmg ~~ serve on the 
Jim Marcum (NC), Edwin Ho (Q~)Ie (MO), ':~'"'am Smith (GA), 

The clerk read Item #3 ofyeths R a/ n? David Williford (FL). 
· e eso ut1ons Com ·tt 

mot1on carried to adopt Item # 3. m1 ee report. A 

The clerk read the final report of th N . . 
motion carried to receive the report an~ el~~'hatm~· Committee. A 

Carl Cheshier (OK) was elected mod t t e o leers. 
Tim York (KY) era or. 
K .th 8 d was elected assistant moderator. 

el u~ en (OK) was elected clerk · 
~ohn ~ibbard (CA) was elected assi;tant clerk 

mot1on carried to adjourn. · 
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The Executive Secretary's Report 
2000 

The Executive Office continues to operate smoothly. The staff does its 
work efficiently. We applaud the quality work of Steve Pate, Melody Hood, Dari 
Goodfellow, Anne Worthington, Marilyn Pritchard, Altha Keifer and Jack 
Williams. Arme Worthington retired effective December 31, 2000. Angie 
Williams succeeded her. 

The Executive Office represented the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists at 15 Free Will Baptist state/district meetings, the Religious 
Conference Management Association, Christian Stewardship Association 
and the Executive Committee of the International Fellowship of Free Will 
Baptist Churches, Inc. Keith Burden (clerk) represented us at the 
Association of Statisticians of American Religious Bodies. 

The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book: Rejoice and The Rejoice Hymnal For The 
Chwch At Worship are experiencing steady sales. The Free Will Baptist Hymn 
Book: Rejoice may be ordered from Randall House Publications. Tempo Music 
Publications, Inc., distributes The Rejoice Hymnal For The Church At Worship. 

The Free Will Baptist Leadership Conference met December 4-5, 2000, at 
Regal Maxwell House Hotel in Nashville, Tennessee. Speakers Bobby Jackson, 
Frank Ingraham, Keith Burden, Ron Barber and Robert Picirilli developed the 
theme Mobilizing Our Work ... Maximizing Our Walk. William Evans chaired 
a panel consisting of Jim Marcum, Charles Thigpen, Nuel Brown, Edwin 
Hayes, Rick Cash, David Shores, William Smith and Nathan Ruble that dis­
cussed the Responsibility of State Promotional Personnel. 

The 2000 convention in Anaheim, California, went well. Registration 
totaled 4,443, double the 1980 registration in Anaheim. The music, mes­
sages and meetings were outstanding. We commend the California State 
Association of Free Will Baptists for their excellent job hosting the con­
vention. Preparations for the 2001 convention in Detroit, Michigan, are on 
schedule. Convention Manager Dean Jones is making a significant impact 
on the convention planning and preparation process. 

The Executive Committee during its December 2000 meeting in 
Nashville, Tennessee, selected speakers and a theme for the 2001 national 
convention. The theme chosen was While We Wait. The speakers indude 
David Bishop (AR), Danny Dwyer (AL), Leonard Pirtle (OK), Gene Norris 
(MI), CarJisle Hanna (SC) and Patrick McLaughlin (MI). 

The reporting forms (501, 502, 5Q3 and 504) need to be used when reporting 
statistical data These forms are carefully designed to report denominational data 
that enables us to compile accurate statistical information. The reporting forms 
are supplied at no cost and may be ordered from the Executive Office. Perhaps 
we need to be reminded of the following Treatise excerpt (page 59, Section 3): 

It shall be the duty of each body directly affiliated with the National 
Association to send a letter to every annual session of the Association, 
reporting its statistics on a form provided by the National Association. Any 
body which fails to do this for two successive sessions may be dismissed 
from the Association by a majority vote of members present. 

We encourage local church, district and state association derks to take the 
necessary time to accurately fill out these National Association reporting forms. 

Contact provides current information regarding denominational life. 
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----~--------------------... ------------
Lifetime subscriptions cost $500. We now have 25 lifetime subscribers. 
Lifetime subscribers receive a leather-bound copy of the Free Will Baptist 
Hymn Book: Rejoice (1988). We encourage each church to purchase a lifetime 
subscription. Every church should be a Contact subscriber. Complimentary 
copies are provided for students at Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale 
FWB College, California Christian College and Southeastern FWB College. The 
December 2000 distribution of Contact totaled 6,1 06. 

Capital StewardshipN ictory Campaign contributions through June 30, 
2000, totaled $312,557.03. The indebtedness on the National Office build­
ing was paid in full on June 12, 2000. 

The Treatise of.the Faith and Practices of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc., will go back to press after the 2001 Free Will Baptist nation­
al convention. A decision was made to wait until delegates took action 
regarding the proposed name change for Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

The Rest of the Family Offering totaled $13,816.19 through December 31, 2000. 
Gifts for the Executive Office totaled $342,034.29 in 2000. Of this amount, 

$318,81 1.67 was Cooperative and $23,222.62 was Designated The Executive Office 
2000 budget called for $372,000. Gift income left a budget shortfall of $29,966. 

Gifts for national ministries in 2000 totaled $12, 166,581.11 . Per capita giving 
was $61.10. Together Way Plan gifts through the Executive Office totaled 
$3,997,546.86. Of this amount $708,470.54 was Cooperative and $3,289,076.32 
was Designated. We appreciate your sacrificial and systematic support of 
national ministries through The Together Way Plan in 2000. 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

Together Way Totals 
1991 - 2000 

Total 
$7,848,694.01 
$7,832,44 1.46 
$7,864,572.01 
$8,750,648.37 
$8,777,067.71 

Year 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Tracking the Together Way Totals 
(Through The Executive Office) 

Year Designated Cooperative 

1991 $1,1 29,064.33 (+9.04%) 77% $329,050.08 (-0.46%) 23% 
1992 $1,480,84751 (+31.16%) 86% $243,195.98 (-26.09%) 14% 
1993 $1 ,786,527.81 ( + 20.64%) 86% $278,925.67 ( + 14.69%) 14% 
1994 $2,071,80859 ( + 15.97%) 87% $313,198.40 ( + 12.29%) 13% 
1995 $2,128,315.33 (+2.73%) 85% $362,69452 (+15.80%) 15% 
1996 $2,110,182.97 (-0.85%) 85% $375,760.11 (+3.60%) 15% 
1997 $2,775,292.31 ( +31.52%) 86% $442,453.17 ( + 17.75%) 14% 
1998 $3,004,636.43 ( + 8.26%) 83% $608,297.49 ( +37.48%) 17% 
1999 $3,066,552.21 ( + 2.06%) 82% $676,020.36 ( + 11.13%) 18% 
2000 $3,289,076.32 ( + 7.26%) 82% $708,470.54 ( +4.80%) 18% 

The Together Way Totals increase/decrease from 1991-2000: 
Designated 191.31% Cooperative 115.31 % 
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Total 
$9,687,919. 11 

$10,020,229.65 
$11 ,279,076.53 
$11 ,474,176. 13 
$12, 166,581.11 

Total 

$1,458,114.41 (+6.74%) 
$1,724,043.49 ( + 18.24%) 
$2,065,453.48 ( + 19.80%) 
$2,385,006.99 ( + 15.47%) 
$2,49 1,009.85 (+4.44%) 
$2,485,943.08 (-0.20%) 
$3,217,745.48 ( + 29.44%) 
$3,612,933.92 (+12.28%) 
$3,742,572.57 ( +3.59%) 
$3,997,546.86 ( +6.81%) 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Executive Office 
Designated Cooperative 

$ 68,011.64 $191,443.70 
123,182.46 180,694.62 
128,789.88 175,087.19 
111,598.53 214,822.00 
117,223.58 217,616.55 
113,665.59 206,667.60 
100,925.33 221,226.99 

36,680.05 273,733.63 
23,462.71 304,209.03 
23,222.62 318,811.67 

Foreign Missions 
Designated Cooperative 

$ 712,661.39 $31,649.40 
850,776.88 14,375.28 

1 053,812.57 23,882.82 
1:1 79,663.50 22,626.46 
1 219,696.08 33,367.82 
1,164,284.76 38,891.12 
1' 652,641 .OS 50,882.05 
1

1

758,589.14 76,949.58 
1 >95,075.28 85,516.57 
1,939,178.62 89,621.49 

Total 
$259,455.34 

303,877.08 
303,877.07 
326,420.53 
334,840.13 
320,333.19 
322,152.32 
310,413.68 
327,671.74 
342,034.29 

Total 
$ 744,310.79 

865,152.16 
1,077,695.39 
1,202,289.96 
1,253,063. 90 
1,203,175.88 
1,703,523.10 
1,835,538.72 
1,880,591.85 
2,028,800.11 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Designated Cooperative Total 

93,207.93 
96,045.10 

129,418.91 
141,891.02 
191,361.48 
189,023.56 
208,404.73 
322,890.47 
299,035.91 
315,858.23 

$ 61,558.53 $31,64 9.40 $ 
81 ,669.82 14,37 5.28 

105,536.09 23,882.82 
119,264.56 22,626.46 
157,993.66 33,367.82 
150,132.44 38,891.12 
157,522.68 50,882.05 
245,940.89 76,949.58 
213,519.34 85,516.57 
226,236.74 89,621.49 

Home Missions 
Designated Cooperative 
$216,177.42 $24,769.01 

293,769.40 11,250.25 
368,660.04 18,690.90 
442,380.26 17,707.66 
539,687.1 1 26,114.04 
590,400.81 30,436.66 
723,293.97 39,820.70 
824,074.15 60,221.42 
879,042.73 66,926.03 
923,481.04 70,138.52 
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Total 
$240,946.43 

305,019.65 
387,350.94 
460,087.92 
565,801.15 
620,837 .47 
763,114.67 
884,295.57 
945,968.76 
993,619.56 



Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

. Retirement and Insurance 
Des rgnated Coo perative 
$ 6,458.01 $19,264.88 

16,509.81 8,750.10 
12,344.65 14,537.48 

9,579.30 13,772.71 
10,066.31 20,310.94 
1 0,481.55 23,672.89 
13,634.99 30,971.63 

6,654.14 46,838.93 
5• 198.57 52 053 61 
5•677.40 54:552:23 

Master's Men 
Designated Cooperative 
$ 7~31 6.70 $19,264.88 

17,388.70 8 750 1 0 
20,807.95 14,537.48 
20,928.93 13

1

772.71 
22,607.06 20,310.94 
19,034.94 23,672.89 
20,526.60 30:971 :63 

B,734.39 46,838.93 
5,427.86 52,053.61 
5,690.39 54,552.23 

Total 
$25,722.89 

25,259.91 
26,882.13 
23,352.01 
30,377.25 
34,154.44 
44,606.62 
53,493.07 
57,252.18 
60,229.63 

Total 
$26,581.58 

26,138.80 
35,345.43 
34,701.64 
42,918.00 
42,707.83 
51,498.23 
55,573.32 
57,481.47 
60,242.62 

Year ~ree Will Baptist Foundation 
1991 ~es~g;;~eto Cooperative Total 
1992 11,036.40 $ 8 •256-35 $17,512.95 
1993 11 1281.73 3.750- 10 14,786.50 
1994 9, 482.16 6~230·32 17,512.05* 
1995 9 1 927.89 5,902.52 15,384.68 .. 
1996 9,513.75 8,704.77 18,632.66 .. 
1997 131 162.31 10•145-63 19,659.38** 
1998 5, 254.24 13,273.56 26,435.87** 
1999 4 1001.29 20~073.90 25,328.14** 
2000 4,003.99 22,308.66 26,309.95 .. 

•Th· b I ' . 23•379.55 27 383 54** 
IS 0 once represents Notional Ministries orr . t. I • Woy Endowment Fund enng gms of $1,906.99 and gifts of S3 600 00 to th 1i h 

• ' Th" bol · ' · e ogel er 
IS once represents endowment gifts mode through The Together Way that do not benef I Th F d 1 e oun ohon. 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

. Historical Commission 
Destgnated Cooperative 
$ 493.53 $ 688.09 

1,137.01 312 52 
1,1 l 8.66 519:14 

966.21 491.97 
1 , 1 6 1 .46 725 4 1 
1,060.83 845:55 

867.70 1,106.14 
374.95 1 672 88 
288.81 1:859:07 
303.63 1 f 948.34 
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Total 
$1,181.62 

1,449.53 
1,637.80 
1,458. 18 
1,886.87 
1,906.38 
1,973.84 
2,047.83 
2,147.88 
2,251.97 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Commission For Theological Integrity 
Designated Cooperative Total 

$ 542.41 $ 688.09 $1 ,230.50 
1,193.44 312.52 1 ,505.96 
1,267.94 519.14 1,787.08 
1,140.95 491.97 1,632.92 
1 ,296.68 725.41 2,022.09 
1,276.01 845.55 2,121.56 
1,077.90 1,106.14 2,184.04 

635.44 1,672.88 2,308.32 
883.46 1,859.07 2,742.53 

1,213.45 1,948.34 3,161.79 

Media Commission 
Designated Cooperative 

$ 640.71 $ 688.09 
1,042.42 312.52 
1,136.55 519.14 
1,039.04 491.97 
1,113.75 725.41 
1 ,322.22 845.55 

885.05 1,106.14 
3,073.57 1,672.88 

434 .69 1,859.07 
901.82 1 ,948.34 

Music Commission 
Designated Cooperative 

$ 221.71 $ 688.09 
920.26 312.52 

1,01 7.59 519.14 
899.06 491.97 
978.22 725.41 
985.7 4 845.55 
808.02 1,106.14 
378.07 1,672.88 
260.51 1 ,859.07 
214.03 1,948.34 

Total 
$1,328.80 

1 ,354.94 
1 ,655.69 
1,531.01 
1 ,839.16 
2,167.77 
1,991.19 
4,746.45 
2,293.76 
2,850.16 

Total 
$ 909.80 

1,232.78 
1,536.73 
1 ,391.03 
1 ,703.63 
1 ,831.29 
1,914.16 
2,050.95 
2,119.58 
2,162.37 

Thank you for the privilege of serving as executive secretary for the 

National Association of Free W ill Baptists, Inc. 
May God's abundant, abiding and abounding grace be yours as you 

live, labor and look for the return of the Lord Jesus Christ. 

Rejoicing and Resting in the Redeemer, Your Servant, 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D., Ed.D., CMP 
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Statistical Summary 
1988 - 2000 

Beginning 
Year Membership Baptisms Members Members 

Totals Added Lost 

1988 204,382 7,910 12,436 6,454 

1989 210,364 8,678 12,726 7,511 

1990 215,579 7,946 12,537 6,583 

1991 221,533 8,703 12,931 7,240 

1992 227,224 9,283 12,123 7,223 

1993 232,124 8,828 12,246 6,011 

1994 238,359 7,804 12,393 7,508 

1995 243,244 8,089 12,701 6,232 

1996 249,713 8,436 12,155 5,985 

1997 255,883 8,971 11,946 6,660 

1998 261,169 1 0,169 14,089 6,345 

1999 268,913 10,200 13,965 7,715 

2000 275,163 10,549 12,932 5,841 

Totals 115,566 165, 180 87,308 
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Ending 
Net Membership 

Increase Totals 

5,982 210,364 

5,215 215,579 

5,954 221,533 

5,691 227,224 

4,900 232,124 

6,235 238,359 

4,885 243,244 

6,469 249,713 

6,170 255,883 

5,286 261,169 

7,744 268,913 

6,250 275,163 

7,091 282,254 

77,872 
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~~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
1 ~ Certalied Public Accountants 

Terry A Htll 
Eme~t R Harper 

Inde endent Auditors' Re ort 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Brentwood Exl'C\Jtl\·e Center 
7nl Old H1~k"ry ll<'ulevard 
Smte 206 
Brentwood. TN .17027 
TEL: 615/3n-34R!i 

We have audited the statements of financial position of the Executive Office 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 
2000 and 1999 and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibiJity of the Executive Office's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiaJ statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overaJI financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Executive Office of the 
NationaJ Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 2000 and 
1999, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

May 10, 2001 
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XECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
E TION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

NATIONAL ASSOCIA 

Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2000 and 1999 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents . . 
Funds held by Free Will Baptist F oundat10n 

Receivables: 
Hymnal sales 
Other departmental and agency charges 

Total receivables d) 
t lower of cost (frrst-in, firSt-out metho [nventory, a 

or market 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Office equipment and -~rniture 
Less accumulated depreciatiOn 

Net office equipment and furniture 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 
Funds held for other denominational agenctes 
Deferred subscription reve~~~s 

Total current liabthtieS 

Net assets: 
Executive Office 
Net investment in equipment 
Contact Magazine 
Special Projects 
Convention Fund 

Total net assets 

. g notes to financial statements. See accompanym 

2 
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2000 

$168,560 
10,500 

20,912 
6,020 

26,932 

133,654 
36,097 

375,743 

124,427 
108,204 

16!223 
$391,966 

$20,245 

16)40 
36,385 

265,546 
16,223 

(24,417) 
130,008 
(31,779) 
355,581 

$391,966 

1999 

$126,591 
9,000 

36,901 
481 

37,382 

167,352 
36,250 

3761575 

115,055 
1002769 

14!286 
$390,861 

$22,074 
14,559 
201344 
56,977 

237,699 
14,286 

(15,716) 
130,990 
(33,375) 
333,884 

$390,861 



EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Activities and C hanges in Net Assets Statements of Functional Expenses 
For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

Exe<utive Contad Special Convention 2000 1999 
Revenues: Office Magazine Projeds Fund Totals Totals Executive Contact Special Convention 2000 1999 

The Together Way Plan 3,997,547 3,997,547 3,742,572 Office Magazine Projects Fund Totals Totals 
Disbursed to agencies 

and departments (3,655,513} (3,655,513} (3,414,900) Expenses of operations: 
342,034 342,034 327,672 

Subscriptions to Contact Salaries 132,057 14,926 10,594 157,577 145,062 
Magazine 54,1 73 54,1 73 57,205 Housing allowance 42,000 42,000 41 ,000 

Sales of hymnals 49,934 49,934 83,356 Employee fringe benefits Gifts and offerings 3,901 5,919 9,820 9,201 39,820 34,048 
Interest income 10,158 615 10,773 

and general insurance 39,820 
Convention fees 

9,514 Payro ll taxes 20,894 1,142 810 22,846 21 ,364 
15,000 160,682 175,682 130,550 

Other income 22,613 69 110 43,604 66,396 54,281 
11,754 684 6,499 15,613 34,550 25,593 Travel 

Executive Committee 1,631 1,631 7,073 
Total revenues 367,847 70,472 56,433 182,214 676,966 643,091 Occupancy costs 29,892 29,892 29,892 

Depreciation 7,435 7,435 9,389 
Cost of hymnal sales: Legal and audit 1,165 1,090 1,090 1,090 4,435 5,411 

Beginning inventory 
Equipment maintenance 302 302 2,095 

167,352 167,352 212,635 Supplies, office expense 10,094 5,017 198 10,300 25,609 25,025 
Other costs 2,056 2,056 8,915 Printing and promotion 4,636 52,436 30,057 87,129 81,472 

Total cost of inventory 169,408 Postage I mai I services 901 15,003 1,167 615 17,686 18,432 

Less ending inventory 
169,408 221 ,550 Telephone 2,980 30 14 63 3,087 3,260 

133,654 133,654 167,352 
Writer's fees 3,585 3,585 3,559 

Cost of hymnal sales 35,754 35,754 54,1 98 Interest expense 2,518 
43,993 43,993 76,064 Auditorium 

Gross profit 367,847 70,472 20,679 182,214 641 ,212 588,893 Meal functions 13,942 13,942 2,087 

Music 952 952 2,070 
Expenses of operations: Leadership Conference 712 

Executive Office 338,063 338,063 328,443 2,200 1,200 
Contact Magazine 79,173 

International Fellowship 2,200 
79,173 78,566 Educational Task Force 2,454 2,454 6,217 

Special Projects 21,661 21,661 21 ,710 The Together Way Plan 346 346 785 
Convention Fund 180,618 180,618 200,615 16,228 14,606 Auto and copier leases 15,708 520 

Total expenses 338,063 79,173 21 ,661 180,618 619,515 629,334 Other 3,389 1,943 3,014 21,624 29,970 41 ,712 

Increase (decrease) Total expenses $338,063 79,173 21,661 180,618 619,515 629,334 
m net assets 29,784 (8,701) (982) 1,596 21 ,697 (40,441) 

Net assets, beginning 
ofycar 251,985 (15,716) 130,990 (33,375) 333,884 374,325 See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 

Net assets, end of year $281,769 (24,417) 130,008 (31 ,779) 355,581 333,884 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
4 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

2000 1999 

Cash Flows from Opera tine- Activities 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Adjus~ents .to. ~econcile increase (decrease) in net as~e~~,697t 
operatmg act1v1t1es. o ne 

(40,441) 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 7,435 

Receivables 
Inventories I 0,450 
Prepa id expenses 33,698 

153 rncrease (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (I 8?9) 
Funds held for oth d · · ' -er enommanonal agencies ( 14 559) 
Deferred state host fee ' 
Deferred subscription revenue 

( 4,204) 

Net operating activities 
Cash Flows from Jnvestine- Activities 

52,841 

Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 

(I ,500) 
(9,372) 

(I 0,872) 

Cash Flows from Financin2 Activities 

Prepayments of notes payable 

Net financing activities 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See accompany· . mg notes to financial statements. 
5 
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41,969 

126,591 
$168,560 

$-

9,389 

24,836 
45,283 

1,674 

(26,9I9) 
6,647 

(30,000) 
(2,951) 

(12,482) 

(1 ,360) 

(I ,360) 

(67,022) 

(67,022) 

(80,864) 

207,455 
I26,591 

14,053 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31 , 2000 and 1999 

The Executive Office operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Tnc. and is governed by the Executive Committee of the General Board of the National 
Association ofFrce Will Baptists, Inc. 

(1) Summary of Si2nificant Accountin2 Policies 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Executive Office have been prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting. 

The Executive Office follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, 
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No 117, the Executive 
Office is required to rcpo1t infonnation regarding its fmancial position and activities according 
to three classes of net assets unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and per­
manently restricted net assets. In addition, the Executive Office is required to present a state­
ment of cash flows. As permitted by this new statement, the Executive Office has discontinued 
its use of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to present 
the classes of net assets required. Further, the Executive Office adopted SFAS No. 116, 
"Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made," as is required. In accor­
dance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and I or nature of any 
donor restrictions. 

The Executive Office also follows the provisions of an interpretation of SFAS No. 116 
(Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made), Interpretation No. 42, 
"Transfers of Assets in Which a Not-for-Profit Organization Acts as an Agent, Trustee, or 
Intermediary". In accordance with Interpretation No. 42, funds received from donors which 
arc designated by the donor to be transferred to third parties arc accotmted for as liability trans­
actions. (sec note 6) 

Office Equipment and Furniture 
Office equipment and ftuniture are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the useful life of 
the asset using the straight-line method. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and 
betterments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 
The Executive Office is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no pro­
vision for income taxes is made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Executive Office considers all cash funds, 
cash bank accounts and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturi­
ty of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Reco2nition of Subscription Revenue from Contact Ma2azine 
The amount of subscriptions collected are recorded as a liability in the account deferred 
subscription revenues. Revenues are recognized ratably over the life of the subscription. 
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EXECUTIVE OF'F'ICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, 

INC. 
Notes to Fina n cial S tatem ents, continued 

(1) Summ a ry of S i2nifican t Accountin2 Policies, con tinued 
Use of Estim ates 
The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted account­
ing principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabil­
ities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Compe nsated Absen ces 
Employees of the Executive Office are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and per­
sonal days off, depending on job classification, length of service and other factors. It is 
impracticable to estimate the amount of compensation for future absences, and accord­
ingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The 
Executive Office's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actu­
ally paid to employees. 

Presen tation of Fina n cia l S ta tements 
Certain amounts as reported in the 1999 fmancial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to current year presentation. 

(2) Inventory of Hymna ls 
The Executive Office has an agreement with Sunday School and Church Training and 
Randall House Publications ("Randall House"), whereby Randall House warehouses · 
and distributes Free Will Baptist and "generic" hymnals. Further, Randall House invoic­
es the customer, collects funds and remits to the Executive Office $6.32 for each Free 
Will Baptist Hymnal sold. A third party distributor sales the "generic" hymnal and 
remits to the Executive Office approximately $5.00 for each "generic" hymnal sold, at 
which time Randall House is paid an amount equal to 5% of the sales price for shipping 
and handling. 

Randall House, as of December 31, 2000, warehoused hymnals valued at a cost of 
$133,654. 

The leather hymnals remaining from the first printing (approximately 480) valued at 
$24,313 have been transferred to the Contact Magazine Fund and recorded as prepaid 
expenses. These leather hymnals will be given as incentives to subscribers who purchase 
a life time subscription to Contact Magazine. 

(3) Pen sion 
The Executive Office participates in the master pension plan of the Board ofRetirement 
and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan is con­
tributory and is matched up to a maximum of 5% of compensation. Employees may 
participate at date of employment. Pension expenses amounted to $9,038 in 2000 and 
$6,721 in 1999. The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an 
account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant can either 
receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
L ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

NATION A Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(4) Operatin2 Leases . - celable lease arrangements relating to a 
The Executive Office has enter~d mto no~ canenses amounted to $16,228 for 2000 and 
copy machine and two aut?~obtles. Tota exp . d are $14 027 for 200 I; $6,768 for 
$14 606 for \999. The mmtmum payments reqUire ' 
yea;s 2002 through 2004; and $3,384 for 2005. 

. ffi s ace from the National Office Building lo~at-
Further, the Executtve Office rents o tee p . celable with 90 day written nottce. 
ed in Antioch, Tennessee. The lease agreemcnt~~~~n d 1999 
Office lease expense amounted to $29,892 for an . 

(6) T he To2ether Wav Plan . . and disbursing funds received from The 
The Executive Office is responsible ~or rec~tvmgtributions arc disbursed to the named 
Together Way Plan program. Dest~at~ ~~~re disbursed based on the proportionate 

and cooperattve n d d Department or agency, . . these transactions for the year en e 
sharing arrangement. The followmg summanzes 
December 31, 2000 as compared to 1999 totals. 

2000 1999 

Designated Cooperative Total Total 
Receipts: 6,617 6,255 s 4,698 1,919 

Alabama 213 282 3,678 69 
Arizona 184,221 184,658 368,879 388,621 
Arkansas 9,815 13,335 77 9,738 
California 715 12,121 12,836 14,589 
Florida 378,121 19,355 397,476 337,064 
Georgia 102,896 25,195 128,091 117,732 
Illinois 16,056 2,513 18,569 16,430 
Indiana 625 3,476 4,101 3,298 
Iowa 14,800 11 ,944 26,744 21,308 
Kentucky 459 459 9,792 
Maryland 283,204 35,800 319,004 255,635 
Michigan 78,188 6,957 85,145 90,478 
Mississippi 498,275 163,005 661 ,280 653,265 
Missouri 7,150 500 7,650 7,573 
New Mexico 17,222 33,608 50,830 38,567 
North Carolina 158,011 169,252 37,205 206,457 
Ohio 685,744 131,289 817,033 754,290 
Oklahoma 529,158 550 529,708 536,260 
South Carolina 185,282 161 ,909 163,313 21 ,969 
Tennessee 118,623 3,825 122,448 109,374 
Texas 6,922 429 7,351 9,320 
Virginia 20,961 960 21 ,921 31,626 
West Virginia 7,608 141 7,749 3,562 
Canada 642 1,820 600 
Contributions totaling $1,000 or less 1,178 

$3,289,076 708,471 3,997,547 3,742,572 
Total receipts 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAP 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued TISTS, INC. 

(6) The !o2ether Wa):: Plans continued 
Disbursements: 

Executive Office $23,223 318,81 1 
Foreign Missions 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 

1,939,179 89,621 

Home Missions 
226,237 89,621 
923,481 

Retirement & Insurance 
70,142 

5,677 54,552 
Moster's Men 5,690 
Commission for Theological Integrity 

54,552 
1,213 1,948 

Foundation 4,004 23,380 
Historical Commission 304 1,948 
Music Commission 214 
Radio & Television Commission 

1,948 
902 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
1,948 

Other, including the Capitol 
21 ,1 63 

Stewardship Campaign 137,789 

Total disbursements $3,289,076 708,471 
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2002 
Executive Office Budget 

Admin1strohve 
Convention 
Contocf 

2000 
$372,000.00 

1 79,326.88* 
90,400.00 

2001 
$390,000.00 

217,535.25 .. 
93,105.00 

Totals 

*1999 
**2000 

***2001 

$641,726.88 $700,640.25 
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342,034 327,672 
2,028,800 1,880,592 

315,858 299,036 
993,623 945,969 
60,229 57,252 
60,242 57,481 
3,161 2,742 

27,384 26,310 
2,252 2,148 
2,162 2,1 20 
2,850 2,294 

21,163 19,293 

137,789 119,663 

3,997,547 3,742,572 

2002 
$4 11 ,000.00 

240,056.30*** 
93, l 05.00 

$744,161.30 

2002 
Administrative Budget 

Projected Expenses 2000 2001 2002 

Salaries $145,242.39 $154,365.25 $160,775.80 

Housing 42,000.00 45,000.00 46,561.06 

Social Security 23,000.00 23,133.09 24,058.19 

Retirement 6,898.57 7,340.11 7,645.67 

Employees Insurance 24,410.47 28,604.20 37,424.32 

(Dental, Hospital, Life, Travel) 
Auditing/Legal 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

Automobile Lease (2 Cars) 10,237.56 10,355.56 1 1,000.00 

Computer Supplies 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 

Copier Lease 3,843. 71 4,500.00 7,000.00 

Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 

Equipment Purchase/Computer Supplies 4,000.00 4,000.00 10,000.00 

Executive Committee 8,000.00 7,500.00 5,000.00 

General Insurance 4,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

lnternolionol Fellowship of Free Will Baptist Churches 1 ,200.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 

Leadership Conference 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 

Office Rental 29,892.00 29,892.00 29,892.00 

($1.00 per sq. ft. x 2,491) 
Office Supplies/Expense 7,000.00 7,500.00 10,000.00 

Other 2,000.00 796.93 2,452.56 

Postage 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Printing 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 

Promotion 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 

Books/Dues/Registrations 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 

Telephone 3,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 

Together Way Pion/Stewardship Education 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Travel 25,000.00 22,500.00 22,500.00 

Christmas Bonus (Extra Week's Salary) 1 ,695.71 1,852.63 1 1926.68 

Extra Week Retirement in lieu of 4th week vocation 1 ,579.59 2,260.23 2,363.72 

beginning with the 16th year of service.-
Totals $372,000.00 $390,000.00 $41 1,000.00 

Projected Income 

The Together Way Plan 
Cooperative Gifts 
Designated Gifts 

$272,000.00 $300,000.00 $330,000.00 
100,000.00 90,000.00 81,000.00 

Totals 
$372,000.00 $390,000.00 $411 ,000.00 
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Executive Secretary 
Salary 
Housing and Unlities 
Social Security 
Renrement 
Insurance 

TraveVlifEVDisobility 
Hospital 
Dental 

NOTE: Office cor furnished. 

Salary Breakdown 

2000 2001 

529,067.55 (4%} 
26,000.00 (4%} 
8,425.34 (1 5.3%) 
1,453.38 (5%) 
3,585.68 

529,270.25 (4%) 
28,000.00 !4%} 
8,7 62.35 I 5.3%) 
1,463.51 5%) 

5815
_
56 

4,248.6 I 
5894.49 5 2,547.50 3,116_ I 2 520.20 

2002 

530,000.00 ( 4%} 
29,561.06 (4%) 

9, I I 2.84 (15.3%} 
1,500.00 (5%) 
8,3 I 1.20 

222 62 738 7,374.48 
__.L./.JJJ.I..---;::-;;~~-2.3.1 ~0_.._0 -:::;-;--::-:-:-::::--~4w16:u5~:;::-;-:-:-:-::---

568,531.95 571,744.72 578,485.!0 

Administrative Assistant/Contact Editor 
Salary 527,998.08 ( 4%) 528,758.00 (4%} $30,588.32 (4%) Housing and Utilities 
Social Security 
Renrernent 
Insurance 

TraveVlifw'Disobility 
Hospital 
Dental 

NOTE: Office cor furnished. 
Bookkeeper 

Salary 
Social Security 
Renrement 
Insurance 

lifw'Disobility 
Hospital 
Dental 

Editorial Assistant/Secretary 
Salary 
Social Security 
Renrement 
Insurance 

UfEVOisobility 
Hospital 
Dental 

5762.48 
5, I 32.88 

408.24 

$381.12 
4,844.28 

408.24 

5362.04 
2,699.28 

222.60 

I 6,000.00 ( 4%} 
6,731.7 I (15.3%) 
1,399.90 (5%) 
6,303.60 

558,433.29 

5807.54 
5,925.48 

436.39 

$27,376.62 (4%} 
2,094.31 (7.65%} 
1,368.83 (5%} 
5,633.64 

$36,473.40 

5381.12 
5,925.48 

436.39 

526,764.51 (4%) 
2,047.49 (7.65%} 
1,338.23 (5%} 
3,283.92 

$33,434.15 

$362.04 
3,116.12 

238.00 

I 7,000.00 !4%) 
7,000.97 15.3%) 
1,437.90 5%) 
7,169.41 

561,366.28 

5523.67 
7,374.48 

416.52 

$33, 103.9414%) 
2,532.45 7.65%) 
1,655.20 5%) 
6,7 42.99 

$44,034.58 

5396.33 
7,374.48 

416.52 

527,835.0914%) 
2, I 29.38 7.65%) 
1,391.75 5%) 
3,71 6. I 6 

$350.80 
3,878 I 6 

227.16 

I 7,000.00 (4%) 
7,281.01 (I 5.3%) 
1,529.42 (5%) 
8,3 I 4.67 

564,713.42 

$34,428.1 0 ( 4%} 
2,633.75 (7.65%} 
1,721.41 (5%} 
8,187.33 

$46,970.59 

528,948.49 (4%) 
2,2 I 4.56 (7.65%} 
1,447.42 (5%} 
4,456.12 

Yearbook Coordinator/Office Assistant 
So lory 
Social Security 
Rehremenl 
Insurance 

526,764.51 !4%} 
2,04 7.4 9 7.65%) 
1,338.23 5%) 
5,603.63 

535,072.38 

$27,835.0914%} 

$37,066.59 

$28,948.49 ( 4%} 
2,214.56 (7.65%} 
1,447.42 (5%) 
8,155.00 lifEVDisobility 

Hospital 
Dental 

Part-time Help 
Sol~ry (1 04 days) 
Socro I Security 

$351.1 I 
4,844.28 

408.24 
$35,753.86 

$365.16 
5,925.48 

436.39 

57,271.12 $8.7 4 hr.) 
556.24 7.65% 

$7,827.36 
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2, I 29.38 7.65%} 
1,391.75 5%} 
6,727.03 

$38,083.25 

$364.00 
7,37 4.48 

416.52 

57,562.88 $9.09 hr.) 
578.56 7.65% 

$8,141.44 

$40,765.47 

Convention Budget 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

July 15- 19,2001 
Detroit, Michigan 

Projected Expenditures 

Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
Convention Office 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
Lodging 

Convention Officials 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Fundons 
Execu~ve Committee 

1999 
Atlanta 

$59,500.00 
29,332.75 
19,891.00 
10,038.85 

2,376.00 
2,682.00 
4,980.85 

12,492.28 
2,900.00 

22,147.00 
2,925.00 
2,100.00 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 18,000.00 

2000 
Anaheim 

2001 
Detroit 

$67,350.00 $67,975.00 
28,997.00 41 ,087.50 
36,600.00 36,340.00 
16,022.00 12,275.00 

2,805.00 3,708.00 
8,404.50 3,746.20 
4,812.50 4,820.80 

14 '184.50 10,930.05 
2,900.00 2,550.00 

17,103.00 25,195.00 
3,128.75 3,128.75 
3,150.00 3,375.00 

16,600.00 16,000.00 

Sub-Total 179,326.88 206,035.25 218,856.30 
Notional Committee Expenses 0.00 11,500.00 21,200.00 ---------------------------------

Total $ 179,326.88 

Projected Receipts 
Booth Fees $24,075.00 
Stole Assoc. Represenlonon Fees (SSO peHhurch) 56,050.00 
local Church Delegate fees (550) 1 ,700.00 
Host State (Michigan) 30,000.00 
Offerings 67,501.88 

Total $ 1 79,326.88 
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$217,535.25 $240,056.30 

$11,050.00 
123,800.00 

2,500.00 
15,000.00 
65,185.25 

$ 217,535.25 

$24,500.00 
123,600.00 

3,750.00 
35,000.00 
53,206.30 

$ 240,056.30 



. Convention Budget Tobles!Chouv 1999 2000 2001 

National Association of Free Will Baptists I Tmsh Cons, ell (Office) 1,316.00 1,400.00 1,740.00 

July 15-19, 2001 ' nc. T~epoone 80000 800.00 1,00000 

Detroit, Michigan OunrY:J CofMllltioo {Office) 500.00 500.00 650.00 

Pie/Post Comeotion 300.00 300.00 35000 

Projected Receipts 1999 2000 
Office bpellSI'/SupptJeS 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,500 00 

Booth Fees s 24,075 00 
2001 Postage 800.00 800.00 80000 

Stote Assoc. Representotion Fees ($50 per church) 56,050.00 
5 11,050.00 s 24,500.00 

M~collnstrumen~ Rentol ooo Service 1,575.00 1,600.00 1,400.00 

local Church Delegate Fees ($50) 1,700.00 
123,800 00 123,600.00 

PionWTuning 425.00 425.00 100.00 

Host Stole (MIChigan) 30,000.00 
2,500.00 3,750.00 

for~ih 150.00 17500 0.00 

Offerings 67 501.88 
I 5,000.00 35,000.00 

Organ Shipping 0.00 700.00 1,000.00 

Total S179,326 88 
65 I 85.25 53,206.30 

Music 1,000.00 300.00 300.00 

$217.535.25 Total 519,891.00 536,600.00 536,340.00 

Projected Expenditures 
S240,056.3o 

Convention Personnel 
Auditorium 

Rentol 526,500.00 
Meals 

Meeting Rooms $20,500.00 $10,500.00 
Oori Goodfellow {27 meols @ $12.00 each} s 264.00 5 264.00 5 324.00 

0.00 
Convention Bonner 000 Melody Hood (30 meok @ 512.00 each} 330.00 

0.00 
0.00 

363.00 360.00 

Flowers 150.00 
0.00 150.00 

Oeon Jooos (36 meols@ $12.00 ooch} 0.00 0.00 432 00 

Police Security 5,000.00 
150.00 150.00 

Steve Pole {21 roools@ 512.00 ooch} 198.00 264.00 252.00 

Convention To pes 5,000.00 fu¥Jie Williams (24 mook@ 512.00 ooch} 000 000 288.00 

250.00 
5,000.00 

Other 27,600.00 
250.00 300.00 

Jock Williams (27 roools@ 512.00 eoch) 396.00 396.00 324.00 

Music Stood Rental (OecoiOior) 1,800.00 
41,450.00 Anne Worthu¥Jton (24 meok@ $12.00 ooch) 297.00 297.00 288.00 

51,875.00 

Souoo S~terr/AV Equipment 24,000.00 
200.00 900.00 

Melvin WorthirY:Jion (36 roook@ 512.00 ooch) 39600 39600 432.00 

25,000.00 
Uster Badges 200.00 36,20000 Convenhon Interns (8) 0.00 0.00 1,008.00 

lrob,ASCAP,BMI,Ins 1,00000 
200.00 200.00 Ple-Registmlion 19800 231.00 0.00 

1,000.00 
First ftJd Stoff O.OO 500.00 Office W01ker 297.00 297.00 0.00 

Courtesy Cor 150.00 
1,500.00 1,500 00 SecUtity Officer 000 297.00 ooo · 

Offering Bucke~ 200 00 
150 00 150.00 Total SZ.J76.QQ S2,805.00 SJ.Z08.00 

Signs 250.00 
0.00 25.00 

400.00 
Travel 

Union Personnel o:oo 400.00 
Total 

13 000.00 
Oori Goodfellow 5186.00 $209.00 $195.70 

$59,500.00 S6n5o.oo 
12,000.00 Melody Hood 186.00 230.00 195.70 

$67,975.00 
Printing and Promotion 

Oeon Jones 0.00 0.00 195.70 

Publicity/Art Work/Brochure $14,000.00 
Steve Pote~rons.Coord.,ren1ol) 1,500.00 6,000.00 2,500.00 

Photos $16,000 00 $25,000.00 
Meals on rood (6 mools@ 512.00 each) 66.00 831 .00 72.00 

500.00 
Convention Materials 200.00 fu¥J11! Williams 0.00 0.00 195 70 

I 1,332.75 
200.00 

Progmrns 2,800.25 
9,297.00 Jock Williams 186.00 23000 195.70 

12,387.50 

Song SheeWCru lrcense 1,000.00 
1,955 00 3,162.50 

Anne Worthington 18600 230.00 0.00 

D1gest of Repom 7,532.50 
50000 60000 

Melvin WorthirY:Jton 18600 230.00 19570 

Pie-ConventiOn PJ~ntiiXJ 3,500.00 
6,842 00 8,625.00 

Office W01ker 186.00 0.00 000 

(Surdoy CN~ pre-prin~ copier reimb 
3,500.00 3,500.00 

Pless Officer 000 214.50 0.00 

Total ' · --- Seruuty Olfi<er 000 230.00 0.00 

$29,332.75 $28,997 00 Total 52,682 00 $8,404 so 53.746 20 

Convention Office 
$41,087.50 

Convention Manager $0.00 

lodging 

Pie-Registration Coordinator 0.00 
$12,000.00 515,000.00 

llon Goodf~low (8 mghlS @ 5132J5) 51,277 01 51,237.50 $1,058.00 

Reg~tro~orv'Pre-Reg (Supplies, Pstg.) 
3,000.00 

Melody Hood (9 nigh~@ 5132.25) 1,418.90 1,375.00 1, I 90.25 

5,000.00 
3,000.00 

Registration ComputerVP11nters 
7,500.00 Oeon Jooos 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3,000.00 
4,500.00 

Po per and Printing Supplies 3,000 00 
Steve Pole (8 nigh~ @ S 125.3 5) 1,007.93 1,100.00 1,002.80 

1,000.00 
3,000.00 

Equipment Rentals 400.00 
Angie Williams (7 nights @ 57 4.7 5) 0.00 0.00 523.25 

4,216.00 
400.00 

Cop1ers (2)/Poper 4,000.00 
Jock Williams 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Typewriters (2) 
1,700.00 2,100.00 

4,740.00 Melvin Worthington 0.00 0.00 0.00 

200.00 
3,000.00 

Computers, Printers-
0.00 0.00 

Convention Interns (14 nights @ 57 4.75) 000 0.00 1,046.50 

OfficP/Registrolton 1,000.00 
Office W01ker - 1,27701 1,100.00 0.00 

500.00 0.00 
Total (lndooes Applicable Tax ooo Por~ng) 54,980 85 54,812.50 54,820.80 
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1999 2000 2001 Decorator Services 
52,600.00 513,125.00 

Convention Officials 1999 2000 2001 
Booth (7 ~ lnslolklfKxV'IAop! Toblestbfibn HoD Reolol $1 4,455.00 

4,380.00 2,248.00 10,139.00 
Moderator -Corl Cheshier 52,252.94 $3,080.00 $2,541.00 Stoge 

1,600.00 8,539.00 500.00 

Travel 620.00 975.00 759.00 
S~rtinw'Dropinw'Stoge Set -Up 

200.00 180.00 
(From OkkJI'Omo Gly, OK kl Delroo, Ml) 

S~~ ToblwChairs 148.00 
900.00 3,500.00 0.00 

(2,200 miles@ 5.345 per mile) 

Carpet 
500.00 500.00 200.00 

Meols (27 meols@ $1 2.00 each) 297.00 330.00 324.00 
HarYJing Bonner 

0.00 000 0.00 
lodging (8 nights@ 5132.25) 935.94 1,375.00 1,058.00 

Ustfr Room Rental 
300.00 300.00 300.00 

Honorarium 400.00 400.00 400.00 Exhibitor Badges 
1,344 00 1,334.00 2,000.00 Convention Office ~m-woy radio) 

2,730 00 5,390.00 

Clerk -Keith Burden 2,252.94 3,080.00 2,339.75 
3,800.00 Regrslro1ion 

3,000.00 

TrtMI (From Ttlso, OK to lklroit, Ml) 620.00 975.00 690.00 
1,920.00 500.00 Counters 

1,340.00 

(2,000 miles @ $.345 per mile) 

880.00 800.00 S~~Tobles 
850.00 60000 

Meo~ (27 meo~@ $12.00 eoch) 297.00 330.00 324.00 
Choirs 500.00 

300.00 

lodging (7 nights@ 5132.25) 935.94 1,375.00 925.75 
Electridty/MoskirYJ Dmpe 300.00 300.00 

150.00 

Honorarium 400.00 400.00 400.00 
Easei1Trosh Co~Corpel 200.00 280.00 

$25,195.00 522,147.00 $17,103.00 
Assistant Moderator -Tim York 1,133.94 1,193.50 1,045.50 Total Meols (21 meols@ $12.00 each) 198.00 231.00 252.00 

Meal Functions 
51,000.00 

lodgrng (6 nights @ $132.25) 935 94 962.50 793.50 
5838.50 $1,000.00 Executive CommiHee 

25000 250.00 250.00 

Assistant Clerk -John Hibbard 1,133.94 1,193.50 1,045.50 Coffee Breok.s (2) 
750.00 750.00 

Mools (21 meo~@ $12.00 eoch) 198.00 23100 252.00 
Luncheon (30 people@ $25.00) 588.50 

882.75 893.75 893.75 

lodging (6 nights@ 5132.25) 935.94 962.50 793.50 
Generol Boord Brookbst (55 poople@ $162~ 

73115 73115 SkJ1e ~ Brookfost (45 J8lPe@ S 16 2~ 722.25 
406.25 406.25 

Music Coordinator -Randy Sawyer 461.97 1,100.00 448.50 
State Exec.Sec/Pmmo.Oirectors' Breokfust 401 .25 

lodging (6 nights@ $74.75) 

(25 people@ $16.25) 
97.50 97.50 80.25 

Organist -Jamie Patrick 769.95 1,100.00 626 75 Pres~ents' Breokfust (6 ~@ $161~ lodgrng (5 nights @ $125 35) 

$3,128.75 $3,128.75 $2,925.00 Total Photographer -Donny Conn 709.45 825.00 626.75 Executive Committee lodging (5 nights @ $125.35) 

Meol ond Motel Expenses . . ) Pianist -Jerry Carraway 923.94 687 so 75210 (For the Executive CommiHee MeefirYJ prior to the 2001 Notional Convenfion . 
$350.00 Gene Norris $375.00 Gene Norris $350 00 Gene Noms 

Nothon Rub~ 375.00 

lodging (6 nights @ $125.35) 

Nathoo Ruble 350 00 Nathan Ruble 350.00 
Jock RicOO( 350 00 Jock Richey 35000 Rid Cosh 375.00 

Press Officer 851.34 962.50 000 lodging 

35000 Glen Johnson 375.00 Delmar Spork.s 350.00 Delmar Sparks 
350.00 David Joslin 375.00 David Joslin 350.00 David Joslin 

Registration Coordinator 1,077 93 0.00 000 lodging 
350.00 Charles Thigpen 375.00 Charles Thigpen 350.00 Charles Thigpen 

J.L Gore 375.00 J.L Gore 350.00 
Millard Sossel 350.00 Ernest Harrison, Jr. 375.00 

Toping -Mike Anderson 0.00 0.00 75210 lodging (6 nights @ $125.35) 

Ooice McAlister 350.00 Doice McAiistel 375.00 
52,100.00 $3,150.00 $3,375.00 Total 

Usher Coordinator - Raymond lee 923.94 962.50 752.10 lodging (6 nights @ S I 25 35) 

Pre-Convention Expenses 
$1 4,000.00 $16,000.00 

Total (Includes opplicoble fox and por~ng) 512,492.28 $14,184.50 51 o, 930.05 
Pre-Convenfion MeefingvSite Inspections 518,000.00 

000 Adwnce Convenhon Center Deposi1s 000 2,600.00 
$16,000.00 $18,000.00 $16,600.00 

Honorariums 

Total John MoX'Mlll $2,000.00 H B. larxfon $2,000 00 Glories Wolden 5175.00 Tim Thompson 15000 fuul Kennedy 150.00 Oovrd BISOOp I 75.00 
National CommiHee Expenses 

SO.OO SO.OO $8,000.00 

Oiff Donoho 150.00 Winston Sweeney 150.00 Donny IN.yer 175.00 
Edurotioool Task F01ce CommiHee 

10,000.00 12,000.00 000 

Donny Williams 150.00 Ed Cook 15000 leonard Pirtle 175.00 
Executive Commrttee 

200.00 0.00 0.00 

Kent Bo!Yilck 150.00 Doug King I 50.00 Gene Norris 175.00 
Notional Boord Chairman CommiHee 

1,000.00 0.00 1,500.00 

Roger Hogan 150.00 TimONen 150.00 Carlisle Honno 175.00 
Nominating Commntee 

521 200.00 SO.OO $11 500.00 

Rob Margan 150.00 David Shoms 150.00 fur Mcla~hlin I ,500 00 
Total 

Total 
$2,90000 52,90000 S2,5so.oo 
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2002 
Contact Budget 

Projected Expenses 2000 2001 

Pnnting $50,000.00 
Postage 13,000.00 
Art 2,000.00 
Writers' Fees and Photos 4,000.00 
Promotion 3,500.00 
Computer Services/Supplies 3,500.00 
Moi l Services 5,000.00 
Telephone 200.00 
Office Supplies 3,000.00 
Travel 2,000.00 
Books/Dues/Registrations/ 

Bound Copies 2,000.00 
Audit 1,000.00 
Other 1,200.00 
Convention Truck 0.00 

Total Expenses $90,400.00 

Projected Income 
Convention coverage $ 13,000.00 
Subscriptions 77,400.00 

Total Income $90,400.00 

*Three issues 

$50,000.00 
15,000.00 

1,500.00 
4,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,500.00 
5,000.00 

200.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 

2,500.00 
1,000.00 
1,205.00 

200.00 

$93, 105.00 

$15,000.00 
78,105.00 

$93,105.00 

**Based on 5,207 subscriptions @ $15.00 per year 
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2002 

$50,000.00 
15,000.00 

1,700.00 
4,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,500.00 
5,000.00 

200.00 
3,000.00 
2,500.00 

2,500.00 
1,500.00 
1,005.00 

200.00 

$93,105.00 

$15,000.00* 
78,1 05.00** 

$93,105.00 

2001 
Gift Goals for Executive Office 

States Membership 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 

18,881 
283 

20,443 
2,904 

280 
204 

5,972 
9,426 

54 

Louisiana 
Mid-Atlantic Assoc. 

245 
3,467 

0 
234 

15,7 45 
72 

795 
0 

2,969 
3,423 

Mexico 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Northeast Assoc. 
Northwest Assoc. 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Puerto Rico 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virgin Islands 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 

Totals 

15,227 
16 

0 
43 

20,120 
196 
320 

10,019 
21 ,944 

70 
5,821 

0 
21 ,784 

2,096 
0 

6,775 
9,271 

35 

199,134 

Gift Goals Per Person 

A- 49 

Gift Goals 

$36,978.08 
554.26 

40,037.22 
5,687.43 

548.37 
399.53 

11 ,696.04 
18,460.63 

105.76 
479.83 

6,790.05 
.00 

458.28 
30,836.27 

141 .01 
1,556.99 

.00 
5,814.73 
6,703.88 

29,821 .78 
31 .34 

.00 
84.21 

39,404.62 
383.86 
626.71 

19,622.01 
42,976.89 

137.09 
11 ,400.31 

.00 
42,663.53 

4,104.97 
.00 

13,268.70 
18,157.07 

68.55 

$390,000.00 

$1.96 



)>
 

V
I 

0 

I 

20
00

 
Th

e 
T

o
g

et
h

er
 W

ay
 P

la
n

 G
ift

s/
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

O
ff

ic
e 

Co
__

op
_e

ra
tiv

e 
Ye

ar
 T

o 
D

at
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
M

ar
ch

 
Ap

ril
 

M
ay

 
Ju

ne
 

Ju
ly

 
Au

gu
st

 
Se

(!t
em

be
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 
No

ve
m

be
r 

De
ce

m
be

r 
To

ta
ls

 
Al

ab
am

a 
s 

00
 

s 
21

4.5
3 

s 
56

.57
 

s 
4.5

0 
s 

13
6.0

9 
s 

12
0.9

9 
s 

.00
 

s 
99

.60
 

s 
33

15
 

s 
64

.41
 

s 
72

.65
 

s 
61

.22
 
s 

86
3.7

1 
Ar

iZo
na 

00
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

57
 1

5 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
38

.70
 

.00
 

95
.85

 
Alk

a11
50s

 
9,1

04
.73

 
4,0

03
.66

 
6,5

52
.71

 
6,7

36
.53

 
10

,42
8 9

8 
4,0

36
.34

 
10

,2
44

 29
 

5,7
10

.33
 

8,
37

03
9 

3,8
15

.46
 

8,2
32

.56
 

5,8
60

32
 

83
,09

6.3
0 

Ca
lifo

rni
a 

42
5.2

9 
57

0.5
7 

00
 

52
9.8

0 
50

8.5
6 

53
6.2

4 
43

8 2
0 

41
7.

24
 

00
 

54
2 2

7 
00

 
41

3.8
5 

4,3
82

.02
 

Co
 no

d a
 

.00
 

.00
 

12
.69

 
4.7

1 
12

.77
 

2.9
7 

6.
14

 
4.8

1 
4 0

1 
4.

10
 

5 9
5 

5.1
4 

63
.29

 
Flo

nd
o 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

2,7
00

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

2,7
54

.32
 

5,4
54

.32
 

Ge
org

ia 
1,0

11
.78

 
90

0.6
4 

60
9.4

3 
87

4.
60

 
75

6.6
5 

.00
 

1,4
02

.43
 

91
0.4

8 
41

8.8
7 

74
6.2

5 
52

4.3
0 

55
4 2

3 
8,7

09
.66

 
Illi

no
is 

82
8.

14
 

1,4
27

.18
 

72
08

0 
79

8.6
9 

7 6
6.4

2 
1,1

65
.44

 
81

9.0
2 

1,0
19

 52
 

90
3.8

9 
54

0.9
5 

1,1
67

95
 

1,
17

9.9
6 

11
,33

7 9
6 

Ind
ian

a 
53

 5
7 

56
 34

 
59

.66
 

71
.00

 
37

9.7
 6 

.00
 

11
1.9

2 
00

 
76

62
 

54
 4

5 
26

7 6
0 

00
 

1,1
30

.92
 

Iow
a 

52
1.4

6 
.00

 
.00

 
36

9 0
0 

.00
 

00
 

.00
 

34
6.2

5 
.00

 
00

 
32

76
5 

.00
 

1,5
64

.36
 

Ka
nsa

s 
10

6.9
7 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

73
.35

 
.00

 
.00

 
38

.84
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

00
 

21
9.1

6 
Ke

ntu
cky

 
22

67
1 

78
9.8

3 
63

7.4
2 

20
12

9 
53

3.6
0 

41
6.8

7 
47

2.0
3 

84
2.6

4 
18

3.1
4 

18
2.4

1 
45

1.2
1 

43
7 

50
 

5,3
74

 65
 

lou
isi

an
a 

00
 

00
 

00
 

69
.75

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
00

 
69

 75
 

M
ary

lan
d 

00
 

00
 

59
 0

6 
88

59
 

.00
 

59
.06

 
.00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
20

6.7
1 

M
ich

iga
n 

2,2
71

 0
4 

1,7
10

81
 

1,
10

6.6
6 

23
4 9

0 
3,3

29
 82

 
96

3.9
1 

88
6.0

9 
1,5

45
 91

 
1,

14
9.6

6 
25

9 6
5 

1,9
24

 61
 

72
6.7

5 
16

,10
9 8

1 
Mi

ssi
ssi

pp
i 

25
4.

47
 

50
0.3

6 
.00

 
48

2.6
4 

49
4.

51 
.00

 
16

3.8
5 

12
8.7

 6 
40

6.8
9 

28
8 7

3 
12

9.
59

 
28

0.7
3 

3,1
30

.53
 

Mi
sso

uri
 

6,6
74

.30
 

5,4
76

.00
 

6,7
39

.13
 

5, 9
83

.40
 

6,8
44

.06
 

5,5
03

.46
 

6,0
01

.80
 

7,4
37

.20
 

5,2
50

.35
 

5,4
19

.26
 

6,5
76

.41
 

5,4
46

.69
 

73
,35

2.
06

 
Ne

wM
ex1

co 
77

1 
26

.52
 

00
 

48
01

 
12

.03
 

18
.36

 
40

.88
 

.00
 

34
.08

 
.00

 
22

.48
 

14
.73

 
22

4 8
0 

No
rth

 C
aro

lin
a 

1,0
69

 86
 

1,0
87

.32
 

93
6.5

6 
1,0

20
15

 
74

8.
55

 
97

7.
18

 
1,2

97
.48

 
1,5

38
 33

 
1,2

78
.63

 
1,4

00
.79

 
1,1

70
.40

 
2,5

98
 44

 
15

,1
23

69
 

No
rth

eo
sl 

As
soc

iat
ion

 
00

 
.00

 
00

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
No

rth
we

st 
As

soc
ioh

on
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

Oh
io 

72
3.3

5 
2,8

64
.66

 
62

0.3
2 

1,2
33

.06
 

1,7
37

 09
 

1,1
15

 54
 

1,3
54

.79
 

1,7
32

.43
 

83
2.0

7 
1,5

36
.97

 
.00

 
2. 9

91
 8

5 
16

,74
2.

13
 

Ok
lo h

om
o 

4,2
67

 2
8 

4,3
24

 66
 

4,7
16

.20
 

4,7
74

.64
 

5,0
20

.32
 

4,2
70

.61
 

7,8
65

.48
 

5,8
41

.27
 

3,3
21

.06
 

4,3
47

.10
 

5,3
53

.15
 

4,9
78

 4
3 

59
,08

0.2
0 

So
uth

 C
aro

lin
a 

.00
 

.00
 

00
 

00
 

59
.37

 
00

 
56

.90
 

42
.00

 
23

.14
 

00
 

66
.10

 
00

 
24

7.5
1 

Te
nn

ess
ee 

1,3
22

.20
 

55
4 9

0 
19

33
7 

1,0
90

 O
S 

89
00

3 
67

8.4
0 

1,7
97

 01
 

81
60

9 
44

7.8
1 

93
6.4

5 
80

9.4
5 

35
0 0

8 
9,8

85
 84

 
Te

xas
 

13
8.9

2 
13

8.5
2 

13
8.3

7 
19

3.6
8 

11
39

2 
15

6.7
8 

13
1 

15
 

73
.35

 
16

4.8
4 

11
8.7

6 
12

9.8
7 

22
3.3

1 
1,7

21
.47

 
Vi

rgi
nia

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
00

 
74

.95
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

59
.06

 
59

.06
 

.00
 

19
3 0

7 
W

est
 V

ira
mi

a 
51

.55
 

21
.60

 
36

.02
 

68
.11

 
17

.39
 

38
.73

 
44

.25
 

17
.11

 
30

.32
 

22
.50

 
45

 28
 

39
.04

 
43

1.9
0 

To
ta

ls
 

$2
9,0

59
.33

 
$2

4,6
68

.1
0 

$2
3,1

94
.97

 
$2

4,8
77

 1
0 

$3
2,8

63
 27

 
$2

2,8
35

 83
 

$3
3,1

90
.86

 
$2

8,5
62

 1
6 

$2
2,9

28
.92

 
$2

0,3
39

.57
 

$2
7,3

74
.97

 
$2

8,9
16

.59
 

$3
18

,81
1.

67
 

20
00

 
T

h
e 

T
o

g
et

h
er

 W
ay

 P
la

n 
G

ift
s/

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ff
ic

e 
D

es
ia

n
at

ed
 

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

St
at

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

M
ar<

h 
Ap

ril
 

M
ay

 
Ju

ne
 

Ju
ly

 
Au

gu
st 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
O

da
be

r 
N

ov
em

be
r 

D
et

em
be

r 
To

tal
s 

Ala
bo

mo
 

I 
12

3.6
4 

I 
12

4.7
7 

I 
14

6.9
1 

I 
Oil

 
I 

37
1 

08
 

I 
16

8 1
7 

I 
16

7.1
9 

I 
17

2.4
4 

I 
11

4.1
9 

I 
31

3.7
1 

I 
22

 39
 

I 
14

3.1
3 

I 
1,8

68
. 42

 
AIO

o n
o 

Oi
l 

00
 

00
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

~~
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

• 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
Co

ldo
nio

 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.O

il 
. 00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
Co

no
lo 

.00
 

.00
 

9.9
1 

4.9
8 

4 9
7 

1.0
 I 

I 0
1 

1.0
 I 

1.0
\ 

4.9
1 

4.8
1 

4 8
7 

14
.13

 
flo

i<l
o 

.00
 

.00
 

I 0
0.0

0 
00

 
Oil

 
11

2.
91

 
.00

 
.O

il 
21

4.6
4 

00
 

.00
 

.O
il 

42
7 .I

I 
Go

org
iu 

27
.82

 
19

 28
 

26
.87

 
3\

.98
 

36
.98

 
.00

 
48

.31
 

27
.66

 
26

.21
 

24
.71

 
19

.88
 

21
.68

 
33

1.4
6 

Illi
nO

IS 
00

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.\ll

l 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
In

 diu
 no

 
Oil

 
00

 
.00

 
. O

il 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.O

il 
.00

 
.00

 
. 00

 
.00

 
.00

 
I~ 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

M
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

~
~~~

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
\lo

ltu
dy

 
00

 
. O

il 
.00

 
16

1.
18

 
. O

il 
.00

 
. 00

 
.00

 
3 7

 4.
 48

 
Oil

 
Oil

 
. O

il 
93

9.
66

 
~ 

I U>
uis

ion
o 

00
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

20
.00

 
.00

 
.O

il 
00

 
40

 00
 

00
 

2 0
 00

 
I 0

. 00
 

90
 00

 
Mn~lo

nd 
00

 
00

 
.00

 
. 00

 
. 00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
. O

il 
. 00

 
. 00

 
.00

 
00

 
Mi

rhi
go

n 
Oil

 
00

 
.00

 
.O

il 
.00

 
.00

 
00

 
Oil

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
6\il.s

sip~ 
21

 00
 

10
 00

 
.00

 
10

.00
 

21
.00

 
Oil

 
21

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

21
.00

 
00

 
so 

00
 

21
0 0

0 
Mi

siO
Uri

 
.00

 
00

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.Oi

l 
Ne

w 
Me

oir
o 

.00
 

00
 

00
 

. 00
 

Oil
 

. O
il 

.00
 

.00
 

.00
 

Oil
 

. 00
 

.00
 

.00
 

No
rth

 Co
rol

ino
 

64
6 9

1 
19

0 6
2 

17
8.2

9 
17

3.7
1 

16
6.9

1 
12

0.4
4 

16
0.0

0 
41

7 
19

 
41

7.
31

 
20

7.
10

 
30

4.0
0 

22
2.9

0 
3,6

41
.90

 
No

rllo
oO

 M
>o

rro
lio

n 
00

 
00

 
. 00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
Oil

 
.00

 
. O

il 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
NO

OW
 

As
sor

iot
ion

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
Oil

 
. 00

 
.00

 
00

 
.00

 
.00

 
.00

 
. O

il 
.00

 
Oh

O
 

31
 00

 
20

.00
 

10
.00

 
10

.00
 

10
.00

 
81

 O
il 

I 0
.00

 
10

.00
 

10
.00

 
81

.00
 

.00
 

41
.00

 
33

0.0
0 

Ok
lah

o11
111

 
21

.00
 

25
.00

 
.00

 
25

.00
 

25
.00

 
.00

 
25

.00
 

.00
 

25
00

 
25

00
 

.00
 

25
.00

 
20

0.0
0 

So
uth

 C
oro

lin
o 

12
3.4

4 
.O

il 
80

9.7
 5

 
4 6

3.5
 7 

74
6.6

 7 
.00

 
39

9 9
2 

83
8.7

2 
2 6

1 
I 0

 
Oil

 
9 4

\.2
3 

.00
 

4, 5
84

 40
 

le
nn

ess
ee 

1,2
62

.32
 

7 4
5 9

0 
57

0 
64

 
30

4.
39

 
78

8 8
2 

7 6
9 9

2 
69

2 1
0 

59
6 8

6 
42

0 2
9 

I,
 12

7.9
2 

40
8.3

7 
I, 1

77
.38

 
8,8

64
.91

 
l•m

s 
68

 6
4 

59
.96

 
58

.66
 

60
.59

 
51

63
 

54
 57

 
55

 02
 

45
.22

 
12

9 
47

 
66

 33
 

44
.98

 
53

.97
 

7 4
9.0

4 
Vir

gin
iu 

00
 

3 7
. 48

 
78

.80
 

.00
 

88
.79

 
30

 I
I 

. 00
 

84
.3 5

 
38

.95
 

.00
 

44
 09

 
.O

il 
40

2.
61 

W
esl

 V.~i
nio 

38
.33

 
38

.33
 

38
 33

 
38

 33
 

38
 33

 
38

 3
3 

38
.33

 
38

 33
 

38
 33

 
31

 0
7 

34
 1

0 
69

.40
 

48
0.

14
 

-
-
~
 

12
,37

 6.
10

 
11

,32
1.

34
 

52
,02

8.1
6 

II
 ,72

7.7
7 

12
,37

4 2
2 

II
 ,78

4.
10

 
11

.62
6.3

6 
12

,27
5.7

8 
12

, ll
5 

46
 

II
 ,9\

1 
IS

 
II

 ,85
4 4

5 
II

 ,82
7.3

3 
12

3,2
22

.62
 

To
ta

ls
 



l>
 

V
1 .....
, l>

 

V
1 w
 

T
h

e 
T

o
g

et
h

er
 W

a
y

 G
if

t 
G

o
al

s 
-

20
01

 

ltt
llr

tm
tn

l 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
fo

r 
ht

cV
liv

e 
fo

r*
gn

 
H

om
e 

an
d 

M
al

ltf
's

 
FW

B 
Th

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
H

bl
or

ic
ol

 
M

uJ
ic 

M
.d

ia
 

S1
a1

es
 

M
em

be
rsh

ip
 

O
ffl

ct
 

M
iss

io
ns

 
FW

BB
C 

M
ilf

io
ns

 
ln

su
fll

n<
t 

M
en

 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

In
te

gr
ity

 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
W

NA
C 

NY
C

 
To

tal
s 

~.
 

10
01

8u
:!

~ 
S3

90
.0

0l
00

 
57

,09
0,0

03
 00

 
51

.20
0,0

00
00

 
$4

.50
0.0

00
 00

 
SJ

'IH
&

aO
O 

52
18

,43
7 0

0 
5m

.1
oo

oo
 

52
,0

>0
0 

54
,0

>0
0 

54
6,3

75
 00

 
52

00
,00

10
0 

S2
42

, '1
00

 0
0 

58
5.0

01
00

 
Sl

4 
4'1

6.0
83

 oo
 

100
111

 

IJo
bam

o 
18

.88
1 

S3
6.'

17
8 0

8 
S6

72
.24

2S
4 

51
13

.77
8 6

6 
S4

26
,66

'1 
'18

 
S3

7,8
94

 7
4 

S2
0.7

11
22

 
S1

1,0
08

 09
 

52
65

 48
 

S4
55

 11
 

S4
.J'I

7 0
7 

Sl
8.

96
31

1 
S2

3.0
30

 70
 

58
.05

9 3
2 

Sl
,37

4.4
54

 1
0 

9
4
8
~
 

l.-
o1

11
11

 
28

3 
5

sm
 

10
,07

5 9
8 

1.7
05

 38
 

6,3
95

 1
9 

s6
m

 
31

04
3 

16
50

0 
39

8 
68

2 
65

 91
 

28
4 2

3 
34

5 2
0 

12
0 6

0 
20

.60
11

7 
14

'~
 

Al
kr.

ll\0
! 

20
,44

3 
40

,03
7 2

2 
12

7.8
56

.27
 

m.
m 

42
 

46
1,9

67
 8

2 
41

,02
9 

72
 

22
,42

4 6
4 

11
,91

8.7
7 

28
7.4

5 
4'1

2 7
7 

4.7
60

 8
4 

20
,53

19
0 

24
,93

6 0
0 

8.7
26

 0
6 

1,4
88

,16
0 8

8 
10

 26
%

 
Gl

l.b
no

o 
2.9

04
 

5.6
87

 43
 

10
3.3

'14
 55

 
1

1
.m

n
 

65
,62

41
5 

5,8
28

 4
2 

3.1
85

 so
 

1,6
93

10
 

4(1
83

 
70

 00
 

67
6 2

9 
2.9

16
 63

 
3.S

42
 2

5 
1.2

39
 57

 
21

1,3
98

 49
 

14
6~

 
Cl

lll!d
o 

2
~
 

54
8 3

7 
9,

96
91

8 
1,6

87
 31

 
6,3

27
 4

0 
56

19
7 

30
71

4 
16

3 2
5 

3 9
4 

67
5 

65
 21

 
28

1 
n 

34
1 

54
 

11
9 5

2 
20
.3
82
~ 

.1
4·

_ 
(ol

otO
do

 
2
~
 

39
9 5

3 
7,2

63
 2

5 
1,2

29
 33

 
4,6

09
96

 
40

9.
43

 
12

37
7 

11
8 9

4 
2 8

7 
49

2 
47

 51
 

20
4 8

9 
24

8 8
4 

87
 0

8 
H,

85
0 

32
 

10
%

 
fb

td
o 

5.9
72

 
11
.6
96
~ 

21
2.6

28
17

 
35

.9
87

83
 

13
4.9

54
 34

 
11

.'1
85

 99
 

6.5
50

 89
 

3.4
81

82
 

83
 97

 
14

3 9
5 

1,3
90

 78
 

S.
99

m
 

7,2
84

 S
4 

2.
54

91
4 

43
4.7

35
 43

 
30

0'
4 

G
ug

h 
9,4

26
 

IM
60

63
 

33
5,6

05
 01

 
56

,60
19

5 
21

3,0
07

37
 

18
,91

8 2
7 

10
,33

97
0 

5,4
9S

S9
 

13
2J

4 
72

7 2
1 

2.1
95

 1
6 

9,4
66

 99
 

11
,4'

17
66

 
4,

02
H

1 
68

6,1
11

50
 

H
~
 

Ho
wo

ll 
54

 
10

57
6 

1,9
22

 63
 

32
5 4

1 
1,2

20
 28

 
10

8 3
8 

59
 23

 
31

 47
 

76
 

13
0 

IH
8 

S4
 23

 
65

.87
 

23
 O

S 
3.9

30
 95

 
03

%
 

ldi
lbo

 
24

5 
47

98
3 

8,1
23

 02
 

1,4
76

 39
 

5.
SJ

W
 

49
17

2 
26

8 
75

 
14

2 8
4 

34
5 

59
1 

57
 06

 
2(

60
7 

29
88

5 
1
~
5
8
 

17
,83

4 9
4 

.I
~
 

lll•
nM

 
3,

46
7 

6,1
90

 O
S 

12
3.4

39
 70

 
20

.89
2 4

6 
78

,34
6.7

4 
6,9

58
 37

 
3,8

03
 07

 
2,0

21
 3

5 
48

 75
 

83
 5

6 
80

7 
41 

3,4
82

 08
 

4,?
28

 98
 

1.4
79

 88
 

7S
2,3

82
40

 
1
7
4
~
 

lrli
•on

o 
0 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
%

 
b

lc
1

 
23

4 
4S

8 2
8 

8.
33

13
8 

1.4
10

 II
 

5.2
87

 90
 

46
96

5 
25

66
8 

13
64

3 
32

9 
56

4 
54

 49
 

23
50

3 
28

5 
43

 
99

88
 

17
.03

4 
19

 
11

 
Ke

nl.
xi;

y 
15

,7
45

 
30

,83
6 2

7 
56

0,5
87

83
 

94
,88

0 8
3 

35
5,8

03
.13

 
31

,60
0 6

9 
17

,27
12

4 
9,

17
97

2 
22

1 
39

 
37

9.5
2 

3,6
66

 75
 

I 5
,81

3
47

 
19

,20
5 4

4 
6,

72
07

3 
1,1

46
,16

10
1 

19
1~

 
Uu

SI
Oi

lO
 

72
 

14
1 

01
 

2,5
63

 so
 

43
3 8

8 
1,6

27
_0

5 
14

4 5
1 

78
 98

 
41

98
 

I 0
1 

1 7
4 

16
17

 
72

31
 

87
 8

7 
30

 74
 

5,2
41

 3
0 

.6
4~

 
A~

·A
Ai

ni
K 
~

. 
19

5 
1.5

S6
99

 
28

.30
5 3

2 
4,

79
07

4 
17

,96
5 2

9 
1.5

95
 5

9 
81

2 0
6 

w
so

 
11

18
 

19
16

 
18

51
4 

79
8 4

6 
'16

9 7
3 

33
9 3

4 
57

.87
2 

50
 

.~
 

Ma
JO

Co
 

D
 

00
 

00
 

.00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

.0
0 

00
 

00
 

.
~
 

M
ltb

go
n 

2,9
69

 
5,8

14
 7

3 
10

5.7
08

 81
 

11
.89

14
7 

67
,09

30
1 

5,9
58

 87
 

3,2
56

 60
 

1,7
31

 0
0 

41
75

 
71 

57
 

69
1 

43
 

2,
98

19
1 

3.6
21

 5
3 

1.2
67

 31
 

21
&,

13
0 

19
 

1
4
~
 

~
 

3,
42

3 
6,7

03
 8

8 
12

1,8
13

11
 

70
.62

73
2 

77
.35

14
4 

4,
!7

00
7 

3,7
54

81
 

1,9
95

 69
 

48
13

 
82

 51
 

79
71

6 
3.

43
18

9 
4,1

75
 31

 
1,

46
11

0 
24

9,1
79

42
 

li
N

 
M

lllD
Un

 
15

,72
7 

29
,82

1 
78

 
54

2,1
44

87
 

91
,15

9 3
2 

34
4,0

97
 44

 
30

.56
1 

05
 

16
,70

3 O
J 

8,8
77

 71
 

21
41

1 
36

7 0
4 

3.
54

61
2 

15
,29

3 2
2 

18
,57

3 6
2 

6,4
99

 62
 

1,1
08

,45
8 9

3 
7 6

5'!1
o 

MM
I01

10 
16

 
31

34
 

56
96

7 
96

42
 

36
1 

57
 

32
11

 
17

 55
 

9 
33

 
22

 
39

 
37

3 
16

07
 

19
 52

 
48

3 
1.1

64
 7

5 
. 0

1.
,. 

Nf
'W

 )"
""

J 
0 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

~
 

Ne
wM

ell
<o

 
43

 
84

11
 

1,5
30

98
 

25
9

12
 

97
11

1 
86

3{
) 

47
17

 
25

 07
 

60
 

I 0
4 

10
01

 
43

19
 

52
 45

 
18

 35
 

3,1
30

 20
 

02
%

 
~
 (D

rn
lq

, 
20

.12
0 

39
,4
~
 62

 
11

6,3
56

12
 

12
1,2

44
 9

9 
45

4.6
68

 72
 

40
,3

81
45

 
22

,07
0 3

3 
11

)3
0 

45
 

28
19

0 
48

A 
q8

 
4.6

85
61

 
20

.20
75

0 
24

.54
2 0

1 
8,5

88
 1

9 
1,4

64
,64

7 8
7 

10
 lO

III
 

N>
rlh

ea
\1 

Al
liX

JO
ho

n 
m

 
38

3 8
6 

6,9
78

 42
 

1,1
81

11
 

4,4
29

.18
 

39
33

8 
11

SO
O 

II
W

 
17

6 
47

2 
45

65
 

19
6 8

5 
23

90
8 

83
66

 
14

.16
7 9

4 
10

%
 

· N
ort

h..
,.,.

 A
slo

oo
ll(l

ll 
32

0 
62

67
1 

11
,39

3 3
4 

1,9
28

 35
 

7)
31

31
 

64
27

5 
35

1 
02

 
18

6 5
7 

45
0 

77
1 

74
 57

 
37

1 3
9 

39
0 3

3 
13

6 5
9 

23
.29

4 5
9 

.1
6~

 
(h

o
 

10
,01

9 
19

,61
10

1 
35

6,7
18

 29
 

60
,37

54
3 

11
6,4

37
 85

 
20

,10
8 4

4 
10

,99
01

9 
5,8

41
32

 
14

0 8
8 

24
15

0 
2.3

33
 26

 
10

,06
1 5

7 
12

.22
09

9 
4.2

76
 59

 
72

9.3
39

31
 

so
n. 

tlla
ho

n1
11

 
21

.9
44

 
42

,97
6 8

9 
78

1,2
98

15
 

13
2,2

36
 5

8 
49

5,8
87

19
 

44
,04

2 2
8 

24
,01

1 
14

 
12

.79
3 8

9 
30

8 
55

 
52

8 9
5 

5,1
10

 39
 

21
,03

9.4
3 

26
,76

6 8
9 

9,3
66

 7
6 

1,5
97

,42
7 0

9 
1
1
0
~
 

Pu
erl

:l R
~o

 
70

 
13

7 0
9 

2,
49

2 
29

 
42

18
3 

1,5
81

85
 

14(
1 4

9 
76

 79
 

40
 81

 
98

 
16

9 
16

30
 

70
 30

 
85

 38
 

79
88

 
5,0

95
 68

 
0
4
~
 

S
d

m
lf

lll
 

5.8
21

 
11

,40
0 

31
 

20
7.2

51
94

 
35

.0
17

89
 

13
1,5

42
08

 
11

.68
2 9

2 
6,3

85
 26

 
3.3

93
 7

9 
81

85
 

14
(1 

31
 

1,
35

5"
 

5,8
46

 31
 

7,
10

03
5 

1,
48

46
8 

42
3.1

43
 3

0 
m

"' 
So

ulh
 IJ

IJID
to 

0 
00

 
.00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
.0

0 
00

 
00

 
00

 
!JO

'tla
 

fe
me

s~
 

21
.78

4 
41

,66
3 5

3 
17

S.6
01

 4
8 

13
1.2

12
 4

1 
49

2.2
71

 5
4 

43
.72

11
5 

23
.89

5 4
3 

12
.10

0 6
1 

30
63

0 
52

5 0
9 

5.0
73

 1
3 

21
.87

8 
73

 
26

.57
1 

72
 

9,2
98

 46
 

1,5
85

.77
97

8 
10

94
~ 

lc>
:::s

 
2,0

96
 

4.
1~

 97
 

74
,62

6 3
6 

12
,63

0 6
9 

47
,36

5 0
9 

4,2
06

J4
 

2,
29

91
8 

1,2
21

02
 

19
 4

7 
50

52
 

48
81

2 
2.1

05
 1

2 
2,S

S6
66

 
89

46
7 

15
2.

57
9"

 
10

5,
 

V.1
g1n

 t4
oll

dl 
0 

.00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

.00
 

.00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

.0
0 

.0
0 

00
 

00
 

!JO
'tla

 
v
~
 

6.1
15

 
13

,26
87

0 
24

1.2
18

 33
 

40
.8

26
78

 
IS

J.I
OO

 42
 

13
.59

76
3 

7,4
31

73
 

3,9
49

 99
 

95
 2

6 
16

3 3
1 

1,5
77

78
 

6,8
04

 46
 

8.1
64

 02
 

1.
89

19
0 

49
3,1

90
31

 
34

0%
 

1\'>
11

 VI
!Q

im
 

9,2
71

 
18

,15
7 0

7 
33

0.0
86

 36
 

55
,86

79
1 

20
9,5

04
 66

 
18

.60
7.1

8 
10

,16
9 6

8 
5,

40
5 2

2 
13

03
6 

22
34

1 
2,1

59
06

 
9,

31
13

1 
11

,3C
8 6

0 
3.9

57
31

 
67

4,8
88

 2
0 

4
6
6
~
 

~
.
3
5
 

6&
 55

 
12

46
15

 
ZlO

 21
 

m
n 

lJ! 
25

 
38

32
 

20
 41

 
42

 
B~

 
B

 lS 
J5

 IS
 

4
li

L
 

J
U
~ 

2 S
~Z

81
 

OZ
il 

To
ta

b 
19

9.
1~

 
S3

90
,0

0l
00

 
S7

 .09
0.0

03
 00

 
S1

.20
0.0

0l
 00

 
54

.50
0.0

00
 00

 
S3

99
.66

80
0 

S2
18

,43
70

0 
51

16
.10

0 0
0 

S2
.80

00
0 

54
,8

00
00

 
S4

6.3
75

 0
0 

S2
00

,00
00

0 
51

42
.90

00
0 

58
5.0

00
00

 
51

4.4
96

.08
3 0

0 
10

0 !
JO

'tla
 . 

G
ih

 G
GG

is 
Pe

r l
'tn

on
 

I 9
6 

35
 60

 
6 0

3 
22

60
 

2 
01

 
li

D
 

58
 

01
 

.02
 

.2
3 

I 0
1 

11
2 

43
 

72
 80

 

T
h

e 
T

o
g

et
h

er
 W

a
y

 G
if

t 
G

o
al

s 
-

2
0

0
0

 

le
tir

em
tn

l 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
lo

r 
NY

< 
To

 lo
is 

'It
 

f0
1e

ig
n 

Ho
m

e 
an

d 
M

or
te

r'
s 

FW
8 

Th
eo

lo
gi

ca
l 

H
lll

or
i<

al 
M

us
i< 

M
ed

ia 
M

in
io

nl
 

FW
88

C 
M

iu
la

ns
 

ln
su

ra
n<

t 
M

en
 

fo
un

da
llo

n 
ln

lt
gr

ill
 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

C
om

m
iu

lo
n 

W
NA

C 

--
-

-
-

2000
 ""

 
. 

""·
'" o

o 
1<

11
1.

a1
oo

 
.,

,,
.,

.o
o

 
•
·
•
-
•
 

"
"
·'

"
 oo 

""~
'" 

I'"
·"'"

 
12

.,.
00

 
"
·"

'"
 

11
1 •

 ..
, o

o 
12

.10
0 o

o 
12•.

~•• 
•1

.o
oo

 oo
 

1\l
,,.,

m
oo

 
'"

' 
''

 "
'"

 
\1

, .
, 

ll
, .
.
 II

 
12

\t
ll

 U
 

10
1, !

II
 21 

..
..

. "
 

n. 4
61

 1
3 

11
,1 U

 n
 

11
,23

1 0
1 

lJ
1 
~ 

.
,
 I!

 
J.\

91
 II

 
I J

l 4
1 

N
, 4

ll 
II

 
I ,I

ll
 U

 
1.1

01
, 6

!l
 " 

I "
' 

·
-

31
0 

Il
l •

 
t,

nl
 n 

\,
II

II
I 

; 1
ft

 • 
Il

l 0
 

m
•
 

1n
 II

 
4!

3 
Il

l 
..

 JJ
 

31
 I 

34
3 

16
 

13
8 n

 
19

,11
3 

ll
 

"
"
 

>1
-

19
.W

 
"
'"

" 
191.~

1· 
11

6 •
• 9

19
 

m
,<

JJ
 04

 
3

;\
ll

 n
 

21.1
•~ 

12
,41

1!
2 

>•~
 

41
91

6 
<"

'n
 

N
IO

I 
JJ

,O
l"

 
'·

'"
"
 

1,2
41

,1!
1 

II
 

9
\l'

li 

~-
"

" 
'"

"
' 

····~
 

"
"
'"

 
""

"1
3

 
, .

.
 ,.

 
"
"
"
 

'·
"
'"

 
"

" 
"
"
 

"
'"

 
JJ

\1
 

, .
.
 ,.

 
,.

.,
. 

..
..

..
. 

, .
.
 

Sl
al

ll 
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
(x

eN
tiY

I 
O

ffi
ce

 

""
"'

 
JU

 
6l

 I •
 

I, 9
\J

 • 
I,'"

. 
1,1

11
 ~ 

.
.
 42

 
Jl

! 0
4 

'"
 31

 
31

9 
II

 I 
• 

n 
J \

9 
"
' 1

0 
,.

 • 
"!0

 13 
"
"
 

-
"
' 

.
.
 ~ 

"
"
"
 

"
'"

 
"
"
"
 

,
.
.
 

\1
10

0 
IO

JU
 

J\
1 

"
' 

u 
,.

 
'"

" 
""

 
..

..
..

 
o .

..
 

"
'"

 
I"

' 
IO

IW
 n

 
11

1,
\IO

M
 

l\
,\

0
 U

 
1\

!,
l!

\l
l 

IO
IJ

I 0
 

\Ill
~ 

3,1
63

11
 

19
 II

 
13

!6
1 

1, .
.
 n 

19
 I

I 
'"

'.
 

2.
41

"3
 

»t
. In

 16
 

2
1

" 
0 

••
 

9, 4
J9

 
\1

,.1
11

 
JIJ

."
' 4

1 
11

,10
0 •

 
\ .

..
 !1

9 •
 

6l
. I

ll
 43

 
It

 I*
.
 

..
.,

. J
J 

IJ
I I

I 
JJO

 <
 

2.
1•

 J9
 

96
 43

 
11

,0
\U

 
J. 0

02
 !4

 
19

1,3
11

 • 
"
"
 

&~ 
• 

,
.
 

1,
04

0 
"
'"

 
1,

01
8"

 
\0

0"
 

•
•
 

• 
" 

07
4 

"
' 

"~ 
O

il 
• 

" 
"
"
 

"
"
"
 

0 "
' 

..
, 

'"
 

q
1

• 
'"

'.
, 

1.1
11

 11
 

"
"
 • 

4M
 

'"
 n 

"'
 " 

31
1 

"
' 

"
•
 

' "
 

"
"
' 

11
0"

 
"
"
'"

 
"
"
' 

,_
 

J.
J•

 
!,I

)J
t 1

1 
10

0, m
 • 

It,""
' 

'""
 !I 

\1
04

24
 

3. I
ll

 II
 

tl
<

i 3
1 

41
46

 
ll

"
 

I«
 J

l 
• 

10
 

3. •
1

 &
l 

1,
3

."
 

11
<1

 \J
 19

 
II

JI
I 

"
"
"
 

'"
 

'·
'"

 21
 

"
·"

"
' 

"
"
 • 

"·
 4"

 u
 

1.8
\4

 • 
•.o"

 • 
m

 " 
13

 n
 

n 
n 

ll
l m

 
' "

 
1. "

"
' 

"
' •

 
11

. "
' &

I 
"
,
.
 

"
"
"
 

13
 I 

l\
13

 I 
ll

<
 U

 
I &

I 0
 

2.1
11

 II
 

J<
ln

 
I<

 0
 

~ 34 
\1

9 
)0

1 
Jt

ll
 

I •
 

I I
I •

 
II

 JJ
 

U
ll

 0
 

0 l
l6

!l 
>

 -.s
, 

"
"
' 

•.
 18

..
 

11
1.2

« 
" 

..
..

 01
 

U
t.J

O
! 3

8 
31

,&
24

14
 

It
 !I
 &

 II
 

10
.1

< 
13

 
D

l I
I 

"
' U

 
J.l

l4
 n

 
In

 n
 

\9
, .
.
 &I

 
1.0

34
 3!

 
1,0

\J.
OJ

O 
II 

1
2

"'
 

..
..

..
 

" 
11

11
1 

'·
'"

"
 

"'~ 
'·

"
'"

 
1

..
 

.
.
.
 

"
"
 

O
il 

Il
l 

"
"
 

o•
 

Ji
ll

 
"
"
 

"
"
"
 

"
''
 

..
..

,.
 

'·
"
' 

2.1
01

 21
 

"
"
' n

 
n.

•1
 • 

"
·"

'"
 

''
"
 • 

'"
'"

 
1,

m
 n

 
"3

8 
"
"
 

'"
"
 

" 
n 

2.2
11

 oo
 

.
.
 ,.

 
ll

tl
 n

ot
 

om
 

•
. 

o 
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

GO
O 

GO
O 

GO
O 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

"
"
 

"
"
"
' 

J.
l•

 
&

41
11

• 
10

&
11

61
3 

•.
 !1

3 3
8 

"
I
"
 II

 
;1

10
 "

 
l.8

0J
 18

 
2)

1&
 41

 
0 

J\
 

12
 &

I 
nt

 II
 

• 
I&

 
4,

\J
I U

 
1.4

13
 &

I 
m

ll
l•

 
\13

11
 

.,
..,

..
 

J.J
\1 

&
 14

1 \
1 

10
2.

0"
 38

 
19

, II
 &

 0 
11

.1
• 1

4 
U

\0
 31

 
3 .
..

 • 
J,\

11
 ~ 

4i
 34

 
11

 J
l 

Il
l\

 4 
34

 • 
J. t

JJ
 41

 
I. 4

0 
Jl

 
II

< 
Il

l 
II

 
"
"
 

.
_

 
11

.m
 

!1
.1

11
. 

4 .
. J

I!
" 

•.
 <O

J J
\ 

.
,
 41

1 !
1 

"
"
'I

I 
11

41
1 !

1 
t.

•t
JJ

 
lO

II
I 

31
"1

 
J.

<\
1•

 
Il

l.
 

II 
.m

 38 
U

JJ
 II

 
1!

1.
&

41
 

Il
l'

 

..
 _ 

" 
"
.
 

"
'"

 
"
"
 

'"
"
 

,
.
.
 

~~~ 
"
' 

"
' 

"
' 

l \
3 

01
4 

..
..

 
I
.
 

"
"
' 

00
\ •

 
••

 "
"
' 

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
•
•
 

00
0 

00
0 

•
•
 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

00
0 

ooo
 

00
0 

0 .
.
 

'"
"
"
' 

II
 

I»
U

 
J,IM

~ 
••

 I
I 

1,4
31

11
 

In
 0\

 
JI

U
 

1&
31

 
O

ll 
1

• 
\&~ 

01
4 

01
31

 
n• 

<I
II

II
 

0~· 
"" 

""m
 

,. 41
\ 

U
, \1

11
1 

1\4.~
 Ill 

I \
l,J

II
 ~ 

*1
.1

21
21

 
Jl

.li
J U

 
II

, t
• 

96
 

13
.1

< 
24

 
!1

81
1 

41
1 1

0 
<

Il
l 3

4 
10

 13
 

J3.
 91

0 H
 

I, 4
. I

I 
I,J

O
.I\

4 
00

 
9 "

' 
''""

 ·
-

1• 
!I

 il
l 

<
Il

l I
I 

Il
l I

I 
t•

4
 ~ 

Il
l 1

4 
II

\ n
 

91
 II

 
J ~ 

Il
l 

U
. 

I 1
2 

11
11

2 
&J

 0
 

1,1
\1

 I
I 

OO
J11

 
..

..
. ·
-

m
 

19
4 l

l 
ti

ll
 • 

U
IH

I 
<~• 8

1 
61

01
8 

31
2 I

I 
II

 i
ll

 
H

I 
"
' 

n 
!I

 
33

1 
.
.
 24

 
13

\ I
I 

1<
11

0 J
\ 

0 
11

• 
0

. 
1

0
..

 
\l

U
O

II
 

30
,\1

3 
ll

 
•.

 Il
l M

 
.
.
 Il

l 1
2 

ll
 I I

I"
 

10
.11

&8
1 

!.
Il

l\
 &

 
I J

l \
4 

23
1 

10
 

J,
JI

\ J
l 

10
0 M

 
11

,11
2 •

 
<

Il
l •

 
W

ll
 " 

"
"
 

..
..

. 
..

..
. 

13
.11

4 
II

 
11

1,4
11

0\
 

H
O

.Il
t I

I 
"
'"

' I
t 

41
.1•

 H
 

Jl
l\1

31
 

11
.1

11
 

"
"
' 

Il
l \

J 
1,

»1
 * 

Jl
lt

l 
Jt

ll
\1

1 
1,9

11
 18

 
1,1

18
,4

11
. 

II 
'"

 
..

..
..

 
" 

~D 
.
,
.
 

11
&8

1 
'"

"
 

J\
U

 
Ji

ll
 

\J
\1

 
O

JJ
 

04
1 

W
 

O
N

 
D

IJ
 

Il
l 

\,
lO

U
 

"
"
 

..
..

 C
..

. 
lJ

lJ 
II

,H
8t

i 
21

<1
!1

 H
 

1\,
31

3 1
4 

11
1.

11
2 

"
"
'.

 
1.4

. 
<I

 
1.!

10
 18

 
Ill~

 
•1

 12
 

\,
Il

l 3
4 

"
"
 

10
 .
.
 11

 
3,

&
34

. 
11

1,1
00

 \4
 

4 .
.
 

..
..

..
. 

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
00

0 
0 .

.
 

..
..

..
 

U
,ll

&
 

41
.1

" 
34

 
W

. a
li

i 
I J

J,I
I\I

\1
 

<I
J.l

 !I
ll

 
41

 m
 0 

21
.44

01
 I 

11
,13

0 1
9 

.
,
 88

 
0

\J
I 

1,
0\

W
 

m
 41 

Jt
,&

n 
n 

l.
 4~ 91

 
I, 4

J4
 .•

 1
ll

 
I \O

J>
 

,_
, 

t•
3

 
J.

\\9
 II

 
&1

,1&
2 &

I 
1\

,f
i!

\4
 

<
o

.l
•n

 
11

10
 0

 
!.

W
 0

 
I ,

Il
l.

 
JJ

 f
i 

ll
 fi

 
'"

"
 

• 
" 

J,I
OI

 01
 

0\
9 1

0 
IJ

J,
&

U
 

1 .
.
 

'"
"
"
"
"
 

,.
, 

"
'"

 
'·

"
"
' 

1.1
•
"
 

'·
"
'"

 
m

 11
 

m
o

 
'"

" 
J1

J 
"
' 

"
"
 

'"
 

'"
"
 

• 
n 

12
.12

12
1 

"
"
 

..
..

 
tl

lJ
 

,
.
,
 16

 
14

1,1
91

 II
 

!t
O

..
 

t;<
\1

 ~ 
1.

1\
l J

l 
11

11
 IJ

 
1.0

01
11

 
!1

31
 

1\
J 0

 
\,O

ro
 II

 
49

00
 

1'
14

 II
 

l,
lU

" 
lO

!.I
\1

12
 

1 
.
.
 

W
.. 
'"

'"
 

t.>
J4

 
lU

I<
" 

Jn
.l

. 9
8 

14
,38

9 0
 

18
1\

U
 II

 
11

,31
3 0

\ 
\0

01
1"

 
I,

U
tl

l 
\!&

 U
 

J1
J 4

1 
JO

JJ
 •

 
~ II 

"
"
'"

 
3"

1 
• 

.1
.4&

\"
 

• .
.
 

'' 
_ 

_
1

6
.o

L
-

]2
63

 ~2 
2

lH
L

-_
_

j3
S

 57
 

ll
l 

.i
ll
l 

_ 
2L

04
 

05
7 

Q
Y

,_
_

va
 

Q
jL

-
~UlL

 .-1
1.

39
 

2.
6S

U
S

-o
.m

i.
-

···-
M 

U
U

J.
IO

O
 

..
..

..
..

 
ll

,\
 ..

 00
00

0 
..

..
. 

00
 

,,
.,

.,
. 

11
31

.20
00

0 
12

, .
.
 00

 
.
.
.
.
.
 

W
<J

\0
0 

12
,10

00
0 

~..
...

 
•1

.0
00

00
 

1\
J .

..
 I,J

nO
O

 
\0

0"
" 

I 0
8 

06
4 

00
1 

00
2 

01
2 

00
1 

11
7 

0
41

 
63

 1
4 

'1
'(1

 
~
~
 

::
'L

-

To
lal

s 
20

5,3
49

 
),

JH
,v

••
""

' 
-
· 
..

. 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
19

97
 

18
6 

G
ih

 G
oo

l1 
Pe

r P
tn

on
 

I 8
1 

30
09

 
5 8

S 



)>
 

V
I 

J;
:t.

 

T
he

 T
og

et
he

r 
W

ay
 T

ot
al

s 
-

2
0

0
0

 
!l

ul
l<

 
bi

<
U

ii¥
t 

Fo
ttl

go
 

,
_

 W
ill

 B
op

fll
l 

H
o.

,. 
.. ,,,_

., 
M

a.
ft

t1 1 
c ..

...
.. is

slo
o 

lo
t 

W
o0

11
oH

ot
io

fto
lly

 
O

llie
. 

M
n>

io
M

 
lil

lle
C

!I
 ..

. 
M

iss
lo

M
 

.
~
 1

 ..
..

..
..

 
... 

llo
eo

lo
oi

ol
lll

tt!
J!

x 
A

di
ve

 lo
t C

lw
ltl

 
A

io
ba

m
o 

i 
2,

73
2 

13
 

s 
~
7
0
,
9
9
 

'11
 

i 
75

,6
16

 
8 

s 
38

0,
38

. 
·.5

 
s 

8
5

9
0

0
 

s 
1,

99
69

5 
s 

3
6

 1
9 

s 
~ .

 .iS
il ~

~ 
Ai

m
!<

 a 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
A
t
~
o
n
o
 

9
5

8
5

 
6,

58
0 

37
 

S
l 

9
5

 
20

,7
60

 6
5

 
1

6
4

0
 

1
1

6
4

0
 

71
 

~
0
0
0
 

A
lk

on
iO

J 
8

3
,0

9
6

3
0

 
46

6,
61

7 
3

0
 

83
,0

76
 7

6 
25

5,
46

4 
34

 
1

4
,2

1
8

6
9

 
16

,4
18

 6
9

 
5

0
9

3
1

 
11

,1
81

 3
6 

C
al

.lo
tn

JO
 

4,
38

2 
02

 
54

,8
38

 9
1 

8,
11

4 
27

 
18

7,
94

1 
05

 
7

4
9

8
0

 
7

4
9

8
0

 
26

 7
9 

4,
60

8 
43

 
C

an
od

o 
11

7 
8

2
 

M
0

4
6

2
 

1.
18

5 
72

 
3.

09
9 

4
6

 
1

0
8

4
 

-
~
8
 

H
2

 
C

ol
or

od
o 

-
2,

55
3 

62
 

2
5

0
0

0
 

7
1

,9
2

7
0

6
 

-
-

-
-

c.
,n
ec
~;
ru
t 

-
-

1,
3S

O
O

O
 

-
-

1
0
8
~
 

-
-

l)
.j

..
..

.,
. 

-
-

3,
12

4 
0

0
 

-
-

-
-

-
Fl

oo
do

 
5,

88
1 

8
7

 
14

8,
20

1 
01

 
10

5,
87

92
8 

58
,1

05
 u

 
93

3.
30

 
1,

29
3 

30
 

3
3

9
6

 
I ,
50
~.
38
 

~
 ... 

9,
0-

45
 1

2 
26

6.
34

2 
9

9
 

10
5.

09
03

4 
13

7,
22

9 
0

8
 

1,
94

0 
O

S 
2,

S0
1 

55
 

56
2 

17
 

5.
34

3 
29

 
H

oo
N

O
tl

 
-

3
0

0
0

0
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

Id
ah

o 
-

4
,0

0
3

9
3

 
-

11
,3

66
99

 
-

-
-

6
0

0
0

 
lll

on
ao

• 
11

,3
37

.9
6

 
13

4.
98

7 
II

 
3

5
.8

6
0

9
4

 
1

1
3

.6
8

0
0

0
 

1,
49

0 
3

0
 

3
,4

9
5

0
5

 
9

9
2

8
 

2.
65

4 
2

5
 

tn
d,

on
a 

1,
13

09
2 

59
,7

39
 7

9 
6,

77
4 

25
 

5
3

,2
6

2
6

8
 

51
4 

4
0

 
61

4 
4

0
 

24
7 

56
 

5
7

3
 9

3 
low

<>
 

1,
56

4 
36

 
1,

53
0 

76
 

~
0
5
0
0
 

4,
21

7 
99

 
2

6
7

6
8

 
54

2 
68

 
9 

57
 

3
0

0
0

0
 

l<
on

oo
• 

2
1

9
 1

6
 

2.
90

4 
57

 
84

4 
2

5
 

22
,5

56
 3

8 
37

 so
 

37
 so

 
I 

34
 

3
0

0
0

 
K

•n
tu

ck
y 

6,
31

4 
31

 
69

,4
83

.9
5 

15
,3

20
 3

2 
79

,6
02

 9
2 

9
1

9
 6

6
 

1,
35

9 
6

6
 

32
 8

5 
3

,3
3

5
0

0
 

"""'
 ""

" 
15

9 
75

 
1 

1
6

7
8

0
 

53
4 

67
 

37
,8

49
 3

9 
11

 9
4 

II
 9

4 
43

 
-

~l
ao

 ..
. 

-
-

-
'1

,2
21

 0
6

 
-

-
-

-
M

ur
yl

on
d 

20
6 

71
 

54
,8

23
 1

3 
12

4 
7

0
 

33
,1

23
 8

7 
35

 3
8 

35
 3

8
 

1.
55

 
3

9
3

5
 

M
cu

o<
:h

uM
 ...

 
-

-
-

-
2

.2
17

 5
6 

-
-

-
-

M
.c

i"
9

"n
 

16
,1

09
81

 
20

0,
98

3 
27

 
1

2
.8

6
2

5
9

 
13

4,
75

6 
32

 
2,

75
6 

57
 

3,
68

1 
57

 
10

6 
67

 
3,

76
8 

58
 

M
•n

ne
JC

M
o 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
M

.s
.k

'o
.\

op
pi

 
3

,3
8

0
5

3
 

82
.5

77
 4

0
 

1
4

.8
7

H
6

 
12

5.
52

5 
84

 
5

3
5

6
7

 
1,

53
56

7 
19

 5
1 

7,
36

4 
0

0
 

M
u

o
v

n
 

73
,3

52
 0

6
 

48
5,

61
4 

54
 

~
5
.
5
S
0
3
3
 

22
3.

38
00

1 
12

,5
52

 3
6 

13
,2

55
.1

1 
4

5
0

3
6

 
7,

42
1 

0
0

 
M

o
n

tt
lO

O
 

-
2

,1
0

0
0

0
 

-
4

6
6

0
0

 
-

-
-

N
eb

m
P

.a
 

-
6

,7
7

1
0

0
 

so
oo

 
-

-
-

-
-

N
ov

od
o 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
N

ew
 H

am
ps

hr
e 

-
-

-
1,

27
2.

SO
 

-
-

-
-

N
ew

)M
ey

 
-

-
11

,n
oo

o 
7

7
0

5
5

 
-

-
-

-
N
e
w
~
n
c
o
 

27
4 

ao
 

1.
~8

0 
19

 
31

9 
37

 
13

,7
62

70
 

38
 4

7 
3

8
 4

7 
1 

37
 

21
9 

95
 

N
ew

Y
<A

 
-

-
7.

10
3 

0
0

 
-

-
-

-
-

N
or

f'l
 C

a<
cl

·n
o 

18
,7

69
 5

9
 

8(
).4

 ,8
40

 9
8

 
21

5,
88

1 
84

 
34

6,
37

4 
4

3
 

2,
58

7 
84

 
4

,3
8

8
8

4
 

10
7 

0
3

 
10

,9
10

69
 

O
ho

o 
17

,0
72

13
 

14
2,

13
6 

03
 

20
.5

93
 9

9 
16

7,
68

5 
72

 
3.

38
9 

75
 

4,
15

7 
0

8
 

1
0

6
5

3
 

3,
81

0 
68

 
O

ll
ah

am
o 

5
9

,2
8

0
2

0
 

45
1.

10
2 

8
9

 
2
3
.
0
7
8
~
0
 

40
1.

21
2 

73
 

10
,1

09
28

 
12

,3
69

28
 

36
2 

9
7

 
10

,2
93

 4
6

 

~
"
 

-
-

-
21

,5
87

 5
0

 
-

-
-

-
Pe

m
sy

ho
an

.o
 

-
25

9 
so

 
2

6
0

0
0

 
69

,7
18

 4
4 

-
-

-
-

R
ho

dt
o 

kl
an

d 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

!>
ou

rn
 C

or
ol

rn
o 

4,
83

1 
91

 
39

5,
47

9 
4

3
 

10
3,

11
8 

2
0

 
1S

0,
6?

1 
2

5
 

94
5 

23
 

7
7

2
7

9
 

3 
51

 
5,

66
4 

08
 

!>
ou

th
 O
o~

ol
o 

2
5

0
0

 
1,

10
1 

8
8

 
-

-
"""

"""
"" 

18
,7

SO
 7

5 
77

8,
24

4 
9

9
 

29
3,

98
3 

13
 

5
2

2
,5

2
6

4
6

 
5,

20
1 

75
 

12
,5

87
 0

7
 

3
1

0
5

8
 

12
,3

0-
4 

2
6

 
Te

•o
s 

2
,4

/0
 5

1 
95

.8
28

 6
0

 
1,

71
82

4 
11

4,
43

3 
8

8
 

3
5

9
 2

5 
65

9 
25

 
3

9
0

7
 

2,
76

1 
8

6
 

U
ta

h 
-

1.
27

0 
0

0
 

-
-

-
-

\tc
ol

'ln
on

t 
-

-
5

0
0

0
 

-
-

-
V

trg
on

tC
I 

59
5 

6
8

 
75

,0
74

 2
9 

18
,6

59
 7

0 
14

8,
78

7 
3

6
 

3
3

0
4

 
3

1
3

0
4

 
2 

46
 

2,
77

5 
2

8
 

~
 

-
-

1,
30

1 
9

5
 

2,
16

9.
5

2
 

-
-

-
-

W
u..

W
 v.

;v.n
.o 

9
1

1
0

4
 

11
9,

91
 I

 6
5

 
16

,0
53

87
 

72
,6

66
 1

4 
55

4 
0

6
 

20
3 

92
 

2
4

2
7

7
 

2
,0

5
0

9
9

 
W

i!
K

;Q
n

(l
f\

 
-

-
2

1
0

0
0

 
42

,7
94

 5
3

 
-

-
-

-
W

yo
m

"'
!!

 
-

-
25

,0
87

 3
5 

-
-

-
M

4u
:te

o 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
N

at
t'

*
""

 A
u

«
 

-
2
.
7
~
9
9
3
 

-
-

-
-

1 
27

 
-

N
-
I
l
 A

u
«

 
-

13
,5

63
 6

7 
-

-
-

-
-

8
8

1
2

 
Pv

er
!Q

 R
.c

o 
-

-
-

5
,5

3
5

0
0

 
-

-
-

-
V

i1
9n

 h
lr

tn
dJ

 
-

3,
18

3 
2

5
 

1.
21

0 
0

0
 

53
,7

65
.1

0 
-

-
-

1
0

0
0

0
 

fn
te

 w
. ~ 

Bo
pt

o\
1 

fa
u<

>d
ot

•o
n 

-
1
9
,
0
7
0
~
6
 

-
6,

43
7 

31
 

-
-

-
-

W
N

N
:. 

-
12

8,
80

21
1 

-
10

9,
88

3 
24

 
1

7
0

0
 

-
-

-
o

.-
11

2 5
~
 6

,6
" 

2Z
 11

6.6
11

l" 
22

Z 
211

1 
~2

· 
T

ot
al

• 
$3

~2
.0

3
4 

29
 

$5
,6

50
,1

31
 5

7 
s 1

,3
56

,0
-4

0 
57

 
$4

,5
36

,0
20

 2
4 

$6
1,

08
5 

21
 

S
83

,1
46

 2
3"

 
S

3,
31

6 
2

9
 

s 1
00

,2
64

 so
· 

·r
 M

-O
o..

..,.
 in

dv
de

s 
,.

..
,.

..
..

..
.,

.,
. \

O
V

IU
>

, 
-

an
d 
.
-

""
'"

""
' 

'f
W

B
B

C
--

01
/w

-o
nc

lu
<l

es
 g

ol
h 

to
 A

lv
m

nt
, h

to
to

 g
Il

l,
 M

at
tl>

ng
 C

.h
s 

an
d 

go
lh

 f
ro

m
 f

a<
eo

gn
 c

ov
nt

ne
o 

•H
M

-O
th

et
 •n

cl
vd

es
 •
nl

er
~

. m
~'

sc
tl

lo
ne

ou
s 

SO
U

tte
• a

n
d

 l
lt

*
s 

"M
o.

le
r\

 M
en

-T
ol

ol
 d

oe
s 

no
4 

on
ctu

do
 o
o~

e.
, 
~
.
"
'
 -

ro
..

-t
 1 .

..
. 

O
.rw

w
 I· 

le
t.

.,
..

. o
r 
-"

'd
o

d
[,

..
,_

_
 co

nl
ro

b.
A

oo
n&

 
•W

N
A

C
-T

ol
ol

 d
oe

s 
n0

1 
on

du
de

 M
en

10
00

l S
tu

de
nt

 l
oo

n 
fv

,d
, 

Fo
re

.g
n 

Sl
vd

en
t S

cn
ol

tm
h•

p 
or

 g
on

s d
i!S

•IJ
flO

ied
 t

o
"'

""
' 

de
pa

rtm
en

l>
 

"fo
..n

do
t<

><
>-

O
ih

e<
 if

o
d

,d
u

 [t
ld

oo
om

en
l 

g 
1!

. '"
""

>O
h 

Th
e 

T
og

..t
r.

rr
 W

ay
 

Joo
oo4

 

2 
~
 

=
 

er 
Q

..
 

~ 
~
 

fJ
) 

Q,
:) 

00
0 

fJ
) 

=
 

-
fJ

) 

-
~
 

~ 

2 
-

Q
,:)

 
n 

::s 
-

Q,
:) 

-
....

 
Q,

:) 

-
~
 

Q,
:) 

Q
..

 

0 

-
~
 

3 
-

~
 

~o:
l 

-
~
 

9 
=

 
~
 

fJ
) 

~
 

3 
~
 

&t
 
-

~
 

=
 

-
~
 

=
 

>
 

>
e

 

0 

=
 

-
-

-
~
 

~
 

=
 

~t
= 

~
 
-

~
 

0 
9 

Q
..

 

~
 

0 
.....

 
0 

_,
 

~
 

.... 
o

o
 

=
 

_,
 

-
~
 

_,
 

~
 

~
 

=
 

0 

(
j
z
 

-· 
-

~
 

=
 

(
j 

=
 

~
 

~
 

n 
Q

,:)
 

::t
. 

Q
,:)

 
••

 
... 

EC
j 

....
 

Q
,:)

 
~
 

s. 
=

 
" 

-
::

:' 
n 

~
 

~
 

-
r:n

 
-

....
 

fJ
) 

:=2
 

.... 
~
 

00
0 

Q,
:) 

0
~
 

-
~
 

0 

Q
,:)

 
~
 

-
~ 

2
~
 

0 
""d 

:l
 

-
~
 

Q
,:)

 
~
 

0 
9 

~
 

=
 

~
 

o 
o

(
j
 

Q
..

 
....

 
_,

 
~
 

~
 

-
=

 
(
j 

....
 

(
j 

~t
'-
':
1 

0 
-

::
:' 

=
 

0 
~
0
0
 

~
 

=
 

~
 

Q,
:) =
 

- ~ 
t!

'l
~ 

~
 

~
 

)>
 

~
 

~ 
~
0
 

s· 

E=
o 

V
I 

z 
t
"
"
~
 

V
I 

~
 

~
~
 

- ~ 
~
~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

-C/) ~ fJ
) 

?:
""d

 
... z 

a 
~
 

(j
 

0
"
~
 

• 
~
 

~
 

U
l 

N
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

-...
..l 

-
-

. 

,
_

 W
id

 l
op

~J
I 

Hl
ctO

<k
oJ

 
M

ed
ia

 
•••

k 
To

lo
k 

'""
"-

(-
.
1

M
 

, ....
.. 

,....
,., .. 

i 
3
0
0
~
6
 

s 
3

H
3

 
i 

34
 8

3
 

s 
3~

 8
3

 
s 

9
3

8
,H

6
2

6
 

-
-

-
-

-
7

0
3

 
5

9
 

59
 

59
 

28
,2

11
 

13
 

6,
09

3 
73

 
50

7 
81

 
50

78
1 

50
7 

81
 

93
8,

19
9 

91
 

32
1 

34
 

2
6

 7
9 

26
 7

9 
26

 7
9 

26
1,

81
2 

7
8

 
4

6
5

 
~
0
 

4
0

 
4

0
 

10
,0

28
 2

1 
-

-
-

-
7

U
3

0
6

8
 

-
-

-
-

1,
36

0 
84

 
-

-
-

-
3

,1
2

4
0

0
 

3
9

9
9

8
 

33
 3

3 
33

.3
3 

33
 3

3 
32

2,
33

2 
33

 
6

3
8

 7
1 

53
 2

0
 

5
3

2
0

 
53

 2
0

 
52

8,
85

2 
90

 
-

-
-

-
3

0
0

0
0

 
-

-
-

15
,4

30
 9

2
 

83
1 

46
 

69
 2

8
 

99
 2

8
 

6
9

2
8

 
30

-4
,6

7 4
 1

9 
3

2
3

6
0

 
24

7 
56

 
6

9
0

 
6

9
0

 
12

3,
39

? 
8

9
 

1
1

4
7

2
 

9 
57

 
9

.5
7 

9
5

7
 

8,
98

1 
47

 
1

6
0

8
 

1
3

4
 

I 
34

 
I 

34
 

2
6

,6
S

0
8

0
 

39
4 

14
 

3
?
8

5
 

3
2

8
5

 
3

2
8

5
 

17
6,

86
1 

36
 

5
1

2
 

43
 

~
3
 

43
 

39
,7

42
 3

3 
-

-
-

2,
22

1 
0

6
 

1
5

1
6

 
1

2
6

 
1 

2
6

 
1

2
6

 
88

,5
09

 0
1 

-
-

-
-

2,
21

7 
5

6
 

1.
18

1 
4

0
 

9
8

 4
6 

9
8

 4
6 

9
8

4
6

 
38

6,
50

2 
1

6
 

-
-

-
-

-
2

2
9

5
6

 
19

 
~ 

3
9

 1
4 

1
9

 1
4 

73
1,

11
7 

0
6

 
5.

37
9 

14
 

44
8 

27
 

~
4
8
 2

7 
44

8 
27

 
86

8,
29

9 
72

 
-

-
-

-
2,

56
6 

0
0

 
-

-
-

-
6,

82
2 

0
0

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

1.
27

2 
so

 
-

-
-

-
Z

2,
49

0 
55

 
1

6
5

0
 

1 
37

 
I 

37
 

I 
37

 
16

,2
05

 9
3

 
-

-
-

-
7,

10
3 

0
0

 
1,

10
90

7 
9

9
3

3
 

99
 3

3 
9

9
3

3
 

1 .
~0

5,
26

8 
30

 
1,

22
7 

76
 

10
2 

32
 

10
2 

32
 

10
? 

32
 

3
6

0
,4

8
6

6
3

 
~.

33
2 

54
 

3
6

1
0

6
 

3
6

1
0

6
 

3
6

1
0

6
 

97
3.

22
4 

9
3

 
-

-
-

-
?1

,5
87

 so
 

-
-

-
-

70
,2

37
 9

4 
-

-
-

-
-

2
3

 2
5 

2 
I~

 
40

2 
16

 
2 

14
 

6
6

1
,8

6
6

0
9

 
-

-
-

1,
16

68
8 

2,
91

4 
0

8
 

6
0

4
2

 
2

0
9

1
4

 
21

1 
48

 
1
,
~
7
,
3
(
)
.
4
 

I 
1 

15
2

10
 

3
6

3
6

 
3

6
3

8
 

3
6

3
8

 
22

4,
53

1 
90

 
-

-
-

-
1

,2
7

0
0

0
 

-
-

-
so

oo
 

14
 1

6 
I 

18
 

I 
18

 
1 

18
 

2
4

6.
25

8 
55

 
-

-
-

-
3

.4
7

' 
H

 
31

 6
7 

2
6

6
 

'1
42

 7
7 

2
6

6
 

21
?,

87
5 

2
0

 
-

-
-

-
43

,0
04

 5
3

 
-

-
-

-
25

.0
87

 3
5

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

2,
75

1 
2

0
 

-
-

-
-

3.
65

1 
79

 
-

-
-

-
5,

53
5 

0
0

 
-

-
-

-
58

.2
58

 3
5 

-
-

-
-

25
,5

07
 7

7 
-

-
-

-
23

8,
70

2 
9

5
 

I 2
1ll

l Q
C·

 
m

2
a
a
 1

2 
S

27
,2

77
 4

1 
$2

,2
51

 9
7 

S
2,

85
0.

16
 

S2
,1

62
 3

7 
S

l2
,1

66
,5

81
11

 

. 
J 

~
 

~
 

2~
 

.... - =-
~
~
s
 

- = 
'='

 
-:

z 
Q

..
 

~
 

~
 

~
O
C
"
)
 

00
0 

n 
~
 

Z
 

~ 
~ 

-
· 

~
 

fJ
) 

=
 

3 
=

 
r=

>~
 

Q
..

 
a

' 
~ 

~
 ~
 

~ 
~ 

~
 

=
 

~ 
n 

t""
4>

 
-

-
·
 

fJ
) 

>
 
~
 

~
 

o:
l

o
o

(j
 

=
 

~ 
fJ

) 
~
 0

 
t'1'

1 
Q

. 
N

 
'*

 
(j

O
O

 
...

. 
c 

~
 

~
 

~
 

-
c 

~ 
->

 
~ 

c 
9 

o
o

e
 

~...
 

Q,
:) 

~ 
~
 ~
 z

 
, 

g, 
a 

Y
Jo

'=
' 

.g
 

~ 
~ 

z
'Z

o
 

0 
~
 

(
i
0
~
 

:l.
 

\C
 

• 
~
~
 

~
 

== 
=-

M
 

~
 

~
 
~
 

0 2-



Jllrl'l~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l 'i1Ja Cerhfted Pubhc Accountants 

Tern A Hdl 
F.rne't R HMpt:r 

....... __ _ 

Inde~ndent Auditors' R e v.or t 

Executive C ommittee o f the 
G eneral Board o f the Natio na l 
Association of F ree Will Baptists, Inc. Bn'nl\\'l'<>d Ewnllon• C<·nler 

7t>J Old Hod,on ll.•ule\'ar,l 
Sui!<' 20o 
BremWI><>d TN 37027 
TEL. nl !i/.1n.J4s:; 

We have audited the statements o f financial position of BuiJding Services 
Fund of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 
31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
tl1e responsibiJity of the Fund 's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of materiaJ misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opiillon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Building Services Fund of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 2000 and 
1999, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

May 10, 2001 
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- BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 

NATIONAL A SSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2000 and 1999 

Assets 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

Property and equipment: 
Land and land improvements 
Building . 
Building services eqUt~ment 
Departmental workstations 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net property and equipment 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Notes payable and long-term debt 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Operations · nt 
Net investment in property, plant and eqUipme 

Total net asset 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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2000 1999 

$ 52,929 25,000 

52,412 10,596 

4,067 2, 168 

209,671 209,671 
1,314,240 1,309,865 

70,1 40 70,1 40 
65,060 64,135 

1 ,659,111 1 ,653,811 
646,475 570,692 

1,012,636 1 ,083, 119 

$1,122,044 l ) 120,883 

$25,768 68,251 

21,984 228 

47,752 68,479 

87,424 37,536 
986,868 1,014,868 

1,074,292 1,052,404 

$1) 122,044 1) 120,883 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONALASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

Unres1ricted Fuods Capital 
Services far Stewardship 2000 1999 

Revenues: Qg~[gti2ol Qegg!lm~ot! ~amgaign I21Qh l21!!.!! 
Building rental and other revenues $ 243,948 243,948 243,948 
Contributions, net of campaign expenses 2,393 2,393 6,881 
Reimbursement from departments 400,885 400,885 326,471 
Other 734 734 1,492 
Recovery of doubtful accounts 
Net assets released from restrictions 

and departmental reimbursements 4Q3,2Z8 (40Q,885} (2.39J} 
Net revenues 647 960 647 960 578 792 

Expenses: 
Expenses incurred for departments: 

Employee benefits 207,307 207,307 173,499 
The Together Way Plan 6,482 6,482 II ,940 
Leadership Conference 32,568 32,568 21 ,206 
Property and liability insurance 26,325 26,325 22,827 
Telephone 21 ,577 21 ,577 19,530 
Mailroom and other 68,671 68,671 58,863 
Depreciation - telephone system 9,793 9,793 9,793 
Interest expense - telephone 2 575 2 575 3 246 

375,298 375,298 320,904 
Building operating expenses: 

Salaries 54,653 54,653 48,651 
Payroll taxes 4,18 I 4,181 3,453 
Employee benefits 14,326 14,326 13,240 
Janitorial services 27,264 27,264 25,546 
Depreciation 65,990 65,990 67,438 
Amortization of loan costs 2,889 
Audit and legal 7,792 7,792 5,087 
General insurance 13,182 13,182 14,731 
Interest expense 651 651 6,838 
Supplies and office expense 9,942 9,942 7,133 
Utilities I telephone 28,094 28,094 23,269 
Repairs and maintenance II ,390 II ,390 21 ,472 
Mailroom and other 13 309 13 309 IS 881 

25Q,774 250,774 255,628 
Total expenses 626,072 626,072 576,532 

Increase in net assets 21,888 21,888 2,260 
Net assets at beginning of year I ,052,404 1,052,404 1,050,144 
Net assets at end of year $1,074,292 1,074,292 I ,052,404 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

~ash Flows ~rom Opera tin~ Activities 
Net increase m net assets . 

Ad·ustments to reconcile net increase m net assets to 
J . . . 

net operating act1V1t1es : 

Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization of loan costs 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accruals 

Net operating activities 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of equipment 

Net investing activities 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of debt 

Net financing activities 

Net increase in cash . . 
Cash and cash equivalents, at begmnmg of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

4 

2000 1999 

$21,888 2,260 

75,783 77,231 
2,889 

(41 ,816) 110,358 
(1 ,899) ( 545) 

21,756 (5,743) 

-t5-;/t2 186,450 

(5,300) (699) 

(5,300) ( 699) 

(42,483) ( 161,368) 

-{42,483) ( l61 ,368) 

24,J83 2 7,929 
25,000 617 

$52,929 25,000 

$3,226 10,084 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2000 and 1999 

The Fund operates under rhe auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. and is 
governed by a management committee which is chaired by the Executive Secretary of the National 
Association ofFree Will Baptists, Inc. The management committee is composed of the directors of 
the Departments which occupy the National Offices Faciliry. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accountin~ Policies 
Basis of Presentation 

The financia I statements of the Fund have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Fund follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, 
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. I I 7, the Fund 
is required to report inforn1ation regarding its financial position and activities according 
to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Fund is required to present a statement 
of cash flows. As permined by this new statement, the Fund has discontinued its usc of 
fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to present the 
classes of net assets required. Further, the Fund adopted SFAS No. 116, "Accounting for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made," as is required. In accordance with 
SFAS No. I 16, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restrict­
ed, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and I or nature of any 
donor restrictions. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment arc stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, 
and bettcm1ents that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are expensed as incrnred. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for 
income taxes is made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Fund considers all cash funds, cash bank 
accounts and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the report­
ed amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Presentation of Financial Statements 

Certain an1ounts as reported in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to 
con form to current year presentation. 
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CIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
NATIONALASSO F. cJ·at Statements, continued 

Notes to man 

S
. ' fi nt Accounting Policies, continued 

{1) s ummary of tgm tea 

~ompensated Absences . . . d sick da sand personal days off~ dcpcnd-
vecs ofthe Fund are entitled to pa~d vacatJon, pa;actors l~ is impracticable to estimate t~c 

~~p~~"'job classification, length of servJce and o~h:~cordinu.ly, no liability has been recorded 111 

:~ount of compensation :or future absen~~~ ;~nd's polic;is to recognize the cost of compen-
ying financ1al statements. 

the accompan h tually paid to employees. 
sated absences w en ac 

(2) l'iotes Payable and Long-term Debt d bt and capitalized lease obligations is as follows: 
ry of notes payable and long-term e 

A summa · 8 .;:olc 9 
d bt consist of the followmg: . ..J 

0 2000 199 
Notes payable and \ongftenn Wi~l Baptists Home Missions Church 

mortgage note to the rec ecured by a first mortgage on the 
Extension Loan F~~· Inc.dsb the furniture held by the various 
National Offic~ F~clhty, a:tio:al Off,ce Facility. This mortga.ge 
departments wtthin theN t f$11 970 including pnn-
re uired minimum monthly. pay me~ s o , 
ci~al and interest, which retired dunng 2000. 

e Free Will Baptist Foundation 
8.5% installment note to th This installment obligation 
secured by telephone syste~. $903 including principal and 
requires monthly payments oh d led for August 2003. 
interest, with final payment sc e u 

bl long-term debt 
Less scheduled current maturites of notes paya e, 

$- 34,225 

. 
25,768 34,026 

25,768 68,251 

8,988 42,483 

Long- tenn portion $16,780 25,768 

. . flong tenn debt as ofDccembCr 31, 2000. 
The following is a schedule, by years, of marunues o 

2001 $ 8,988 
2002 9,781 
2003 6,999 

bl and \onu-tenn debt Total maturities of notes paya e o 

$25,768 

6 
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(3) Pension 

The Fund participates in the master defined contribution pension plan of the 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. The plan is contributory and is matched up to a maximum of 5% 
of earned compensation. Employees may participate at date of employment. 
Pension expenses amounted to $2,290 in 2000 and $2,358 in 1999. Under the 
plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement the par­
ticipant can either receive a lwnp-sum disttibution or purchase one of several 
types of annuity contracts. 

( 4) Opera tine Lease 

The Fund has entered into a non-cancelable lease arrangement relating a truck. 
TotaJ expenses amounted to $1,32. The minimum payments required are $3,984 
for 2001 and 2002; and $2,656 for year 2003. 

(5) Rental Income 

The Fund rents office space of the National Office Building located in Antioch, 
Tennessee to various denominational agencies. The lease covers the period from 
September l through August 31 of each year, to be renegotiated and renewed by 
mutual agreement from year to year. Each lease agreement is cancelable by either 
party with a 90 day written notice. Rental income amounted to $243,948 for 
2000 and 1999. Subject to the renegotiation and renewal provisions of the each 
lease agreement, rental income for 200 I is expected to be $248,948. 

(6) Contineencies and Commitments 

The fund entered into an agreement to repair the roof of the National Office 
Building. The contract includes a financial obligation for completion of the 
repairs amounting to $50,900. 
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2002 
Projected 

Building Services Budget 

Projected Income 

Square Footage 
{20,329@ Sl 00 == 520,329.00 mo) 

Total Income 

Projected Expenses 
Aud1t & legal 
General Supplies 
Insurance (Plant) 
Jonitonol Services 
Jonttorial Supplies 
Moil Room 
Moil Truck 
Motnlenance (General/Emergency) 
Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S.) 
Po51age Meter/UPS 
Ret,rement 
Salaries 
Telephone 
Ulilihes 
Home Misstons' Note Payable 

Pnnopol & Interest Payments 
Principal 
Interest (8.0%) 

Insurance {Employee) 

2000 

$243,948.00 

$243,948.00 

$10,000.00 
3,500.00 

18,000.00 
25,000.00 

2,500.00 
6,500.00 
3,000.00 

30,000.00 
3,813.25 
1,000.00 
1,946.94 

49,846 36 
4,500.00 

28)97.27 

36,963.92 
34,225.85 

2,738.07 
11,259 55 

Network Expense 
Christmas Bonus/Extra Week's Salary 

4,000.00 
900.00 

2,420.71 
Other 

Total Expenses 
$243,948.00 
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2001 

$243,948.00 __ 

$243,948.00 

$10,000.00 
5,000.00 

18,000.00 
30,000.00 

2,500.00 
12,000.00 
3,000.00 

40,000.65 
3,882.21 
1,500.00 
2,348.32 

50,747.88 
4,500.00 

29,000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

17,208.04 
10,000.00 

903.20 
3,357.70 

$243,948.00 

2002 

$243,948.()_2_ 

$243,948.00 

$10,000.00 
5,000.00 

18,000.00 
30,000.00 

3,500.00 
12,000.00 
4,000.00 

36,946.11 
4,037.50 
1,500.00 
2,442.26 

52,777.80 
5,500.00 

28,000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

19,156.27 
7,000.00 

939.33 
3,148.73 

$243,948.00 



Maintenance Superintendent 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 
Health 
life/ Disabili1y 
Retirement 

Receptionist 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 
Health 
life/ Disability 
Retirement 

Receptionist 
Sal~ry (52 days) 
Soc1al Security 

Part-time Worker 
Salary 
Social Securi1y 

Building SeJVices 
Salary Breakdown 

2000 

$3,635.84 (4%18.74 hr.) 
278.14 (7.65%) 

$3,913.98 

2001 2002 

$0.00 $0.00 
0.00 0.00 

I • $4,070.72 $4,233.55 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation 
The work of the Foundation continues to be an exdting challenge. There is a 

great need within our denomination for additional funds, but even more impor­
tantly a need to produce real stewards. Stewards who appropriately supply the 
tinandal needs of our kingdom responsibilities during life and also after death. 

The picture of the growth of the Foundation and our efforts in devel­
oping these stewards beginning with $0 in 1980 to just over $8 million in 
2000 is one of steady progress. 

Some indication of the acceptance of the Foundation is the growth of 
Together Way/Coop gifts from $2.21 in 1982 to $23,839 in 2000. Of course 
this has been possible due to the growth of that program, the willingness 
of the various departments to share with us, and the commitment of those 
states and churches who fund it. 

Fee income, which has a direct relationship to the assets managed, 
has grown fairly steadily through the years. However, 1990 and 1994 were 
severely negative exceptions because of the economy. As you may remem­
ber the market was not kind to investors either of those years. 

Expenses have certainly increased over the years. That has occurred 
due to "payment for services rendered" to the Board of Retirement, 
$176,500 in the past eight years alone. In addition one-half of my travel 
expense have been covered since 1995 and for three years (1996-1998) we 
had a full-time field man. We are transferring David Brown's entire salary 
package to the Foundation for 2002. This is part of the process of establish­
ing the operation of the Foundation as a stand-alone operation. 

We faced the toughest experience of our short history during the first half of 
last year. Due to requests by several agendes we had a $2 million drain in just over 
three months. I am certainly glad to say we were able to meet every request. 

The future success of the Foundation is dependent on: 

Acquiring Agreements 
The first requirement in our work is to establish an acquaintance and 

develop a sense of confidence and comfort in our operation with the 
prospective donor or agency. This has become much easier over the past 
few years. Word of mouth from trustors along with ads in our adult Sunday 
School materials is helping. We have contracts with Randall House for the 
summer, fall and winter for the next few years. However, many of our peo­
ple still have no concept of our purpose or program. 

We follow these steps in creating an agreement: 
1. Contact - find a prospect who has a need, or one in which a need can 

be identified and illuminated. 
2. Acquire - get pertinent personal information, learn the wishes and 

need of the prospective donor/donors. 
3. Explain - explain the operation of each specific agreement. 
4. Finalize - get the agreement signed and funded. 
5. Invest - manage the assets involved. 
6. Account and report to the donor, and the IRS-The Foundation is presently 

managing some agreements that can be expected to last 25-40 years. 
7. Delivering- following the death of the donor/donors, transfer the assets to the 
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charity or charities benefitted as directed by the original donor's instructions. 
The agreements we offer fall into two groups: 

1. Revocable 'lhlst Agreements - These trusts are also called Money 
Management Trusts. An opening deposit of $1,000 or more is required. 
The funds are invested in govem.ment bonds, CO's or agency issues. 
Any denominational agency or church may use these with 1 00% 
access to the funds. lnclividuals must designate a minimum of 20% of 
any remaining funds in the event of their death before withdrawal. 

Presently managed - $4,236,997. 
2. Higher Yield Revocable D-usts - These agreements are invested in a 

blend of 5091> Revocable Trust type investments and 50% of a stock 
index fund (presently the Vanguard S&P 500 Index Fund). 

This area was opened to satisfy the request for a more aggressive 
approach to investing surplus funds for limited agencies and individ­
uals. lnclividuals must designate a minimum of 20% for a Free Will 
Baptist agency in the event of death. 

Presently managed - $113,236. 
3. Special Trust - Various trusts that are specifically tailored for the 

needs of our agencies, especially those of a national scope. These 
agreements may have a time-based need, or absolute liquiclity or a 
combination of these and others. 

Presently managed - $1,458,311 . 
Then there are those agreements which are irrevocable and provide income 

tax charitable deductions immecliately, life time income, and finally a gift: 

1. Gift Annuities- Presently managed- $698,699. 

2. Unitrusts - Presently managed - $281 ,680. 

3. Annuity Trusts - Presently managed - $0 

4. Endowments - Presently managed - $1,352,834. 

The future is open for us. The Foundation provides education about and man­
agement of both charitable gifts and investment of account balances of charities. 

William Evans 
Director 

Synopsis of Free Will Baptist Foundation Board Meeting 

May 1, 2000 

Annual Meeting, all members present except: Tom Malone, Marge 
Workman, Tom Dooley, James Forlines, Ron Barber and Roger Harwell. 

The board reviewed the activities and financial reports and approved 
the proposed budget. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Mtmbe<l 
"'-~ERICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CERTIAED P\JSUC I.CCOUHTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PU8LIC ...CCOUNTAHTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of fmancial position of the Board of Foreign 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (a nonprofit organization) as of December 
31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the fmancial position of the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

April 5, 2001 

A- 68 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNPA'\I?N· INC. 
St;t;ments of Financial Poa1twn 

pecember 31. 2000 & 1999 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equival~nts 
Accrued earnings receivable 
Other accounts receivable 

ts at fair market value- Note 2 {nvestmen • . 
Certificates of deposlt 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common Stocks 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 

Total investments 

Notes receivable- Note 3 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Liabilities to beneficial owners: . t Note 4 
lnterest bearing revocable and saVlngs trus s-

Future gift interests payable-: Note 5. Missions 
Funds held for Free Will Baptlst Forelgn 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted ) Note 6 
Permanently restricted (endowment -

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

, d ccompanying notes See accountants report an a 
to the financial statements. _2_ 
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1999 2000 
$ 645,565 

63,218 

$ 228,436 
86,062 

1,687 

231,028 
5,164,942 

868,558 
567,010 
449,299 
109,504 

73.504 

7.463.845 

26.910 

$8 199.538 

$ 5,767,888 
991,126 

7.272 

6.766.286 

80,418 
1.352,834 
1.433,252 

$8 199.538 

281.559 
5,907,897 

781,393 
567,010 
398,977 

93,798 

8,030,634 

38,737 

$8.385.556 

$6,280,027 
877,350 

6.754 

7.164.131 

50,320 
1.171.105 
1.221.425 

$8 385 556 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements ofActiyities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Revenue and Support 
Investment income: 
Interest and dividends, net of investment fees 
Realized net gains (losses) on sale of investments 
Unrealized net gains (losses) from investments 
Earnings added to permanently 
restricted endowments 

Total investment income 

Support through "The Together Way" 
Plan and other contributions 

Interest income - note receivable 
Endowment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue and support 

Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 
savings trust, beneficiaries and annuitants 

Revenue and support after allocations 

Eroenses 
Reimbursement to the Board of Retirement of 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Salaries 
Equipment expense 
Travel and promotion 
Office expense 
Publications 
Training and education 
Legal and auditing 
Interest expense 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial s tatements. 
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2000 
Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 258,417 $ 
( 4,972) 

557,895 

( 72.091) 72,091 
739.249 72.091 

26,575 109,638 
1,767 

648 
4.545 

772.784 181.729 

( 665.161) 
107.623 181.729 

40,000 
1,139 

16,155 
2,124 
3,647 
6,838 
7,375 

247 
77.525 

30,098 181,729 

50.320 1.171.105 

$ aa ~1a i l,352,tl3!! 

1~~~ 
Permanently 

Total Total J.!D[U1[1S:~g Restricted 

$ 395,547 $ 395,547 $ 258.417 $ 66,602 ( 4,972) 66,602 44,967 
557,895 44,967 

22,535 
( 22.535) 

507.116 22,535 811.34Q 484.581 

182,011 207,286 136,213 25,275 
3,920 1,767 3,920 

562 648 562 
183 4.545 183 

719.067 204.546 954.513 514.521 

( 407.390) ( 665.161) ( 407.390) 
204.546 311.677 289.352 107.131 

27,000 40,000 27,000 
19,675 1,139 19,675 

1,295 1,295 
14,739 16,155 14,739 

1,708 2,124 1,708 
740 3,647 740 

1,075 6,838 1,075 
6,851 7,375 6,851 

667 667 
1.428 247 1.428 

75,178 77,525 75.178 

211,827 31,953 204,546 236,499 

1.221.425 18.367 966,559 984.926 

i 1.~~a 252 I ~c.a2c $ 1 171 105 $ L22L425 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION INC 
Statement§ of CashF'kl; · · 

For the Years Ended Dece;;;;;:iJ'oo and 1999 

Cash flows for operating actiyitjes 
Cash received for : 
Contributions 
Interest and dividends 
Other income 

~sh p~d to suppliers and employees 
<><:ations of earnings to revocable trusts 

sa~gs trusts, beneficiaries and annuita~ts 
et cash used by operating activities 

Cash flows from perma tl . 
Contributions nen Y restncted CEndowment) activities 

N(et cash provided by permanently restricted 
endowment) activities 

Cash .no~s from investing activjties 
;nncipal payments received on notes receivable 
proceeds fro~ sale of investment securities 

urchases of mvestment securities 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing actiyities 
Proceeds from addit · f . gift . IOns, net o Withdrawals to future 

mterest, revocable and savings trusts • 
Net change in funds held for Free Will B · . 

Net cash provided (used) b fi . aptis~ ~o~e1gn Missions 
Y nancmg actiVIties 

Net (decrease) increase in cash 

( 

( 
( 

2000 

$ 28,262 
281,261 

6,960 
77,525) 

fi2Q,16l) 
426,203) 

109,638 

1Q9,638 

11,827 
1,671,600 

( 551,888) 
L13L539 

( 398,363) 
Q18 

( 397,845) 

417, 129 

228Aa6 

( 

1999 -

$ 25,275 
358,115 

4,665 
( 81,935) 

( 4Q7,a9Q) 
( 1Q1.27Q) 

182,0U 

182,011 

23,673 
2,275,146 

( 4,881.517) 
( 2.582,698) 

2,217,078 
4B 

2,217.126 

284,831) 

513,227 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of increase in net assets 
$ 645.565 $ 228,436 

to cash flo~s from operating actJ;tles 
Increase m net assets 
Less increase in net · Real' d d .assets considered capital additions 

1ze an unrealized g · · 
Decrease (increase) in accr amsd ?n mvestme~t transaction 
I ue mvestment mcome 
ncrease (decrease) in accrued earnings payable 

Net cash used by operating activities 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 
( 
( 

($ 

211,827 $ 236,499 
109,638) ( 182,011) 
552,923) ( 111,569) 
24,531 ( 37,432) 

( 6. 757) 

426.203) (S 101.270) 

Note 1 · 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC, 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 3 L 2000 and 1999 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Free will Baptist Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the 
auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basjs and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the foundation have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its revenue, contributions, expenses, gains, and losses 
into three classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Net assets of the Foundations and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets- Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or 
the passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Foundation. 
Generally, the donors of these assts permit the Foundation to use all or part of 
the income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statement 
of financial position and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed in 
the statements of activities. The foundation had no temporarily restricted net assets at 
December 31, 2000 and 1999. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptist, Inc. In addition, the foundation has been determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service not to be a "private foundation "within the meaning of 509 (a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2000. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash 
on hand, deposits in financial institutions and highly liqwd debt mstruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certain areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility 
of notes receivable and determination of fair value of mvestments. Management 
believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such 
est1mates are adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

·5· 
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Note 1. 

Note 2. 

FREE WILL ~ST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Fmancial stat;~ 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

SummaryofSilmifi tA · .. canccounting PohCJes (continued) 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securit' . 
losses included in the statement of a ti ' t' les ~re reported at fau value with gains and 
valued at current quoted or estimate~ Vi t~s. n~estments in marketable securities are 
carried at cost unless a permanent lossmoafr elt vahue. Nonmarketable investments are 

va ue as occurred. 

Liabilities tQ Beneficial Owners 

. The Foundation has recorded liabiliti r, 
mtermediary, custodian or agent for be fi 'ales or assets. they held as trustee, 
G all h ne tCI owners of mcome · d . ener y, t e Foundation's liability . li . or remam er rnterests 
account. IS mtted to assets held within a specific trust or . 

Investments 

A summary of investments at market value and co t . r 11 s • 1s as 10 ows: 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 
Certificate of deposits 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 
Real estate investment trust 

Total Investments 

Investments: 
Marketable Securities: 

Certificate of deposits 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stocks 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment trust 

Total Investments 

-6-
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Market/ 
Stated 
Value 

$ 231,028 
5, 164,942 

868,558 
449,299 
109,504 

73,504 
567.010 

s 7.463.845 

Market/ 
Stated 
Value 

$ 281,559 
5,907,897 

781,393 
398,977 

93,798 
567.010 

$ 8.030,634 

2000 

Cost 

$ 227,370 
5,071,765 

809,578 
509,855 
111,594 
73,504 

500.000 
$7 303.666 

1999 

Cost 

s 250,171 
6,266,245 

752,720 
312,296 
98,552 

500.000 
s 8,179.984 

Appreciation 
(depreciation) 

. ( 
( 

$ 3,658 
93,177 
58,98Q 
60,556) 

2,090) 
-0-

67,010 
$ 160.179 

Appreciation 
(depreciation) 

$ 31,388 
( 358,348) 

28,673 
86,681 

( 4, 754) 
67.010 

($ 149 350) 

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5. 

Note 6. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Investments (continued) 

Total investment income amounted to $811,340 for 2000, consisting of investment 
gains of $552,923 and interest and dividends of $258,417. This investment income 
represents yields of 10.47% and 10.48% based on the average market value and average cost 
of such investments for 2000. 

Total investment income amounted to $507,116 for 1999, consisting of investment 
gains of $111,569 and interest and dividends of $395,547. This investment income 
represents yields of 7.60% and 7.57% based on the average market va lue and average cost 
of such investments for 1999. 

Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consist of obligations from related parties as follows: 
2000 

11.5% note receivable due in monthly installments 
of $230 through 2001, relating to the purchase 
of a copy machine by the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. 

8.5% note receivable due in monthly instaUments of 
$903 through 2003, relating to the purchase of a 
phone system by the National Association of the 
Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

$ 1,142 $ 

25,768 

1999 

4,711 

34.026 

$ 26 910 $ 38 737 

Interest Bearing Revocable and Saving Trusts 

The Foundation maintains revocable trusts and savings trusts which totaled 
$5,767,888 and $6,280,027 at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The trusts pay 
interest to the trust beneficiaries. The rate of interest paid is dependent upon the amount of 
income earned from the related investments. Withdrawal from the accounts, which may 
require a 30-90 day notice, is without penalty, and the trusts are without maturity. 

Future Gift Interests Payable 

The foundation maintains charitable unitrusts amounting to $281,680 and $276,451 
and gift annuities amounting to $709,446 and $600,899 as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively. These future gift interests pay interest at specified rates ranging from 5.0% to 
8.7%. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Endowment 

Permanently restricted net assets (endowment) are subject to restrictions by the 
donor requiring that the prinCipal, and 10 certain instances earnings, be invested in 
perpetuity, and only the income be distributed to the benefic1a nes of the endowment. The 
rate of interest paid is dependent upon the amount of income earned from the related 
investments. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999, the permanently restricted endowment 
funds totaled $1,352,834 and $1,171,105, respectively. 

-7-
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Note 7-

Note 8-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Related Party Transactions 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists provided office space and certain admirustrative services to the Foundation for fees 
of $40,000 and $27,000 for 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Information Regarding Financial Instruments 

The Foundation has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents and investments to the extent they are not insured or guaranteed by a 
governmental agency. The Foundation may also be at risk of loss with respect to the 
market values of other investments. The following table summarizes the Foundation's 
accounting risk of loss at December 31, 2000 and 1999: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 

U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 

U.S. Government mstruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 

-8-
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Account 
Balance 

$ 230,377 
415,188 
231,028 

5,164,942 
868,558 
449,299 
109,504 
567,010 

73.504 

$8.109 410 

December 31. 2000 
Amount Amountof 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

$ 100,000 
415,188 
231,028 

5,164,942 

$ 5.911.158 

$ 130,377 

868,558 
449,299 
109,504 
567,010 

73,504 

$ 2.198.252 

12~:cember a1. 1~99 
Amount Amount of 

Account Insured/ Accounting 
Balance Secured Risk of Loss 

$ 110,479 $ 100,000 $ 10,479 
117,956 117,956 
281,559 281.559 

5,907,898 5,907,898 
781,393 781,393 
398,977 398,977 

93,797 93,797 
567,010 567,010 

i 8 2~9 0~9 ~ Q,:to:z ~ 1 a ~ 1.a51 Q~~ 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College Board of Trustees 
Synopsis of Minutes 

December 2000 
The Board of Trustees of Free Will Baptist Bible College met on campus 

December 5-6 following the Leadership Conference. The various administra­
tors and heads of departments gave reports to the Board and discussed needs, 
concerns and objectives. Prayer was offered for each college department. The 
Board received an update from the Relocation Cornrruttee. The Board gave 
prolonged and prayerful consideration to various campus concerns including 
enrollmen~ morale, finances, accreditation and relocation issues. 

May 2001 
The Board met on campus May 14-16 to consider business and participate 

in graduation week activities. A letter of resignation from board member 
Reverend Larry Powell was read and approved. Reports from President 
Malone, Academic Dean Milton Fields and other members of the administra­
tion were received. 

It was agreed to drop the Sports Medicine major and Accounting minor. 
The Board reviewed the SACS and AABC visits, and made recommendations 
to meet accreditation requirements. We reviewed the college's pension plan 
and investment policy and programs. After meeting with the Relocation 
Cornrruttee, it was agreed to proceed with construction of an athletic field on 
the new property. The Board gave consideration to issues of governance on 
campus, received the financial reports and approved the 2001-2002 budget. 
The Board approved the hiring of Jon Forlines as Student Dean and Shiloh· 
Hackett to serve in recruitment. 

Financial Aid Report 

Tme of Aid No. of recipients 

Institutional loans issued 85 
Student worker earnings 63 
Scholarship recipients 95 
Tennessee State Grant Program 12 
Federal SEOG 24 
Federal Work Study Program 18 
Federal PeJJ Grant 1 02 
Federal Subsidized Stafford Loan Program 157 
Federal Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program 82 
PLUS Loan Program 36 

Total Financial Aid Administered 2000-2001 
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Amount of Aid 

$ 147,907.67 
99,500.00 
60,798.35 
28,158.00 
15,748.00 
24,996.25 

175,173.00 
480,185.43 
245,663.72 
197,020.00 

$1,475,150.42 

Registration Report 
Annual Report 2000-2001 

Enrollment . . . ... . ... .. ... . ............ .. ... . ...... . 
. . . 347 

Enrollment Breakdown 

Tennessee ....... 1 04 
Texas ....... · · · · · 5 
Virginia . .. . . .. · · .1 0 
West Virginia ....... 2 

By State 27 Ill' . 22 Missouri . .... . .... 12 Alabama .. .. . .. . . mots . . .. . . .. .. . '-· 1 
1 I d. 9 Nebras~a .... · · · · · · 

Arizona .......... 2.3 In IOna ........... 2 North Carolina ..... 25 
Arkansas .. . .. .. .. owa .. · .. .. .. .. .. 7 

2 K 3 Ohio ............ · California .. . .. .. .. . ansas .. .. .. .. .. .. 4 
Delaware .. .. .. .... 1 Kentucky .. .. ..... 10 Oklahoma : ........ 

7 
) 17 

S h C I *Foreign {10 .... · .d 11 M' h. 9 out oro ma .... · Flon a .. .. .. .. .. . IC lgan .. .. . .. .. . h D k t 2 
25 M' · · · 6 Sout a o a . . · · · · Georgia . .. .. .. .. . ISSISSIPPI ...... • .. • 

(The student body represents 25 states and 10 foreign countnes.) 

By Classilication 
Freshmen 122 \ Sophomores .. . . 96 
Juniors .. . 63 Seniors ....... 57 \ 

Special ** .... · .9 

d 
ted from high school college graduates who ore taking additional courses, etc.) 

[• ·1ndudes those who hove not gro uo ' 

Other Categories 

New ............ .73 
Returning . . ....... 15 

Married ........ · .53 
Free Will Baptist . . . 310 Full-time · · · · · · · 180 

h 37 Part-time ........ . 67 Ot er .. .. .... .. .. 

. 206 Dormitory ....... 220 
Continumg · · · · · · · 127 

f 44 Town .... · .. · .. · Trans er .... · .... · 294 
0 h 9 Single .......... t er . . .... · · · · · · 

Ministerial* ........ 61 
Missionary ...... · .36 

Male . ..... . ..... 175 
Female .......... 172 

' [* lndudes PT and YM] 

*Foreign ( 1 7) : 
Albania ........... 1 

Korea ............. 2 
Panama .. .... .. ... 1 

Bahamas .. ..... .. . 1 
Brazil .... . .... .. .. 2 
Canada .......... .4 
France ........ · ... 1 

South Korea ........ 1 
Spain ...... · ...... 3 
Zimbabwe ......... 1 

Welch library 
. f nd recordings, video-cas-

Total books bound volumes, micro orms, sou ... 1 08 445 
settes, instr~ctional materials, etc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
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Free WiJJ Baptist Bible College Salary Breakdown 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 

General Fund Gift Goals 
2001-2002 1999-2000 2000-2001 2001-2002 

State Goals 

President * 
Solary 

$56,354 59,172 $59, 172 

Alabama $72,600.00 

Social Security 4,311 4,526 4,526 

Alaska 

Retirement 
2,536 2,958 2,958 

1,560.00 Arizona 

Medical Insurance 2,107 2,528 2,500 

Arkansas 84,960.00 

life Insurance 
240 240 263 

California 7,080.00 
$65,548 $69,424 $69,419 

Colorado 720.00 
Academic Dean 

Connecticut 1,560.00 
3,240.00 

Salary 
$45,015 47,266 $47,266 

De laware 
34,920.00 

Social Security 
3 ,444 3,616 3,616 

Florida 
92,520.00 

Retirement 
2,026 2,363 2,363 

Georgia 
Medical Insurance 2, 107 2,528 2,500 

Hawaii 
100.00 Idaho 

life Insurance 
240 240 263 

32,640.00 

$52,832 $56,013 $56,008 
Illinois 

9,000.00 Indiana 
Advancement Director 

Iowa 720.00 
360.00 

Relocation Campaign 

Kansas 
17,160.00 Kentucky 

Salary 
$38,208 40,118 $40, 118 

2,520.00 Louisiana 

Social Security 
2,923 3,069 3,069 

1,680.00 Maine 

Retirement 
1,719 2,006 2,006 

Maryland 600.00 

Medical Insurance 2,107 2,528 2,500 

120.00 Massachusetts 

life Insurance 
240 240 263 

32,280.00 Michigan 

$45,197 $47,961 $47,956 

Minnesota 
Stewardship Development Director 

Salary 
Mississippi 22,080.00 

50,760.00 
$36,750 

Missouri 
Social Security 

2,811 
Montana 

360.00 

Retirement 

1,838 
Nebraska 

Medical Insurance 
2,500 

Nevada 
New Hampshire 

life Insurance 

263 
$44, 162 

New Jersey 
360.00 New Mexico 

Treasurer 

New York 
258,710.00 

Salary 
$43,607 45,787 $45 ,787 

North Carolina 

Social Security 
3,336 3,503 3,503 

North Dakota 
21,840.00 

Retirement 
1,962 2,289 2,289 

Ohio 
22,560.00 

Medical Insurance 2,107 2,528 2,500 
Oklahoma 

life Insurance 
24Q 24Q 263 

Oregon 
600.00 

$51 ,252 $54,347 $54,342 
Pennsylva nia 
Rhode Island 

Salary includes housing allowance where opplrcoble. 
• vehicle provided 

South Carolina 65,640.00 
South Dakota 100.00 
Tennessee 282,480.00 
Texas 13,200.00 
Utah 
Vermont 
Virginia 23,280.00 
Washington 840.00 
West Virginia 8,520.00 
Wisconsin 50.00 
Wyoming 
Canada 840.00 
Virgin Isla nds 1,440.00 
WN.A.C. 5,520.00 
Other 24 ,480.00 

Total $1 ,200,000.00 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May 31, 2001 and 2000 

/usetl 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

$ 

Investments in marketable securities, at market value 
Accounts receivable: 

Student accounts, net of aUowance for doubtful 
accounts of $6,000 

Pledges 
Employee and other 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Total current assets 
Non current assets: 

Cash: 
Restricted for endowments 
Restricted for student loans 
Held under li[e income agreements 

Investments in marketable securities, at marke t value: 
Restricted for endowments 
Held under life income agreements 

Campaign pledges 
Loans to students, less aDowaoce for doubtful loans of $15,000 

Total non current assets 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Investment in property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Total assets 
s 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
AccoQots payable and accrued expenses 

s 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Notes payable to individuals 
Student deposits and ageocy funds 
Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total currenl1iabi1ites 
Long- term debt 

Total liabilities 
Net assets: 

Unrestricted funds 
Temporarily restricted funm 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets s 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2 
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2001 2000 

330,032 332,8n 
4,900 

30,851 30,273 
28,500 33,700 
30,957 34,910 
32,036 10,320 
43,822 41,012 

501,098 48.1,087 

57,305 484,787 

567,400 548,182 
5,000 

570,268 132,670 
4,352 

253,100 411,800 
171.989 191,158 

1,624,414 t ,m,s97 

6,553,176 6,117,135 
2.824,804 2.669,860 

3,728.3n 3,447,275 

S.S.S3.684 S,7Q;\,2S2 

73,FIJ7 171,431 

3,611 
149,062 165,543 
56,809 52,312 

123,213 112,656 
23,910 20J64 

430,412 522,506 
51,070 

481,482 52.2,506 

3,805,530 3,514,497 
352,015 479,151 

1.214,857 1,187,805 

5.372.402 5,181,453 

5,853,884 5,703,959 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Stateme nt!; of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended May 31, 2001 and 2000 

___ ?001 
. Temporarily Pe rmanently 

Unrcstncted Restricted Restricted Tobl 

Revenllcs: 
Funds .Eund! Fuada 2001 

Tuition and fees 

federal grants and contracts 
Private gifts 
Endowment income 

Investment income 

l..u<~s on invc.'ltme n t 11 an.c;actio n.'l 

Sales and services ul 

nuxiliary cnterpri.~e~ 

O the r sources 

s 1,753,373 

1,161.446 
3,950 

10,275 

938,574 
n,112 ---

Net asaeta released from rcatrictiou 

To tal revenues 

Expenditures: 
EdllCational and ~encral: 

Instruction 
/\endemic suppt~l 

Stut.Jcnt services 

O peration and maintenance of plant 
Institutional s upport 

Scholarships and fellowships 

Total educali<lnal and general · · 

e.xpcnc.litu rc.-; 

3,899,730 
503,843 ---

4,403,573 

1,086,864 
32.l, l 47 
431,102 
426,.157 
972,373 
71,403 

3,.11 1,246 

1,753,.173 
35,965 35,965 

327,.139 76,442 1,565,227 
14,018 17,968 

33 10,202 20,510 
(648) (60S 66) (61,214) 

938,574 

--··- 974 33,086 ---- ----
376,707 27,052 

_ (503,841.) 

(127,136) 27,052 

4,303,489 

4,303,489 

1,086,864 
32.1,14.7 
431,102 
426,357 
972,.373 

----- ·- ·~--·- 71,403 --- - -

·- -------- 3,311,246 

Total 
2000 

1,706,782 
33,756 

l ,.l00,808 
21,205 
19,856 
(5,826) 

1,047,490 
13,790 

4,139,861 

4,139,861 

1,043,004 
.308,362 
316,198 
376,597 
866,835 
76,354 

3,047,350 
Auxili;uy e nte rprises: 

l>om1itu ries 

Dining hall 

8ook'ltorc 

291,732 
405,2.11 
89.419 

__ 14,912 

291,732 281,683 

Snacks hop 

Total auxiliary cutcrprisc.<; 
expenditu res 

Toll! I C IJlC ntlit un·~ 

lncrcuc (tJcc; e a!lt·) in nt· l :•~sc lll 
Ne t &~~Sets 1 L - • • a '"'~lnn•n& u l yc.ar 

Net ·~'ICl~ at e nd ur yea• 

801,294 ----- -
4,1 12.q() 

~1 .11.\l 

3.~ 14,4'>17 

S 3,M5r'i:l(l 

Sec accompanyin~ no tell In financial sblc me nts. 

405,211 430,820 
89,419 104,417 

- ·---- ---·- _ _ _:_14.:.!,_912 _ ___.:12.:::075 

·-- . ---- - 801,294 

4 , 11 2.~·10 

IQO,Q!fQ (127,1 lf!) 

47'?,1~ I 

3~2,0 I~ 

27,1K2 

I . I~.KQS 5, 1 81 ,4~3 ----. - -· 
1,214,R57 5~72,-102 

828,995 

3,876,:14 ~ 

26:\,.'i 16 

4,917,9:\7 - ---
5,181,453 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended May 31, 2001 and 2000 
2001 

Temporarily Perm2nently 

Un.reatricted Restricted Restricted 

Funds Funds Funds 

Cash Oowa from o~ratiD~ ac tivities 

Cash collected from students $ 2,699,212 

Federal grants 
35,402 

Federal PeU grants considered to be agency 
fund transactions 

175,173 

Private gifts and grants 1,161,746 70,385 

Endowment income 3,950 14,018 

Investment income 10,275 33 

Othe r revenues 36,628 
Cash paid for scholarships, to vendors 

and for payroll (3,860,769) (202,582) 

Cash paid fo r Federal PeU grants (175,173) -

Net operatin' activities cash Oows 51,042 (82,744) 

Cash flows from iavesting activities 

Marketable securities purchased (5,000} (607,300) 

Proceeds from sale of marke table securities 
109,137 

Expended for plant assets (140,213) (301,261) 

Student notes receivable advances 
(154,329} 

Student note receivable collections 
169.656 

Net iavesting activities cash flows (140,213) (306,261) (482.~ 

Cash flows from ca2iul activities 
Campaign pledges receivable collected 98,678 

Gifts received for: 
Endowments and student loans 

76,442 

Proposed new campos 316,976 

Other student loan transactions: 
Interest income on student loans 

7,404 

Investment income 
10,202 

Collection costs and other lransactions 
(2,993) 

Net capiul activities cash flows 415,654 91,055 

Cash flows rr_om financin_Lact!y_ities 

Proceeds from long- te rm debt 57,158 

Repayment of long- term debt (2,476) 

Interfund activities 31,649 (31,649) 

Notes payable for student loans, net 
(16.483) 

Net fiD.ancin' activities cash Oows 86,331 (31,649) {16,483) 

Net iDcrease ( dec.rease) iD cash 

and cash equivalents (2,840) (5,000) (408,264) 

Cash and cub equivalents at 

bc&iDDin~ or year 33;sn 51000 1,032,969 

Cub aad cash cquivale nll at 

at end of year $ 330.032 624.705 

4 
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Total 
2001 

2,699,212 
35,402 

175,173 
1,232,131 

17,968 
10,308 
36,628 

( 4,063,351) 
(175.173) 

{31,702) 

(612,300) 
109)37 
(441,474) 
(154,329} 
169.656 

(929,310) 

98.678 

76,442 
316,976 

7,404 
10,202 
Q.993) 

506,709 

57,158 
(2,476) 

(16.483} 

38,199 

(416,104} 

1,370,841 

954.737 

Tobl 

2000 

2,766,066 
32,670 

203,031 
969,32.'\ 

21,205 
12,093 
25,544 

(3,704,168) 
(203.mt ) 

124,733 

(240,090) 
(44,453) 
59.4'n 

(225.071) 

64,840 

S0,2A1 
179,454 

7,404 
7,76.'\ 

(3.662) 

306,040 

1.650 

1,650 

207,352 

1,163,489 

1,370.841 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the years ended May 31, 2001 and 2000 
2001 

. Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 

Funds Funds Funds 

Ca.sh and cash equivalents consist or the followin~: 
Current aaets S 

330
,
032 

Non current assets: 

Cash restricted for endowments 
Cash restricted for student loans 
Cash held under life income 

a~reemeols 

57,305 
567,400 

Total 
2001 

330,032 

57,305 
567,400 

S===3=30a,03=.~2 ==== =====6=24=,7=05= ====9=54=,73~7 
Recoacilatioo of tocrease (deere~·-) . t 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

• .._. au oe assets to 
Del operating activities cash flows 

Increase (decrease) in nel assets S 
T · 291,033 

raosacbons considered to be capilal additions· 
Gifts for endowments and student loans . 
Proposed new campus 

Campaign pledges receivable coUecled 

O!ange in Campaign pledges receivable 
Nel olber traasaclions from 

studcnl loan funds 
Depreciation . · ~ 
Loss on investment lraasactions 
Net inlerfund lransfers 

( Increase) decrease in curreol assets: 
/\<:counts r<:ccivable: 

Student accounts, net of allowance 
Pledges 

Employee and otber 

Investments~ marketable securities 
Inventories 

Prepaid expenses 

Increase {decrease) in currenlliabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 

Deferred revenue~ 

160,3n 

(301,261) 

(578) 
5,200 
4,516 

(4,900) 
(2,810) 

(21,716) 

(127,136) 

(316,976) 
(98,678) 
158,700 

648 
301,261 

(56.1) 

27,052 

(76,442) 

(IO,nt) 

60,566 

(405) 

Net operating activities cash flows 

(97,219) 
4,497 

10,557 
__ 3=..!: .. ~ ----

$==5==1,!::::04~2 (~744) === 
Sec accompaDyin~ notes to CJ.D.aDCial ~tatements. 
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190,949 

(76,442) 
(316,976) 
(98,678) 
158,700 

(t O,nt) 
I60,3n 
61,214 

(578) 
5,200 
3,953 

(4,900) 
(2,810) 

(21,716) 

(97,624) 
4,497 

10,557 
3,346 

(311702) 

Total 

2000 -
332,872 

484,787 
548,182 

5,000 

1,370,841 

263,516 

(50,241) 
(179,454) 
(64,840) 
(45,900) 

(2,709) 
170,202 

5,826 

(7,887) 
8,950 
5,579 

731 
(3,326) 

(5,612) 
8,505 

10,217 
11,176 

1241733 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Notes to l'ioaocial Statcmcot.s 

May 31,2001 and 2000 

1bc Free Will Baptist Bible College operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. and is governed by a Uoard of Trustees. 

(1) Summary of Si~nificant Accountir:-~ Poli~i~ 

Basis of Financial Statcm.eot Pres_entattQI! 

The financial statements of the College have heen prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resowccs available to 

the College, the aa:ounts of the College arc maintained in accordance with the principles of "(und 
accounting". Thi<l is the procedure by whlch resources for various purposes are classified for accounting 
purpnscs into funds that arc in accordance with activities or objectives as specified by donon, in 
accortlaoce with regulation..~, re~triction..,, or limitations imposed by sources outside the imtitution, or in 
accontlocc with t.lircction..~ is.~ued by the governing boo rd. 

Thc.~c financial statements, however, have been prepared to focus on the entjty as a wbole and to present 
transactions according to the emleoce or abscnsc or donor-imposed restrictions in conformity with 
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received 
and \.ontributions Made" and No. 117 "Financial Statements of Not-for-Prolit Orgaoi7.ations". This 
has been accomplished by classifying fund transactions into three categories of net assets: unrestricted 
net assets which have no donor- imposed reslrictions, temporarily restricted net assets which have 
donor-imposed rc.~lrictions that expire in the future, and permanently restricted net assets whlcb have 
donor imposed restrictions which do not expire . 

Expiration of Donor - Imposed Restri5=tjons 

lbe expiration of a donor- imposed restriction oo a contnl>ution is recognized in tbe period in wbkb the 
restriction expires und at that time the related resources are reclassified to uorcstricted net assets. A 
restriction expires when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for wbkh the 
rc.~ourcc wa.~ restricted has hccn fulfilled, or both. 

Pledges Reccivab lc (note 7) 
• 

"lllese amount~. lcM an apprnpriutc rc.~e rvc, arc rcconJcd at their estimated fair value with amounts due 
later than one year at the present value of estimated future cash Oows. 

Prope~y._Plant and .~l!ipment 

l'l;ant a.~scl~ con.~i.~ting of land, buikling.~. other land impnwcments, equipment and furoi.~hings, library 
books, and costs relatct.l to proposed new campus arc stated at cost or estimat.cd fair value at date of gift. 
Expenditure.~ for acquistion nf a.,~l· l.~ in exec.~.~ of S2."i0 arc capitali:~,ed a.~ invc.~tmcnt in plant. 

Dcprcciahlc ~wl~ :ne depredated un a straight-line hasi.~ over the estimated useful lives nf the as.<;ets, 
ro~nging from :'i In 50 years. ' lllc current provi.~ion for dcprcci:llion is rerorted as an CliJICnditure oC the 
College. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

( 1) Summary or Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

I nventorics 

Inventories, col\.\isting of boob and supply items, are vaJued at cost., with cost being determined on the 
rir!it - in, first-out met bud. 

Investments 

Investment<> arc rcrort~d at market value to comply with Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, 
"Accounting fur C'.crt.~in lnwstmenl~ uf Nul for Profit OrganizatiorL"." 

Estimates 

·lhe prrparation of financi:1l statcmenl1' in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

rcl{uires man:1gemcnt to make estimates and Luumptions that affect tho reported amounl" or assets a.od 
liabilities and di'iClosurc or contingent as...cts and liabilities at the date o( the fmancial statements and the 

reported amounts or revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Al:tuaJ results oould differ 

from those c."timates. 

lncomeT~~ 

'Jbe College is exempt from income taxc." under Internal Revenue Code Section S0l(c)(3); accordingly, 
no rrovi"ion for taxc.~ ha" hcco made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Ca~h_an_!l_ Qa~~-·l;qui~lents 

For purposes of tbe statement of cash Oows, the College considers aU cash on band, deposits lo financial 
in."titutions and highly liquid dell! inl>trumenl" with an origin:•! maturity of three months or less to be 
c:•"h and <.~.L"h t•quilllllcnK 

C<?.mpensated Absences 

Employees of the College arc entitled to puid vacatiun, puid sick c.lays and personal c.lays ofT, depending 
on job cla5.~iflcation, length of service anc.J other factors . It i~ impracticable to estimate the amount of 
cQmpcnsation for future nbscnccs, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the aa;ompanyin& 

linancial sl:1temc nts. The College's policy is to recognize the cost of compe"'o;atcd absences when 
actually paid to empl<)ycc~. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

·she carrying value o f cash, acco unts receivable, acx:ounts pay-.tblc and :.a:rued expenses approximate Cair 
v-.tluc t.ccausc o f the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of liabilities are oot 
materially diffe re nt from the estimated fair values of these in~trumcnts. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

Certain n:cla"t r~Cation~ have bc:en m:toc In the amounl~ as reported in the prior year to conform to 

current ycur r~<·sentaliun. The~;c rcclas.~irlcalions had no cfft:d on rcrortcd net II.<;SCL<t. 
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(2) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

!ovestments - . ~ar!:~!~d s~.:~kc:. value. The following table sw:runarizes by type the 

Iovesunent secunucs . 1 d market value o( the investment assets. . d Unrealized 

te
,ftu·ooship between carrymg va ue an Fvess of Uurcalize_ 
,.. lat Cumulative 

. Market Market Over Cumu ave 
~:::::g Value {Under) Cost GaiDs 

Ba}aoce May 31, 2001: 
Permanently Restricted Funds: 

Common stock S 
Bonds 
Variable annuity contracts 

Temporarily Restricted Funds: 

305,664 
75,000 

147,081 

5,000 

367,184 
75,054 

128,030 

4,352 

61,520 
54 

(19,051) 

(648} 

63,140 
54 

Variable annuity contracts 

Unrestricted Funds: 
Common stock 

4,900 ----'4,900 ---- - ---
579,520 41,875 63.194 

$==5==37==,64====5 =========== =====:!:=== 
Balance May31, 2000: 

Common stocks 

94,446 94446 
S 38 224 132,670 

=====· ==· == ========== s (8,643) 
Realized loss on sale o[ securities . 
Unrealiz.ed loss due to change in the cummulattve 

change in market value pools 
Loss on investment transactions 

(52,571} 

s (61,214) 

Losses 

(1,620) 

(19,051) 

(648} 

(21,319) 

(3) 
"cti 

Net Assets Released From Restn °: estricted net assets as follows: 

D =-~--' restrictions expired on tempora r 
onorw~ . .. 

Expenditures made (or donor imposed restncuons. S 45,155 
16,798 
19,167 

Private scholarships . . Grant 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportuwty 

Federal Work Study Program 

Equipment capitaliz.ed . . . 
Other instruCtional and msutuuonal 

Proposed new campus related costs: 

Capitalized expenditures 
New campus land maintenance and expense 

Campaign off.ce expense 
Allocation to unrestricted gifts (see note 7) 

s 301).61 
4,403 

103,914 

2,848 
10,297 

409,578 

s 503,843 
Net assets released from restrictions . 

2001 d 2000 respectiVely, are 
. S17S 173 and $203,031 for an • 

Federal Pell grants to students amountmg to ' ...:-.tions as scheduled above. Federal Pell 
• t assets released from resu.. I • d the 

not included in e~nditures or ne . . tba th tudent payments are entitlements an 
nrv transactiOn lD t e s 

grants are considered to be an age-J 
funds are not under the control o[ the College. 
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{4) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

N o t es t o F inancial Statements coot· ed 
R . . , mu 

e malDm N e t Assets o f T . 
Net asse ts of temporanly restricted ~umds oranl . R estricted Funds 

n are available for the following purposes: 

Proposed new campus 
Scholarships 

Life income funds 

Other instruc tional and institutional 

s 
2001 -259,175 

74,057 

•.on 
14,706 

(5) N e t Assets s 352,015 

2000 

411,800 
48,419 
4,72S 

14,207 

479,15 J 

{6) 

Net assets of the Colle e · 
g COns iSt of tbe following as or May 31 2001 

· • and 2000: 
2001 

. Temporarily Pe nnanenU 
Unrcstnc ted Restricted R t . Y Operations 

Net investment in plant assets 
life income funds 

S 131,839 - cs nctcd 

Unexpended funds restricted for: 
Operating purposes 
Plant fac ilities 

Student loan funds 

True endowment funds 

Scholarship endowment funds 

3,673,691 

Total ne t assets S J.805JJO 

Pro p e rty, Pla nt and Equipment 

4,on 

88,763 
259,175 

352,015 

Components of property· 1 • 
' P ant and equipment a re as follows: 

Land 

Proposed new campus, land and costs. 
B ildi Incurred to date u ngs 
Equipment 
Library books 

Acc~ulated depreciation and amortization 
Net mvestment in plant 

581,284 
179,705 
447,868 

1,214,857 

s 

2000 
Total Total 

131,839 265,048 
3,673,691 3 .. 153,261 

4,077 4,725 

88,763 62,626 
259,175 411,800 
587,284 570,348 
179,705 190,454 
447,868 427,003 

5,372,402 5~5,265 

2001 2000 -296,519 296,519 

966,096 664,834 
3,412,885 3,412,885 
1,372,!13 1,284,882 

505,563 458,015 
6,553,176 6,117,135 

Depreciation and amortization charged 
2000, respectively. 

2,824,804 2,669,860 
S 3,728rl72 3,447,275 

to expenditures was $160,376 and $170,202 in 2001 and 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Relocation Campaign and New Campus. 

Proposed Sale of Existing Campus and Pledges Receivable 

Relocation Campaign and New Campus 
The College began its Relocation Campaign in March 1998. The Campaign's purpose is to secure 
pledges and cash contributions totaling $12,000,000, to be collected over the next five years. The 
$12,000,000 is to fund operating expenses amounting to $6,000,000 (an average of $1,200,000 annually; 

i.e. gifts may be allocated to unrestricted net assets based on the difference between $1,200,000 of gifts 
budgeted and the amount of gifts actua!Jy received for unrestricted operations in any given year) and to 

relocate and construct the new campus located in Joelton, Tennessee amounting to $6,000,000. When 
all cri te ria for relocation have been met, the present campus will be sold (sec foiJowing) and aU proceeds 
applied to the cost of the new campus. Cost of construction in excess of the proceeds reali7.ed from the 

sale of the present campus will be funded by the Relocation Campaign and bank debt. 

Propos ed Sale of Existing Campus 
The "Lette r of Intent" the College held as of May 31, 2000 to sell the existing campus expired without 
being consumatcd. As of tbe balance sheet date (May 3 1, 2001) the College had executed ano ther 

"Letter of Intent" with a prospective purchaser for the existing campus. The "Letter of Intent" 
agreement was to have been transferred into a formal agreement by June 1, 2001, but bas been verbally 
extended Contingencies exist !or the purchaser re lating to obtaining financing and land usc approvals 
by September 1, 2001. If aU contingencies are met the closing is scheduled for June I, 2003. The 
purchase price has been agreed to be $12,000,000. 

Ple~es Rec eivable 

Pledges receivable are recorded at estimated realizable value after an a llowance for potential 
uocoUectJble pledges. Furthe r, pledges receivable expected to be collected in years after the next fiscal 
year are discounted to their present values of future cash flows using an 8% interest factor. The 
following summarizes pledges receivable as of May 31,2001 and 2000. 

Unrestricted Operations: 

The College receives post dated check books, deposited monthly [or 

general operations, which are collectible over in one year period and a re 
considered Cully coUcctiblc. 

Relocation Campai~:n: 

Uncollected pledges for the joint purpose of general operations and 
relocation to and construction of the new campus in Joelton, Tennessee. 

Less a llowance for potential uncollecuble pledges 
Less present value of future cash flows discounted at 8% 
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2001 

$ 28,$00 

s 

s 

544,000 

(264,900) 
(26,000) 

253,100 

2000 

33,700 

604,300 

(120,900) 
(71,600) 

411,800 



(8) Perusion Plan 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

The College has d Ci . a c ~ned benefit pension Ia . 
students, hired prior to attaining age 61 fou!v· n wh~eh ~vers aU regular employees, exec t . 
age 21. Service for benefit and . mg complehon of one year of service • d P .full-tUne 

. . vestmg purposes shall be the an atta1nmeot Ol 
partxapant completes at least 1 000 h The number of plan years . . 
compensation during th.e thrC: co ours: benefits on retirement are detennined base IJld Wlticb tbe 
normaJ . DSeCUtive years during the Jas On avef'l&e 

rettrement date which prod th . t ten years prior to th . . 
toward th~ cost of the plan. The ~ege': !!:~~t ave~ge: Employees are not ~Uirede t:~:::t•a 
assets CODSJSt of investments held and g policy IS to fund pension costs accrued Th re 
Th managed by Sun Trust, Inc the plan adm. . e plaa 

e following table sets forth the • ., ID&Sirator. 
statement of financial )Xl5 "ti M plans funded status and amounts reco...,;.._..,. 
R . . . t on at ay 31, 2001 and 2000 ~ m the Colle&e'a 

econcaliatJon of benefit obli t ' . && IODS; 
Benefit obligation at beginning f 

Se 
. o year 

rvJCC cost 
Interest cost 

Participant contributions 
Plan amendments 

Loss due to actuarial experience 

Gain due to changes in acttaaraa· I ass . 
Be . umpt1ons 

nefits patd to plan participants 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Rec;onciliation of asset value: 
Plan assets at beginning of year 

Acttaa) return of plan assets 
Employer contributions 

Benefits paid to plan participants 
Plan assets at end of year 

Rec;onciliation of funded status: 

Funded status at end of year (liability) 

Unrecognized ne t transition obligation asset 
Unrecognized prior service cost 

Unrecognized net (gain) or Joss 
Amount iJlcluded in prepaid expense I (accounts 

and accrued expenses) payable 

Ace~ uta ted benefit obliption at end of year 

Vated benefit obli,ation at end of year 

Reconciliation of unrec;o&Dized net loa· 
Unrccogni7.cd loss at beginning of year • 

Amount of los.s recognized during the year 
~ due to actuarial experience 
Gam due to changes in acttaarial a.ssum ti 
Gain due to assets P ons 

Unrecognized (gain) or loss at end of year 
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s 

s 

s 

s 

s 
s 
s 

s 

s 
2001 

1,873,733 
68,152 

157,706 

63,625 
212,464 
{45,850) 

2.329,830 

2,099,369 
38,636 
66,529 

(45,850) 
2,158,684 

(171,145) 
(74,737) 
43,259 

219,393 

t6,no 

1,972.112 

1,927,068 

(194,882) 

63,624 
212,464 
138,187 
219,393 

2000 
1,913,.243 

n,4u 
141,724 

35,698 
(266,868) 
{27,490) 

1,873,733 

1,855,533 
198,.140 
72,986 

(27,490) 
2,099,369 

225,636 
(99,648) 
64,890 

(194,882) 

(4,004) 

1J93,736 

1J 69,427 

1s,m 

35,698 
(266,868) 
(42,440) 

(194,882) 

(8) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Peosioo Plan. continued 
Net periodic benefit cost: 

Service cost at end of year 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization or transition obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortization of net loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Auumptions used for determination o( net pension cost: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation iJlcrease 
Expected long- term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

Auumptioos used for determination of end of year obli,atioas: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long- term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

s 

s 

2001 
68,152 

157,706 
(176,82.1) 
{24,911) 
21,631 

45,155 

8.50% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

2000 
77,421> 

141,724 
(155,900) 
(24,911) 
21,631 

59,970 

7.50% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

8.50% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

(9) Notes Payable and Long- Term Debt 
Permanently Restricted Funds - Student Loan Funds 

5% demand notes payable to individuals s 149,062 165,543 
Unrestricted Funds - Long- Term Debt 

10.99% installment obligation, with monthtly payments of $786.89, 
including interest and principa~ maturing September 2010, secured by a 
grand piano. 

Less current portion of long-term debt 
Long- term debt 

s 54,681 
3,611 

S 5L070 

Principal maturities of long- term are as follows: 2003 - $4,028; 2004 - $4,487; 2005 - SS,019; 2006 
- $5,593; '1007 - $6,240; and $25,703 in years thereafter. 

(10) Concentration of Credit Risk 
The CoUege is the institution of higher education of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
and offers Bible based educational services to members of the denomination. The CoUege extends 
credit in certain instances to students for educational costs and makes loans to s tudents from the Loan 
Funds. The College also maintains certain accounts for sponsored groups, staff purchases, student 
telephone charges, etc. The CoUege also bas a subctantial amount of pledges receivable which are 
dispersed among numereous supporters of the College. These accounts are not collateralized and are 
subject to accounting ris.k of loss amounting to the outstanding balance at any point in time. 

Further, the CoUege bas cash funds invested at several financial institutions and bas risk of accounting 
loss for funds amounting to approximately $715,000 siDce the balance at certain financial institutions is 
greater than the insurable limit The College also owns marketable securities which are subject to 
accounting risk of loss amounting to the recorded balance. 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This s~mmary is provided to help the den . . 
financial condition of Free Will Bapt" I B?bml matiOn better understand the overall 

IS 1 e College. 

Un restricted Funds Revenues and Expenditures 

Total Unrestricted Funds Revenues ~ 
$4,403,573. Total Unrestricted Fund:~~he y~~r ending May 3 I, 200 I' amounted to 
$29 I ,033 increase in net assets at the en/efn hltufires were $4, I I 2,540, providing a 

o t e 1scal year. 

Negative Cash Flow Statement 

Th~ ~~mbined cash flow of the Colle e's . . . 
actiVIties showed cash and cash e . g I operatmg, mvestmg, capital and financl·al 
$5 000 · qu1va ents decreas· $2 8 · 
fl • m Te~lporarily Restricted Funds, and $408 ~~g . ' 40 m Unrestricted Funds, 
or a cumulative cash flow decrease of $416 I 04 T 4 In Penn~ently Restricted Funds 

Funds reflects management's d . . , . he decrease m Pemlanently R t . 
converted $517,479 from cash :~s~~~r~~~;vest in marketable securities. This dec~:i:~ted 
Unrestricted Giving 

Private gi fls provided $1 I 61 446 . U . 
$926,234 ~as provided from 'Gen:~l ;~~stn~ted Funds Revenues. Of that amount, 
from spec1al gifts. d g•tls, $229,708 from Estate gitls, and $5,504 

General Fund Giving Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

.~ecause ~.f above-mentioned General Fund i fts F 
award~d $120 for every semester hour tak!n . ' WBBC students were in essence 
Fun~ gills kept the cost of tuition per semes '" 2000-200 I. Or, unrestricted General 
subsidy saved each student taking 30 ter hour at $209, instead of $329 This gi 0 
$3,600 this past academic year. semester hours ( 15 hours per semester). a total of 

Financial Obligations 

The College is free of long-tenn debt with th . . 
:ayable to Individuals (the proceeds ~e _e exceptton of two Items: First, Notes 
~nterest student loans) amounts to $149 ~~~tncted for the purpose ofproviding low-
In the student loan program to complet~J r. ~e College has sufficient cash and savings 
funds a~ailable as part of its financial aiJ ;~u' ate these notes, but chooses to keep lhe 
grand pta no for $6 I ,658 on a I 0- p gram. Second, the College purchased a 

year note. The balance as of May 3 1' 200 I is $5 I ,070. 

THIS INFORMA Tl 
ON IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 

Assets to Debt Ratio 

FWBBC's assets to debt ratio is extremely good. Total assets amount to $5,853,884. Our 
long term liabilities (listed in "Financial Obligations" above) comes to $200,132, giving a 
29.25 to I ratio. Adding all other liabilities brings the total to $481,482, and gives a 

12 16 to I ratio. 

Relocation Campaign Update 

In March, 1998, the college entered into a five-year, $12 million capital campaign for the 
purpose of providing $6 million in operating (General Fund/Unrestricted Fund) revenues 
and $6 million for relocating and constructing a new campus in Joelton, Tennessee. 

Since March 1998, the can1paign has raised $907,038 in cash and $544,000 in pledges 
and commitments as reflected in the audited financial statements. The pledge amount 
docs not include verbal commitments. Cash has been expended for the following: 
$75,500 to supplement unrestricted gitls, $306,704 to fund the campaign office and to 
retain a campaign consultant, $13,153 for land maintenance, and $575,610 for 
construction project such as engineering, architects, etc. 

These campaign-related expenditures total $970,968, of which the excess has been 

funded from unrestricted net assets. 

The $1? .million campaign is a combined endeavor: 

The first part of the campaign goal is $6 million necessary for the operational funding of 
FWBBC. Even without the campaign, the college would budget$ I .2 million per year in 
unrestricted gifts. In order to avoid competition for operating (Unrestricted Fund) gifts, 
the college established one-half of the campaign total to be available for up to $1,200,000 
per year, for 5 years, in unrestricted funds. In 2000-2001, the total came to only 
$926,234, with no allocation from campaign funds. 

The second part of the campaign goal is to raise another $6 million for the relocation and 
construction of the new Joelton campus. These funds, along with lhe future sale of the 
West End Avenue campus, are designed to provide sufficient capital for the move. 

SPECIAL NOTE- URGENT NEED: 

The Bible College is deeply appreciative for over $900,000 in cash gifts received toward 
lhe $6 million goal. However, in order to continue toward our goal of beginning 
construction once the sale of the campus has been consummated, cash gifts must increase 

dramatically from this point forward. 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF T HE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Proposed Budget for the Year Ending May 31 , 2002 

As Compared to 
Actual as Summarized for the Year Ended May 31,2001 

Revenues: 

Tuirion & fees : 
Gifls· 

Together/Capital Campaign 
Esratcs & Miscellaneous 

Endowment income: 
lnvesrment income: 

Sales & services of auxiliary enterprises: 

Other sources: 

Net assets released from restrictions: 

Total revenues: 

Expenditures: 

Educational & General: 
Jnstructi<ifl : 

Proposed 
Budget 

MayJI , 2002 

2,260,720 

1,200,000 
70,500 

7,500 
15,000 

1,063,656 

I 67,682 

4,785,058 

Academic Support: I, 181 ,604 
Student Services: 436,768 

Op~ration & maintenance of plant: 504,171 
lnstJtutionaJ support: 493,258 
Scholarships I, I 69,543 

Total educational & general expenditures: ----::;~55~,0~00~ 
3,840,344 

Auxil iary enterprises: 

Expenditures: 
944,714 

Total expenditures: 
4,785,058 

Increase in net assets: 

Audir 
Moy31 ,200 J 

1,753,373 

926,234 
235,212 

3,950 
10,275 

938,574 

32,112 
503,843 

4,403,573 

1,086,864 
323,1 47 
431 ,102 
426,357 
972,373 
71,403 

3,31 1,246 

801,294 

4,112,540 

291,033 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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BY-LAWS AND RULES OF DECORUM 
OF 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

I 
Or2anization. Objective and Purposes 

1. Organization. The Free Will Baptist Bible Co11ege (hereafter 
referred to as "coUege") is a Nonprofit Corporation organized under 
the laws of the State of Tennessee. 
2. Office. The Co11ege shaH maintain its principal office in Nashvi11e, 
Tennessee or such other place within the State of Tennessee as deter­
mined by the Board of Trustees. 
3. Objective and purposes. The Co11ege shall establish and maintain 
a Bible College consistent with its Mission Statement to equip men 
and women through Bible-based education for service to Christ and 
His Church. The College exists for the ultimate purpose: 

To Magnify Christ Jesus as Our Lord 
and to Glorify Our Heavenly Father. 

II 
Board of Trustees 

The Board of Trustees shall be considered the same as a Board of Directors. 

1. Number. election and authority of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall be 
composed of nine members who are elected by the National Association for 
a term of six years. These terms are to be arranged so that they expire in groups 
of three biennially. A Trustee shall serve no more than two full consecutive 
terms. The Trustees shall act in their Trustee capacity only as a Board and indi­
vidual Trustees have no power to act for the College without prior specific 
Board authority. The Board shall institute the overall policies of the College and 
the administrative officers of the College shall administer these policies and 
supervise its operation The Board shall be responsible for the actions of the 
College to the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
2. Qualification of Trustee. Each Trustee shall hold membership in a reg­
ular Free Will Baptist Church that belongs to a Free Will Baptist District or 
State Association, or to a church which is recognized by the National 
Association as being affiliated. Except for the President, no employee of 
the College shall hold membership in the Board of Trustees. 
3. Reports to the National Association. The Board shall prepare an 
annual budget of its proposed financial expenditures at the beginning 
of each fiscal year and sha11 present the same for approval to the 
National Association along with a properly qualified independent 
audit with an unqualified opinion of the Co11ege's fiscal condition. 
4. Vacancies. The Board of Trustees may seek to replace on an ad 
interim basis irregular vacancies that may occur among its members 
for any reason by requesting the General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., to fill said vacancies. 
5. Removal of Trustees. The National Association at any regular annual 
session shall have the power and right to declare the Trustee position 
vacant only for cause deemed valid by said Association and to elect sue-
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~essors to those w~o may thus. be re:noved from office. Such cause may 
mclude: moral turpitude, confhct of mterest, failure to perform duties of 
the office, or ceasing to meet any of the requirements of election to office. 
6. Executive Committee. With the President as an Ex Officio member the 
Executive Committee of the Board shall be composed of the Chai~an 
Vice Chairman and Secretary of the Board and shall have authority to con~ 
sider and act upon all questions affecting the interests of the College which 
may be brought before it between the stated meetings of the Board, or 
whenever it is deemed impractical to convene the entire Board, or when­
ever a quorum of the Board fails to attend a called or regular meeting. It 
shall transact such business as may be committed to it by the Board and 
shall act as an advisory council to the President of the College on such mat­
ters as he may submit to it The committee shall meet at the call of its 
Chairman or the President of the College. A quorum of the executive com­
mittee shall be all three of its members. Actions of the executive committee 
shall be reviewed at the Board's next scheduled meeting. 
7. Regular and special meetings. The Board of Trustees shall set the time 

• I 

occasion or place of the annual meetings of the Board of Trustees which 
thereafter may be held without notice. Special meetings may be held at any 
time upon the call of the President or upon the call of six Trustees. Notice 
and purpose of such special meetings shall be sent in writing by those call­
ing the meeting and postmarked at least thirty days before the meeting. 
8. Quorum. A Quorum shall consist of at least five duly elected Trustees and 
a majority vote of the Trustees present shall decide the issues brought before 
the meeting except as otherwise required by the Charter, By-Laws of the 
College ancVor by the National Associations Constitution and By- Laws. 
9. .Duties. It shall. be the duty of the Board to detennine general policies gov­
errung the operation of the College and to ensure that these policies are car­
ried out effectively. Included in this responsibility are the following duties: 

A. To elect the President of the College and to review his perform­
ance at least annually; 

B. To review reports from the President and his staff, at least annually, 
and to act on the recommendations that arise from those reports, 
including recommendations relative to the employment of personnel 
and the establishment of policies; 

C. To review financial statements that provide a complete picture of the 
College's operations, to ensure that they are accurate and complete, 
to ensure that the College is being operated efficiently, and to adopt a 
sound financial budget each year; 

D. To invest in the President the authority to confer degrees, certificates, 
or diplomas attesting to the satisfactory completion of programs of 
study that have been approved by the Board; 

E. To promote the College's educational program and to ensure that the 
College has the financial resources to enable it to achieve its goals; and 

F. To evaluate the College's investment policy and the performance of its 
investments at least as often as every other year. The Executive 
Committee of the Board shall review the policy and the performance 
of the College's investments and make report of its findings and 
appropriate the recommendations to the Board. 

10. Standing committees. The Board shall maintain the following standing 
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·nees each one composed of three members of the Board as el~c~ed 
co~ Boar'd. Each committee shall devote special atte~tion to obtairu~ 
by nt information concerning its assigned area, and to mform the entire 
curre · th s· ard about needs and concerns m ose ~ea . . 
~ Faculty Affairs: This committee shall reVIew matters affecting faculty 

· ersonnel policies and procedures and faculty welfare. It. shall con­
~ider proposals on such matters and make rec.ommendations to the 
Board as may be required or deemed appropnate. . 

B. Student Affairs: This committ~~ shall review matters affec~ng. st~dent 
life including residential pohc1es, the government anc;t diSCipline of 
students and student welfare and morale. It shall consider proposals 
on such ~atters and make recommendations to the Board as may be 
required or deemed appropriate. . . 

c Plant and Finance: This committee shall reVIew matters affec~ng the 
· h sical plant maintenance and operations and matters affecting the 
~~cial support of the College. It shall consider proposals on such 
matters and make recommendations to the Board as may be 
required or deemed appropriate. . 

11. Compensation and expenses. Trustees s.hall s_erve as such Without 
compensation. Expenses incurred in connection With the performance of 
their official duties may be reimbursed to Trustees upon approval of the 

Board of Trustees. 
III 

Officers. Election and Duties 

1. Officers. The officers of the Board of Trustees shall be the Chairman of 
the Board Vice Chairman and Secretary. 
2. Electi~n and term. Each of the officers shall be elected by ~e Board 
of Trustees for one year beginning ~th the r~gular annual meeting of the 
Board and they shall serve until their respective successors are e~ected. 
3. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board sh~ pres1d~ at a}l 
meetings of the Board of Trustees except whe~ he directs or m his 
absence the Vice Chairman shall preside. The Cha~~an shal.l perform all 
the duties and have all the powers commonly incident to his office and 
shall carry out the directions of the Board of Trustees. 
4. Vice Chairman. The Vice Chairman of the ~oard sh~l perform all the 
duties and have all the powers commonly incident to his o~ce and s~all 
have other powers and perform other duties as may be ass1g~ed to him 
by the Chairman and/or the Board of Trustees. The Vice Chairm~ shall 
preside at the meetings of the Board of Trustees when the Chairman 
directs or in his absence. . s. Secretary. The Secretary shall perform all the duties and have all the 
powers commonly incident to his office and shall serve as Secretary of 
the Corporation and shall have such other powers and perform such 
other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Trustees. He shall 
keep the minutes of all the meetings of the Board of Trustees. 

IV 
Officers of the College 

1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President (the pres­
ident of the College, by virtue of his office), Secretary (the Secretary of the 
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Board, by virtue of his office) and As · 
CoHege, by virtue of his offic~). Sistant Secretary (the Treasurer of the 
2. General Administrative Officers The . . . 
the College shall include the Pr. .d general admmistrative officers of 
S es1 ent Academ · D 

tudents., and Treasurer/Assistant Secretary' IC ean, Dean of 
3. Election and Tenn. Each of the general. d . . . 
officers shall be elected by the Board f1l a mlrustrative and corporate 
respective successors are chosen subJect%s~es and shall serve until their 
section, N, paragraph 9. e removal as set forth in this 
4. President The President of the Colle e hall . . 
and responsible to administer the li g. s f be the Chief Executive Officer 
entire operation of the College. In so%· aes o the Boar<;~ and supelVise the 
of the College, including its officers fac~' ~~hall exerase ~eneraJ oversight 

He shall be the official chann~J of , s e~ts ~d busmess affairs. 
sionaJ staff and the Board and th hall :mmurucation between the profes-
ularty and acCUiateJy info~ed ~~tall the ~r~ible tC? keep the Board reg. 
the Board complete annual reports and to .ts C~e s affairs. He. shall render to 
or other committees such inforrnati 1 rman, Executive Committee 
ough knowledge of the operation of ~e~ rr:Y be d~med ess~ntial to a thor· 

He shall be the Admini . 0 ~e and 1ts promotion 
all others are subordinate t~~n;.e;:.~cer directJy ~esponsible to the Board, 
of their duties to him and through him t~~ re~ponsJble for the performance 
member of the Board of Trustees e oard. H~ shall be an Ex Officio 
a mem?er of the Board exclusive ~~~~~~v~ fdingl. nghts and privileges of 
. Bes1des overall supervision h h . 0 of~ice on the Board. 

direction to the College as a whol: ~ all giVe leadership and executive 
administrative office and facul to fue e shall :ecomme~d candidates for 
developing and presentin the b Board, he shall gJVe leadership to 
for public relations; he shJ give ~~~~:t; ~e shal~ ha~e direct responsibility 

He shall be directJ res ansi rs P to P annmg and development 
properties belonging t~ thePColleble ~0 the .Board for th.e protection of all 
protection agairJst fire and other ~e, mdcluding upkeep, Improvement and 

In . alaf s. 
carrymg out these major areas f . . . 

responsibility to the other administra~ re~honsJbihty, he shall delegate 
executive control through those offi e 0 Jeers and shall exercise his 
5 A d . cers. 
. ca ernie Dean Under the su . . 

Dean shaJJ give lead.ership to the ~ti~s~~n of ~e President, the Academic 
cur~iculum, the faculty and the students S u~tio~ program i~clu~ng the 
Registrar, the Department Heads and th . uc. ? cers as the LJbranan, the 
directJy responsible to him. e Christian Service Director shall be 

He shall be the Chairman of the facul . . 
be the executive officer of the facul . ty o~garuza~on and as such shaH 
the curriculum, admissions and gra~~~~aTryJng ?ut Its responsibilities for 
shall assume any other duties dele a ted ~n r~qwrements. In addition, he 
of the President, commensurate wi~ his ~f~r; by and for the assistance 
6· Dean of Students. Under the ge a1 ·. . 
D~ of Students shall give directio~e;~ ~u~rr;sJo~ of the President, the 
seTVJces. In carrying out the functio .e o ege s program of student 
for the supervision of the student ~!!~office, ~e shall be responsible 
ment of rules governing student b h . , e establishment and enforce· 

e aVJor, student counseling, the student 

A- .102 

council and other student orgaruzations, and other matters relating to the 
students' lives and activities. In addition to these duti~s, he shall assume ~Y 
other responsibilities which may be delegated to him ~y an? for the assJS· 
tance of the President of the College, commensurate WJth his office. 
7. Registrar. Under the general sup~rvision of the Academic Dec:m, at 
the administrative staff level, the Registrar shall enroll the students m the 
College, keep accurate records of enrollment and grades and furnish 
transcripts for students. 

He shall supervise the College's program of academic advising and 
arrange class schedules. In addition to these dutie~, he shall assume ~y 
other responsibilities which may be delegated to him by and for the assJS· 
tance of the Academic Dean of the College, commensurate with this office. 
8. Treasurer/Assistant Secretary. Under the general supervision of the 
Presiden~ the Treasurer shall keep an accurate record of all accounts of the 
College and shall receive and expend, as directed by the Board and/or the 
Presiden~ all money for the expenses of the institution He shall make an annu· 
al report to the Board through the President and shall include such infonnation 
pertaining to his office as may be requested He shall provide bond in whatev­
er amount the Board may require. He shall assume any responsibilities dele­
gated to him by the President in the area of finance and business management 

His duties as Assistant Secretary of the Corporation shall be to assist the 
Secretary of the Board, as Corporate Secretary, with full authority to perform all 
duties and have all the powers commonly inddent to the office of Corporate 
Secretary. He shall, on behalf of the Corporate Secretary, maintain the 
Corporate Book of Minutes. 
9. Removal of Administrative Officers. The President of the College shall hold 
office at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees. The other Administrative Officers 
shall hold office at the pleasure of the President and the Board of Trustees. Any 
such officer may be removed at any time with or without cause by the President 
upon approval of the Board of Trustees or its Executive Committee. Any vacan­
cy occurring in any Administrative Office shall be filled by the President upon 
approval of the Board of Trustees or its Executive Committee. 
10. Administrative Staff. Upon the recommendation of the President, the 
Board shall create and fill such other staff positions as is mutually deemed 
necessary for the efficient operation of the College. Whenever such 
administrative staff positions are created, the action shall provide: 

A. Whether the position is intended to be permanent or temporary, 
and if temporary for what duration; 

B. Whether the person filling the position shall report directJy to the President 
of the College or to some other general administrative officer; and 

C. A description of the staff duties. 
Such staff may include, but are not necessarily limited to Director of Public 
Relations, Director of Stewardship Developmen~ Director of Plant 
Operations, Assistant Treasurer, Director of Advancemen~ Director of 
Institutional Effectiveness, and Director of Enrollment Management 

11 . Salaries. The salary of the President shall be fixed by the Board of 
Trustees or the Executive Committee. The salaries of all other salaried 
officers of the College shall be fixed upon recommendation of the 
President by the Board of Trustees or the Executive Committee. 
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v 
Faculty of the College 

1. Constituency. The faculty of the Col1ege shall include: 
A. All those employed primarily to teach; and 
B. The President, Academic Dean, Dean of Students, Registrar, Student 

Deans, Librarian, Director of Christian Service, Director of Institutional 
Effectiveness, and Director of Enrollment Management. 

2. Denominational Affiliation. It shall be the policy of the Board to employ 
on the College faculty those who are members of Free Will Baptist church­
es that are affiliated with the National Association of Free Will Baptists. 
However, when equally qualified Free Will Baptists are not available, facul­
ty who are active Christians and affiliated with an evangelical denomination 
may be employed at the discretion of the President and the Board. 
3. Term of Employment. The employment of faculty members, unless 
otherwise stated at the time of employment, shall be by annual contracts. 
This employment shall continue so long as general satisfaction and use­
fulness are manifest It shall be the general policy of the College to notify 
the faculty member annually by February 15 if any changes affecting the 
employment are contemplated. The College shall likewise assume a 
commitment on the part of the faculty member to continue employment 
unless notified by February 15. Exceptions to these provisions shall be 
arranged by mutual agreement of concerned parties. 
4. Responsibilities. The faculty shall be primarily responsible to the Board 
through the President and Academic Dean for the curriculum, for admis­
sion and graduation requirements, and for policy affecting student life and 
activities. It shall exercise such authority and powers as are delegated to 
it by the Board. Its functions within the area of its jurisdiction are legisla­
tion and the making of policy. It shall also serve in an advisory capacity 
through the President to the Board in making recommendations of major 
importance concerning its area of jurisdiction. 
5. Organization. The faculty shall be organized with the Academic Dean of 
the College as its Chairman. It shall meet regularly and keep a record if its 
proceedings. Both regular and special meetings shall occur at the time and 
place designated by the Chairman of the faculty. The details of faculty organ­
ization shall be set forth in formal By-Laws of faculty organization, arranged 
by the faculty in harmony with the Charter and By-Laws of the College and 
subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees of the College. 

VI 
Contracts, Loans and Checks 

1. Contracts. The Board of Trustees may authorize any officer or offi­
cers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliv­
er any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the College, and 
such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. 
2. Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the College and no evi­
dences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a res­
olution of the Board of Trustees. Such authority may be general or confined to 
specific instances; provided, however, no loans shall be made by the College 
to its Trustees or officers which are prohibited by TCA Section 48-58-303. 
3. Checks and Other Instruments. All checks, drafts or other orders for 
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ther evidences of indebtedness issued 
the payment of money, not~~~~ signed by such officer or officer~, agent 
·n the name of the Colleg~ s h ner as shall from time to time be 
1 f the College m sue man 
or age~ts o l tion of the Board of Trustees. 
deternuned by reso u 

VII 
d ·fying the Uability of Trustees 

L. ·ling and In emnt . . . 
tnu . hall be immune from swt anstng 

The Trustees and/or Office~ of the c~u~::es The Trustees and/or Officers shall 
from the conduct o_f the affarrs of the ; for ~onetary damages for bre~c~ of a 

t be personally liable to the Colleg . . shall not eliminate or hffilt the 
no "d l'f· however this proVIsion , d/or 
fiduciary duty proVI e~ , f r any breach of the Trustee s ~ 
liability of a Trustee and/ or Officer ? ood faith or which involve ~ mt~n-
Officer's duty of loyalty or for. acts_ nl~~~ng of law or for an unlawful di~mbutio~ 
tional misconduct or a kno~ VI~8-5S-60 1 Further the Trustees are mdernru­
pursuant hereunder TCA Sectional liability to the fult extent as allowed by the 
fied by the College from perthrs~n TCA Section 48-58-501 et seq. 
Tennessee Statute as set .o m 

VIII 
Transactions with Trustees . 

. between this College and any of tts 
1. No contract or ?ther tr~s~~ti~~uch contract shall be approved or rat­
Trustees shall be vo~d or votda e meeting of the Board of Trustees by a 
ified by an affirmative vote at anx T t shall have no voice or vote 

T t s The subJeCt rus ee 
majority of the rus ee · . · f his action. 
concerning the approval or ratifica~o~ ~e contrary the conege shall not 
2. Notwithstanding anything_ herem. ~. ts Trustees ~r Officers, whether or 
lend money to or use its credit to assts 1 

not employees. IX 

Miscellaneous . 
Trustees of this College are reqwred 

1. Written consent. When~ver th~ote such action may be taken without 
or permitted to take any action by tti'·ng forth the action so taken, and 

· pon written consent se . a meeting, u titl d to vote on said action. 
signed by all of the Trustees en ts. e the regular order of business shall be exe-
2. Contracts and ~otes. Contrac ~on designated with that authority by _the 
cuted by the Prestdent or by ~ pe . ttee as directed by written resolution 
Board of Trustees or its ExecutiVe ~:College shall begin on the first_ day of 
3. Fiscal year. The fiscal year ~ the last day of May next followmg. 
June of each year and shall en on 

X 
Amendments 

ma· ority vote of the Trustees at any reg­
These By-Laws may be amende~ by a eti~ called for that purpose which call 
ular annual meeting or at a speo me Such amendment(s) shall ~ecome 
includes the proposed amen~~n~~-Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
effective upon approval by the a 0 
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Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
Digest of Reports - 200 I 

By James Forlines, General Director 

A Year of Excitement and Challenge 

. The For~~ ~sions Department unveiled our plans for complete denomi­
national mobihza~on last year ~t the National Association. Several major steps 
have been taken m the last year m order to help this vision become a reality. 

(1) Staff reorg~tion is now making a profound impact on the operation 
and effectiveness of the Mission. A new Director of Member Care has 
been chosen Neil Gilliland will assume those duties as of August 1, 2001. 

(2) Cameron Lane has been named as volunteer coordinator of the 
Professional Volunteers Network. The vision of this network is to 
provide opportunities for laymen and laywomen to use their gifts 
training, and abilities to touch the world. ' 

(3) A video series was produced to allow local churches to discover 
God's heart to reach all people groups in the world. Suggestions 
are made on how local churches and individual Christians can be 
involved. This four-part series is titled "Embracing The Vision." 
Over 500 churches have ordered this series. 

( 4) An. historic occasion occurred in the spring of this year. A consul­
tation for all current and former missionaries, staff members, and 
board me~bers :onvened in Atlanta April 30-May 3, 2001. The 
effect of this meeting may be felt for generations. 

A Summary of the Activities on Our Fields 

As we anticipate the day when the trumpet wiU sound our Lord will 
return, and those from every ."kindred, t~ngue, tribe, and natio~" will be gath­
ered aro~d the throne to praise the crucified and risen Lamb of God, we must 
reco~t ourselv~s to greater efforts in global evangelism. Each Free Will 
Baptist must find his or her ~ole in reaching the world with the gospel, and then 
~fill that role by ~e enabling of the Holy Spirit In the meantime, significant 
~s are happerung arolllld the world as more and more people are becom­
Ing worshippers o~ the li~ G?C~. through the efforts of Free Will Baptists. 

~ree WiD Bap~st Foreign Missions had missionaries in 1 0 countries in 2000: 
Brazil, France, India, Ivory Coas~ Japan, Panama, Russia, Spain, South Korea, 
~d UJU?uay. We have no missionaries in Cuba and Nepal, but work dosely 
With national pastors. We also work in restricted access countries such as 
Mongolia and China by using non-traditional means to have a Christian wit­
ness: In addition, Free ~II ~ptist nationals are taking the gospel to other 
restncted ~c~ess countnes which are not here named for security reasons. 

Our IlllSSionary force numbered 11 0 in the year 2000. We are praying that this 
number wiD ?ouble during the decade of 2000-2010. Our reports show that we 
have 90 or~am~ pastors ~d 2.55 licensed and Jay preachers, and we sponsor 
seven semmanes ?I Bible mstitutes (Brazil.-two, Cuba, France, Ivory Coas~ 
Panama, and Russia). One hundred and thirty-seven students were enrolled in 
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theSe training institutions during 2000, and South Korea has enrolled over £?GO part­
time students via the Internet in an innovative new approach. Other counbies such 
as Spain and Japan are on the verge of implementing more fonnal ~pr~ches to 
training in the near future. Free~ Baptist ~~onal churches are pos1tionmg them-
selves well for expansion by focusmg on training those whom God calls. . . 

we give glory to God for the 288 organized churches and ~ 13 miSSion 
works reported from our fields in 2000. There were 1, 704 conversions report­
ed, and 1, 466 baptisms during the year, and an overall average Sunday atten-
dance of 17,789. Praise the Lord! . . 

Spiritual warfare and opposition threaten the continuation of the Kuna 
ministry in Panama, as the Bowermans continue to try to begin a church-
planting effort among an indigenous people group. . . . 

France, Uruguay, Spain, and Japan recorded 62 profe~1ons of faith m 2000, l!P 
from 51 during 1999. God seems to be moving in preparation for a sev~n~-day VI~­
tory in Jericho. The Nantes church in France has purchased a new building and IS 
relocating. Spain is reaching immig~~ from Colo~bi~ an? Ecuador. Japan now 
has seven pastors. Uruguay is reorgaruzmg and positiorung 1tse~ for ~e fu~e. 

Two new couples the Moores and the David Aycocks, arnved m Brazil early 
in 2001 to begin l~age school. Lar Nova Vid~ (the childre~'s home) ~n 
Araras under the direction of Shirley Combs, continues to save lives and Win 
souls i~ an ever-growing ministry. Brazil has seven ordained pastors ~d 12 
licensed and lay preachers, and combined with the missionary pres~nc~ m the 
states of Sao Paulo and Minas Gerais, there is the potential for a maJOr rrnpact 
for the gospel both among unreached Brazilians and in ~nt~mational missions. 

Cuba now has 29 organized churches and 142 miSSIOn churches. They 
saw 539 converts during 2000 and baptized 350. Eighteen young men are 
studying at the Cedars of Lebanon Seminary in Pinar del Rio .. 

Our missionaries in Ivory Coast endured a year of turmoil and uncer­
tainty due to political upheaval during 2000. Nevertheless, 288 people were 
baptized during the year, and the average attendance was 2,500 a~ong all 
the churches. National pastors such as Silas and Jerome are matunng ~d 
assuming larger leadership roles. We also play a significant role in the hfe 
of International Christian Academy in Bouake. 

Mike and Cathy Corley continue their vital role as missionary facilitators. in 
Russia. In addition to working in a church in Chelyabinsk, they help to supeTVISe 
several church-planting efforts led by Russian pastors in the Ural Mountain region 
Mike coordinates the scheduling of the Chelyabinsk Bible Institute, in ~ch both 
Dr. Robert Picirilli and Cuba/Panama missionary Ron Callaway taught durmg 2000. 

The year 2000 saw the opening of the Asia Free Will Baptist Theological 
Seminary in Seoul, Korea, under the leadership of John and Esther Chang. 
Eighteen students were enrolled during the year. Th~re are now ~0 
ordained and 12 licensed pastors in the Free Will Baptist movement m 
Korea. Seventy people were converted and 25 baptized during the year. . 

We rejoice that God has enabled Brother Carlisle Hanna to continue his 
ministry in North India Early 2001 marked the celebratio~ of ~e jubile~ year of 
the beginning of the Free Will Baptist work in North lndi~, WI~ 5,000 m atten­
dance. Five hundred and twenty-nine people were baptized m 2000 between 
the works in North and South India, and average attendance swelled to over 
9,000. Indian Free Will Baptist evangelists are also taking the gospel into N~~al. 

As Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions strives to challenge and mobilize 
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our entire denomination for Acts 1 :8 (local and global) evangelism, we are 
committed to reaching those people groups of the world that have limited 
or no access to the gospel. Clint Morgan is on special assignment (Project 
Restricted Access Countries) to research, investigate, and develop an 
approach to entering 10/40 window countries. A Muslim team is being 
formed to carry the gospel to part of the 1.2 billion Muslims. God is truly on 
the move, and Free Will Baptists are privileged to follow His leading. 

See Figure 1. 

Overseas Attendance Growth 
Figure 1 (Last 1 0 Years) 
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2000 - Financial Summary 

During 2000 our Free Will Baptist people responded to God's prompt­
ing to financially support foreign missions efforts by giving, on a cash basis, 
$5,650,132. This is $269,475 above our 1999 income. Of this year's total, 
73.1% was given through our churches. See Figure 2 on following page. 

Through the cooperation of our missionaries and staff we were able to 
keep our expenses at $5,962,656. Although our total income was $2,575,678 
under budget (including VISION funding), our expenses were only 
$312,524 over our actual income. Praise God that this deficit was kept to 
this level in light of projected spending. 

We are thankful for the 1,474 churches that supported our ministry last 
year. They are aU-important members of the body of Christ. We want to pay 
special tribute to those very generous churches which gave more than 
$10,000 in 2000. See Figure 3 on following page. 
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sources of Income tor 2000 
Figure 2 
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72 Churches Gave Over $10,000 in 2000 

Rank Name State Amount / Rank Name State Amount 
-

1 Pleasant Acres, New Bern NC $99,825.03 
2 Unity, Greenville NC 94,180.36 
3 Donelson, Nashville TN 92,872.95 

37 First, Vernon Al 14,80714-
38 Temple, Darlington SC 14,699.13 

4 Central, Royal Oak Ml 76,69752 
5 First, Russellville AR 57,14550 
6 Norman First, Norman OK 50,590.75 
7 First, Inmon SC 49,550.00 
8 Macedonia, Purdy MO 38,47450 
9 Piney Grove, Guin Al 38,321.76 

10 Bethel, Kinston NC 33,431.51 
11 First, Albany GA 32,s95.57 
12 Fellowship, Kingsport TN 32,368.68 
13 First, Jacksonville NC 28,852.21 
14 Cramerton, Cramerton NC 28,677.70 
15 limestone, limestone TN 28,49l.OO 
16 Cofer's Chapel, Nashville TN 26,694.47 
17 Cross Timbers, Nashville TN 25,s20.43 
18 Ina, Ina ll 23,715.00 
19 Horse Branch, Turbeville SC 22 471 20 8 h I .4l 
21 P

etkany, Broken Arrow OK 21,971.00 
or er's Chapel, Greenville NC 20 354 

22 l b I .50 
i erty, Lawley AL 19 Z31 

23 H 1 .01 
onnon, liberal MO 19 09 24 W d 

I 5.47 
estsi e, Johnsonville sc 19 oo6 25 W• f ld I .13 
m ie First, Winfield Al 18 722 2 26 "dl I .7 ,er e Ia, liberal MO 1l 962 27 All I .12 
en Chapel, Batesville AR 17 33 

28 F" I t86 trst, Beaufort NC 17,261.72 
29 Peace, Florence sc 16 842 30 F I .50 

irst, Star City AR 16 666 31 F. 1 .93 
trst, North little Rock AR 16 163 0 32 R hi I • 6 
ut s Chapel, New Bern NC 16 158 0 33 T. I I • 1 remp e, Greenville NC 16 154 8 34 G I • 1 
orner, Garner NC 15 940 9 35 M I 

I • 0 
t. 0 ive, Guin Al 15 432 36 G I .76 
race, lake City SC 15 20 I 4.73 

39 Peace, Wilson NC 14,462.66 
40 First, Washington NC 14,19812 
41 Sand Hill, Coward SC 13,939.82 
;~ ;hihllliph's Chapel, Northport Al 13,821.13 

et e em, Ashland City TN 13,64955 
44 Bethany, Timmonsville SC 13,506.00 
45 Mt. Zion, Pelf Gty Al 13,038.22 
46 Double Branch, Unadilla GA 12,598.66 
47 Porter, Portsmouth OH 12,s91.95 
48 White Savannah, Conway SC 12,57251 
49 Free Will Baptist, Townsend DE 12 318 50 N I .43 

ew Hope, Joelton TN 12 303 
51 F I 1 .17 

u ton, Fulton MS 12 134 52 E I .lS 
53 

N mmonuel, Jacksonville NC 11,804.00 
54 Fe.~ Hope, Ina ll 11,712.36 

55 F
o
1
,
1
t , Goldsboro NC 11,706.12 

e owship, Pork Hills MO 11 386 3 56Rd I . 7 
e Bay, Red Bay AL 11165 5 

57 0 k I • 
5 

58 
I a Pork, Pine Bluff AR 11,02?.92 

59 
li~monuel, Durham NC 10,99954 

60 C
·lerty, Chuckey TN 10,994.00 
a vary Fellowship, Fenton MO 10 8821 

61 8 h I I • 
6 

62 
li et e, South Roxana ll 10,638.00 

63 S
rinhity, Bridgeton MO 10,615.19 

64 Nop ia, Sophia WV 10,615.11 
65 G ewd ~oven, Ernul NC 10,601.54 

66 G
oo prings, Pleasant View TN 10,550.38 
ospellight, Bonne Terre MO 10,530.00 

67 First, Farmington MO 10 432 68 F I I •
77 

69 B
ir
1
st
1
, F orence SC 10,425.00 

e view, Colquitt GA 10 399 5 7ookG 1. 4 
a rove, Greeneville TN 10 362 2 

71 C k II I .7 
oo evi e, Cookeville TN 10 09B.50 

72 First, Pocahontas AR s10:03750 

Special recognition also is du th 
Baptist Foreign Missions: e e top 1 0 states in giving to Free WiJJ 

1 Pleasant Acres, New Bern NC $99,825.03 
2 Unity, Greenville NC 94 180 3 3 D I I • 6 

one son, Nashville TN 92 872 4 G I 
1 .95 

entra , Royal Oak Ml 76 69 

6 Norman First, Norman 
7 First, Inmon 
8 Macedonia, Purdy 
9 Piney Grove, Guin 5 F" R I 7.52 1rst, ussellville AR 57,14550 10 Bethel, Kinston 

OK 
sc 

MO 
Al 
NC 

50,590.75 
49,550.00 
38,474.50 
38,321.76 
33,431.51 
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Churches Giving Over $500 

To the 2000 World Missions Offering 

The World Missions Offering, held each year on the final Sunday in April, 
is absolutely critical in order to maximize the potential of Free Will Baptists 
for denominational mobilization. This is the lifeblood of our attempt to pro­
vide resources and avenues of service for Free Will Baptist individuals and 
churches. In 1999 there were 23 churches that gave over $500 for this offer­
ing. In 2000 that number swelled to 38. Below is a list of those churches: 

Church Name City State Amount Church Name City State Amount 

Bethel FWB Church Kinston NC$10,324.51 
Unity FWB Church Greenville NC 3,207.00 
Woodbine FWB Church Nashville TN 2,766.02 
West Tulsa FWB Church Tulsa OK 2,500.00 
Fellowship FWB Church Kingsport TN 2,000.00 
Forest Valley FWB Ch. Springfield OH 1,946.00 
Ten Mile FWB Church Madison Hts. Ml 1,173.00 
LaVergne FWB Church laVergne TN 1,160.35 
Horton Heiglm FWB Church Nashville TN 1,134.55 
Double Branch FWB Church Unadilla GA 1,120.00 
limestone FWB Church Umestone TN 1,000.00 
Sophia FWB Church Sophia WV 1,000.00 
Thomaston Comm. Church Thomaston TX 1,000.00 
Woodland Chapel Church Ironton OH 1,000.00 
First FWB Church Chipley Fl 855.00 
Cookeville FWB Church Cookeville TN 823.00 
Allen Chapel fWB Church Batesville AR 815.00 
Piney Grove FWB Church Chipley FL 795.00 
Pmn Street FWB Church Bizabettrton TN 783.00 
Glennville FWB Church Glennville GA 755.00 

Blue Point FWB Church Cisne IL 
First FWB Church Ypsilanti Ml 
Cross limbers FWB Churdl Nashville TN 
North Valley FWB Church Phoenix AI. 
Bellview FWB Church Colquitt GA 
New Salem FWB Church Blakely GA 
Shallowford FWB Church Marietta GA 
Porter FWB Church Portsmouth OH 
East Nashville FWB Church Nashville TN 
First FWB Church Owensboro KY 
Central FWB Church Royal Oak Ml 
New Light FWB Church Morgan GA 
Riverside Fellowship 

FWB Church Ointon T nship Ml 
FWB Church Christiansted VI 
Uberty FWB Church Manning SC 
Cedar Springs FWB Church Blakely GA 
Good News FWB Churdl Chesterfield VA 
Mountain Ytew fWB Church Newland NC 

728.50 
722.65 
715.00 
670.00 
648.00 
620.00 
615.00 
601.45 
583.00 
570.00 
559.00 
556.00 

554.08 
526.25 
502.34 
500.00 
500.00 
500.00 

Any sustained growth and expansion must have a strong and sizeable 
underpinning. Free Will Baptists have not traditionally capitalized on the 
potential of Endowments and Planned Giving. There must be a renewed 
effort to challenge our people with the opportunity to touch the world by 
simply planning their fmancial future with the commitment to biblical 
stewardship. A special and heartfelt thanks goes to the visionary people 
who have included Foreign Missions with planned gifts, stocks, wills, trusts, 
and other contributions to undergird a major global push of Free Will 
Baptists in the 21st century. A special mention goes to Thelma Wrenn of 
Cofer's Chapel Free Will Baptist Church in Nashville, Tennessee. Though 
Mrs. Wrenn died in 2000, her gift of $23,762 (through her will) will contin­
ue to yield finances for world evangelism until the Lord Himself returns. 
What a blessing! If you would like information on how your gift can con­
tinue to make an impact long after your death, please contact General 
Director James Forlines. 
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Endowments to the Benefit of Foreign Missions 

Realized Anticipated 
Total Planned Total Annual 

Year Endowments Gifts Endowments Earnings 

1997 $282,753.65 $239,532.08 $522,285.73 $28,888.54 
1998 287,091.86 235,717.96 522,809.82 21,180.00 
1999 325,837.93 230,225.07 556,063.00 29,462.29 
2000 357,041.26 222,757.39 579,798.65 39,973.04 

Tribute to a Totally CommiHed Staff and Board 
The cause of world evangelism is accomplished by the combined efforts 

of many people. Of course, the frontline soldiers are our career missionaries. 
They carry the torch in some of the darkest places on earth. For effective mobi­
lization of all the potential stateside resources there must also be a highly moti­
vated and creative staff as wen as a committed and visionary board. This com­
bination is perhaps more evident at this point in Free Will Baptist history than 
at any previous time. We praise the Lord for the unusual synergy that He has 
created through the combined talents of these dedicated servants of the Lord. 

Board Meetings and Actions 
Missions Retreat Meeting- July 31-August 3, 2000 

The board met at Free Will Baptist Bible College in conjunction with 
the annual Foreign Missions Retreat. The following actions were taken: 

The board accepted the resignation of Fred Warner with grateful 
appreciation for over 14 years of service to Free WiiJ Baptist Foreign 
Missions as a member of the administrative staff. Dave and Pat Franks sub­
mitted their request for retirement. The board accepted this with much 
thanksgiving for their pioneer work of over 40 years in Brazil. 

A leave of absence was granted for one year to Justin and LesJie Banks. 
The following budgets were amended: The budget of Carlisle Hanna vvas 

increased $20,000 for the 50-year Jubilee Celebration in North India The budget 
of David and Annette Aycock was increased $24,000 for children's schooling. 

A proposal was approved to allow up to 1 OOA> of each VISION project to be 
allocated to the expenses of raising the funds for that particular VISION project 

Semi-Annual Meeting- December 6-7, 2000 

The semi-annual meeting of the board was held at the National Offices 
building. Members present were: Doug Little, chairman; Milton Worthington, 
vice-chairman; David Shores, secretary; Terry Eagleton, Sherwood Lee, Bill Vcul 
Wmkle, and David Williford. The following actions were taken: 

The board approved the subsidization of 20 church planters in Cuba. 
They also approved a $20,000 project for Cuba to purchase a van. 

Clint and Lynette Morgan were given a special assignment to develop a 
ministry to restricted access countries for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions. 

A recommendation was approved to bring all missionary personnel to 
a mobilization training conference in the spring of 2001. The initial expens-
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es related to Gl~b~ Fo~:~~:~o=~·the home missions staff and board 
There was a JOlJlt b~ . tential partnership with Global Focus. 

for fellowship and !he discusston ~f :~nded missionaries endorsed by the 
The board drrected that al . 1 b dgets approved by the board 

. . b ard have thetr annua u . . d t 
Foreign Mtsstons o l F w·ll Baptist Foreign Mtsstons bu ge . 
and included in th~ annEnuad ree ntt was created under the direction of the 

ASupportSennces . owme 

Free Will Baptist Found~tif~· liege students to serve as overseas appr~n-
The boa!d approve co& BE team going to Ivory Coast). Thirty-mne 

tices (includmg 10 on the G~ d one foreign country were selecte.d 
high school students from 1 Esta~es and and Active in Missions). TEAMs Will 

·th TEAM (Teens qUtppe . 
~e s:;:g ~ Cuba, Japan, Virgin Islands, and Puerto Rico. 

A ual Meeting- May 3-4, 2001 
nn was held at the Simpsonwood 

The annual meeting of th~ b~~~ross Georgia. The board meeti~g 
Conference and Retreat Center. tn 2001 in ~hich all of our current ~s­
was after the Atlanta Consultation d many of our former missionanes 
sion~es, board members, st~~da~ leave early due to family needs .. All 
were mvolved. Terry Eagleton t The following actions were taken. 
other board members we.re presen . d D D Vandivort to go to Ivory 

Final approval was gtv~n for Terry i ~me~t ~t ICA in Bouake. 
Coast. The first two ~ears Will be an as~i~ commitment of the mission to 

Approval was g1ven for the fin~ .th Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
approved interns tly?ugh the partners ~~month internships will be loaned 
One-half of the antiopated costs ~f ~be paid back through their years of 
to approved stude~~· These fun sh the re a ent of the loan personally. 
service with the rruss1on, .or, throuthg d. forr; the Department of Member 

Neil Gilliland was htred as e Irec 

Care as of August 1, 2001. h rd were granted approval to con tin-
Shannon Little and T<?nya Blan~ a d Wendlandt was approved for a 

ue for an additional year m Japan. ren a 

two-year assignment in Japan. ranted a one-year leave of absence. 
Ernest and Elaine Holl~nd were g d The 2002 budget was adopted. 
The 2000 financial audtt was accepte . 

2002 VISION projects were acce~ted. ted under the direction of the 
A 1 0-week su~~r intef!lship w:J ~~~t have completed their junior 

general director. IndiVI?~als m)tere~t have maintained at least a 3.25 ~P~. 
year in college (as a rrurum~ an eciation to the staff and the rrusston 

The board expr~ed thel~ deepest apl?r out the Atlanta Consultation 2001. 
for the work involved m planrung an? carrymg . 

The board elected the follo~ng officers. 
Chairman D<;>Ug Ltttle . ton 
Vice-Chairman - Milton Worthing 
Secretary David Shores 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Antioch, Tennessee 

............ 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE ~ 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY Of 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of fmancial position of the Board of Foreign 
Missions of the National Association of Free WilJ Baptists (a nonprofit organization) as of December 
31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year s then ended. 
These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with general ly accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation . We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion . 

In our opinion , the fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its cash Oows 
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

April 5, 200 I 

A- 115 



BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Cash and cash equivalents- Notes 1 & 2 
Investments in trusts- Notes 1 & 2 
Investments - Notes 2 & 10 
Ac~o~nts r_eceivable from employees and 
mtsstonanes - Note 2 

ASSETS 

Pdropert~ ~nd equipment, at cost, net of accumulated 
eprec1at10n - Notes 1 & 3 

Deposit - Korea building 
Prepaid expenses 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Supplemental retirement insurance payable 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments- Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets (deficit) as restated for 1999 . 
Unrestricted · 
Temporarily restricted- Note 4 
Permanently restricted - Note 4 

2000 
$ 977,457 

1,305,340 
80,021 

123,992 

158,938 

4.552 

$2.650.300 

$ 209,978 
324,893 
148,104 

682,975 

( 167,828) ( 
2, 108,912 

26,241 

1999 
$ 905,025 

1,121,988 
168,300 

162,637 

116,775 
351,200 

3.304 

$2.829.229 

$ 305,505 
293,279 
154.111 

752,895 

177,854) 
2,252,978 

1 210 

Total 1,967,325 2.076,334 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$2.650.300 $2.829.229 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

unrestricted 
- Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 & 5 
Investment income 
Gain (loss) on investments 
Gain on disposal of property & equipment 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Tnfonnational and promotional 
Travel and board 
Administrative 
Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1 & 5 

2000 

$1,068,342 
146,462 

( 95,778) 
10,498 

4.639,592 

5,769,116 

198,016 
97,861 

823,621 
4,027,284 

612,308 

5,759,090 

10,026 

4,495,526 

1999 

$ 849,763 
25,247 
76,704 
19,286 

4,255.683 

5,226,683 

165,389 
87,384 

721,624 
4,113,365 

142,318 

5.230,080 

( 3,397) 

4,430,104 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
Restrictions satisfied by payments 

( 4,639,592) ( 4,255,683) 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions- Notes 1 & 4 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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144.066) 174 421 

25,031 

25,031 

109,009) 171,024 

2,076,334 1,905,310 
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NATigr?A'i.~~~~~~~6~~~~:~~N~~[ ~~:riSTS 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Ooerating ac tivities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 

A~~~:r.:~nts t~ reconc ile increase in net assets to 

D 
~ro~ded (used) by operating activities· 

eprec1ation · 
Loss (gain) on investments 
Gain on disposal of property and . 
Chan · . equipment 

ges m operating assets and lia bTt' . 
Decrea c· 1 1 1es. D se ~ncrease) in accounts receivable 

decrea~e (mcrease) in prepaid expenses and 
epos1ts 

Increa se (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Purchases of investment 
Proceeds of investment redeemed 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash e 'val quz ents 

Cash and cash equivalents at bemnrun· f 
.,.~. g o year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Su Iemental noncash investin 
and financin information 

Purchases of equipment 
Less : accounts payable 

See accountants' reoort and accom . 
notes to the fmancial statements. panymg 
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( 

( 

( 

$ 

2000 1999 

($ 109,009) $ 171,024 

56,443 
95,778 
10,498) 

38,645 

349,952 

88.895) 

332.416 

108,278) 
39,145 

197,747) 
6,896 

252,984) 

-0-

72,432 ( 

905,025 

( 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

57,277 
76,704) 
19,286) 

40,912 

347,830) 

30.342 

144,265) 

76,738) 
127,023 
32,174) 

18,111 

-0-

126, 154) 

1,031,179 

977.45Z ~ 2Q::.i,Q~:l 

$ 127,253 $ 76,738 
( 18,975) -0-
$ 1 '28 .278 l!!!$-.._7'-l6~,oL7.1il3~8 

Note 1 · 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to 
establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation• within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2000 and 1999. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and 
expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial Statements presentation follows the recommendations of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. 
Under SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted 
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets . 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial 
statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of 
any donor restrictions. 

-5-
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Note 1 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Contributions (continued) 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statements of Activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures 
for property and equipment in excess of $2000 and an estimated useful life of at least 
two years. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Automobiles 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3- 10 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted market price. 

Investments in Trusts 

Investments in Trusts are composed of six trusts established and maintained 
by the Free Will Baptist Foundation. The Foundation invests the two largest trusts in 
debt securities and preferred stock and values the trusts at market value. The 
remaining trusts are invested in government securities and valued at cost, which approximates market value. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Board considers all cash on 
deposit, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments with maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

-b -
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Note 2-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31 I 2000 and 1999 

Summary 0 . 

the Board had deposits with a fmanctal 
As of December 31' 2_000 and 19:d the Board of Retirement and Insurance of 

. f fi cial instruments f significant concentrations o man 

institution located in the Uruted S~tes . ts located in Antioch, Tennessee. 
the National Associatio_n ~f Fr~e Will Bap_ti~uredup to $100,000 by the Federal . 
Accounts at the financial m~titution ~~:d has a cash management agreeme~t.Wlth a 

e sit Insurance Corporation. The . ht in U S Government secunties ~c~ bank which invests any excess cashh o;~~~~ured sho~ld, under the terms of this 
under a repurchase agr~ement. Any cas rrtment securities. Accounts at the Board of 
a eement be collateralJ.Zed by U.S. ?ove A . tion of Free Will Baptists are R~tirement and Insurance of the National ss~ct~le from employees and missionaries 
uninsured. The Board al_so has ac~ounts ~ec;~: following is a summary of those 
and other receivables whtch are urunsure . ding risk of accounting loss: 
deposits, accounts receivable and the correspon 

December 31. 2000 

Account 
Balance 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

Interest bearing deposit accounts 
with financial institution $ 977.457 $1001000 $ 877.457 

Total cash and cash equivalents 9771457 1001000 8771457 

Interest bearing deposits on account 
with the Board of Retirement ~d . 
Insurance of the _National Assoctation 1,305,340 
of Free Will Baptists 80~021 
Common stock 1 385 361 

Total investments I I 

Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 

Total 
1231992 

$2,486.810 $100.000 

1,305,340 
801021 

1.3851361 

1231992 
$2.386.810 

December 31 I 1999 

Account 
Balance 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

Interest bearing deposit accounts 
with fmancial institution $ 9051025 $1001000 $ 8051025 

8051025 Total cash and cash equivalents 9051025 1001000 

Interest bearing deposits on account 
with the Board of Retirement an_d . 
Insurance of the _National Assoctation 1 121 988 
of Free Will Baptists '168:300 
Common stock 1 ~2901288 Total investments 
Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 

Total 
1621637 

$21357.950 

·7· 

A- 121 

$100.000 

1,121,988 
1681300 

112901288 

1621637 
$2.257.950 



Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5-

Note 6 -

NATlgr?A~~S~~bi~~~~~~:~~N~~~ :~~ISTS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Property and equipment 

A summary of prop rty d . 
e an equ1pment is as follows: 

Office furniture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

2000 1999 
$ 56,832 $ 55,952 

132,717 85,293 
104,400 82,300 
79.235 61.186 

373,184 284,731 
( 214.246) ( 167.956) 
$ 158.938 $ 116.775 

De · · prectation expense, computed tT . . 
amounted to $56,443 ($57,277 in 1999)~ llZUlg the stratght-line method 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for th . 
e folloWUlg purposes: 

Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

2000 1999 
$2,374,689 $2,133,946 

( 265,777) 119.032 
$2. 108.912 $2,252,978 

These net assets are restricted d 
when the donor restriction is sati' fi d ue to donor restrictions, They are released s 1e , 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to: 

Support Services Endowment $ 25,031 
MK Scholarship Endowment 

1.210 
$ 26,241 

Informational d , 
an romotional material and e 

$ 
1.210 
L210 

The Board charges a fee against th . 
unrestricted net assets for information se e ,foreign fiel? accounts to reimburse the 
are pre~nted as transfers from the tern me~ produ~tion expenses, These fees 
unrestricted net assets, porarily restncted net assets to the 

Pension plan 

The Board ~.,...,: , R . p ... uClpates in the master . 
etJTement and Insurance of the N . pe~st~n plan of the Board of 

Board contributes 5% of gross sal ati~nal ~ss~Jati.on of Free Will Baptists. The 
empl~yees. Employees are allowe~ ~~n~~lOnanes and administrative 
contribute, Employees with tw ute but are not required to 
e o years of service rna arti , xpenses amounted to $91 113 ($86 196 

. Y P c1pate. Pension 
contribution plan, Under the plan ' m 1999). The pension plan is a defined 
and u tir • an account is maintain d fi pon re ement the partici t c , , e or each participant 
purchase one of several types ofpan ~ etther receJVe a lump-sum distribution or 

annutty contracts, 

-8-
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Note 7 -

Note 8-

Note 9 -

Lease 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 3 1. 2000 and 1999 

The Board entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists for office and storage space, The term of 
the lease expires when all mortgages on the building are satisfied, the mortgage 
was retired this year, The board entered into a new lease agreement on July I, 
2000. The term of the lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then beginning 
September 1, 2000 the lease became a year to year lease. The rent expense for the 
years amounted to $74,988 ($74,988 for the year ended December 31, 1999). 

Commitments 

The Board had pledged its furniture and fuctures as collateral on a 
mortgage note that the National Association of Free Will Baptists has with the 
Church Extension Loan Fund, This mortgage was repaid during the year. 

The Board provides health insurance for its 84 employees on a partially 
self-insured basis. The board has an insurance policy with International Medical 
Group for claims in excess of the deductible. The deductible is $2,500 and the 
coinsurance is 80% of the next $5,000. The deductible and coinsurance are paid 
out of Missionary funds, All claims are processed by International Medical Group, 
During the year the Board paid $128,925 in benefit payments and $107,246 in 
insurance premiums, 

The Board provided a health insurance for its 95 employees on a self­
insured basis in 1999, The Board had a stop loss policy with Boston Mutual Life 
Insurance for individual claims in excess of $25,000, During the 1999 the Board 
paid $337,093 in benefit payments and $85,855 in stop loss premiums, 

The Board has entered into an Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement 
with Am South Bank, As part of the agreement, AmSouth Bank will guarantee to 
Citibank that it will honor checks written on the Board of Foreign Missions' 
AmSouth Bank account by the Board of Foreign Missions' Cote d 'lvoire Mission 
employees up to $20,000 per check. In exchange, the Board of Foreign Missions 
will indemnify and hold harmless AmSouth Bank from any and all claims, 
liabilities, actions or causes of action that arise as a result of AmSouth Bank's 
agreement to guarantee checks to Citibank. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Board in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

cash, cash equivalents, investments in trusts, receivables and payables: 
The carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial position 
approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those 
instruments. 

Investments: The fair value of investments is based on quoted market price 
for those investments, 

-9-
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Note 10 -

Note 11 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

December 31, 2000 

Cost 
Equity securities $79.520 

Fair 
Value 

$ 80.021 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
$ 501 

($ 95.778) 

December 31 1999 

Fair 

E 
. Cost Value 

qwty securities ... "'65.775 $168.300 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and .. ~real.: __ _, · ........ . u..:;u tncome 

Correction of an error 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
$102.525 

$ 76.704 

Certain project revenue and 
Statement of Activity to prope l flexpenses were reclassified on the 1999 
Temporarily restricted revenu~ rn~: ect the revenue and expenses as restricted. 
decreased $46,163 while temporarilea::d ~46, 163 ~d unrestricted revenue 
$77,743, and unrestricted project y stricted prOJect expenses increased 
$31 ,580 decrease in temporarily rees~~s~s decreased $77,743. This resulted in a 
unrestricted net assets on the 1999 fi c e .net assets and a $31,580 increase in 

manctal statements. 

-I 0 -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Our report on our audits of the basic fmancial statements of the Board of Foreign 
Miss1ons of the National Association of Free Will Baptists for 2000 and 1999 appears on page 1. 
Those audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for the purpose of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, 
m our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic fmancial statements 

taken as a whole. 

April 5, 2001 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Exoenses 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Informational and promotional expenses: 
Video and audjo visual 
Heartbeat 
Other publications expense 
Postage 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Togather Way Program 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 
Seminar and training 
Convention expense 

Total informational and promotional expenses 

Travel and board expenses: 
Department auto 
Board members 
Adrninjstrative - overseas travel 
Department insurance 
Department travel 
Travel insurance 
Honorariums 
Missions promotion 
Recruiting and canrudate expense 

Total travel and board expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 

-12" 
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2000 

$ 26,818 
35,004 
23,752 
35,47 1 
23,971 
12, 120 

789 
1,614 
5,940 

11,191 
5,254 
7,752 
8,340 

198,016 

27,208 
20,311 

24 
3,933 

33,184 
320 

1,237 
10,277 

1,367 
97,861 

$ 

1999 

8,630 
31,652 
16,343 
42,088 
23,458 
11,615 

280 
8,155 
5,778 
7,163 
3,572 
2,025 
4,630 

165,389 

21,682 
14,903 
5,984 
3,234 

33,575 
248 
500 

5,950 
1,308 

87,384 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

AdJilinistrative expenses: 
salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Office travel allowance 
Legal and professional 
Office rent 
Off·site storage expense 
Computer software expense 
Office equipment 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Bank service charges 
Office help 
Staff recognition 
COLA indexes 
Benevolence 
Staff retreat 
Mjscellaneous 
Depreciation . 
Visitor meals, entertainment & lodgmg 
Mobilization network 

Total administrative expense 

Missionary expenses: 
Ivory Coast 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Panama 
Sprun 
Uruguay 
Commonwealth of Independent States 
Unreached people 
Korea 
Overseas Apprentices 
Other projects 
Missionary medical 

Total missionary expenses 

VISION campaign expenses: 
Project expenses 

Total VISION camprugn expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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$ 

2000 

415,619 
78,975 
29,389 
18,384 
21,933 
59,381 

2,815 
6,947 

74,988 
1,430 
6,438 

16,926 
1,849 

17,288 
1,118 

170 
1,173 
4,330 

53 
775 

4,945 
56,443 

1,073 
1,179 

823,621 

899,080 
374,156 
176,139 
663,054 
482,284 
256,001 
294,380 
336,849 
109,406 
22,280 

134,870 
106,490 
224,017 
51,722) 

4,027,284 

612.308 
612.308 

$5.759.090 

$ 

1999 

327,094 
94,600 
27,500 
16,078 
20,224 
41,160 

1,490 
9,187 

74,988 
1,35 1 
5,599 
3,718 
2,403 

17,826 
3,333 

963 
1,735 
6,450 

136 
203 

8,309 
57,277 

721,624 

856,566 
389,204 
200,070 
629,859 
496,117 
317,316 
313,388 
323,625 

99,806 
65,241 

126,398 
67,889 

134,174 
93,712 

4,113,365 

142,318 
142.318 

$5.230.080 



Free Wtll Baptist Foreign Missions 
2002 Budget Summary Salary Breakdown 

1999 2000 2001 2002 Fields and Projects 
General Diredor • Vehicle Provided 

33,438 31,576 35,799 37,231 
Salary d U -r· 20,000 24,000 22,000 22,880 

Ivory Coast 
1' 121,245.99 Housin~ on . llltles 

8,617 8,962 9,321 9,693 
Brazil 

705,695.66 Social erunty 
2,672 2,n9 2,890 3,006 Retirement 
5.430 5,974 8 099 10 691 

France 
917,463.52 

78,109 83,501 
Insurance 

7 0,157 73,291 
India 

213,214.48 Total Depl. Expense to Employ Japan 
749,692.34 Director of Public Relations - Vehide Provided 

28,600 32,076 33,840 35,194 
Korea 

326,371.48 Salary d U -r · 11,400 12,000 12,000 12,480 Housin~ on . h 111es 
6,450 7,108 7,392 7,688 

C.I.S. 
127,647.65 

Sodol ecunty 
2,000 2,204 2,292 2,384 

Unreached peoples 
30,500.00 Retirement 

7,363 8,099 8,099 10,691 
63,623 68,436 

Panama 
305,700.24 Insurance 

5 5,813 61 ,487 Total Oepl. Expense to Employ 
Spain 

519,944.42 
Director of Field Operations • Vehic.le Provided 

25,000 29,on 30,840 32,074 

Uruguay 
304,844.14 

Salary . .. 
15,000 15,000 15,000 15,600 

Cuba 
25,000.00 Housin~ on~ Ut11it1es 

6,450 7,108 7,392 7,688 
Other fields 

537,973.45 Sodol erunty 
2,000 2,204 2,292 2,384 Retirement 
5,430 8,099 8 099 10 691 

Projected missionary appointments 
200,000.00 

68,436 
Insurance 

- 53,881 61 ,488 63,623 
Other anticipated opportunities 

250,000.00 Total Dept. Expense to Employ Total fields and projects 
$6,335,293.37 Diredor of Stateside Development • Vehicle Provided 26 800 

29,on 30,240 31 ,450 Salary . . . 13'200 15,000 15,600 16;24 Administrative 
Housi~ and Ut11it1es 6'450 

7,108 7,392 7,688 Sodol ecurity 2' 000 
2,204 2,292 2,384 

Office of the General Director 
195,604.8 1 

Retirement 5'430 5,974 5,974 10,691 
61 ,498 o8,436 

Department of Field Operations 
124,233.26 Insurance ~53 881 59,362 Total Dept. Expense to Employ ' Department of Stateside Development 
163,750.36 

Diredor of Financial Operations • Vehicle Provided 
40 000 44,081 45,844 47,678 

Department of Mobilization & Recruitment 196,894.34 
Solo~ 6'374 7,024 7,305 7,597 

Department of Public Relations 
474,340.38 

Soda Security 2' 000 
2,204 2,292 2,384 

Department of Member Care 
101 ,419.96 Retirement i363 

8 092 8Jl2_9 l_M91 
63,540 68,350 Insurance - 55 737 61 ,408 

Department of Financial Operations 
403,915.04 

Total Dept. Expense to Employ • Total Administration 
1 ,660, 158.15 

Diredor of Mobilization & Recruitment • Vehide Prov~1ef00 29,076 30)40 31,449 
Less: missionary/project allocations - 9% ( 4001 1 02. 75) 

Salary 14'400 15,000 15,600 16,224 
Net Administration 

I ,260,055.40 Ho~si~ an~ Utilities 2' 903 
7,108 7,392 7,688 SoCial erunty 1 '800 2,204 2,292 2,384 Retirement 2:827 ffiO 3,110 4,105 

Total Operational 
$7,595,348.77 

Insurance - 43,530 
5 ,4 8 58,634 61 ,850 Total Dept. Expense to Employ Additional Approved VISION Projects 

$2,586,500.00 Diredor of Member Care • Vehicle Provided 
0 29,076 30)40 31 ,449 Salary ... 
0 15,000 15,600 16,224 

Additional Approved Special Projects 
$18,000.00 

7,688 
Housin~ and Utilities 

0 7,108 7,392 Social erurity 
0 2,204 2,292 2,384 

Total Budget 
$10, 199,848.80 Retirement 

0 5,974 5,974 10,691 Insurance 
0 59,362 61 ,498 68,435 Total Dept. Expense to Employ 
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Sunday School and Church Training Report 
The ministry of developing and publishing Free Will Baptist Sunday 

school literature continues to be a joy as we champion our doctrinal teach­
ings and the Word of God. 

The new imagesetter we purchased last year has really enhanced our graph­
ics and aids our prcxtuction departments. This expensive machine is now paid for. 

Our website on the Internet continues to show an increase in inquiries 
and sales. Both Free Will Baptists and non-Free Will Baptists are respond­
ing to our web page at www.randallhouse.com. This website also keeps 
our viewers aware of new products and events. 

We continue to work with other national departments and print two of 
our national magazines. We print stewardship materials and The Free Will 
Baptist Yearbook complimentary for our Free Will Baptist churches. We 
printed much of the material for Operation Saturation, promoted last year 
on September 30, 2000, and shared in the project. 

We are still able to give our Spanish curriculum to our Spanish Free Will 
Baptist churches that serve under the Home and Foreign Mission 
Departments and other Spanish speaking Free Will Baptist churches in our 
denomination. We have done some free printing for our new Russian and 
Korean churches as well. The book, Handbook for Free Will Baptists, was 
printed in Korea last year and our new book, The Quest for Troth, will be 
translated and printed in Korea and perhaps Russia this year. There are plans 
for an additional 14 of our books to be translated and printed in Korea. Last 
year we printed Biblical Systematics in Russian, 30 of our Spanish teacher 
guides, and 5 Korean books for our American market. We will release the 
Handbook for Free Will Baptists for the American Korean market this year. 

Last year we printed the following new books, And a Child Shall Lead Them, 
Two Views of the Millennium, Welcome to Real Life, The Right Foundation, 
Making life's Big Decisions, Doing life, Out of This World, The Search for 
Significance and Notango Veyo (the New Testament in Koulango). This year we 
have already released The Quest for Troth written by Leroy Forlines and an updat­
ed version of The Free Will Baptist History by Dr. Bill Davidson. A Workbook for 
Free Will Baptist Doctrines, that will correlate with our book Free WiU Baptist 
Doctrines and the Treatise, will also be printed this year. 

Two additional youth publications are to be printed this spring entitled, 
Life's Secret Formula and Extreme Journey. All of the remaining books for 
the RandaJI Commentary series have been assigned to writers, but dates of 
publication are still unknown. 

Our endeavor with LightningSource, a division of Ingram, the world's 
largest distributor of books, has enabled us to fill many requests for tiUes that 
have been out of print. We have reprinted over 90 books such as Romans by 
Dr. Robert Picirilli, Biblical Systematics by Leroy Forlines, and The Future by 
Dr. Cecil Sanders, etc. We now have 52 of our books available in three elec­
tronic book formats for the new Electronic book market. This relationship 
with LightningSource has also enabled our products to be added to the data­
bases of Spring Arbor which distributes to the Christian bookstore market, 
Barnes and Noble, Borders, numerous mail-order book companies, and 
Amazon. These are among the world's largest book retailers which gives us 
a much larger marketing area. In March, we signed an agreement that alJ our 
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ntracted by LightningSource can also be printed in the 

t><J?ks p~ese;~~ ~th their partner in London, En~~~~-and church growth, is 
Ulllt~-color magazine, Outreach f~ S~dftyc~ntinues to be well ac~epted 

with ideas and he~ps ~or the ~ocaJ uti~ ~d informative publication ts_ sent 
~hout our denommation. Thi~ ~ and interested individual. It containS a 
free of cha.Tge to every pastor, c urc ' . gn for the spring and fall, free of charge, 

school and church growth campal 1 ho want to enlarge. 
Sun_daY to help churches and Sunday schoo s w t home to be with the Lord. 
deSt~ beloved employee, R~y_San~~~~~~ and Helen Massia, Wilma 

Delbert Wood, man~ge~ ofa~~~~~ the Custom~r Service Departme~t ~~~ 
Wood, and Barbara os er . ears of service. These have been very at 
retired this year after many y reatly missed. 
and dedicated employees who are; f e I became general director, was 

The budget for 1993,. the years h~~~ continued to rise and the ~oal for 
$2 257 148.00. Since that ome, s~e h dule This year our umt sal~s 

, chi'ng additional churches IS on sc e ~re down for the ftrst time m 
rea b other income areas w al t the 
remained steady, ut our th national in California were up and s es ~ al 
seven years. Expenses to . e . e we continue to underwrite the Nati~n 
convention were down. LtkeWlS , . . to the youth of our denomma-
Youth Conference whic~ provides a m~~~r;93.33. After their revenues of 
tion. Their expenses this ~ear W.~[e ce, of $151,623.71. We also gave 
$145 119.62 there was still a di eren . tion during 2000. Both of these 
$36,458.00 in free printing to o~ deno=n~s does not include gifts of over 
contributed to~ loss in a_~e~ thi~d~t~udget for 2002 is $3,529,4~3.90. d 
$8,000 of Spantsh maten. · ur ntinual updating of curnculum, an 

My short-term g?~ mvolves ~e ~~twork of workshop leade~s. My lo~-
the building of a Christian Educaoon · ulum and increasmg our dts-

d c·ng a full-color curnc th 40 
term goal involves pro u 1 

. b lieving churches. Today, more an 
tribution into more ~eman e e Sunday School literature and we are 
denominations are usmg Randallr~~~~ultural materials in various langu~~es. 
beginning to see a demand for c d N shville and assumed the posttion 

In December of 1993, I move t~ 1 ~ rateful for all the blessings ~e 
of General Director on January 1' 199 · g s Besides lifting our ftnancJal 
Lord has given Randall House over these year shments and given me many 
burden He has allowed many other accomp 1 

fine pe~ple with who:n to work. f etirement to the Board to be ftn~l-
This April I subrrutted my plans orr d to work for this Board and With 

ized on Augu~t 10, 2002. It has been goo blessing to have had a good faun­
the Randall House employees. It was a 
dation laid by Dr. Roger C. Reeds. 

Your brother and friend, 

Alton Loveless 
General Director 
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Summary of the Minutes 
for the Sunday School and Church Training Board. 

The Board had three meetings in the past year. The first meeting was held 
at the National Association in Anaheim, California. At that meeting we ap­
proved one writer, elected officers and determined committee assignments. 

The second meeting was held at Randall House in December after the 
Leadership Conference. At that meeting we approved three writers, approved 
the speakers for the Youth Worship Services for NYC '0 I, replaced Del ben 
Wood with Dean Jones as the Vice President of RHP Corporation and made a 
statement concerning Bible translations. 

The third meeting was held April23-24, 2001 at Randall House. At that meet­
ing w e reviewed the audit and approved the budget. We accepted the 2002 
NYC theme, approved a new youth retreat program, and approved the Student 
and Children Ministries joining a steering committee for the Campus Revolu­
tion. In addition, we authorized several proposals concerning funding for the 
Student and Children Ministries. Randall House's new logo was approved. The 
Board received Dr. Loveless' retirement announcement for August I 0, 2002, 
and set up a procedure for a search for our new General Director. 
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(With Independent Auditors ' Report Thereon) 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Table of Contents 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet 

Statement of Activity and Changes in Net Assets 

Statement of Cash Flow 

Notes to Financial Statements 

A- 132 

1 

3 

5-7 

lfr(t~ Hill, Harper & Associates, P.C. 
i~ Certlfied Public Accountants 

1 B d of Directors d 
krr. A lhl oar I d C hurch Training Boar 
Eme--1 R l larper Sunday Schoo an . . 

and Randall House Pubhcataons 

Ol'('ntwood E,l(e<Uiive Center 
761 Old H tekory Boulevard 
Suue 206 
Brentw1x)d, TN 37027 
TEL: 61!'/377·1-485 

School and Church Training Board and 
We have audited the balance sheets of Sund:y 31 2000 and 1999, and the related 

Randall House Publications as of Decem er d'cash flows for the years then ended. 
. . d h s in net assets an 0 r statements of actiVIty an c ange .b "lity of the Board's management. u 

These financial statements are . t~e resp~n:~ ~nancial statements based on our audit. 
·b' lity l·s to express an oplmon on t e responst 1 •. 

d 
.th generally accepted audltmg 

d. · accor ance Wl · bta . 
We conducted our au Its m . we lan and perform the auditS to o .m 

d d T hose standards requn e that . p . ts are free of matenal stan ar s. th the financ1al statemen . 
reasonable assurance about wbe er . . on a test basis, evidence supportmg 

. tat ment An audit includes e:xammm~, ts An audit also includes 
m1ss e · . h fi anctal statemen . b 
the amounts and discl~sures ~n .t e :sed and significant estimates ~ade y 
assessing the accountmg pn~clplehs all financial statement presentatiOn. We 

ll evaluatmg t e over 
management, as we. as .d nable basis for our opinion. 
believe that ou r audits provl e a reaso . 

. ferred to above present fairly, in all matenal 
In our opinion, the financla.l .statements re School and Church Training B~ar? and 
respects the financial position of Sund~y 31 2000 and 1999, and changes ID Its net 
Randall' House Publications as of Decem erd d, ·n conform ity with generally accepted 
assets and cash flows for the years then en e I 

accou nting principles. 

March 22, 2001 

A- 133 



SUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBliCATIONS 

Balance Sheets 

December 3 1, 2000 and 1999 

Assets 
CUrrent assets: 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 
Certificates of deposit 

C.ash invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Accounts receivable: 

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful acoounts 
of $7,000 

Employees and o ther 

Total rereivables 

Inventory 

Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 
Land 

Building 

Printing service equipment 

Office and administrative equipment 
Automobiles and trucks 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current portion of long term debt 

Due to affiliated organization 

Long term debt 

Note payable 

Total current liabilities 

Total long term debt 

Unrcstriaed net assets 

Commitments 

See acoompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

-
s 

2000 1999 

200,716 387,01 4 
50,000 50,000 

166,704 L~o.ooo 

112,818 125,602 
5,600 3,143 ---

118,418 --- 128,745 

443,198 422,336 
4,053 13,464 

983,089 1,151,559 

110,341 110,.141 
728,696 712,470 
569,612 471,336 
571,313 551,060 

5 1,698 51,698 

2,031,660 1,896,905 
1,436,782 1,330,8!6 

594,878 566,089 

1,577,967 1,717,648 

70,461 70,783 
42,461 40,610 
9,841 16,164 
7,970 1 ,47~ 

1302_,~3 129,029 

78,836 

- - 78,106 

1,447,234 1,509,783 

1,.577,967 ~~L7l7.§48 

sUNDAY SaiOOL AND CHUR0-1 TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Statements of Activity and Changes in Net Assets 

For lbe Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

2000 
Revenues. 

Ne1 sales: s 1,987,219 
('urricul um 
Randall House books 

66,915 

Merchandise 
18,515 

Vacation Bible School 
25,000 

Bookstore 
322,834 

Pnnting 
156,467 

Other sales 
43 917 

Net sales 
2,620,867 

Freight and handling 
117,504 

Other income 
45,162 

Interest income 
9,562 

Commission income on hymnal sales 
38,906 

2,832,001 

I :.xpcnses: 
Qlst of sales: 

lnventcry at beginning of year, net of inventory wrinen off 
(see other expense below) 

422,336 

Merchandise purchases 
294,319 

Depreciation 
39,742 

Editorial 
362,722 

Printing prodlction 
744,607 

Spanish department 
26,878 

1,890,604 

I.e~ inventcry at end of year 418,999 

1,471,605 

Selling, general and administrative: 
Administrative 

133,882 

BOokstore 
115,565 

Bookkeeping 
241,336 

Building 
129,906 

Sales and promotion 
250,486 

Shipping 
223,188 

Gener.tl 
69,820 

Depreciation 
66,224 

Interest expense, including finance charges 4,296 

I ,234,703 

Total expenses 2_,706,308 

Increase in net assets from operations 125,693 

Other expenses: 
Printing contributed to the denomination 36,458 

Youth department 
151,784 

Inventory wriuen off 

Total otrer expenses 
188,242 

Decrease in net assets (62,549) 

Net assets, beginning of year I c'i09,783 

Net assets, end of year $ 1,447,234 

Soc accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1999 

1,967r111 
67,386 
32,121 
29,024 

:\68,098 
157,197 
49,812 

2,670,949 
118,272 
61,249 

9,732 
42434 

2 902,636 

514,909 
331,417 

48,000 
361,865 
735,845 

24,359 

2,016,395 
422,336 

l ,'i94,059 

E 123,593 
120,434 
230,824 
142,115 
149,698 
211.765 
94,222 
57 .. \ 11 

718 -
__ 1, 1}0,68Q_ 

2,724,739 

177,897 

55,192 
104,619 
394,871 - --
:'i:'i-4,682 

(}76,785) 

__ !.886,568 

- 1~0.9.783 



SUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAIN lNG BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Fo r the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 

Cash Flo ws from Operating Activities 

Decrease in net assets 

AdJUStments to reconcile decrea . . sc tn net assets to net 
operatmg activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Inventories 

Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Oue to affiliated organization 

Net operating activities 

Gash flows from Inves ting Activities 

Cash invested with Free Will Ba . Fo . pusts undataon 
Proceeds from certificate of deposit 
Purchase of property 1 . , P ant and equ1pment 

Net investing activities 

C..ash Flo ws from ~inancing Activities 

Repayments of long term debt 

Proceeds from long term debt 

Net financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Supplcment.al disclosures: 

Interest, including finance charges paid 

See accomn.'>nying not r· . ,... cs to tnanc1al statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

2000 

(62,549) 

105,966 

10,327 

(20,862) 

9,411 

(322) 
I ,851 

6,498 

50,320 

(16,704) 

(134,755) 

- (151,459) 

(85,159) 

(85,159) 

(186,298) 

387,01 4 -----

~ 

200,716 

4,296 

.. 

1999 

(37~.785) 

105,311 

40,233 
487,444 

210 

(26,698) 

(10,655) 
1,043 

220,103 

(50,000) 

50,000 

(34,102) 

(34,102) 

95,000 

95,000 

281,001 

106,013 

)87,014 

718 

sUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBUCATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2000 a nd 1999 

Jlle Board operates under the auspires of the National Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a 

Uoard of DirectOrs. 

( 1) Summary of Significant Accounting_ Policies 
The Bo.'lfd adopted Statement of Financial Standards (SFAS) No. 117 ''Financial Statements of 
Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Board is required to report information 

regarding its £inancial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net 
assets; temporarily restricted net assets; and permanently restricted net assets, if any. In addition, the 

Uoard is required to present a statement of cash nows. As permitted by this new statement, the Board 

dist:ontinucd its usc of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to 

present the classes of net assets required. 

Accrual Basis 
rhe financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Inventories 
Inventories arc stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by use of the first-in, firsH>ut 

method. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and 

betterments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are expensed as incurred- Depreciation is 

provided using the straight-line method 

Income Taxes 
The Ooard is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes is mndc 

in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash Oows, the Board considers all cash funds, cash bank acwunts and 

highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an origin<'ll maturi ty of three months or less to be cash and 

cash equivalents. 

Est! mates 
Inc preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prmciplcs 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 

disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Changes in presentation 
Certain amounts in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to 2000 presentation. 
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SUNDAY SOICXJL AND anJRCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable and accrued expenses 

approximate fair value because of the short maturity of !he inslrurnents. The carrying values of liabiluies 

are not materially different from the estima!cd fair value of these instruments. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Board arc entitled to paid sick days and personal days off, depending on job 

classification, length of service and o ther facwrs. II is impractical to estimate the amount of compcn-;ation 

for future absences, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in !he accompanying financial 

statements. The Board's policy is to reoognii'.c the cost of these compensated absences when actually paid 

to employees. 

(2) Concentration of Credit Risk 

'£be Board is a distributor of Dible based Sunday school and church training curriculum, and other 

deno minational publications. The Board extends credit to its customers which consist primarily of Free 
Will Baptist churches and religious bookstores. These accounts arc not collateralized and are subject to 

accounting risk of loss amounting to !he outstanding balance at any point in time. Further, funds invested 
with the Free Will Baptist Foundation in !he amount of $166,704 are subject to risk of accounting loss. 

Cash and certificates of deposit deposited in a local bank are insured by the F.D.l.C. up to a maximum of 

$100,000. 

(3) Agreement with Affiliated Organization to Distribute Hymnals 

During !he year ended November 30, 1995 the Board agreed to warehouse and distribute hymnals for !he 

Executive Board of the National Associatio n of Free WiU Baptists. There are two types of hymnals being 
warehoused and distributed by the Board; lne Free Will Baptist Hymn Book, Rejoice, and 'Inc Rejoice 

Hymn Book for the Cburch at Worship. 

The Free Will Baptis t Hymn Book, Rejoice 

The Board will invoice the custo mer, collect funds and remit $6.32 to the Executive Board. As of 

December 3 I, 2000 the lJoard was warehousing approximmely 28,000 bymn:lls with an estimated 
replacement value of $364,000. The following summarizes !he transactions under this agreement as of 

December 31, 2000. 

S ince 

2000 Inceptio n 

Amount due to Executive Office at beginning of period $ 1,472 
' Jotal sales of hymnals 74,202 564,354 

Less total fees camed (38,906) (284,365) 

I .ess remittances made to the Executive Office (28,7~ (!7],0 19) 

Amount due to (fro m) l~xecutive Office at end of period $ 7}170 7,970 - -
'lne Rejoice Hymn Book for the Church of Wo rsh ip 

·£be Ooard will warehouse and distribute these hymnals and receive a commission of 5% plus costs of 

shipping per hymnal. As of December 3 I, 2000 !he Board was warehousing approximately 5,800 

hymnals with an estimated replacement value of $58,000. 
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(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

sUNDAy SOIOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Pension r h 
- - d rti · tes in !he master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and l nsuran~ o t e 
The Ooar pa Clpa . . 1bc I . contributory and is matched up to a maximum of 
National Associatioo of free Will ~pusts. p afn IS ·ce may partici~te Pension expense amouuted 

rt. f pensation l.:mployees With tWO yearS 0 serv1 · . 
57~ o com . ears ended December 3 I ' 2000 and 1999, respectively. ·1nc pension 

to $3~,459 ~~~3~~~~~~~~h;l:n. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and 

plan IS ~ !h rt ·c· ant can ei ther receive a lum~um distribution or purchase one o! several 
upon rettrement e pa 1 1p. 

types of annuity contracts. 

Inventory . . , .. 
. 0ece be 3 1 1999 the 13oa.rd determined that mventory prev1ously class1f1ed a~ 

Ounng !he ~r ~ wi:OOt rsi~ificant value. ' [his inventory consisted pnmarily of S~nish and 

:;~r :r:llancous items. The effect of writing off this in~entory amounted to $394,871 and IS reflected 

in the 1999 o ther expenses section in the accompanying fioa.nc1al statements. 

Note Payable _ 
The Board has a note payable with interest at 8.00%, which is payable in monthly mstalbnc~ts obcf $1,9~d2 

· · · f Decc be 2004 however the note w1ll rep:u 
(principal and inlerest) with an ongmal rnatunty o m r • h sed to 

· · f dcpo ·L ·£be proceeds from t e note was u 
d · 2001 lbe no te is secured by a certificate o s1 

unnghase . . t The balance of this note amounted to $9,482 and $95,000 at l)cccmber 31, 2000 
pure equ1prnen . 
and 1999, respectively. 

Youth Department 
· · · · d · s to youth and youth workers of 

The se of the Youth Department is to prov1dc numstrtes an . sc~1ce 
p~ · . . f the An..~r1,.,.,.nt's aCtiVIties: 

the Assoc1a11on. The followmg IS a summary o ......-~-

Revenue (rom conferences and related services 

Expenditures for conferences and related services 

General and administrative expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess of expenses over revenues 

Contributed Services to Denominational Ministrie~ 
During the years ended December 3 1, 2000 and 1999 the Board 

Denomination as fo llows: 

Together Way 

lntegnty Book 
Qurch Directory 
Outreach Maga1jne 

Korean Books 
Russian Books 

Total contributed services 

7 

A - 139 

2000 

$ 145,119 

154,027 

142,876 ---
296,903 

$ (15 1,7~ 

1999 

154,401 

134,671 

124,349 

2.'\9,020 

(104,619) 

contributed printing costs to the 

$ 

2000 

6,142 

15,690 

12,666 

1,582 

378 

s -====-'6::!.:,4:=:5=8 

1999 

2,710 

13,320 

39,162 

55,192 



REVENUES 

Budget 
2002 

Total Sales - RHP 
Discounts to Book~ta"r~~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$2,697,403.90 

............................ ( 440,000.00) 
$2,25 7, 403.90 

OTHER SAl .FS & INCOME 
Bookstore Sales 
Freight & Handli~g ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 360,000.00 
Student and Children Ministries · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 135,000.00 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 180,000.00 
$ 675,000.00 

OTHER INCOME 
Merchandise 
Bulletin Servic~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 50,000.00 
Spanish Curricul~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 32,000.00 
Printing Sales .... . . : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 35,000.00 
Miscellaneous Sales · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 180,000.00 
RHP Books . . . . . . . ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 120,000.00 
Commission on H~~~·~~ · · · .. · · .... · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · 85,000.00 
Miscellaneous Incom e · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 75,000.00 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . 20 000 00 . . . . . . , . 
Total Revenue $ 597,000.00 

.... . .... . .......................... $3,529,403.90 

COST OF SAl .ES 
Cost of Outside Purchases 
Creative Services · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 
Printing Production. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . 
Span·sh · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

327,000.00 
407,900.00 
782,700.00 I . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Depreciation · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 29,700.00 
Total Cost of Sal.~s· ~·e·~~~ · .. .. · · .. · .... · · .... · · · · 70.000.00 

....................... $1 ,617,300.00 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Student and Children Ministries 
Sales Division · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 296,900.00 
Bookstore · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 262,100.00 
Denominati~~~ Mi·~~tri~s· .· .· : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 126,400.00 
Administration · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 82,000.00 
Accounting · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 142,650.00 
Shipping ... : : : : : : : : : : : : : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 238,700.00 
Building . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 252,900.00 
General Expenses · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 171 ,000.00 

Total General Expens·e·s· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .$ 284,500.00 
..... . . . .................... $1 ,857,150.00 

Grand Total of all Expenses 
. . ' ..... . ... . .... . ... . .. $3,474,450.00 

Total Revenues 
.............. . : ........... . ..... . . $3,529,403.90 

WORKING CAPITAL 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 54,953.90 . . . . . . . . . . . . 

A- 140 

BUDGET 2002 
SUNDAY SCHOOL UTERATURE 

Qyantity Description Cost Revenue 
4,376 Nursery Teacher 4. 15 18,160.40 

1 7,245 Make N Do 2.50 43, 11 2.50 
)3,607 My Bible Lesson Cards 2.50 34,017.50 
4,424 Nursery-Preschool Flgraph 10.50 46,452.00 
2,534 Nursery-Preschool Teaching Pic t 10.50 26,607.00 
8,285 Preschool Teacher 4. 15 34,382.75 

23, 169 Preschool Student 2.50 57,922.50 
34,435 Preschool Companion 2.50 86,087.50 
23,182 Picture Lesson Cards 2.50 57,955.00 
6,898 Bible Times 2.89 19,935.22 

10,554 PrimaryTeacher 4.15 43,799. IO 
38,726 Primary Student 2.50 96,815.00 
48,382 Primary Companion 2.50 120,955.00 
2,982 Mem ory Verse Pac 9.99 29,790.18 
9,599 Primary Days 2.89 27,741.11 
3,522 Primary-Junior Flgraph 10.50 36,981.00 
3,179 Primary-Junior Teaching Pict 10.50 33,379.50 

11 ,910 Junior Teacher 4.15 49,426.50 
54,999 Junior Student 2.50 137,497.50 
52,102 Junior Companion 2.50 130,255.00 
7,472 Junior Counselor 2.89 2I ,594.08 
5,11 2 Turning Point Teacher 4.15 21,2 I4.80 
I ,884 Turning Point Packet 10.50 I9, 782.00 

23,822 Turning Point Student 2.50 59,555.00 
12,785 Teen Power 2.89 36,948.65 
7,278 Horizon Teacher 4.15 30,203.70 
2,388 Horizon Packet I 0.50 25,074.00 

36,570 Horizon Student 2.50 91,425.00 
39,864 Bible Teacher 4.15 I65,435.60 
13,946 Bible Challenge 2.50 34,865.00 
17,506 Visitor 's Lesson Leaflets 2.50 43,765.00 
4,917 PowerForLiving 2.89 14,210.13 

18,075 Depth 2.50 45, I87.50 
90,860 Bible Scholar 2.50 227, ISO.OO 

237,776 Bible Scholar LP 2.65 630, I 06.40 
352 Bible Teacher Cassette 20.99 --,--__,7_....3=8:.=8::....:.4.::<--8 

Total Sunday School literature Sales $2,605,177.60 

Quantity 
Revenue 

370 
1,084 

535 
2,294 

638 
2,546 

C. T. S. UTERATURE 
Description 

Helpers Leader's Guide 
Helpers Packet 
Discovers Leader 's Guide 
Discovers Packet 
Learners Leader 's Guide 
Learners Student 
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Cost 

4.I5 
4.15 
4.I5 
5.50 
4. 15 
2.50 

I,535.50 
4,498.60 
2,220.25 

12,617.00 
2,647.70 

6,365.00 



61 0 Adventurers Leader's Guide 4. 15 2,531.50 3,032 Adventurers Student 
650 Destination Reali ty 

8,255 Focus Student 
8,255 Lifeline Student 

Total C. T. S. Uterature Sales 

2.50 7,580.00 
14.95 9, 717.50 
2.65 21 ,875.75 
2.50 20,637.50 

Total Sunday School and C. T.S. Sales 
Less Discounts to Bookstores 

$92,226.30 

$2,697,403.90 

$ ( 440,000.00) 

$2,257,403.90 Grand Total Uterature Sales 

OTHER SAl .ES & INCOME 
Spanish Curriculum 
RHP Books 
Merchandise 
Bulle tin Service 
Bookstore Sales 
Printing Sales 
Miscellaneous Sales 
Freight & Handling 
Commission on Hymnals 
Student and Children Ministries 
Misce11aneous Income 

TOTAL REVENUE 

EXPENSES 
COST OF OUTSIDE PURCHASES 

Curriculum 
Merchandise 
Bookstore 

CREATIVE SERVICES 
Sol aries 
Housing 
Travel 
Supplies 
Curriculum Development 
Writers' Fees 
Equipment & Maintenance 
Color Separations 
Freelance Artwork 
Conventions & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

$62,000.00 
15,000.00 

250,000.00 
$327,000.00 

$250,000.00 
33,000.00 
4,000.00 

12,000.00 
1,000.00 

25,000.00 
1,000.00 
5,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,500.00 

300.00 
300.00 

2,000.00 
16,900.00 
10,000.00 
40,000.00 

900.00 
$407,900.00 

PRINTING PRODUCTION 

$35,000.00 
85,000.00 
50,000.00 
32,000.00 

360,000.00 
180,000.00 
120,000.00 
135,000.00 
75,000.00 

180,000.00 
20,000.00 

1,272,000.00 
$3,529,403.90 

Salaries $162,000.00 
Travel 1,000.00 
Pressroom Supplies 22,000.00 
Pressroom Equipment Mointenonca/ports 12,000.00 
Pressroom Stock 120,000.00 
Pressroom Ink 12,000.00 
Bindery Supplies 4,300.00 
Bindery MointenoncP/ports 3,500.00 
Outside Printing 470,000.00 
Telephone 2,000.00 
FICA 15,000.00 
Retirement 8,000.00 
Insurance 21,000.00 
Camero Supplies 2,000.00 
Camero Maintenance 500.00 
Camero Film-Negatives 17,000.00 
Plates 10,000.00 
In-house printing {1 00,000.00) 
Dues 8. Subscriptions 100.00 
Miscellaneous 300.00 

SPANISH 
Solories 
Travel 

$782)00.00 

$16,000.00 
300.00 
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Supplies 
Equipment Maintenance 
In-house Printing 
Tron~otion 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Dues 8. Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL COST OF SALES 

GENERAL EXPENSES 

500.00 
500.00 
100.00 
500.00 
200.00 

3,200.00 
1,400.00 

800.00 
6,000.00 

100.00 
100.00 

$29,700.00 
$1,547,300.00 

STUDENT AND CHILDREN MINISTRIES 
Solories $7 6,000.00 
Housing Allowance 15,000.00 
Convention Workers' Salaries 7,000.00 
Entertainment 300.00 
Travel 6,000.00 
Supplies 7,500.00 
In-house Printing 6,000.00 
NYC 2002 65,000.00 
Truth 8. Peace 2002 42,000.00 
NYET 2002 4,500.00 
Fund Raising Expense 200.00 
Notional Student & Children Workers' 

Retreat 2002 
Conventions 8. Seminars 
Dues 8. Subscriptions 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 
T 8. P2 2002 

SALES DIVISION 
Salaries 
Housing 
Entertainment 
Travel 
Supplies 
Advertising & Promotion 
Printing & Color Separations 
In-house Printing 
Dues 8. Subscriptions 
Postage 

23,000.00 
300.00 
200.00 

3,200.00 
3,200.00 
6,900.00 
2,600.00 

12,000.00 
3,000.00 

13 000.00 
$296,900.00 

$49,000.00 
12,000.00 

200.00 
7,000.00 
8,000.00 

32,000.00 
1,500.00 

85,000.00 
1,500.00 

38,000.00 

Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Conventions 8. Seminars 
Miscellaneous 

BOOKSTORE 
Solories 
Entertainment 
Trove! 
Supplies 
In-house Printing 
Software Yeorly Fee~Services 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Advertising 8. Promotion 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 

DENOMINATIONAL MINISTRIES 
Outreach Magazine 
Church Directory 
Spanish Uterature gifts 
Stewardship lessons 
Together Way Printing 
Korean Printing 
Rus~an Printing 
Scholarships 
RHP Ministers' Fund 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
Solories 
Housing Allowance 
In-house Printing 
Entertainment 
Travel 
Auto Expense 
Auto lease 
Supplies 
Equipment Maintenance 
Equipment Rental 
Conventions & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Postage 
Telephone 
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2,000.00 
2,000.00 
2,400.00 

13,000.00 
6,500.00 
2.000.00 

$262,100.00 

$84,000.00 
100.00 

2,000.00 
2,500.00 

300.00 
4,000.00 
3,500.00 
2,200.00 
6,200.00 
2,000.00 

14,500.00 
4,500.00 

400.00 
200.00 

$126,400.00 

$20,000.00 
20,000.00 
15,000.00 
15,000.00 
6,000.00 
2,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

$82,000.00 

$74,000.00 
26,000.00 

1,200.00 
650.00 

12,000.00 
1,000.00 
5,600.00 
2,000.00 

100.00 
1,500.00 
1,000.00 

300.00 
500.00 

1,800.00 



FICA 
2,100.00 Retirement BUILDING 

Insurance 4,600.00 So/aries 
Miscel/o neous 8,000.00 Housing $50,000.00 

300.00 0.00 Supplies 
$142,650.00 9,500.00 Equipment Maintenance 

CUSTOM~R SERVICfJACCOUNTING!BUSINESS OFFICE 7,000.00 Building Maintenance 
So/ones $150 000 00 Utilities 11,000.00 
RoY? I ties 1 o' 000.00 Insurance (Building) 55,000.00 
EqUip~ent Rental '400 ·00 Telephone 22,000.00 
~~h~ 10000~0 1,800.00 FICA 
Equrpment Maintenance 3' 500 ·00 Retirement 3,000 00 

2,400.00 Dues 8. Subscriptions '300 ·00 Insurance Postage · Miscellaneous 9,000.00 
Telephone 5, 700·00 300.00 
FICA 4,000.00 $171,000.00 

13,000.00 GENERAL EXPENSES Retirement 4,000.00 Auto Expense Insurance $3,500 00 34,000.00 Supplies 
Travel 2,000.00 

1,500.00 Equipment Maintenance In-house Printing 8,000.00 
2,000.00 Equipment Rental Miscellaneous 10,000.00 

300.00 Equipmentlleose/Purchose 75,000.00 
$238,700.00 Bod Debt SHIPPING 3,500.00 Boord Trove/ 8. Expense So/aries 13,000.00 $90,000.00 Legol 8. Auditing 

Supp/i~ 10,000.00 
14,000.00 Taxes 

Equipment Maintenance 13,000.00 
3,000.00 Payroll Services 

Equipment Rental 5,500.00 
8,400.00 Debt Retirement Freight 50,000.00 

105,000.00 Miscellaneous Postage 10,000.00 
6,200.00 Deprecio tion Telephone 70,000.00 
1,800.00 Interest Expense FICA 5,000.00 
7,000.00 Service Charge Expense Retirement 6,000.00 
2,200.00 Insurance $284,500.00 

15,000.00 Miscellaneous 
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES $1,857,150.00 300.00 

$252,900.00 
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Nursery Teocher 
Teocher's Resource 1\:Jcket 
Puptl's Hornhwrk 
Btble lesson Cords 
(lres(hool Teacher 
Jeocher's Resource 1\:Jcket 
Preschool Student 
Preschool Workbook 
Picture Lesson Cords 
Priroory Teacher 
Visool Pocket 
Priroory Student 
Pnroory Workbook 
·Memory Verse Pocket 
Juni()( Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Juntor Student 
Jumor Workbook 
Teen Teacher 
Visual Pocket 
Teen Student 
Teen Workbook 
High Teen Teacher 
Visuoii\:Jcket 
Htgh Teen Student 
H1gh Teen Workbook 
lifeline (Teen Oevo~onol) 
Bible Teacher (Young Adult) 
Bible Challenge 
Bible Teacher 
Bible Scholar 
Bible Scholar Lorge Print 
Depth (Adult Oevo~onol) 
Visual Pocket 
Visitor's Lesson leaflet 

SP == Scripture Press 
AY == FWB Press 

COST COMPARISONS 200 I 
SP GL ST **UGP AY DCC GRP RHP 

4.99 4.99 4.89 1.45 4.99 5.29 .00 4.00 
10.49 10.99 10.99 6.25 11.49 11.49 .00 9.99 
2.99 2.89 2.79 1.50 2.99 2.89 .00 2.40 
2.89 .00 .00 .85 2.89 .00 .00 2.40 
4.99 4.99 4.89 1.45 4.99 5.29 7.99 4.00 

10.49 10.99 10.99 6.25 11.49 11.49 19.99 9.99 
2.99 .00 .00 1.50 .00 2.99 3.99 2.40 
2.89 2.89 2.79 .00 2.89 2.89 .00 2.40 
.00 .00 1.99 .85 2.89 .00 .00 2.40 

4.99 4.99 4.89 1.45 5.29 5.29 7.99 4.00 
10.49 10.99 10.99 6.25 11.49 11.49 19.99 9.99 
2.99 .00 .00 1.50 2.99 2.99 3.99 2.40 
.00 2.89 2.79 .00 2.89 2.89 .00 2 40 
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 8.99 

4.99 4.99 4.89 1.45 4.05 5.29 7.99 4.00 
10.49 10.99 10.99 6 25 .00 11.49 19.99 9.99 
2.99 .00 .00 1.70 3 25 2.99 3.99 2.40 

.00 2.89 2.79 .00 3.15 .00 .00 2.40 
4.99 16.99 4.89 1.55 5.05 4.99 19.99 4.00 

10.49 .00 10.99 .00 .00 11.29 .00 9.99 
2.89 .00 2.79 1.70 3.25 2.89 .00 2.55 
.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 •••. 00 

4.99 16.99 4.89 1 75 5.05 4.99 19.99 4.00 
.00 .00 10.99 00 .00 11.29 .00 9.99 

4.29 .00 2.79 1.70 3.15 2.89 .00 2.55 
.00 .00 00 .00 .00 .00 .00 • t • • 00 

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .2.40 

.00 .00 .00 1.85 5.05 5.49 17.99 4.00 

.00 .00 .00 0.00 .00 .00 .00 2.40 
5.29 19.99 4.89 3.80 5.05 5.49 17.99 4.00 
2.89 6.99 2.79 1.85 3.60 2.99 .00 2.40 
3.99 .00 3.69 .00 4.30 3.49 .00 2.60 
.00 .00 1.99 .00 .00 2.89 .00 .2.40 

10.49 .00 10.99 .00 .00 I 11.99 .00 .00 
.00 00 .00 .00 3.00 I 2.89 .00 2.40 

Gl = Gospel Ught ST = Standard .. UGP = Union Gospel Press 
DCC = David C. Cook GRP = Group RHP = Randall House Publications. 

·Produced only by Randall House. 

·'In order for o price comparison to be accurate one needs to make o visual comparison. For instance it may appear that 
Union Gospel Press has lower prices than us or others, but they generally run quite o few pages shorter in their publications. 

~Hlhe Teen course student book contains both the former student book and handbook. This gives you both books for the 
price of one. 

Please note that most companies ore charging for more for their products than Randall House Publications. Save money, 
receive quality, and preserve sound doctrine by purchasing your literature hom Randall House Publications. 
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Salaries 

General Director 2000 2001 Salary 
Housing and Utilities 

$37,795.34 $3 9,307.15 
23,405.06 24,341 .26 Social Security 4 ,681 .83 4 ,869.10 Retirement 

Insurance : 
3, 117.40 3,117.40 

Medical 
6, 140.70 6,500.00 Dental 

765.36 
Disability 765.36 

375.12 375.12 
(Th . $7 6,280.81 $78 916 09 

e Board e•ther pays mileage or furnishes a trav~l ca~ ) 

Creative Services Director 
Salary $25, 186.29 $25,941 .88 Housing Allowance 
Social Security 

17,709.93 18,241 .23 
3,281 .56 3,380.01 Retirement 2,015.00 

Insurance: 2,015.00 

Life 
164.76 

Medical 164.76 
6, 140.70 

Dental 6,500.00 
765.36 

Disability 765.36 
270.24 270.24 

$55,533.84 $57,278.24 

Youth Division Director 
Salary 

$18,806.12 $19,370.30 Housing Allowance 
Social Security 

14,400.00 14,832.00 

Retirement 
2,540.26 2,616.47 
1,560.00 

Insurance: 1 ,560.00 
Life 

85.20 
Medical 85.20 

6, 140.70 
Dental 6,500.00 

765.36 
Long-term Care 765.36 

18.00 Disability 18.00 
217.92 217.92 

$44,533.56 $45,965.25 
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2002 
$39,307.15 

24,341 .26 
4,869.10 
3, 117.40 

6,500.00 
765.36 
375.12 

$78,916.09 

$26,719.23 
18,788.46 
3 ,481.28 
2,015.00 

164.76 
7, 983.24 

765.36 
270.24 

$60, 187.57 

$19,951.40 
15,875.50 
2,740.75 
1,560.00 

85.20 
7,983 .24 

765.36 
18.00 

217.92 
$49, 197.37 

Home Missions Department 
Report on 2000 

Greetings: 
• This year has been a tremendous year for the National Home Missions 

Department. The following fourteen couples were sent into the harvest 
fields: Mark Shores, Albuquerque, NM; Don Bajley, San Antonio, 1X; Greg 
Floars, Marquette, Ml; Alex Polishchuk, San Leandro, CA; Pavel Yukhimets, 
vancouver, WA; Allen Whitt, Danese, WV; Jin Koo Sim, Los Angeles, CA; 
Peter Ryu, Artesia, CA; Hong Hyun Lee, Buena Park, CA; Ken Dodson, St. 
Croix, V.I. ; Eric Thompson, Bend, OR; Jerry Rayburn, Sierra Vista, AZ; Rick 
Bowling, Director of Hispanic Ministries USA; Carlos Rubio, Director of the 
Seminary of the Cross Extension Program, Altamira, Mexico. 

• Three military chaplains were approved and received endorsement 
for service through our department during this year. They are: CH 
(CPT) Steven Simpson, U.S. Army, AL; CH (CPT) David Trogdon, U.S. 
Army, GA, and CH(CPT) John Carey, U.S. Army, TX. After many years 
of fai thful service to our country and to Free Will Baptists, CH (Col.) 
James Bishop retired because of serious health problem s. 

• It was our great joy to see the following missionaries and churches 
become self-supporting. Jose Rodriguez, Miami, FL; Tom Hunt, Tri­
Cities, WA; Ron Parker, Shreveport, LA; George Harvey, Phoenix, AZ, 
and Tommy Jones, Pittsburgh, PA. 

• Rev. Larry A. Powell was elected general director by the Home Mission 
Board to succeed Bro. Trymon Messer who is retiring. 

• All the National Offices joined together in Operation Saturation . This 
was an all out effort to place the gospel into one million homes, and it 
was extremely successful. 

• Two home missionaries, Rue Dell Smith and Terry Hardison each received 
$35,000 from the "Build My Church Fund" to help them purchase land. 

• Richard Atwood and David Crowe changed positions. Their background 
of experience will help them to serve more effectively in these areas. 
Richard is now Director of Missionary Assistance and David is now 
Director of Ministry Helps. 

• The total income for Home Missions in 2000 was $4,815,544.78. The 
CELF program loaned out $4,490,777. 15 during this year. 

• The Home Missions Department needs your consistent prayer and finan­
cial support as we continue our cross-cultural ministry. We are present­
ly reaching souls for Jesus among the Koreans, Russians and Hispanics. 
Help us as w e seek to plant strong, self-supporting churches among the 
ethnic groups in America. Let's fulfill the Great Commission together. 

In His Service, 

Larry A. Powell 
General Director 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
Home Missions Board Meetings for 2000 

May3, 2000 
MSC to employee Rick Bowling as Director of Hispanic Ministries in the Us.\ 
MSC that a letter of appredation and commendation be sent to the Women 

Nationally Active for Chris~ Free Will Baptist Bible College, Master's Men, Foreign 
Missions and Randall House Publications for their cooperative spirit in working 
together with the Home Missions Department on Operation Saturation. 

MSC that the Chairman appoint a Search Committee for General 
Director replacement for May 2001. 

July 25, 2000 
MSC to accept Jin Koo Sim, Los Angeles, CA; Peter Ryu, Artesia, CA as 

Korean cross-cultural missionaries. 
MSC to accept our Slavic Russian, Brother Pavel Yukhimets of 

Vancouver, WA as a cross-cultural mjssionary. 

August 30, 2000 
MSC to send Carlos Rubio to reopen the Seminary extension at Altamira 

as an extension of the Seminary of the Cross. 
MSC to approve Don Bailey as a joint project to San Antonio, Texas. 

September 14, 2000 
MSC that we approve Mark Shores as a Home Missionary to Albuquerque, NM. 

December 4, 2000 
MSC that we make a change in positions and job description for two of 

our staff men Richard Atwood and David Crowe. Richard Atwood would 
become the Director of Missionary Assistance and David Crowe would 
become the Director of Ministry Helps to help our pastors and people. 

MSC to equally divide the dividends from the Build My Church Trust 
Endowment Fund to Rue Dell Smith and Terry Hardison. 
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To the Board of Trustees of the 
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DENNH" & W .4LLAC£ 
CERTIFIED PUBI.IC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE I/Ot.UHTEER BI.DG 
SUITE 100 

319 PLUS PARK BLVD 
NASHVILLE TN 37217 1005 

(6151366 5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Home M1ssions of the National 
AssociatiOn of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Members 
AVERICAN INSnTUTE Of 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC o\CCOi 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY Or '< -~~; 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCO!Jr;J 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opmion on these financial statements 
based on our aud1ts. 

We conducted our audits m accordance with generally accepted audtting standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evtdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financtal statements. An audit also 
mcludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our optnion. 

In our opmion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Bapttsts of 
the United States of Amenca, Inc. as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the changes m its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conform1ty with generally accepted accounting principles 

January 31, 2001 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONALAS'SociATiQN{iF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

oFTiiEiJNITEn STATES OF ~~ICA. INC. 
Statements of Financtal Pos1t100 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Assets 
Cash- Note 9 
Investments . 
Investments in Church Extenston 
Loan Fund - Note 6 

Accounts receivable . related party . Note 6 
Inventory · Note 1 
Property and equipment, at cost 
less accumulated depreciation of $117,461 

($96,992 in 1999) · Notes 1 & 2 
Capitalized lease · Note 3 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

L1abjlities 
Bank overdraft 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred compensation · Note 4 

Total liabilities 

Commitments· Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted · Note 5 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying 
notes to the frnancjal statements. 

-2-
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2000 

$ -0-
163,278 

1,161,445 
93,000 
36,750 

155,684 
-0-

$1.610.157 

$ 26,925 
26,063 

115,391 

12a,31~ 

747,153 
§94,625 

1.441.778 

v 610 157 

1999 

$ 2,856 
415,626 

1,448,050 
108,000 

5,129 

152,206 
2.914 

$2 134 781 

$ -0-
19,728 

158.981 

11a.1o9 

876,494 
1.079,578 

1.956,072 

~ !34 781 



BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

-3-
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BOARD OF HOME MJSSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF aMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Cash flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

-4-
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Note 1-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Organization and su~mary of sjgnificant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of F ree Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose 
of the Organization is to establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches m 
the United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and Mexico. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c){3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2000. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the fmancial statements: 

Basjs of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Fmancial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments in Church Extension Loan Fund 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension Loan Fund. 
Investments are stated at cost, wtuch approximates market value at December 31, 2000 
and 1999. 

·5· 
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Note 1 -

N4WTifEj}NiiiDsTJ\TES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2000 and 1999 

f . ' ficant accounting policies (Continued) 
Organization and summary o stgm 1 

Contributions 

~ t 'b tions in accordance with the 
The Organization ~ccounts or '::t~ uStandards Board in SFAS No. 116, 

recommendations of ~he ~manclal ~c~o and ~ntributions Made. In accordance with 
Accounting for Contr:bu~10nS Rec~n e . recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
SFAS No. 116. contnbutions rec_~nved are d ending on the existence or nature of 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, ep 
any donor restrictions. 

· ted as an increase in temporarily or 
All donor-restricted support 1S rer; the nature of the restriction. When a 

permanently restricted ~et assets de~e~ tegd o:UOe restriction ends or purpose restriction 
restriction expires (that 1S, _when a ~tlpd a t sets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
is accomplished), temporarily r estr1cte fne ti~~tl·es as net assets released from 

d · the statements o ac Vl 
assets and reporte 10 . . h 

0 
permanently restricted net assets. 

restrictions. The Orgaruzatton as n 

Propertv and equipment and depreciation 

. . f ca italizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
The Organization follows the practtcedo p timated useful life of at least two 

d . t in excess of $500 an an es . f th 
property an eqwpm.en . ht-l'ne basis over the useful lives o e 
years. Depreciation lS computed on a stralg 1 
assets generally as follows . 

Automobile 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 20 years 

d 
. ment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 

The net property an equlp 
unrestricted net assets. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid _investments with a maturity of 

three months or less when purchased to be cash eqwvalents. 

InventorY 
. tated at the lower of cost (first in, first out method) or market. 

Inventory lS s 

Investments 

Investments are compose 
d ofequity securities and a re valued at fair value. 

-6-
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Note 2 · 

Note 3. 

Note 4. 

Note 5. 

BQARD OF HOME MISSIONS 
NATIONAl~ ASSOCIATI0NOFruE\8rtl~TISTS 

oF THE UNITED STAIEs<>FXMEiuc:rnc: 
Notes to the Financial Stat;!J:t!n; 

December 31. 2000 and 1!}99 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment IS as follows: 

Land · Puerto Rico 
Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Capitalized leases and change in accounting estimate 

$ 

( 
$ 

2QQQ 
105,000 
52,375 

11!tZ70 
273,145 
ll7,461) 
155 684 

$ 
lf!f!~ 

105,000 
36,222 

lQ7,~7.§ 
249,198 

( ~6.~~2) 
s 152,20§ 

The National Assoctation of Free Will B · 
house various departments and agencies of th ~pttsts. Puz:chased an office building to 
into an agreement to lease space in this new b~~?ommabon. The Board. has entered 
de~t service costs during the construction period a:dg ~nd a~eed to ~ntnbute to the 
rettred. The construction period costs of $18 802 w co?tu~ue u_ntil the debt has been 
amortized over a period of twenty years Th~ Boar;~~ ~:~tal~d ~ 1991 and were to be 
amortizing the remaining balance afte . 'od f fi me sstons voted to begin 
Am . . r a pen o ve years beginnin . 199 

OrtlUlbon expense for the years amounted to $2,914 ($2,9,15 in 1999~.10 6. 

Deferred compensation 

The Board of Home Missions provides d f, d . 
based on a formula combining a percent of sala e erre compensab?n for each employee 

r;pe.nsa~ion is payable to the employee when "?'m~~:;~::~ ~ :::~t!:e Th 
o owmg IS a summary of the deferred compensation account. . e 

200Q 1999 

Balance at beginning of the year 
$ 158,981 $ 123,475 Contribution for the year: 

Missionaries 
36,334 Administrative employees 27,954 

Transfer and terminations 13,389 
Adjustment ( 79,924) ( 13,226) 
Balance at end of the year 

.$ II~.~~~ 
7,38~ 

~ l5t! ~tll 
Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available f<or the r 11 . 
•O owmg purposes: 

2QOO 1999 
$ 685,905 $1,079,573 

8,72Q 5 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

$ 694,62§ $1,079,578 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions They are released 
when the donor restriction is satisfied. · 

• 7-
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Note 6 · 

Note 7 · 

Note 8. 

Note 9. 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Related partv transactions 

The Board of Home Missions provides office space for and pays the salaries of 
the employees of a related party, the Church Extension Loan Fund. During the year, 
the Church Extension Loan Fund paid the Board of Home Missions a management fee of 
$120,000 ($120,000 at December 31, 1999) to reimburse the cost of the office space and 
salaries. The Board of Home Missions has invested money in a demand note of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund. The balance in this investment at year end was 
$1,161,445 ($1,448,050 at December 31, 1999). This investment is uncollateralized. The 
Board of Home Missions' management constantly scrutinizes the monthly financial 
statements of the Loan Fund to make sure that the Loan Fund is solvent and to 
minimize the credit risk of the investment. This investment is short term in nature and 
the interest can be changed, therefore cost approximates fair value. 

The Board of Home Missions has a receivable from the Church Extension Loan 
Fund for unrestricted earnings during the year. The balance on this receivable at year 
end was $93,000 ($108,000 at December 31, 1999). 

Lease 

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. 
The term of the lease expires when all mortgages on the building are satisfied, the 
mortgage was retired this year. The Organization entered into a new lease agreement 
on July 1, 2000. The term of the lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then 
beginning September 1, 2000 the lease became a year to year lease. The rent expense 
for the year amounted to $50,220 ($50,220 for the year ended December 1, 1999). 

Commitments 

The Board has pledged its property and eqwpment as collateral on a mortgage 
note that the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has with the Church 
Extension Loan Fund. This mortgage was repaid during the year. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2000, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$-0· ($-0· in 1999). The Board has a cash management agreement with a local 
bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities under a 
repurchase agreement. Any cash not insured should, under the terms of this agreement, 
be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

The Board also has $1,161,445 ($1,448,050 in 1999) invested in a demand note of 
the Church Extension Loan Fund. This note is uninsured. 
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Note 10. 

Note 11. 

Note 12. 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NAroONALASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

F THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Fair values of financial instrument§ 

. !he following methods and assum . 
esbmatrng its fair value disclosures for fitnpatlocnsl~ere used by the Organization in 

n 1a mstruments: 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in Church . 
payables: The carrying amounts repo ted . h Loan Fund, receivables and 
ap · ~ . r 10 t e statement of fin · a1 

proXImate Iatr values because of the s hort mat ·r f h _ancr position un les o t ose mstruments. 

Investments: The fair value of investmen . b 
those investments. ts IS ased on quoted market price for 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

Equity securities 
Cost 

$369. 108 

December 31. 2000 

Fair 
Value 

§163.278 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Equity securities 
Cost 

$3(i9,.108 

December 31. 1999 

Fair 
Va lue 

$415.62.6 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Line of Credit 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

<Depreciation) 
(§205.830) 

($252 454) 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
$ 4(?.518 

$142,728 

The Organization has a hoe of dt . 
The interest is the bank' · ere t With a bank m the amount of $200 000 

s prune rate and 1t matur A il · · 
31, 2000, the Organization owes$ 0 a . t h hes on pr 30, 2002. As of December 

· · gams t e ne. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA Tl ON 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

To the Board of 'l'rustees of 
the Board of Home Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
of the United States of America, Inc. 

~ 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CERTIFIED PUBliC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PUSLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Our report on our audits of the basic finanCial statements of the Board of Home Missions for 
2000 and 1999 appears on page 1. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 
aud1t1ng standards for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic fmancial statements taken as a 
whole The schedule of functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such mformatton has been subjected to the audtting 
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financ1al statements and, 10 our opinion, is fairly stated m 

all matenal respects in relation to the basic finanCial statements taken as a whole. 

January 31, 2001 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILLBAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INQ 
Schedule of Functional Expenses 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Administrative expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Housing allowance and employee benefits 
Employee savings 
Cost of literature 
Promot10n expense 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 
Telephone 
Amortization 
Together Way Office 
~fiscella neous 
Depreciatton 

Total admmistrat.tve expenses 

Missionarv expenses 
Salary and wages 
Employee savings 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Ltterature 
Auto and travel expense 
Insurance expense 
Designated contributions 
~hscellaneous other expense 

Total m 1ssionary expenses 

Missionary land & buildings 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2000 

$ 285,065 
17,365 
81,100 
13,259 
8,097 

41,620 
10,067 
28,734 

170,434 
50,220 
8,983 

67,741 
16,779 
52,459 
11,071 
2,914 
3,817 

40,519 
20.470 

930.714 

2,756,874 
30, 134 

9,938 
165,850 

46,375 
194,420 

26,073 
79,793 
48 577 

3.358.034· 

720.884 

$1).009 632 

1999 

$ 223,386 
11,213 
73,211 
19,778 
1,161 

33,119 
9,325 

25,290 
163,048 
50,220 
8,963 

60,013 
14,612 
39,104 
11,953 
2,915 
7,522 

31,243 
18.235 

794,311 

2,467,734 
27,785 
10,292 

106,642 
48,272 

244,739 
46,851 
79.365 
73.601 

3.105.281 

494,933 

$4.394 525 

Home Missions Department 
Proposed Faith Budget For 2002 

Missionary Maintenance 
Salaries 
Travel and Promotion 
Employee Savings 
Postage and Printing 
Miscellaneous 
Land & Building Fund 

Total 

Missionary Assistance 
Printing & Postage 
Telephone 
Board Member Expense 
Auditing & Legal 
Literature 
Together Way Office 
Supplies 
Missionary Training 

Total 

Administration 
Salaries 
Housing 
Payroll Taxes 
Employee Savings 
Insurance 
Utilities 

Total 

2001 
$2,500,000.00 

240,000.00 
31 ,000.00 
85,000.00 
20,000.00 

500,000.00 
$3,376,000.00 

$ 140,000.00 
10,000.00 
15,000.00 
13,000.00 
2,000.00 
4,000.00 

25,000.00 
20l000.00 

$229,000.00 

$ 265,000.00 
55,000.00 
10,000.00 
14,000.00 
45,000.00 
1 olooo.oo 

$399,000.00 

Evangelism and Church Growth 
Auto & Travel $ 50,000.00 

45,000.00 
20,000.00 

Promotion 
Revivals 

1,500.00 Roll Call Sunday 
Total $ 116,500.00 

Plant 
Office Space 
Equipment & Supplies 
Depreciation 

Total 

$ 50,220.00 
15,000.00 
19l280.00 

$ 84,500.00 

2002 
$2,750,000.00 

250,000.00 
35,000.00 

175,000.00 
20,000.00 

525,000.00 
$3,755,000.00 

$ 175,000.00 
12,000.00 
15,000.00 
10,000.00 

5,000.00 
3,000.00 

30,000.00 
$25l000.00 

$275,000.00 

$ 276,500.00 
73,500.00 
20,000.00 
15,000.00 
55,000.00 
12,000.00 

$452,000.00 

$ 70,000.00 
45,000.00 
20,000.00 

2,000.00 
$ 137,000.00 

$ 51 ,000.00 
15,000.00 
20,000.00 

$ 86,000.00 

Cross- Cultural Ministry $ 295,000.00 $ 295,000.00 ------------------
Total Faith Budget $4,500,000.00 $5,000,000.00 

========================= 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 

December 3 1. 2000 and 1999 
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To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

HINTON. W 4RRC . 

DEN!\'£) & WALLACI 
CE:RTlFIED PUBt.IC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE VOt.UNTEER BlDG 
SUITE 100 

319 PlUS PARK BlVD 
NASHVIlLE TN 37217 1005 

1615) 366-5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

-· AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC 4CCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Church Extension Loan 
Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of 
actiV1t1es and cash flows for the years then ended. These financ1al statements are the responsibility of 
the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test ba.sis, 
evtdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessmg the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluatmg the overall financial statement presentation. We beheve that our audits provide a reasonable 
bas1s for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly , in all material respects, 
the financ1al position of the Church Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

January 31, 2001 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Financial Pos1tion 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Assets 
Cash- Note 6 
Notes r eceivable - Notes 1, 4 & 8 
Bonds receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

ASSETS 

Investments in Free Will Baptist Foundation- Notes 1 & 4 
Property and equipment- at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation of $22 600 

($17,687 in 1999) -Notes 1 & 2 ' 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable - related party • Note 4 
Accounts. payable . Build my Church Project 
Accrued mterest 
Revocable and irrevocable trusts _ Note 9 
Deferred compensation _ Note 10 
Notes payable - Notes 3, 4 & 8 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Total liabilities 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2000 

$ 989,588 
14,092,285 

84,309 
113,470 

7,568 

$15.287 220 

$ 93,000 
70,000 

123,068 
1,631,858 

440,967 
11.278.410 

13,637,303 

1.649,917 

1999 

$ 515,253 
12,685,795 

77,575 
102,154 

1,546,823 

12.481 

$14.940,081 

$ 108,000 
70,000 

131,653 
1,668,490 

374,417 
11.027,549 

13,380,109 

1.559,972 

1.649,917 1.559.972 

$15 287.220 $14,940.081 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

&venue 
Oes1gnated contributions - Note 5 
Investment income 
Interest income on notes receivable 
Management fee 

&xpenses 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 
Management fee - Note 4 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Build My Church Project expense 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists Home Missions 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

~e accountants' report and accompanying 
Dotes to the financial statements. 

$ 

$ 
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Unrestri~ted 

2000 1999 

89 ,813 $ 71,564 
83,040 120,829 

1,282,415 1,101,914 
13,126 7 017 

1.468.394 1.301,324 

935,496 862,261 
11,264 13,123 
23,752 34,761 

120,000 120,000 
8,254 5,019 
1,810 2,198 
4,960 9,150 
4,913 4,950 

70,000 70,000 
198.000 108.000 

1.378.449 1.229.462 

89,945 71 ,862 

1.559.972 1.488.110 

1,649,917 ~ 1 l'il:i~ 922 



Operatmg activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to r il . 
to net cash provi~~dn~ e mcrease m net assets 

Depreciation Y operatmg activities: 

Chan · ges m operating assets and liabiliti . 
(Increase) decrease in accr d . es. 
Increase (decrease) m acco~e mterest receivable 
Increase (decrease) i n~ payable 
Increase (decrease) . n ~c~ued mterest payable 

m e•erred compensation 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 

:roceeds from sale of investments 
urchase of investments 

Collection on notes receivable 
Additi one to notes and bonds receivable 

Net cash prov'd d ( · . 
1 e used) m mvesting activities 

Financing activitief1 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 
Additions to notes payable 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash . 1 
equwa ents 

Cash and cash equivalents at be.nnn· f .,. mg o year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosure§ 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

See accountants' report and . 
notes to the financial st;t;;!:~panymg 
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( 

( 

s 

s 

$ 

2000 
1999 -

$ 89,945 $ 71,862 

4.913 4,950 

( 11,316) ( 16,574) ( 15,000) 28,000 ( 8,585) 12,773 
66.55Q 55,94j 

126.507 112!2.9:2~ 

1,546,823 332,062 

3,175,852 
( 1,546,823) 

1,824,955 
( 4.589.076) ( 3.863.026) 

133.599 ( 3.252.832) 

6,968 1,011,123 
43,600) ( 1,691) 

2,422,485 2,276,404 
2,171,624) ( 1.2:27.840) 

214.229 2.027.996 

474,335 ( 1,067,880) 

515.253 1.583.133 

9B9.5Ba $ 515.253 

L317.405 $ Ll99.973 

944.081 $ §49.488 

Note 1 · 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUNP 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 200Q and 1999 

Organization and summarv of simificant accounting policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization under the direction 
of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Fund is 
to loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for 
purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
mterest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service 
not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2000. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the fmancial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Fund prepares its financial statements using the accrual method of 
accounting which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Fund is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity w1th generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordmgly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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A- 169 



Note 1-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Financ1al Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contr1buttons 
Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestricted, temporanly restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restncted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restrict1on 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclasstfied to unrestrtcted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
The Fund has no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and egujpment and depreciation 

The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for property 
and equipment in excess of $500 with a useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is 
computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

5 years 
5 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted market 
price. 

Investments in Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Investments in Free Will Baptist Foundation are composed of three money market 
type trust accounts maintained by the Foundation. These trust accounts are compnsed of 
U.S. Government securities. 
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Note 1 -

Note 2-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
NOte§ to the Financial Statements 

pecember 31. 2000 and 1999 

. f 'gnificant accounting policies (Continued) 
Qrganizatton and summary o Sl 

Notes receivable . 
ill B tist Churches primarily Home MISSIOn 

The Fund loans money to Free W il~p E ch chur~h is required to give a first 
Churches, for the purchase of .land and dbuf tr ~s. Pr~cipal and interest on the loans IS 
mortgage on the property or SlgD a dee o ':riod except for churches still under 

Payable monthly at 9.5% over a ftfteen ~earp t nl The Board of Trustees changes the 
. . h . ed to pay mteres o Y. . 1 f th 

COnstructlon whic are reqU\T . te hange The carrymg va ue o ese 
bl ther mterest ra s c · . d 

rate on these. notes receJva e as o The churches are located throughout the Urute 
loans approXUDates market value. 

States. 

·t· of these notes are as follows: The aggregate matun 1es 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
Thereafter 

Allowance for doubtful arrounts 

$ 617,883 
679,206 
746,615 
820,715 
902,169 

10.325.697 
$14 092.28.5 

. d notes receivable to be fully collectible; 
Management constders accounts an . . d 

r: d btful accounts IS requl.fe · 
accordingly' no allowance lOr ou 

Cash equivalents 
. h tu ' ty of three months 

d 
'd all highly liquid investments wit a ma n 

The Fun cons1 ers . 
or less when purchased to be cash eqwvalents. 

Propertv and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

-7-
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2000 
$ 18,200 

11,968 
30,168 

( 22.600) 
$ 7 568 

1999 
$ 18,200 

11.968 
30,168 

( 17.687) 
$ 12 481 



Note 3 · 

Note 4-

Note 5 • 

Notes payable 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUNP 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Notes payable consist of 5 1/2 · 7% unsecured demand notes from individuals and 
churches. The proceeds of these notes are then loaned to churches to help them purchase 
land and buildings. The Board of Trustees change the mterest rates on these notes 
payable as other interest rates change. 

Related party transactions 

The Fund paid the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. a management fee of $120,000 ($120,000 at December 31, 1999) to 
reimburse the Board of Home Missions for salary, rent and other expenses paid by the 
Board. The Board of Home Missions has invested in the note payable of the Fund. The 
balance of this note payable to the Board of Home Missions at year end was $486,884 
($667,867 at December 31, 1999). The Fund had accounts payable to the Board of Home 
Missions in the amount of $93,000 ($108,000 at December 31, 1999). 

The Fund holds a note receivable from the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. in the amount of $-0- ($34,226 at December 31, 1999). This note is 
secured by a deed of trust note. 

The Fund also has $-0- ($1,546,823 in 1999) invested in three trust accounts of the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation. This investment IS uncollateralized. 

Desirnated contributions 

The designated contributions are amounts given to the "Build My Church" 
program. The monies given to this program are loaned to churches in the same manner 
that other funds are loaned to churches. The total amount given for the first phase of the 
Build My Church program has reached $1,000,000. In accordance with the provisions of 
the program payments totaling $70,000 were made subsequent to year end to the land 
funds of two Home Mission's Churches from the interest earned on loans made with Bwld 
My Church contributions. The liability for these payments has been recorded on this 
financial statement. A second phase of the Build My Church program has begun. When 
the total amount given through the second phase of Build My Church program reaches 
$1,000,000, then the interest earned from the loans made with the program will be used 
to assist the Cross Cultural Ministry and the Home M1ssions General Fund. The total 
amount given through the end of the year is $1,611,868 ($1,522,055 at December 31, 
1999). 
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Note 6 · 

Note 7 • 

Note 8-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Concentration of credit risk 

Th F d . tains cash deposits m excess of the federally insured amo_un_t of 
e un mam unt over the federally insured liiDlt was 

$100,000. At Dece~ber 31, 20~~· ~e e;c:s: ::a:h management agreement with a local 
$889,588 ($415,253 m 1999). e hun ~ ht ·nUS Government Securities under a 
bank which invests any excess cahs ot~errug d ~houid" under the terms of this agreement, 
repurchase agreement. Any cas no msur~ . • 
be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

al h $ 0 ($1 546 823 in 1999) invested in three trust accounts of the The Fund so as · · . • 
Free Will Baptist Foundation. These trust accounts are unsecured. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptlO~S ~ere used by. the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial mstruments. 

. · F w·u Baptist Foundation, 
Cash accrued interest receivable, mvestment m r~e lTh . ount.s 

• d d ~ d ensation· e carrymg am 
payables, accrued interest payable ~nl e_ t~rre pcop;:~ate falr values because of the 
reported in the stat.emen~ of finanCla post ton a 
short maturities of those mstruments. 

d . bl . Based on current interest rates, the 
Notes receiva~le and bohnfs_receta o;~he notes receivable and bonds receivable at 

carrying value appronmates t e 8lr va ue 
December 31, 2000 and 1999. 

N bl d trusts· Based on current interest rates, the carrying valued 
approx:im::: i~:~a: :.ue of th~ notes payable and trusts at December 31, 2000 an 

1999. 

Concentration 

. eceivable at December 31, 2000 are seventeen loans which total 
Included m notes r h" h total $4 633 363 in 1999). This balance represents 

$6,427,975 (twelve loans w tc • . • 
45.61% (36.52% in 1999) of total notes receivable. 

. h" h t 1 $7 205 614 or 63 .89% (forty· 
Notes payable include forty·slX6~~:~ V.: ~~99~ ~f to~al n~tes payable. Of these 

seven notes which to~ $7,375,384 or .bl tiD total $986 884 or 8.75% (two notes total 
forty-six {forty-seven m 1999) notes paya e, wo • 
$1,177,867 or 10.68% in 1999) of total notes payable . 

. g. 
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Note 9-

Note 10-

CH URQH E XTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial stat:em;.;;;s 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Revocable and irrevocable trusts 

0 
Ten irrevocable and four revocable charitable remainder -

9% per year. The principal of these trusts was used to k trusts pay mterest at 6. 
expense for the year ended December 31 2000 ma e mortgage loans. Interest 
December 31, 1999). ' amounted to $134,813 ($109, 741 at 

Deferred compensation 

Deferred compensation represents savin s tru 
Home Missions of the National Association of g . sts tra~sferred from the Board of 
principal and other employees upon th . t • Free Will Baptists for the benefit of their 
Th e~r re Irement or departure fr H Mi . 

ese trusts pay interest at a rate of 5 5% 10% om orne SSions. 
ended December 31 2000 was $38 695.($3-4 196perDyear. Interest expense for the year 

' • • at ecember 31, 1999). 
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Mexico Committee 
Recommendations 

1. MSC to approve the following cover letter as a part of the Mexican 
Arbitration Committee repor t. 

Problems have persisted in Mexico for years. Several things have com­
plicated the problems-cultural differences, a chan ge of generations, a 
passing of leadership and the balance between civil government and 
church polity. The practice of church autonomy was limited by their tra­
dition and subject to the param eters of the Mexican government. These 
problems were brought to the attention of the National Home Missions 
Board by missionary James Munsey. 

After numerous attempts w ere made by the National Home Missions 
Board to reconcile these differences, an attorney w as hired to review the 
constitution of the Mexican National Association of Free W ill Baptis ts 
and the Free W ill Baptist Treatise in light of new laws enacted in 1992 by 
Mexican authorities. Suggested changes were made and agreed upon by 
the church leaders in Mexico. 

In May 2000, Attorney Julio Montes was authorized to make the neces­
sary constitutional changes and present them to the leadership of 
Mexico. The Mexican pastors voted to accept the changes, but those 
changes w ere never ratified by the NAFWBM in their July m eeting. 

In the fall of 2000, the aggrieved minority requested a m eeting w ith the 
Executive Committee of the NAFWB. That request was granted and on 
December 5th and 6th, 2000, representatives from both groups m et wi th 
the Executive Committee in Nashville, TN. From that meeting cam e a 
request that a five-member committee be authorized by the National 
Home Missions Board to arbitrate between the NAFWBM and the 
aggrieved minori ty in an attempt to bring closure to the matter. 

The committee met w ith approximately fifty pastors and church leaders 
at the Institute in Altamira on March 26, 2001 . Their report follows. 

The findings of the Home Missions Board are consistent wi th the find­
ings of the Mexico Arbitration Committee, and we believe that the fol­
lowing report will sound an urgency about changes that need to be 
made in Mexico. 
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-
Report of the 

Mexico Arbitration Committee 

I. INFORMATION 

The problems that have existed within the Mexican Association of Free 
WllJ Baptists among some of the churches and pastors are longstanding 
and deep-seated. An appeal by an Aggrieved Minority was made to the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists during the July 2000 annual 
convention in Anaheim, California. 

Delegates voted to table action on the appeal with the understanding that 
the Mexican Association would address and resolve these matters during 
their annual convention later in July 2000. That meeting was unable to 
resolve the conflict. 

During their December 2000 meeting in Nashville, Tennessee, the Executive 
Committee met separately with both Mexican groups and heard their griev­
ances. As a result of those meetings, the following recommendations were 
forwarded from the Executive Committee to the Home Missions Board: 

1. After hearing from representatives of both groups from Mexico, we 
respectfully encourage the Home Missions Board to use their influ­
ence to persuade the National Association of Free Will Baptists in 
Mexico to release al1 rusputed local church properties to the Aggrieved 
Minority of the Mexico Free WiJJ Baptist Association. 

2. Because representatives of both groups from Mexico have appealed 
to the Executive Committee for assistance, we respectfully suggest 
that five members from the Executive Committee be authorized by the 
Home Missions Board to arbitrate between the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists in Mexico and the Aggrieved Minority of the Mexico 
Free Will Baptist Association. 

CommHtee members include Carl Cheshier (chairman), Melvin Worthington, 
Nathan Ruble, Gene Norris, Keith Burden, J. L. Gore (alternate). 

The Home Missions Board approved both recommendations. 

The Arbitration Committee met with representatives from both Mexican groups 
at the Instituto Biblico La Cruz in Altimira, Mexico, on March 26, 2001. Moderator 
Carl Cheshier chaired the meeting. There were approximately 50 people present 

The purpose of the meeting was to investigate allegations made by an 
Aggrieved Minority that the Mexican Association of Free Will Baptists had 
violated the practices as set forth in the Treatise of the Faith and 
Practices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
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II. OBSERVATIONS . 
s the Arbitration Committee offers 

After meeting ~th the two group ' 
seven observations: 

1 The central issue of contention betweenhthe two groups centered 
. around the autonomy of the local churc . 

. th t tutes of Mexican law in 1992, the I?roce-
2. Because of .ch~ges m I ~sa hes also changed. Registration With the 

dure for registenng loc~ c d urc by each local church rather than by the 
government may now e one 
association. 

. that the constitution and by-laws of ~e 
3. These change~ ~eq~eF Will Baptists be brought into confo_~1ty 

Mexican Asso~latiofnho ~ r~~ an~ Practices of the National Assocwtwn 
with the Treattse 0 t era 
of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

. m of the local church in Part IV, 
4. The Treatise re~ogru~e~ ~ a,u~o;I~hJrch is an independent and se~f-

Chapte~ 1, Section !'h ~it a:Ch~rity to transact its business, choose ItS 
govermng bocty, Wit . d. pline and dismiss members, hold free 
pastor an~ officers, ~ecew~d ;~~duct all its internal affairs. 
title to alltts propertieS, a 

. . . f Free Will Baptists adopted the 
In 1962 the M~can Assfociation b~rship in the National Association 

Treatise as a reqwrement or mem 
of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

1 M . an attorneys who were present 
5. Upon the advice of two reputab e exi~tives of the Mexican Association 

at the meeti~, both ~rou-ps (re~::~~or the attorneys to work together 
and the Aggneved Minonty) ~d econcile the rufferences between the 
and draft a docUil_le~t that W? . r b -laws and the Treatise of the 
Mexican Assoc~ationfs hconsN till~~ a;; :S~ci~tion of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
Faith and Practzces o t e a 

, ommendations for change would be 
Copies of the attorneys re~ "l 2001 This document is to be rat-

made available to both gro'!P~ m Af~ Will Baptists at its annual con­
ified by ~e Mexican AssoCiation oen;~enot ratified in the July 2001 col!­
vention m July 20.0 1. If the doc~ officials have indicated that they will 
vention, the Mexican gdovthemmt ~ther group will like the final outcome. 
arbitrate the matter an a net 

. d lack of familiarity with Free Will 
6. There appears to .be WJde~p::!ssociational structure and organiza­

Baptist church poli_ty as we . ularities in the way the Mexican 
tion in M.exico. Thts h~s lead_ to ~~:sg dealt with some local churche~. 
Association of Free Will Baptists d articularly through Free Wlll 
This problem ~eed~ to .be .add~es~e~~o. A course explaining thes~ 
Baptist educational mstitutionsdm d offered to all prospective Mexi­
matters needs to be develope an 
can church and denominational leaders. 
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7. It is evident that God is blessing Free Will Baptists in Mexico. During 
its more than 40-year history, the church in Mexico has demonstrated 
an unusuaJ resilience. AJJ churches and their leaders are to be com­
mended for the progress that has been made. We remain optimistic 
regarding the future of the Free Will Baptist work in Mexico. 

III. RECOMMENDATIONS 

I. We recommend that the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
during its July 2001 convention in Detroit, Michigan, recommend 
to the Mexican Association of Free Will Baptists that they ratify the 
necessary changes to reconcile the differences between their 
constitution and by-Jaws and the Treatise of the Faith and 
Practices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., 
thus preserving and insuring the autonomy of the local church. 

2. We recommend that differences in personal matters and internal 
affairs between Mexican churches, pastors and associations be 
resolved in accordance with scriptural guidelines and procedures 
outlined in the Treatise of the Faith and Practices of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

3. We recommend that all attacks against individuaJs, churches and depart­
ments of the denomination cease immediately. 

4. We recommend that appropriate disciplinary action be taken by the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists in the event the Mexican 
Association of Free Will Baptists does not ratify the necessary 
changes to reconcile the differences between its constitution and 
by-laws and the Treatise of the Faith and Practices of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Carl Cheshier, Chairman 
J. L. Gore (Alternate) 
Nathan Ruble 
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Gene Norris 
Melvin Worthington 
Keith Burden 

O F FICE OF C 1.~~1-.1( \I. lltl<l 1 ! : ll< 

t H 0 tn e Missi 0 ns Depart n lC 11 t col I hi '\.tllllll:tl h'ud:tliun of Free Willllapli\(~ 

June 29, 2001 

Greetings from the Home Missions Department: 

Missions Department concerns questions 
The following statement from t~c .Home by the late James Munsey for special 

. d·ng U1e use ofmtsS!Oil money . 
that have ansen regar ' . . . d t to share these findings With the 

. t . Mexico We beheve It IS pru en 
prOJCC ~ m. . . ·n order to bring closure to thi s matter. denommat10nal constituency I 

. .r. •d . mling the usc of mtssion money for special 
In light of questions that sm;ac~ 'fl cgc I /lome Mtssions Department (General 

. . Mexico representam·es rom t re . 
prOJects Ill • II d Board Chamnan }tm Puckell) and Executzve 
Director Larry Powe ~11 J , 7 .,001 111 

A!ornstown. Tennessee, 
Secretary Melvin Wortlrmgton me\tt· ~~t(c! -I·s· -'am~s) Munsey Laura Munsey and 

· 1 R d Howard Mzmsev J 11-1 1' 1 • J' ' . • 
wtlz everen d' t , •as determmed thM 11o mzsszons 
Mall hew Munsey. Dur!n~ the t~cussl~~~~ ;ey for anv purpose other than for 
money was used by fdtsszonaJy JOI.IICS ' . zm . . . 
approved, legitimate missions projects Ill /1/e.HCO. 

. I to the nntter and allow us, in the 
We believe that thdisMstateme~~~agl:l!~::~~~~~s~;~~ busincss.ofwinning souls and 

words of Brother Howar unsey, 
building churches in Mexico." 

A- 179 

r 



• 

Board of Retirement 
Last year began with the excitem ent and promise of the longest bull market or 

our life. There were voices of caution and concern, but they were generally lost · 
the chorus that things were different this time. m 

The bulJish euphoria continued for onJy a few weeks when the appreciating 
m~e.t .was s~ocked by a. reasonable but significant down tum. Many people saw 
th~t 1mtial dechne as a buYJng opportunity since our previous market drops had been 
qUJckJy followed b~ a recovery with new hi.ghs. After a brief rise in the second quar­
ter, the market agam began a downward slide, ending the year well below its high. 
. Those changes make it a good time to evaluate progress or the lack thereof in 
mvestment strategy and retirement accumulations. The following areas should be 
used in evaluating our performance: returns, enrollments, settlements, assets and 
comparisons to other retirement plans. 

Returns: 

Of course, our funds were invested in this volatile market. We were able to 
deliver. 6.5% for the first half of last year and 1 8% for the second half, yielding an 
annual1zed return of 12.543%. Our excel1ent return in the second half was the result 
of our manager's conservative value investment philosophy. 

Plan earnings have been good throughout our history: 

1 year- 2000 12.543% 
3 years - 1998-2000 1 0.228% 
5 years- 1996-2000 11 .717% 
10 years- 1991-2000 10.375% 
Life of Plan - 1969-2000 - 9.041 % 

Enrollments: 

New enrollees assure us of several things. Probably the most obvious is a per­
ceived value in our product. An additional benefit is that both the present and 
future ~f the operation is assured, just as children assure the possibility of future 
generations. We have enrolled 567 new participants during the past eight years, 
over 1 00 each of the past three. Because people do retire and withdraw from Lhe 
plan we have a net gain of 320 participants. 

SeHiements: 

The ~oal in. any retirement program should be focused on delivering benefits 
at or dunng retirement. Therefore settlement options need to meet the require­
ments of the individual retiree. We offer many choices, some of which may be tai­
lored to meet individual needs. 

In the past the settlement option of choice most often has been a lump sum 
or rollover. There are several reasons for that choice: small account values, desire 
to control investments1 and a desire to benefit family members. 

More individuals are choosing annuities today. This is to provide a life-time 
income for themselves and their spouse. 

Settlements for clergy may be designated as housing allowance (up to 100%) 
subject to IRS regulations. Housing allowance paid from a denominational-con­
trolled retirement account is not subject to income tax. 

. Remember we want to meet your retirement needs. Please give us the oppor­
tufl:lty of discussing these options with you by calling 877-767-7738. The fund has 
dehvered over $6 million in settlements during the last seven years. 

Assets: 

Total assets managed by the Retirement Board at the dose of 1993 were $9,393,513. 
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·~deposits and growlh of investments have raised !he valu~ ~d:r our management to 
NZ3l34 502 as of December 31,2000, while also making $6 million tn settlements. 
$ t ' t 

Comparisons: 
All too often it's tempting to compare unequal things, the old "apples to 

oranges" process. It is inappropriate to compare our ~etums to a stock mutual fund. 
A better method is comparing us to other church retirement plans. . . . 

Annually our staff attends the Church ~nsions Confcren~e. :rus orgaruza~on 
represents the retirement boards of. ~pproxlffiately 45 deno~nations or ?rgaruza­
tions and provides us legal and political contacts. The folloWing compansons are 
based on the reports of 37 of those boards made in 1993 ~d 2000. 

In 2000 these 37 plans managed in excess of $56 b1lhon. The largest had over 
$12 biUion and the smallest had $2 million. 

How do we compare? 

Comparison Basis 
1. Assets managed (Up from 34th in 1993) 

2. Change in Assets (Two pions decreased while 35 increased. The 
mathematical overage for oil pions was 191.79%) 

3. Individual Account balance 
($1 0,014.27 to $16,279.19 - in actual dollars per individual 
account we were 37th in 1993 and 33rd in 2000.) 

2000 Rank 
In the 37 

33rd 

13th 

24th 

% Change 

+215.59% 

+ 162.56% 

4. Increased number of Participants (The range for increase was 9th + 32.62% 
from 75.58% to a negative -37.61% with on overage increase 
of 15.62%. Eleven groups decreased in participants.) 

I encourage you and anyone on whom you have influence to "Come thou with 
us, and we will do thee good." 

William Evans 
Director 

Retirement 
Synopsis of Board Meetings 

May 2-3, 2000 
Annual Meeting, all members present except Ron Barber, Bobby Bowers, and 

Roger Harwell. . · 
The Board voted to continue the death benefit and the b1rthday and Christmas 

gifts for the annuity contracts. The staff was authorized to i~tervi~w candidates for 
potential auditors and report back to the Board at the National m J~y. The Bo~rd 
voted to retain the professional services of Harris, Bretal, SuJhvan & Sm1th 
Investment Managers and to terminate the services of Rittenouse. The proposed 
budget of $399,668 was adopted. The Board voted to lease a 2000 Ford Taurus for 
Ray Lewis, the Associate Director. 

July 17, 2000 . 
No business conducted, just an information provided opportumty . 

December 6, 2000 
Semi-Annual Meeting, all members present except Jim Lowe and Bobby 

Bowers. 
Reviewed the history, present and future of the Depar:tf!lent. Dis.cussed the fut~re 
possibility of providing investment choices for the partiCipants. H1red a new aud1tor. 
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HINTON. WARREN. 

DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERTIFIED PU8LIC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE VOLUNTEER BlDG 
SUITE tOO 

319 PLUS PARK Bt.VD 
NASHVILI.E. TN 37217· I OOS 

(615)366·SIOO 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of O~.tectors 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

--.. ~ERICAN INSTTTVTE OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Board of 
Reurement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (the "Board") as of 
December 31, 2000, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows 
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's 
managements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finanClal statements based on 
our audJts. The financial statements of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National 
Alloaatloo of Free Will Baptists as of December 31, 1999 were audited by other auditors whose 
report dated February 21, 2000, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financ1alstatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basiS, eVldence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
mcludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
weU as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit p rovides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial2000 statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists as of December 31, 2000, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Feb:-uary 22, 2001 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT ANP INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTIST~ 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

ASSETS 

Operating Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Funds invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Prepaid lease 

Total operating assets 

Retirement Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment in marketable securities and instruments, 
at fair market value- Note 3 

Accrued investment income receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 
accounts - Note 2 

Total retirement assets 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles, 
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation - Notes 1 & 4 

Total assets 

December 31. 
2000 1999--
30,134 $ 22.434 
13,161 18,915 

$ 

6,812 
50. 107 41.34~ 

1,796,704 

21,436,886 
131,724 

1.075.902 
24.441.216 

23.367 

$24,514,690 

386,673 

19,381,693 
138,420 

1.192,575 
21.099,361 

38,513 

$2L179 223 

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Annuities payable- Note 6 
Unearned loan origination fees 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted: 
Operations: 
Operating funds 
Designated for future asset purchases 
Net invested in equipment 

Operatmg net assets 

Retirement accounts: 
Net assets available for participants 
Designated as reserve funds 
Designated as annuity reserve funds 

Retirement net assets 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements, 
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$ 1,351, 731 
11,231 
17,226 

1. a~Q. 1~H~ 

25,254 
13,161 
23,367 
61,782 

22,885,549 
175, 171 

12,000 
23,072.720 

23,134,502 

$24 51 4,690 

$ 1,274,925 
18,751 
12.~~0 

1,306,2!22 

14,837 
18,915 
38,512 
72,264 

19,769.902 
20,791 
lO,OQQ 

19.800,691 

9'7 19,872, Q_ 

$2],] 79 22.3 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements ofActiyities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ending December 3L 2QQO ang 1999 

Retirement 
Accounts 

E~p~ns~~ j!ng Other D~ductions 
Withdrawals by participants $ 1,104,242 
Insurance deductions from participant's accounts 47,021 
Income allocated to annuitant obligations 
Salaries 
Housing 
Fringe benefits 
Travel and promotional 
Office supplies and expense 
Occupancy 
Board members expense 
Legal and auditing 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Total deductions 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See I!CCountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements, 
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97,863 

1.214 
1.2:2Q.3~Q 

3,272,027 

l~.aQQ,§~a 

~2a.az2.:z2a 

20QO 

Operations Total 

$ $ 1,104,242 
47,021 
97,863 

106,790 106,790 
49,754 49,754 
62,428 62,428 
25,164 25,164 
43,576 43,576 
48,862 48,862 
11,996 11,996 
13,455 13,455 
14,970 14,970 

1,965 3,179 
a7§,96Q 1,629,300 

( 10,482) 3,261,545 

72,264 19,872,957 

i £i l.:Z82 i23,134,502 

1999 
Retu'ement 
Accounts Operations To~l 

1,395,436 $ $ 1,395,436 s 
47,043 47,043 

86,558 86,558 
101,824 101,824 

47,840 47,840 
56,229 56,229 
17,009 17,009 
27,779 27,779 
50,199 50,199 
13,770 13,770 
13,929 13,929 
18,794 18,794 

2,§3§ 4,729 7,;3§5 

1.5;31.673 352,102 1.88;3,775 

1,905,613 ( 7,050) 1,898,563 

17,§95,0§0 79 314 17,974,394 

$19,800 693 $ 72 264 $19,872 957 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT ANP INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement§ of Cash flows 
For the Year s Ending December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Qash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from : 

Contributions from participants and employers 
Gifts 
Income earned from interest and loan 
origination fees 

Investment income 
Forfeitures and late charges 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Miscellaneous income 
Cash paid for: 
Supplies and employees 
Withdrawal of funds by participants 
Income allocated to annitant obligations 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

CiH1h flQw§ frQm investing activiti~s 
Purchase of office furniture and equipment 
Investments: 
Purchases of investment securities 
Funds invested with Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Proceeds from sale of investment 
securities 

Notes receivable: 
New loans made 
Collection of notes receivable 

Net cash provided (used) 
by investing activities 

See accountants' report and accompanying nQtes 
to the financial statements. 
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2000 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations 

$ 1,582,312 $ 
58,430 

138,607 
1,412,353 

2,698 

40,000 
109 8,927 

( 47,693) ( 366,532) 
( 1,104,242) 
( 97,863) 

1.886,281 ( 259.175) 

( 12, 170,662) 

5,754 
11,762,054 

( 115,549) 
2~2,222 

( 291.9SQ) Q,754 

TQtal 

$ 1,582,312 
58,430 

138,607 
1,412,353 

2,698 

40,000 
9,036 

( 414,225) 
( 1,104,242) 
( 97.863) 

1.627.106 

( 12,170,662) 

5,754 
11,762,054 

( 115,549) 
232,222 

( 286,181) 

1999 
Retirement 
Accounts Operations Total 

$ 1,694,541 $ $ 1,694,541 
60,578 60,578 

165,471 165,471 
663,114 663,114 

1,268 1,268 

27,000 27,000 
668 5,269 5,937 

( 49,178) ( 340,010) ( 389,188) 
( 1.395,436) ( 1,395,436) 
( 86.558) ( 86.558) 

993.890 ( 247.163) 746.727 

( 2,562) ( 2,562) 

( 19,839,665) ( 19,839,665) 

( 200,000) ( 3,926) ( 203,926) 

17,549,923 17,549,923 

( 107,003) ( 107,003) 
l,lS1,Ql4 1, 131,014 

( 1,4§5,7S1) ( 6,488) ( 1,472,219) 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement Qf Cash Flows (continued) 
For The Years Ended December 31. 2QOO and 1999 

CMh flows frQm financing activities 
Allocation for operations 
Net addit10ns to annuities payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents of end of year 

R~~n~wati2n Q{ ing:~i!§~ (d~geas~} in n~t iU!!l~t§ 
to ~!lh tl2W!l fr2m Q[!~r§ting: l!ctiviti~!l 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) 

in net assets to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
Allocation for operations 
Loss (Gains) on investment transactions 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment 

income 
Increase in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, 
accrued expenses and other 

Decrease in loan origination fees 
Total Adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

See accountants' re[!ort and accom[!anying notes 
to the financial statements. 

-6-

A - 192 

2000 
Retirement 
A@unts Operations Total 

($ 261,121) $ 261,121 $ 
72,SQ6 76,8Q§ 

( 1S4,315) 261.121 76.80fi 

1,410,031 7,700 1,417, 731 

3S6.673 22.434 409.107 

~ l .Z~fi.ZQ~ i 30,l3~ ~ 1,a26 aaa 

$ 3,272,027 ($ 10,482) $ 3,261,545 

14,970 14,970 
261,121 ( 261,121) 

( 1,646,585) 176 ( 1,646,409) 

6,696 6,696 
( 6,812) ( 6,812) 

542 4,094 4,636 
( 7.520) ( 7.520) 
( 1.385,746) ( 248,693) ( 1.634.439) 

~ 1.~~6,2LU (~ 259 175) $ 1.627 106 

1999 

Retll'ement 
0[!erations Total Accounts 

($ 252,560) $ 252,560 $ 

a1a.a21 a1a.a21 
313,361 60,801 252,560 

( 411,040) ( 1,091) ( 412,131) 

797,71S 2S,525 S21.23S 

s aafi.fiZa $ 22.434 $ 4Q9 wz 

$1,905,613 ($ 7,050) $ 1,898,563 

18,794 18,794 

252,560 ( 252,560) 
( 1,105,012) ( 1,105,012) 

355 355 

( 51,772) ( 51,772) 

501 ( 6,702) ( 6,201) 
( ~.QQQ) ( /:!,000) 

1.151.836) ( 911,723) ( 240,113) ( 

$ 993.890 ($ 247.163) $ 746.727 
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Note- 1 

December 31. 2000 ;;{ 199g 

Summarv of · Ji szgm cant accounting policies 

Organization 

The Board of Retirement and In 
Will Baptists (the "Board") is operated us':anc~ of the .National Assoczation ofF 
of Free Will Baptists Inc Th n er t e auspzces of the National A ree 
r~tirement accounts for li~ens::~~~:~:et~e ~o~rd zs to maintain contnbu:~atzon 
c .urches, schools and denominational a .mtrusters and lay employees of 
Will.Baptists, Inc. The Board maintain g~;:les o.fthe National Association of Free 
SectlOn 403(b) of the Internal Revenue ~odes rettremen~ pe~sion plan pursuant to 
under the provisions of the code. of 1986, whzch IS an exempt church plan 

. The financial statements of the B d h 
basts of accounting. oar ave been prepared on the accrual 

The Board classifies its revenue ex . 
classes of net assets based on th . te' penses, galns, and losses into three 
Net assets of the Board and cha~g:~~h nc~ of absence. of donor-imposed restrictions. 

erem are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - N t 
stipulations. e assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 

T~mporarily restricted net assets - Net . 
stipulations that may or will be met . hassets su?Ject to donor-imposed 
passage of time. ezt er by actlOns of the Board and/or the 

P~rmanently restricted net assets- Net . 
Stipulations that are mazntained assets subJect to donor-rmposed 
donors of these assets permzt the ~:a~;nently by the Board. Generally. the 
earned on the related investment £, to use all or part of the mcome 

s or general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these cl f 
~ta~ments of financJal position, and th:s:~so o net assets is. presented zn the 
IS dtsplayed !n the statements of activities unt of cha~ge 1D each class of net assets 
no temporarily or permanently restricted ~d changes m net assets. The Board had 

ne assets at December 31, 2000 and 1999. 

. Further, contributions recezved are rec d 
restricted, or permanently restricted support d or e~~s unrestricted, temporarily 
nature of any donor restrictions. epen Jng on the existence and/or 

-7-
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Note-1 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Summary of significant accounting policies- (continued) 

Retirement Pension Plan 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board maintains, 
contributions may be made to the Plan through employer contributions, salary 
reductzon contributions, voluntary employee contributions and general contributions. 
The participant may elect from two plan types. Plan 1 requires employer 
contrzbutions for such employee to be at least 5% of the employee's compensations. 
Plan 2 requires the total of employer contributions, salary reduction and voluntary 
employee contributions to be at least 3% of the employee's compensation. A thtrd 
plan exists that members may enter initially upon employment or when they lose 
eligibility to participate in Plan 1 or 2. Mmimum contributions reqUlred by thzs plan 
are $10 per month and can be made by any of the plan's contribution means. Total 
employer contributions and salary reduction contributions that may be made for a 
participant in any year shall not exceed the limits imposed by IRS Code Sections 
402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on 
behalf of the participant. Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances 
and the plan elections made by each participant, as defined in the Plan, on the last 
day of each adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the 
benefit that can be provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement, death or disability, participants receive payments of their 
individual vested account balances based on options and provisions as defined in the 
Plan. Benefits are recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Board has the right 
under the Plan with the approval of the Association, to terminate the Plan. In the 
event of Plan termination, participants will become 100% vested in the1r accounts. 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fatr value with gams 
and losses included in the statement of actzvities and changes in net assets. 
Investments in marketable secur1ties are valued at current quoted or estimated 
market value. Non-marketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent 
loss of value has occurred. 

Office furmture. equmment and automobiles 

Office furruture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. 
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful hves 
of the respective assets, generally 6 year s for automobiles and 5- 10 years for 
furniture and equipment. 

Income Taxes 

The Board zs exempt from mcome taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes has been made in the accompanying financzal statements. 

.g. 
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Note- 1 

Note- 2 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT ANP INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREEWiiLBAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Summarv of significant accounting policies - (contmued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Board considers all cash on 
hand, deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Loan origination Fees 

A one-time origination fee for 4% for each new church loan is charged to 
borrowers to cover service fees throughout the life of the loan. These loan originat10n 
fees are amortized to revenue over the life of the related loan. 

Uses of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 

Judgment and estimation is exercised by management in certam areas of the 
preparation of financial statements. The more significant areas include the 
collectibility of notes receivable, the determination of fair value of investments, and 
the recovery period for office furniture, equipment and automobiles. Management 
believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that 
each estimates are adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Notes receivable 

Following is a summary of notes receivable: 

Participant notes (net) secured by retirement 
account balances 

Churches and agency notes secured by related 
real property 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts ( 

2000 

$ 6,368 

l.Q~H.1.2a1 
1,105,902 

30,QQO) 

i 1,Q:Zl2 ~Q2 

1999 

$ 30,456 

1,192,119 
1,222,575 

( 30,000) 

~ 1,1 ~2.:i:ZQ 

The notes bear interest at various rates from 3.0% to 15% and mature at various 
dates from 2001 through 2012. 

-9-
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Note- 3 

RETIREMENTANPlNSUEANCEOF 
THE := ASsQCI~TIO.N OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Fmanclal Statements 
December 31. 2QOQ and 1999 

ts ·n marketable securities and instruments Jnvestmen ' 

20QO 
Market 

Value Cost 

Investments: 
$ 285,000 $ 285,000 Certificate of deposit 

3,161.598 3,297,085 Mutual funds 
10,119,088 8,976,748 

Common stocks 
7,428,125 6,956,027 U.S. Government issues 

20,025 25,000 Fixed income bonds 
287.563 225,Q31 Corporate bonds 

Total Investments $2L436 886 $19 929 404 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 
135,487 

1,142,340 
472,098 

( 4,975) 
( 237.468) 

$ 1 507 482 

. . come relating to marketable securities and 
For 2000, totalmvestment m d ·sted of investment gains of $1,646,585 

instruments amo~t:ed to $3,052,242 an7 c;::;stment income represented yields of 
and interest and diVldends of $1.405,65 . k t value and average cost of such 
14.96% and 15.80% based on the average mar e 
investments for 2000. 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Government issues 
Fixed income bonds . 
Investment with FoundatiOn 

Market 
Value 

$ 35,000 
2,632,633 
9,153,974 
7,3 11,241 

48,845 
2QO.QQQ 

1999 

Cost 

$ 35,000 
2,670,768 
8,033,768 
7,651,451 

116,031 
20Q,QOO 

$19,381 693 $18 707 018 Total Investments 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 
( 

( 
( 

$ 

38,135) 
1,120,206 

340,210) 
67.186) 

674 675 

1 t . to marketable securities and tal . stment income rea mg f $1 105 012 For 1999, to mve d · ted of investment gains o · · 
instruments amo~t:ed to $1,819,8988~n ~~::~~ent mcome represented yields of 
and interest and diVldends of $714,8 . ket value and average cost of such 
10.35% and 10.58% based on the average mar 
investments for 1999. 
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Note- 4 

Note- 5 

Note- 6 

Note - 7 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as follows· 

2000 1999 

Office furniture and flxtures $ 39,319 $ 40,685 
Computer equipment 42,947 55,767 
Automobiles 19,5QO 19,f!OQ 

101.766 115,952 
Accumulated depreciation ( 7S.399) ( 77,439) 

$ 23,367 $ 38.513 

LeM!:l and ~s;upan!::I !:KP!:lD§!: 

Under the terms of a lease agreement with an affiliate, the Board leases 
3,933 feet of office and storage space for $1.00 per square foot per month. The lease 
can only be terminated after any and all mortgages are paid in full on the premises. 
In addition, the Board pays additional expenses related to their share of operating 
and maintenance costs of the building. Total lease payments, additional operating, 
and maintenance costs related to the lease were $48,862 and $50,199 for the years 
ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Annuities Payable 

Upon attaining retirement age, the retiree has the option, among others, to 
convert his participant account into an annuity to provide retirement benefits over 
his remaining life. The periodic benefit is calculated based on morality tables 
considering life expectancy. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999, the recorded liability 
amounted to $1,351,731 and $1,274,925, respectively, which management believes IS 

sufficient to provide benefits over the life expectancy of the annuitants. 

Information regarding financial instruments 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents, investments and notes receivable to the extent cash funds are not 
insured by a governmental agency, or notes receivable and investments are not 
secured by mortgages or guaranteed by the United States Government. 

-11-
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~ote -7 

Note - 8 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL AsSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Information regarding financial instruments . contmued 

The flowing table summarizes the Board's accounting risk of loss as of 

December 31, 2000 and 1999: 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 
Cash and dash equivalents . 
Funds invested with the Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 
Fixed income bonds 
Short-term liquid investments 
Corporate bonds 
Certificates of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections 
Cash and cash equivalents . 
Funds invested with the Free Will 

Baptist Foundation 
Fixed income bonds 
Short-term liquid investment:s 
Short-termmote with Free Will 

4 d . Baptist Foun atlon 
Certificates of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Treasury notes and bills 

Related partv transactions 

Account 
Balance 

t$ 1,075,902 
h 

687,941 

13,161 
20,025 

1,138,897 
287,563 
285,000 

3,297,085 
10,119,088 
7,42a.l25 

i2~.a~g.1tr.z 

Account 
Balance 

$ 1,192,575 
216,041 

17,989 
45,845 

193,067 

t, 
200,000 

35,000 
2,632,633 
9,153,974 
7.311.2~1 

~gg.~s~ 39~ 

2QOO 
Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

$ 1,075,902 
687,941 

13,161 

285,000 

7.428,125 
$ 9 490.129 

1~99 
Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

$ 1,192,575 
203,031 

17,989 

193,067 

200,000 
35,000 

7,311.241 
$9 152 903 

Amount of 
Accounting 

Risk of Loss 

$ 

20,025 
1,138,897 

287,563 

3,297,085 
10,119,088 

$14.862.658 

Amount of 
Accounting 
Risk of Loss 

$ 
13.0 10 

45,845 

2,632,633 
9,153,974 

$11 845 462 

dministrative services to the Free Will 
The Board provided office space and c~rtam a b d the Board $40 000 and $27,000 
Baptist Foundation, Inc. The foundatlo~ ~lm ~se 31 2000 and 19.99, respectively. 
for these services during the years ende ecem er . 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Salary and Benefits Breakdown Proposed Budget for 1998 

2000 2001 1998 1998 1999 2000 2000 2001 2002 
Bill Evans: 2002 Budget Actual Pro~osed Progosed Actual Budget Pro~osed 

Salary 26,539.32 27,600.89 29,941.00 Housing/Utilities 23,795.20 24,747.01 96,465 98,191 97,105 106,1 47 106,790 110,642 76,868 
25,736.89 Solories 

Social Security/Medicare 9,092.30 9,456.00 9,834.23 Employee Benefits 51,200 53,461 53,569 59,233 62,428 62,382 48,161 
ReHrement 3,523.42 3,664.35 46,000 46,000 47,840 49,754 49,754 51,744 53,814 

3,897.45 Hou~ng 
Insurance 6,742.31 17,000 17,137 19,000 19,250 18,258 19,250 20,250 

7,312.57 8,948.04 TroveVPromotion 
Life 739.20 841.20 841.20 1,000 1,307 1,000 1,500 4,101 1,500 1,500 

Auto Maintenance 
HospitalizaHon 5,281.20 5,710.01 7,374.48 Future Purchase~ Auto 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Dental 407.88 396.72 416.52 HordworP/Software Future Purchases 1,000 0 0 0 0 12,000 12,000 
Disability 314.03 364.64 315.84 Plont Fund 53,000 49,070 53,000 53,000 48,862 53,000 52,000 

Total 69,692.55 72,780.82 78,357.61 Office Expense 26,000 19,168 26,000 26,000 23,582 28,000 28,000 
Note: Office Car Furnished 30,000 29,009 10,000 10,000 142 4,000 5,000 

Equipment 
Publico lions 10,000 2,950 10,000 12,250 1,918 12,250 12,250 

Ray Lewis Boord Expense 12,500 12,139 14,000 15,000 11 I 996 15,000 17,000 
Salary 18,467.15 19,205.84 21,065.04 Together Way 1,000 1,098 1,000 0 0 0 0 
Housing/Utilities 25,958.40 26,996.74 28,076.61 legol 6,000 3,255 3,500 8,500 
Social Security/Medicare 8,079.18 8,345.92 8,679.76 Audinng 16,000 12,651 18,000 12,000 10,200 12,000 12,000 
Retirement 3,109.79 0 2,805 0 4,000 

3,161.50 3,439.92 Equipment lease 
Insurance 0 10,203 0 7,000 3,937.92 4,201.97 5,045.04 Software Maintenance 

Life 660.96 660.96 660.96 Miscellaneous 1,500 1,362 2,500 2,500 1, 965 2,000 2,000 

HospitalizoHon 2,777.28 3,002.81 3,878.16 Educanorv'Training 4,000 3,286 5,000 6,500 7,732 8,000 10,000 
Dental 222.48 216.36 227.16 Total 369,665 349,828 361,01 4 382,134 366,991 398,268 373,343 
Disability 277.20 321.84 278.76 

Total 59,552.44 61,911.96 66,306.37 
Note: Office Cor Furnished 

Diana Harris 
Salary 23,920.00 24,398.40 25,862.31 
Social Security/Medicare 1,829.88 1,866.48 1,941.14 
Retirement 1,674.40 1,674.40 1,77620 
Insurance 3,858.12 3,724.32 4,599.67 

Life 361.20 361.20 361.20 
HospitolizoHon 2,777.28 3,002.81 3,878.16 
Dental 585.84 216.36 216.36 
Disability 133.80 143.25 143.25 

Total 31,282.40 31 ,663.60 34,179.32 
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Master's Men Report 
My daughter Laura began her first job this past fall. She is working for 

Chick-fil-A. After her orientation she was telling my wife and me that Chick­
fil-A did not serve chicken, they served customers. I liked that. The year 
2000 marked the forty-fifth year of the Master's Men Department serving 
our Savior and Free Will Baptist family. 

Our primary objective as we serve the Savior is to help our churches 
equip their men to become servants of Christ as they grow in their spiritu­
al walk. The Master's Men program has a well-defined target in this 
process. We seek to develop men into: 

Men of Priority 
A multitude of demands and pressures compete for a man's time. 

However, men who bring glory to God understand that their first priority 
must be their relationship to Jesus Christ. Master's Men challenges and 
helps men develop an intimate walk with the Lord. 

Men of Prayer 
Master's Men desires to equip our men to become faithful men of 

prayer. The goal is to see men active in prayer on several levels. First, men 
need to learn the value of prayer on a personal level. Secondly, men need 
to pray for and with their families. Third, men need to pray with and for 
other men. Fourthly, men need to set the example in their churches by 
praying for their pastor and their churches ministries. 

Men of Purpose 
Master's Men exists to accomplish five stated purposes. Master's Men 

seeks to encourage fellowship, discipleship, stewardship, soul-winning, and 
edification among Free Will Baptist men. 

Men of Purity 
Being a man of purity in our culture is not an easy task. Through our 

newsletter, retreats, and our study resources Master's Men wilJ continue to 
proclaim biblical truths that wilJ enable our men to live as pure men. 

Men of Passion 
Men can be very passionate about their favorite sports team, a hobby, or their 

work. Sadly, some men have little enthusiasm about being husbands and fathers. 
Master's Men will teach men their biblical responsibilities to their wives and chil­
dren and will encourage them to be passionately committed to their families. 

I believe one of the greatest challenges of the twenty-first century church will 
be to awaken men out of spiritual passivity and mobilize them to make impact 
for Christ in their homes, communities, and workplaces. 'That is why Master's 
Men is needed. Our department seeks to assist our pastors and churches as they 
reach men with the gospel and disciple them to follow after Jesus. 

I am grateful to the Lord for each church and individual that has made 
it possible for us to fulfill our purpose through their prayers and financial 
support. I am also thankful for three board members who wiiJ be ending 
their time of service with Master's Men. Mr. Wayman Ray, Master's Men 
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. d Mr John Fowlkes have served on the Master's M~n 
board chairman, an M Jerry Atwell has served Master's Men for SIX 

bOard fohr twelveny~:V~ fai~fully served the Lord, Master's Men_, and Free 
years. T ese me . . 1 d h. and commitment 
Will Baptists. I appreciate their Wisdom, ea ers Ip, 

Respectfully, 

Tom Dooley, General Director 

Summary of 2000 Board Activity 

MarThch I Ob, 2ar0~0of Master's Men met at the offices of Master's Men. The 
e 0 f ll · Frst that Master's Men 

board of Master's Men ~pl?roved the o othWing. I c~pus of Free Will 
· t ·n building the mtss1on house on e new th 

~spi~s~ Bible College by providing the labor for t~e project. Secondly, ~ 
a urchase of an automobile for ~e de~artmen . 
bo~d appr~ve~d ~~ed Mr Kenneth Akers to fill the position of Director of 
~~~~y ~~v~~pment. Th~ budget for 2001 was presented and approved. 

December 6 2000 · h t r develop-
The Ma~ter's Men board heard reports concerrung, c ape N . al 

South Golf Tournament, National Men's Retreat, atio~ 
ment, the Deep . . B"b] Study Series and OperatiOn 
Golf Tournament the Direction 1 e , 
Saturation The bo~d of Master's Men approved: I ·r WNAC 

(1) The development of a regional_ retreat strategy (2) n~ m~002 (3) 
to join Master's Men in hosting. a national couples retreat or 
Implementing a Father's Day ProJeCt. 
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MICHAEL JOHNSTON 
Certified Public Accountant 
13166 Lake Benton Road 

Benton, Illinois 62812 
Telephone: (618)439-061 0 

The Board of Directors 
The Master's Men, a Department of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Antioch, Tennessee 

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Master's 
Men, a Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, 
as of December 31 , 2000 and 1 999, and the related statements of 
activity and changes in fund balance and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Board of Directors. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe 
that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly 
the financial position of The Master's Men, a Department of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, at December 31, 2000 and 
1 999 and the results of its operations and the cash flows for the years 
then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting princi­
ples applied on a consistent basis. 

Benton, Illinois 
May 16, 2001 

Certified Public Accountant 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash . 
Trust account - Build A House campatgn 
Trust account - Lifetime membership 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 
Inventories 
Cash value of endowment insurance 

Total current assets 

NOTES RECEIVABLE (Note 4) 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 2) 

CAPITALIZED LEASE, net (Note 3) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue (Note 5) 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (Note 6) 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total capital 

Total liabilities and capital 

2000 

$8,177 
928 

110,075 
56,164 

539 
0 

3,691 

$179,574 

53,000 

23,324 

2,109 

$258,007 

$4,270 
1,200 

180 
$5,650 

$77,765 
174,592 

$252,357 

$258,007 

1999 

$5,849 
869 

103,563 
206,474 

539 
0 

3,794 

$321 ,088 

53,000 

9,560 

2,310 

$385,958 

$3,098 
1,560 

514 
$5,172 

$206,567 
174.219 

$380,786 

85,958 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
Years ended December 31 , 

REVENUE 
Dues from members 
Cooperative program 
Merchandise sales 
Interest and dividend income 
Gain (loss) on sale of investments 
Gain (loss) in market value of investments 
Gifts and other income 

EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel expense 
Conferences and conventions 
Office expense 
Postage 
Promotion expense 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Bookkeeping expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Insurance expense 
Dues, subscriptions and fees 
Master's Hands construction expense 
Missions projects 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING 

2000 1999 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 12,890 $ 
59,132 
3,074 

17,833 
45,061 

(95,661) 
46,952 10,272 

$ 10,272 $ 89,281 

$ 98,887 $ 
20,465 
11 ,308 
17,632 
4,851 
4,853 
4,973 

25,631 
21 ,983 
1,175 

900 
4,263 

201 
0 

961 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

103 
0 
0 

9,796 

$ 12,890 
59,132 
3,074 

17,833 
45,061 

(95,661) 
57,224 

$ 99,553 

$ 98,887 
20,465 
11 ,308 
17,632 
4,851 
4,853 
4,973 

25,631 
21,983 
1,175 

900 
4,263 

201 
103 
961 

0 
9,796 

$ 11,118 
57,925 

987 
15,172 
59,890 

0 
186,386 

$331,478 

$ 61 ,631 
12,640 
8,419 

15,039 
4,610 
5,217 
2,939 

22,582 
20,292 

675 
975 

1,531 
201 
291 
822 

0 
1,948 

$218,083 $ 9,899 $227,982 $159,812 

($128,802) $ 373 ($128,429) $171,666 

206,567 174,219 380,786 209,120 

$ 77,765 $174,592 $252,357 $380,786 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31 , 

2000 1999 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue over (under) expenses 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Gain on sale of investments 

Loss in market value of investments 
Changes in assets and li~bilities 

Change in inventones . 
Change in accrued interest rece1vable 
Change in accounts payable 
Change in deferred revenue 
Change in accrued expenses 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Reductions (additions) to trust accounts 
Reductions (additions) to investments 
Sales of investments 

$128,429 

4,263 
201 

(45,061) 
95,661 

0 
0 

1 '172 
( 360) 
( 334) 

$ (72,887) 

Reductions (additions) to cash value of insurance 
Additions to property and equipment 

$ (6,571) 
27,161 
72,549 

103 
(18,027) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 7!),215 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Addition to notes receivable $ 0 

0 Proceeds from notes receivable 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CAS 
EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

$ 0 

$ 2,328 

5,849 

$ 8,117 

$171 ,666 

1,531 
201 

(59,890) 
0 

0 
3,590 

(90,281) 
764 
370 

$ 27,951 

$ 13,334 
(125,121) 
124,625 

291 
(2,420) 

$ 10,709 

$ (53,000) 
17,000 

$ (36,000) 

$ 2,660 

3,189 

$ 5,849 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 2000 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of The Master's 
Men, a Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, hereafter 
referred to as the Department. 

GOVERNMENT- The Department operates under the auspices of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS -
Receivables are presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed 
collectible by management. Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized 
using the direct write-off method. 

INVESTMENTS -The investments are valued at the lower of cost or market For gifts, 
the cost is determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift 

INVENTORIES- The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with 
cost being determined by using the first-in, first-out method. 

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION - Property and equipment 
are presented in the financial statements at cost and are depreciated by the 
straight:line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets of 3-20 years. 

INCOME TAXES -The Department is exempt from federal and state income taxes; 
accordingly, no provision for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the 
Department at December 31 ,: 

Equipment and furniture 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Property and equipment, net 

NOTE 3- CAPITALIZED LEASES 

2000 
$45,487 

22,163 
$23,324 

1999 
$27,460 

17,900 
$9,560 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists purchased an office building to 
house various departments and agencies of the denomination. The Board of 
Directors has entered into an agreement to lease space in this new building and 
agreed to contribute to the debt service costs during the construction period and 
to continue until the debt has been retired. The construction period costs of 
$4,018 were capitalized and will be amortized over a period of twenty years. 
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 2000 

NOTE 4 _ NOTES RECEIVABLE 

. . ry of the Department's notes receivable at December 31,: 
Followmg IS a summa 

2000 1999 

Note receivable from John Fowlkes, Vilondia, d $ 53 000 $ 53,000 
Arkansas; 7%; dated 11/8/99; due on eman $ 53:ooo $ 53,000 

NOTE 5 _DEFERRED REVENUE 

. If tournament fees, and meal tickets 
Deferred revenue consists of dues, 1o 31 2000 and 1999. 
received for future years as of Decem er ' 

NOTE 6- RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 

The restricted fund balance is revenue desi~nated for specific projects and 

consists of the following as of December 31 • · 

Mission projects 
Build A House campaign 
Lifetime Membership 
Master's Hands projects 
Endowment insurance 
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2000 1999 
$ 5,174 $ 6,648 

48,676 48,676 
106,258 105,808 

13,950 12,450 
534 637 

$174,592 $174,219 



The Charter 
of 

. Master's Men of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists I 

P , nc. 
. ursuont to TCA 48-67-101 & 102, and the Tennessee General Co . . 

hovmg capacity to contract and acting as the Incorporators of M t ' rporotlon Act, the_ undersigned natural persons 
Baptists, Inc., o Tennessee Nonprofit Religious Corporation odopt:~t t l~e~ of ~~e Notional Association of Free Wili 

1 Th 
' e 0 owrng orter for such Corporation. 

· e nome of the Corporation is: · 
Moster's Men of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

2. The Corporation's principal office is located at: 
5233 Mount View Rood, Antioch, Davidson County, Tennessee 37013 

3. The Corporation's registered agent and address: 
Tommy J. Dooley, 5233 Mt. View Rood, Antioch, TN 37013 

4. The duration of this Non-Profit Religious Corporation is perpetual. 
5. The Corporation shall hove no members. 

ARTICLE I 
The Corporation is o Nonprofit Religious Corporation d f d b h 

48-51-101 et seq., and more specifically OS 0 Nonprofit~ r ~s ecme y _t e Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, TCA 
Corporation shall hove and be entitled to exercise all o:~~~:~ichorporotlon ~s set_ f~rth in TCA 4~-67-1~1 & 102. This 
hove and exercise under the lows of the State of 1i p o Nonprofit Relrglous Corporation of Its nature may 
lotions contained in the Internal Revenue Code to en;~ss~te, as now in effect or hereafter amended, subject to the limi-

re om I s status as on exempt religious organization. 

ARTICLE II 
Corporate Purposes 

The purpose fo r which the Corporation is org · d · 1i • 
our Heavenly Fathet onlze IS: 0 magnrfy Christ Jesus as our Lord and to glorify 

To implement this chief purpose the Corporation shall . . 
Men in accordance with the tenets and doctrines of the Fr wiJr~mot_e, corry on and momtom _the program of the Moster's 
Baptists, Inc., as described in Treatise of the Faith & Prod~~s ;f Fr~~h~/; set_ forth by the Natrona I Ass~io!ion of Free Will 

The support of public worship the building and . t ' opttm and all other purposes mcrdent thereto. 
and such other religious, educationdl or benevolent i ~~~~ enonce of c~urches, parsonages, schools, hospitals, chapels 
ary bodies in the United States or in any forei n nst 1 u Ions as may_ e necessary or p~o~er to the work of mission­
Corporation is organized exclusive! for char ~I cou~ ~· and the ~olntenonce of all miSSionary undertakings. This 
Section 501 (c)(3) of the lnternollevenue C~~e ~f r~~~~ot e~ucotlonol on~ scientifi_c ?urposes within the meaning of 
Internal Revenue low) and its regulations (as the . or t e corhrespondrng proviSIOn of any future United States 

Y now ex1st or may ereofter be amended). 

ARTICLE Ill 
Management of Corporation 

The overall direction of the Corporation shall be vested in o Bo d f 
accordance with the overall direction of the Corporation shall b th or o ~~~pees. The management and operation in 
shall be elected by the Notional Association of Free Will B r el e _responsl lily o~ th~ Corporate officers. The Trustees 

1 op rsts, nc., '"accordance With Its Constitution and By-lows. 

ARTICLE IV 
Corporation's Powers As Trustee 

The Corporation shall receive and administer funds and ro . f II . 
the Corporation is authorized to toke and to hold by be st / . pe~~ o ~ krnds for the above purposes, and to that end, 
for said purposes or any of them, any property, real per!~:, · ore;~:~J1 '.~ur 1~se~ l~n or lease, either absolutely or in trust, 

' ' ' ' wr out lmlfohon as to amount or value, in accordance 
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with such limitations, as may be imposed by low or by this Charter: to sell, convey and dispose of any such property or to invest 
and reinvest the principal thereof, and to deal with and expend such principal or the income therefrom for any of the purposes 
ci the Corporation, either by direct action of the Corporation or by means of trust created by it, without limitation, except such 
&milohon, n any, os may be contained in the instrument under which such funds or property ore received; to receive any prop­
etty. reol, personal, or mixed, in trust, under the terms of any deed, will, deed of trust, or other trust instrument consistent with 
!he purposes of the Corporation, in administering the some to corry out the directions and exercise the powers contained in the 
instrument under which the property is received, including the expenditure of the principal as well as the income for one or more 
SlXh purposes, if authorized and directed in the instrument under which it is received, to receive, toke tirle bonds, obligations, 
and other securities of any person or persons, corporation or corporations, domestic or foreign for the purposes of the 
Corporation. The Corporation is specifically authorized to serve as a Trustee of any and all funds donated to its use upon spec­
ified terms and conditions consistent with its nonprofit religious and educational purposes. Furthermore, it may serve as Trustee 
under specific terms and conditions of any and all funds so long as it is a beneficiary. 

ARTICLE V 
Dissolution 

In the event of he dissolution of this Corporation, any assets of the organization then remaining shall be conveyed to 
the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., which organization is exempt under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 as amended or under successor provisions of the Code as may be in effect at the time of dissolution. 

ARTICLE VI 
Amendments 

This Charter may be amended upon o two-thirds majority vote of the entire Boord of Trustees consistent with the 
declared general programs, objects, Charter, By-lows and purposes of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., 
in the following manner: 

1) The wriHen amendment shall be submiHed at a regular or special meeting of the Boord and upon the pro­
posed wriHen amendment being included in the notice for said meeting; and 

2) Upon its adoption, the some will be included in the Boord's Report to the next regular annual session of the 
Notional Association for discussion only; and 

3) Thereafter, the Boord will reconsider the Charter amendment in light of the discussion at the annual session 
of the Notional Association and the Boord must again approve the Charter amendment thereof and present the some 
to the next regular annual session of the Notional Association for approval ; and 

4) Only upon the approval of said proposed amendment at the next regular annual session of the Notional 
Association shall the Charter amendment be finally approved by the Boord and filed of record with the Secretory of Stole. 

We, the undersigned, as the Incorporators and the Trustees constituting the Boord of Trustees for the Moster's Men 
of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., do hereby acknowledge that this Charter was adopted at the rec­
ommendation of the General Boord by the convention of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., meeting on 
the day of , , at . 

By affixing my signature hereto, I, Tommy J. Dooley, certify that I witnessed the signatures of the foregoing 
Incorporators and the members of the Boord of Trustees for the Moster's Men of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., doted this day of , ----

Tommy J. Dooley, General Director 

Sworn and subscribed to before me on the day of _ _ ____ ___J _ _ _ 

Notary 
My Commission Expires: ----------
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By-laws and Rules of Decorum 
Of 

Maste r 's Men of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

I 
Organization, Obiective, and Purposes 

1. Organization. Moster's Men of the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, lnt, (the "Corporation") is a non­
profit Corporation organized under the lows of the State of Tennessee. 

2. Office. The Corporation shall maintain its principal office at 5233 Mountain View Rood, Antioch, Tennessee 
37013 or such other place within the State of Tennessee as determined by the Boord of Trustees. 

3. Objedive and purposes. K> implement, promote, mrry on and maintain the program of Moster's Men, induding the 
enlistment of laymen and pastors in their loml <hurdles to encourage stewardship and fellowship to deepen their spiritual lives, in 
ocrordonce with the tenets and doctrines of the Free Will Baptists as set forth by the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, loc 

II 
Board of Trustees 

The Boord of Trustees shall be known as the Moster's Men Notional Boord and shall be considered the some as 
o Boord of Directors. 

1. Number. election. and authority of Trustees. The Boord of Trustees shall be composed of nine members who ore eleded 
by the Notional Association foro term of six years. These terms ore to be arranged so that they expire in groups of three biennial~. 
A Trustee shall serve no more than two fu ll consecutive terms. The Trustees shall 0<t in their Trustee copocity on~ as a Boord and indi­
vidual Trustees hove no power to ad for the Corporation without prior specific Boord authority. Membership on the boord shall be 
mode of laymen and ordained ministers, but at no time shall ordained ministers constitute more than one-third of the board. The 
Boord shall instiMe the overall program of the Corporation and the officers shall supervise and administer its operation. The Boord 
shall be responsible for the actions of the Corporotion to the Notional Association of Free Will Baptist, Inc. 

2. Qualification of Trustee. Each Trustee shall hold membership in o regular Free Will Baptist Church that belongs too 
Free Will Baptist District or State Association, or to a church which is recognized by the Notional Association as being affiliated. 

3. Reports to the Notional Association. The Boord shall prepare on annual budget of its proposed financial 
expenditures at the beginning of each fisca l year and shall present the some for approval to the Notional Association 
along with a properly qualified independent audit with on unqualified opinion on the Corporation's fiscal condition. The 
corporation financing shall include: Moster's Men Day Offerings; membership dues; the percentage of Co-op moneys 
as designated by the Notional Assodotion; any and all contributions mode to the corporation. 

4. Vacancies. The Boord of Trustees may seek to replace on on ad interim basis irregular vacancies that may 
occur among its members fo r any reason by requesting the General Boord of the Notional Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc., to fill said vacancies. 

5. Removal of Trustees. The Notional Association at any regular annual session shall hove the power and right 
to declare the Trustee position vacant fo r any cause deemed valid by said Association and to elect successors to those who 
may thus be removed from office. 

6. Executive CommiHee. The Boord of Trustees is authorized to create on Executive CommiHee to oct with such 
authority as the Boord of Trustees shall grant when the Boord of Trustees is not in session. The number, election and 
meetings of the Executive CommiHee is to be determined and changed as the Boord of Trustees may from time to time 
direct. The General Director shall be a non-voting Ex Officio member of this Executive CommiHee. 

7. Regular and special meetings. The Boord of Trustees shall set the time, but not less than semi-annually, occa­
sion or place of the annual meetings of the Boord of Trustees, which thereafter may be held without notice. Special meet­
ings may be held at any time upon the call of the General Director or upon the coli of three Trustees. Notice the pur­
pose of such special meetings shall be in writing postmarked at least two weeks before the meeting. 

8. Quorum. A Quorum shall consist of at least six duly elected Trustees and a majority vote of the Trustees pres­
ent sholl decide the issues brought before the meeting except as other-wise required by the Charter, By-lows or the Boord 
of Trustees of this Corporation and/or by the Notional Association. 

9. Compensation and expenses. Trustees shall serve as such without compensation. Expenses incurred in connection 
with the performance of their official duties may be reimbursed to Trustees upon approval of the Boord of Trustees. A Trustee 
shall not be preduded from serving the Corporation in any other capacity nor from receiving compensation for such services. 
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Ill 
Officers of the Board of Trustees 

llti'ion and _~~ti~e officers of the Boord of Trustees shall be the Chairman of the Boord, Vice Chairman, on~ ~creto_ry. 
~- ~~ctio~ and term. Each of the officers shall be elected by the board o_f Trustees for one year begmmng w1th 
· ol meetin of the Boord and they shall serve until their respective succes~ors ore elected. 

the regular co:a~~mon of th~ Boord. The Chairman of the Boord shall preside at all meetmgs of the Boord of T~ustees 
3· directs or in his absence the Vice Chairman shall preside. The Chairman shall perform all the dut1es and 

except when he I . 'dent to h'ls off.lce and shall corry out the directions of the Boord of Trustees and shall 
h e all the powers common y mc1 1 D. 
ov . f e Officer i e President in the absence of or upon the inability of the Genera 1rector. 

oct as ~hlefv~:~h~irmon. Th~ Vice Choir~on of the Corporation shall perform oil the duties and hove all th~ p~wers 
commbo~ly i_ncidedntt toh_ltmhebyo~~~ ~~~~~:~o~~:)~r ~~~i:;d ~;rs:~~e~.o;~eo~~;; t~~~~oonn~h~~tp~~~ido;:~rth~t~~e~~ 
moy e oSSigne o . h. b 
· f h B d f Trustees when the Chairman directs or m IS a sence. . 
mgs o ; e s:c~:ta~ The Secretory shall perform all the duties and hove all the powers com~only ind~ent to the offl<~ 
of corpo.rote secreto~y and shall hove other powers o~d perform other duties as may be assigned to him by the Boor 

of Trustees. He shall keep the minutes of ~II the mheellt~gs of ;he ~ot~ of~~e:trrustees The General Director shall be 
6 General Director. The General Director s o e emp oye y e . I th d . d h II th 

the Chief Executive Officer, i.e. President, of the Corporation. The General Director shall perform a I de . ut1es on b ave ~ ~ 
powers commonly incident to the office of President and shall hove other_powers and_ performb o~rheu: ~ ~~y ; osslgne 

h. b h B d of Trustees The General Director shall be o non-voting Ex Offiao mem er o t r o ru ees. 
to lm / t ~emO:al of Officers: The General Director shall hold office at the pleo~ure ~f the Boord of Tr~st~. ~~ e~e~ or 
appointed officer may be removed at any time with or without cause upon the affirmatiVe vote of the mo1onty o e r · 

IV 
Corporate Officers 

1 Offi<ers The officers of the Corporation shall be the General Director, Associate Director, Secre~ry and_ Treo:~e o~-
<m of~ Corporatlon shall not be members of the Boord of Trustees. The Boord of Trustees n,;~~~e ~tlme e person r 

0 
-

· d An two officers except those of General Director and Secretory, may Y some · 
cers as ~~y El~:o~r:J· ter~ . Each of the corporate officers shall be elected by the Boord of Trustees and shall serve until 

their respective successors ore chosen sub!ect to _the direhctiolln o~he Bo~r1h of Jr~~~s~d hove all the powers commonly 
3 Associate Directors. The Assoc1ote D1rector s o pe orm a e u le . b . d h. 

incident. to the office of Vice President and shall hove other powers and perform o~he r d~tles as rna~ ~ osslg: . to ff~m 
by the General Director. The Boord of Trustees may from time to time elect Assooote D1rectors oss1gmng to e1r o 1ce 

such re~pon~bili:ies o~~~~:~J~~~~I ;~~0~: ~~;~~s~~es and hove all the powers comm~nly incident to his office and 

shall ho~e oth~~ poo~·ers and perform other duties as may be assigned to hi~ by the ~nerol Dlr~~~-~H~ ;~:lir~~:~r~rorge 
of oil corporate books and records except for such finondol b~~ ttd rror s :s o~es~:~~r~?~;:~ 1~11 ilie duties and hove 

5 Treasurer The Treasurer shall be the corporate u11e 1sco ogen on . b . d 
all the p.owers comm~nly incident to his office on~ shall hohveBotheJ P~;er~ ondtpe~o;~0°~~~~~~~~~;~h~~ype~~~~~n:e to him by the General Director. He may be required by t e oar o ru ees o glv . . h h II h th 
of his duties, in the sum and with the sureties as may be required. As the Corporate chl~f hscol agent, e s 0 ave e 

core and custody of all funds, securities, valuable po~ers, odnd ochcouGnts of ~h~· Co~p~~~t~~tbe fixed upon the recommen-
6. Salaries. The salary of oil employees servmg un er t e enero 1re o 

dation of the General Director by the Boord of Trustees. 

v 
Contracts, Loans and Checks 

1 Contracts The Boord of Trustees may authorize any officer or officers, agent or ~gents t; ent~r int~ a~ con-
tract or ~xecute and . deliver any instrument in the nome of and on behalf of the Corporation, on sue out on may 

be general or confined to specific instances. . d .d f · debtedness shall be issued in 
2. loons. No loons shall be ~ntrocted on behaH of the Corporation a~~ : ev~ e~:r~l :confined tospe<ificinstonces; 

its nome unless authorized by a resolution of the Boord ofTrustees. Such outh ty . y ghi<h h'b'ted b TCA 48-58-303 
provided, however, no loons shall be mode by the Corporation to its Trustees or officers w ore pro 1 1 Y · 
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3. Checks and other instruments. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evi­
dences of indebtedness issued in the nome of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents 
of the Corporation and in such manner os shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Boord of Trustees. 

VI 
Limiting, and Indemnifying the Liability of Trustees 

The Trustees and/or Officers of the Corporation shall be immune from suit arising form the conduct of the olloin of the 
Corporation. The Trustees and/or Officers shall not be personol~ liable to the Corporation for monetary damages lor breach of o fidu­
ciory duty provided; however, this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of o Trustee and/or Officer lor any breach of the 
Trustee's and/or Officer's duty of loyalty or lor om not in good fuith or which involve on intentional misconduct oro knowing viola­
tion of low or lor on unlawful distribution pursuonl hereunder TCA 48-58-(,{)1. Further, the Trustees ore, indemnified by the 
Corporation from personolliobility to the full extent as allowed by the Tennessee StoMe os set forth in TCA 48-58-501 et seq. 

VII 
Transactions with Trustees 

1. No contract or other transaction between this Corporation and any of its Trustees shall be void or voidable if 
such contract shall be approved or ratified by on affirmative vote ot any meeting of the Boord of Trustees by o majori­
ty of the Trustees. The subject Trustee shall hove no voice or vote concerning the approval or ratification of his action. 
Further, no Trustee shall be liable to account to the Corporation for any profit realized by him from or through any such 
contract or transaction ratified or approved os o foresoid. 

2. Not withstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Corporation shall not lend money to or use its credit to 
assist its Trustees or officers, whether or not employees. 

VIII 
Miscellaneous 

1. Written Consent. Whenever the Trustees of this Corporation ore required or permiHed to toke any action by 
vote, such action may be token without o meeting, upon written consent setting forth the action so token, and signed by 
all of the Trustees entitled to vote thereon. 

2. Contracts and Notes. Contracts in the regular order of business shall be executed by the General Director or by o 
person designated with that authority by the Boord of Trustees or its Executive Committee as directed by written resolution. 

3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January of each year and shall 
end on the lost day of December next following. 

IX 
Amendments 

These By-lows may be amended by o two-thirds majority vote of the Trustees ot any regular annual meeting or 
ot o special meeting coiled for that purpose which coli includes the proposed omendment(s). Such omendment(s) shall 
become effective upon approval by the Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Certification 
These By-lows and Rules of Decorum, amending all previous By-lows of Moster's Men, were duly adopted by o 

two-thirds majority vote of the Boord of Trustees ot its duly coiled meeting on day of 
___ ___ _ ___ , 2001 , at _________ _ 

Secretory 
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General Director 
Salary 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Social Security 

Total 

Director 's Assistant 
Salary 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Expenses 
Office Operation 

Rent 
Equipment and Supplies 
Telephone 
Postage 

Total 

Accounting 
Bookkeeping 
Audit 

Total 

Resource Development 
Newsletter 
Bible Studies 
Printed Materials 
Postage 

Total 

Travel 
Department Travel 
Board Travel 

Total 

Salaries 
General Diredor 
Salary 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Salary Breakdown 

1999 2000 
$39,911 $28,200 

0 19,800 
1,945 2,400 
8,925 8,000 
2,921 0 

$53,702 $58,400 

2001 
$30,600 

19,800 
2,460 
8,400 

Q 
$61 ,260 

$43,200 
0 

2,160 
8,400 

$53,760 

Proposed Budget for 2002 
Director's Assistant 

Salary 

s 20,292 Housing 
Retirement 3,000 
Insurance 2,000 

Total 1.750 
$27,042 

Part Time Office Staff 
Salaries 

s 900 FICA 
1.500 Medicare s 2,400 Total 

s 5,600 Ministry Development 
Convention/promotion 1,000 

1,500 
Total Expenses 3.000 

$11,100 Income 
Dues 

2002 
$30,600 

19,800 
2,460 
8,400 

0 
$61260 

$22,800 
$20,400 

2,160 
8,400 

$53,760 

s 22,800 
20,400 
21,60 
8.400 

s 53,760 

s 17,000 
1,054 

246 
$18,300 

s 1,500 

S194J 62 

s 20,000 
s 15,000 Rest of the Family Offering 1,000 

61 ,000 4.000 Together Way 
s 19,000 Softball 4,000 

Golf 4,000 
Gifts 79,825 
Family Enrichment Cont. 2,000 s 30,600 Promotional Soles 2,000 

19,800 Resource Soles 2,000 
2,460 Endowment Income 8,537 
8.400 Total Income: $194,362 s 61,260 
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Commission for Theological Integrity Report 
The purpose of this commission is: (1) To alert our people of theological 

trends that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To pre­
pare materials that will contribute to the continued preservation of the theologi­
cal integrity of the denomination, and (3) As need and opportunity arise, to con­
duct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the purpose of the commission 

On November 2-3, 2000, we sponsored our fifth annual Theological 
SymJX>sium. It met at Free Will Baptist Bible College in Nashville, Tennessee. Papers 
were read on a variety of subjects. The interest was good. There was a lively, healthy 
interaction during the meeting. We continue to be encouraged by the quality of the 
papers that are read in our SymJX>siums. The Theological SymJX>sium for 2001 will 
be conducted at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma. It 
wiJJ begin November 5 and go through Tuesday evening November 6. 

At last year's National Association, we introduced the first issue of 
Integrity: A Journal of Christian Thought. A copy of Integrity was mailed to 
all of our pastors and other denominational personnel. A few copies were 
also available to others at $6.00 per copy. We soon ran out of copies. 

Below are some of the comments that we received: 

•It was excellent. Keep it coming! 
• Great very excited about the publication. 
• Very informative and clear- just the book I've been needing! 
•I have had an insatiable appetite for FWB material for years. . . . 

Therefore this journal is welcomed, appreciated, etc. but long overdue! 
• I think this is a Great Idea! I would be willing to subscribe if it becomes feasible. 
• Thanks! It's great! I definitely wish to receive it, and am willing to pay. 
• Very pleased! Keep up the good work. It will serve us well in years to come. 
•I really enjoyed the papers. I believe this is a tool to be used to educate 

pastors and help them confront postmodern thinking. 
• Enjoyed the book very much. We need our people to write more books. 

The publication of this journal is a joint venture of the Commission for 
Theological Integrity, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 
College, and Randall House Publications. An unexpected blessing came when the 
Executive Department underwrote the cost of mailing copies to our pastors. There 
were several individuals, churches and quarterly meetings who made finandal corr 
tributions. The Commission is greatly indebted to all who supJX>rted us in anyway. 

A special thanks goes to Matt Pinson, editor, and Paul Harrison, assis­
tant editor, for the work they did in preparing the first issue of Integrity-a 
journal that we can all be proud of. They are already working on the sec­
ond issue which will be out later this year. 

For several years we have been sponsoring a seminar at our National 
Association meeting on areas of concern. At this year's National Association 
we will conduct a seminar on '~ortion and Euthanasia." It will be conducted 
by Dr. Mark Paschall, former medical missionary to Ivory Coast, West Africa. 

We thank you for the privilege of serving you. 

In His Service, 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
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Daryl Ellis 
Jeff Manning 
Matt Pinson 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
January - December 31, 2000 

Financial Report 

Bonk Balance - January 1, 2000 Sl ,862.01 Oklahoma 362.97 
South Carolina 3.51 

INCOME 
Gifts/The Together Way/Rest of the Family Offering 

Alabama S 36.19 
Anzana 
Arkansas 
California 
Conodo 
Florida 
Georgia 
Illinois 
Indiana 
lowo 
Konsos 
Kentucky 
Loui~ono 
Morylond 
Michigan 
Mis~ssippi 
Missouri 
New Mexico 
North Corolino 
Ohio 

0.71 
509.31 

26.79 
0.48 

33.96 
562.17 
99.28 

247.56 
9.57 
1.34 

32.85 
0.43 
1.55 

106.67 
19.51 

450.36 
1.37 

107.03 
106.53 

Tennessee 310.58 
Texas 39.07 
Virginia 2.46 
Washington 1.27 
West Virginia 242.77 
Interest on Bonk Account 
Integrity-A Journal of 

Chrisffan Thought Gifts 
Journals Sold 
Symposium Papers Purchased 
Symposium Registration Fees 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Bookkeeping 
Convention Speaker/Digest of Reports 
Symposium Expenses 
Journal Expenses 
Miscellaneous Office 

Total Expenses 

Bonk Balance - December 31 , 2000 

Budget 

Expenses: 
Commission Meeting 
Publication of Integrity 
NoHonol ConvenHon 
Theological Symposium 
Bookkeeping 
Office 

Total Expenses: 

$3,000.00 
3,500.00 

700.00 
750.00 
200.00 
100.00 

$8,250.00 

Income: 
Together Way 
For Integrity: • 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
Other 

Symposium 
Other Contributions 
Interest Income 

Total Income: 

$3,316.29 
35.99 

3,650.00 
957.00 
375.00 
30.00 

$8,364.28 

$200.00 
690.79 

1,237.60 
3,057.16 

33.70 
$5,219.25 

$5,007.04 

3,500.00 

1,500.00 
1,500.00 

500.00 
350.00 
850.00 

50.00 
$8,250.00 

• The expenses for the publication ond distribution of /ntegri_ty do ~ot reflect the contribution of Rondo II House for printing 
ond binding nor assistance in the moiling cost by the Executive Offtce. 
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Media Commission 
The ultimate goal of your Media Commission is ' to advance the cause 

of Christ.' That is how we begin our mission statement. Everything we do 
or have a desire to be is driven by a longing to advance Christ's Kingdom! 

The media field is vast. We want to provide to our churches and denom­
inational agencies the tools that will assist them in representing their needs 
and the furthering the gospel message. To help us provide these types of 
tools requires both creative time and funding to cover the various types of 
media. We introduced a plan called "Raise the Standard" in 2000 with the 
sole purpose of moving the Media Commission to serving you full time. Many 
of you responded with pledges and gifts. We say thank you! 

As of yet our total goal has not been met. However, we are moving in 
the direction we promised. In the intermediate time, we have named Ron 
Hunter our Creative Director and BiJI Gardner our Office Manager. They 
have been performing in this capacity for some time. They will now be 
paid on a very part time merit system. A small percentage of net proceeds 
from products sold and services rendered win be used to compensate 
them for their time. However at this time, ALL Together Way funds, gifts 
and "Raise The Standard" campaign monies received will be placed in the 
general operating account and used solely for media projects and pro­
motions and wiJI not be used for Media Commission compensation. 

We receive .So/o (one half of one percent) of the undesignated money 
to the national Together Way. We are appreciative for this money as it 
helps to take care of our meetings and a few basic administrative costs. 

Your Media Commission specializes in ways to enhance your appearance 
and promotion From letterhead to logo design; from lV and radio spots to web 
design; we are your full service organization to help you be as attractive as possi­
ble to your community. With this goal in mind, the Commission has agreed to uti­
lize one of its vendors to do your professional web design and hosting as well as 
provide many other television commercials and television airtime buying service. 

We still have available two television spots, four radio spots, ad slicks, and our 
customized Church Video Brochure. We have now added a generic version of 
the video brochure tagged with the plan of salvation We have also recently pro­
duced a video (along with a CD and Cassette) entitled A Free Wdl Baptist 
Gathering: He Keeps Me Singing. This is along the lines of the Gaither 
Homecoming Series and will feature approximately fifty of your favorite Free Will 
Baptist musicians and singers down through the years in a live concert setting. 

Our stated goal is an uncomplicated one. We desire to advance the 
cause of Christ The means of attaining that goal, however, can be quite 
complex. The field of media is changing at warp speed. The desire of your 
Media Commission is to stay on the cutting edge of the field of media, yet 
preserving, maintaining and even strengthening Free Will Baptist distinctives 
and heritage. We thank you for allowing us the opportunity to serve you. 

Steve Faison, Chairman 
Doug Kite 
Ron Hunter 
Bill Gardner 
Mike Jones 
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Media Commission 
2000 Financial Report 

Beginning checking account balance 
Income 

Undesignated Co-op 
Alabama 
Arkansas 
California 
Florida 
Georgia 
Iowa 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Missouri 
Mississippi 
North Carolina 
New Mexico 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Others 

Project Income I Designated Gifts 
Interest 

Total Income 

Expenditures 
Church Video Project 
Convention Expenses 
Convention Video Screens 
Digest of Reports 
Postage 
Design 
Printing 
Production 
Duplication 
Self Promotion 
Telephone 
Commission Expenses 
Meeting 
Employee Commission 

Total Expenditures 

$ 5.27 
507.81 

26.79 
33.33 
53.20 

9.57 
69.20 

6.90 
1.34 

32.85 
1.26 

98.46 
448.27 

19.14 
92.40 

1.37 
103.7 6 
361.06 

1 .51 
60.42 
10.53 

1 .1 8 
2.66 
1.42 

Ending balance of all accounts 12/ 31 / 2000 
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$6,802.36 

$ 1,949.70 
30,102.92 

255.01 
$32,307.63 

10,787.22 
2,148.50 
2,000.00 

83.70 
939.74 

1,265.00 
3,250.50 
2,318.95 
7,469.31 
2,118.45 
1,973.84 

840.21 
1,178.32 
1 ,803.55 

$38,177.29 

$ 932.70 



Music Commission 
Much has been accomplished by the Music Commission during the last several 

years. The Rejoice hymnal was published and met with great enthusiasm by Free WiD 
Baptists in particular, as well as the broader Christian community. Music seminars and 
reading sessions at the National Convention have served to both develop biblical think­
ing about music in the local church and to place in the hands of our churches some or 
the finest music available. Two choral collections, Glory, Honor and Praise and Worthy 
of Praise, have been produced by and for our denomination. Many steps have been 
taken to insure that the music at the National Convention moves the mind and heart 
toward biblical worship. In addition, a conscious effort has been made to prepare new 
servant-leaders to take their places in our churches and our denomination. 

But even with all these things, much is left to be done if the vision of the Music 
Commission is to be realized. This vision is to perpetuate a theologically correct under­
standing of God and the practice of the worship of God among Free Will Baptists, espe­
cially with regard to the musical elements of worship. A number of goals are in view: 

l) Perpetuating a biblical understanding of worship and music in the church 
2) Helping pastors realize the need for on effective music ministry in the local church 
3) Communicating with our colleges about educational issues relative to music ministry 
4) Providing and encouraging quality education for music ministers and teachers 
5) Hosting on annual worship/music retreat to provide quality teaching and resources for the local church 
6) Developing o functioning network of musicians as a resource for the denomination 
7) Increasing the number of instrumental/orchestra/bond ministries in local churches 
8) Calling for active participation in the National Association and its departments 
9) Working to see that our churches worship God biblically on o weekly basis 
l 0) Cooperating with other denominational arms to corry out these goals. 

The ultimate goal is for Free Will Baptists to be a worshiping people, and conse­
quently for our churches to be places where biblical worship occurs weekly and where 
our lives are lived to the praise of His glory. From this we trust that men and women will 
see the need and opportunity of personally serving in music ministry. We want to chal­
lenge Free Will Baptist young people to consider a thoroughly biblical education as they 
seek to find their place in the music ministries of our churches. 

We plan to develop a network that will facilitate ministry placement and provide 
church musicians with counsel, encouragement and resources. We desire to encour­
age continuing education through conferences, seminars, retreats, etc. Active partici­
pation of musicians in all departments and levels of the National Association is also 
essential if the music of our movement is to remain biblically sound. Furthermore, we 
want to encourage the funneling of God-given artistic energies toward the writing or 
arranging of songs and hymns for congregational, choral, instrumental purposes 
through recording and publishing. 

We seek to perpetuate a truly biblical understanding of worship and a corre­
sponding philosophy of music by providing a forum in w hich ideas and issues can 
be discussed from a truly biblical perspective. This would be accomplished dur­
ing annual meetings and by articles contributed to denominational periodicals. As 
we grow in financial stability we hope to see the beginning of a National Music 
Scholarship Fund for students entering our colleges. 

The Music Commission has an ongoing burden to develop music ministries in 
our churches. We appreciate the opportunity to serve the denomination and our 
Lord in this manner. 

Respectively Submitted, 

The Free Will Baptist Music Commission 
Randy Sawyer 
Doug LitUe Bill Gardner 
Scott BuHman Chris Truett 
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Music Commission Financial Statement 
January - December 2000 

Beginning Balance 

Income 
Co-op 
Music Sales 

States and Churches 
Alabama 
South Carolina 
Texas 
Fellowship Church, TN 
Roaring Creek Church, NC 

Total Income 

Expenses 
National Convention 
Music Commission Meeting 
National Building Expense 
Music 
Loan Payment 
Office Expense 
Refund 

Total Expenses 

Ending Balance 

$ 26.65 
.63 

23.42 
140.49 

6.93 

$ 1,850.30 
11 ,016.73 

198.12 

2,030.47 
1,908.48 

733.71 
1,326.00 

13,000.00 
39.30 
75.00 

Proposed Budget for 2002 
Income 

Co-op 
Family Ministry Offering 
Music Sales 
States and Churches 
Tracks and CD sales 
Loan 

Total Income 

Expenses 
National Convention 
Purchase of Music 
Board Meetings 
Office Expense 
Loan Payment 
National Choir Project 

Total Expenses 

$ 2,000.00 
25.00 

2,000.00 
350.00 

27,000.00 
2,685.00 

$ 1,000.00 
2,725.00 
1,500.00 

650.00 
2,685.00 

25,000.00 
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$ 7,199.67 

$20,264.82 

(19, 152.96) 

$ 1,111.86 

$34,060.00 

$34,060.00 



200 I Historical Commission Report 
The Commission's two on-going projects are to publish a Free Will Baptist 

historical guidebook and to help furnish a "history" room on the new campus at 
Free Will Baptist Bible College. Darrell Holley will coordinate the guidebook pro~ 
ect The Commission has committed $20,000 to help furnish the "history" room. 

The Commission prepared an "Application for Free Will Baptist Historical 
Grant." Persons doing historical research regarding Free Will Baptists may 
obtain an application by writing the secretary of the Historical Commission. 

We encourage state and district associational clerks to send copies of 
minutes to the Historical Collection at Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

Free Will Baptist Historical Commission 
Financial Report, 2000 

Balance on hand, December 31, 1999 
Deposits for 2000 

The Together Way (Designated and Undesignoted) 
The Together Way (Rest of the Family Offering) 
Interest (AmSouth Bonk) 
Arkansas State Assot (toward repaying loon) 

Total 
*checks deposited were for October 1999 through November 2000 

Expenditures for 2000 
Check # 1033: Paul Kennedy (Travel} 
Check # 1034: Thomas Marberry (travel) 
Check # 1035: Postmaster (postage due} 
Check # 1 036: Executive Office (Digest Fee) 

Total 
Balance in ban~ December 31,2000 

2002 Budget 

Income 
Gifts (The Together Way) 
Interest (AmSouth Bank) 
Loan Repayment (Arkansas State Assoc.) 

Total 

Expenses 
Books, materials, labor for 

Historical Commission 
Historical Guidebook Pro ject 
Research Grant 
Travel 
Executive Office (Digest Fee) 

Total 
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$260055* 
48.98 

657.28 
550.00 

s 714.28 
380.73 

.44 
33.48 

$21,416.93 

s 3,856.81 

s 1,128.93 
$24,144.81 

$2,000.00 
800.00 

2 ,000.00 
$4,800.00 

$2,000.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
1,250.00 

50.00 
$4,800.00 

Minutes 

of the 

Sixty-Sixth Annual Session 

of the 

Women Nationally Active 
for Christ 

Convention 
of the 

National Association 
of 

Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Detroit, Michigan 
July 15-17, 2001 
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WNAC 
P. 0. Box 5002 

Antioch, TN 37011-5002 
Executive Committee 

President 
Debe Taylor 

I 03 Chisholm Trail 
Ho t Springs, AR 71913 
Phone: 501-760-4824 

e-m ail: taylorgolf@juno.com 

Vice President 
Joanne King 

426 Woodlawn Extension 
Cram erton, NC 28032 
Phone: 704-827-9772 

E-m ail : 
joanneking@caro lina.rr.com 

Secretary 
Debbie Burden 

P. 0. Box 5 12 
Locust Grove, OK 74352 

Phone: 918-479-2584 
E-m ail : 

debatparsonage@hotmail.com 

Members at Large 

Dawn Sweeney 
1 001 Lisa Drive 

Church Hill, TN 37642 
Phone: 423-357-5420 

e-m ail: dswee32437@aol.com 

Yvonne Brown 
4881 East Normal 
Fresno, CA 93703 

Phone: 559-25 1-5613 
e-m ail : 

yvonnebrown2000@cs.com 

Carolyn Hendrix 
138 Lewis Lane 

Madison, AL 35 758 
Phone: 256-461 -7453 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Marjorie Workman 

1408 Revenna Court North 
Antioch , TN 37013 

Phone: 615-366-0573 
e-m ail: Marjorie@nafwb.org 

~heme: Sharing Hope and Healing 
Scnpture: Colossians I :27 

Hymn: "The Solid Rock" 
Music Coordinator: Rebekah Seymour 

Pianist: Michele Rowe 
Organist: Fran Iddins 

Proceedings 
WNAC Seminars 

Monday, July 16, 200 1 

WNAC President Debe Taylor presided at the seminar "You Have 
a Spe~k in Your Eye." T~ere were 141 women present. Speaker Anne 
W~rthmgton and pan~l 1st Pam Flannagin, Donnel l Wilson, and Gail 
Sm1th focused on deal1ng with criticism. 

At the WNAC State Leaders Seminar, Marjorie Workman presided. 
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The topic of record keeping was presented through an entertaining and 
informative program entitled '~ust the Fads, M' am." Presenters were Ex­
ecutive Committee members Diana Bryant and Debbie Burden. Sixty-

five women attended. 

Tuesday Morning Business Session 
July 17, 200 1 

President Debe Taylor opened the 66th Annual Session of the Women 
Nationally Active for Christ. Rebekah Seymour led the congregation in 
singing "He's Able" and "His Name is Wonderful." Debe led in prayer. A 
Michigan ladies ensemble sang "Let Them Know." Carol Pinkerton gave 
the moming devotion. She talked about the contrasts and problems of the 
city where she ministers, Abidjan, Cote d'lvoire, West Africa. She thanked 
WNAC forthe scholarships given to lvorian Pastor Silas, and shared the tes­
timony of three lvorians who have come to know the Lord. 

Diane Worthington gave a welcome from the women of Michigan. 
Ma~orie introduced Sarah Fletcher, new editor of CoLooorer maga­

zine. From the 136 entries in 5 categories, Sarah presented the Creative 

Arts awards as follows: 

Poetry 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Articles 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Programs 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Plays 
1st Place 
2nd Place 
3rd Place 
4th Place 

Choice 
They Know a Girl 
Mother's Responsibility 
Comfort 

Wind of the Spirit 
Beyond My Comprehension 
First Easter Morning 
Counted Blessing 

Uving on a Spiritual Plane 
Meet Me at the Orchard 
Installation Program 
Operation Unk-Up 

The Incompetency Hearing 
God's Quilt Pieces 
The Harvest 
Searching for the Key 

Vickie Turner Carterville, MO 
Lauro Ham Nashville, TN 
Mildred Coll ingsworth Dayton, OH 
Chorlcie Boyd Ashland City, TN 

Judy Delong 
Wendi Howell 
Beverly Brantley 
Janie Anderson 

Judy Delong 
Betty Reeves 
Jane Shelton 
Pam Hacken 

Hager Hill, KY 
Ontario, CA 
Plant City, Fl 
Ashland, KY 

Hager Hill, KY 
Farmington, MO 
Unle Rock, AR 
Boiling Springs, SC 

Lee Ann Wilfong Park Hills, MO 
Janie Stone/Barbara Hall lexington, KY 

lavern Clark Thayer, MO 
Sue Winchester St. louis, MO 

Art 
1st Place Janis Williams Nashville, TN 
2nd Place Janis Williams Nashville, TN 
3rd Place Janice Jones Smithfield, NC 
4th Place Janis Williams Nashville, TN 

Dr. Mary Ruth Wisehart gave the Credentials Committee report. 

MSC to seat all delegates. 
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h Pres~dent Debe Tayl?r introduced Elvia Martinez, the President of 
t e ~eXICO Women Active for Christ. She brought greetings from the 
Mex1co .w<?men and the Free Will Baptist Church in Tampico. 

Maqon~ Workman .gave the Executive Secretary-Treasurer's Re ort 
She gave tnbute to Luol.le .steward and thanked her for the hard ~0~ 
~h~ has done for t~e M1ss1onary Provision Closet over the years. Mar­
lone. ~howed the su1tcase that Lucille used to bring the first items to the 
Prov1~1on Closet and gave a brief history about the closet. 

h 
Bdl Evans, ~i_rector of the Free Will Baptist Foundation, spoke to 

t e body expla1nmg the Endowment Fund. 

~SC to re~ove from the table Resolution #3 from last year's con­
vention c~ncern1ng executive members' terms of service. MSC to ado t 
the follow1ng resolution as amended: p 

Whereas ~ur constit~tion does not specify the number of years a 
W~AC Executive Comm1ttee member may serve, be it resolved that: 

·A member of th~ WNAC Executive Committee may serve a total 
of four c~nsecut1ve terms (eight years). 

2. After .s~rv1ng four con~ecutive terms (eight years), a member may 
be el1g1ble for reeled1on to the committee after a period of ab­
sence of one term (two years). 

d 
MSC to receive the Executive Secretary-Treasurer's Report and 

a opt the budget. 

Phyllis York presented the Resolutions Committee Report. MSC 
to adopt the report and vote item by item 

MSC to adopt Item # 1 . . 
MSC to adopt Item #2. 
MSC to adopt Item #3. 

Su~anne Lewis presented the Appreciation Committee Report. MSC 
to rece1ve. 

h Nom~nat~ng Committee Chairman Peggy Outland presented 
t e No~matmg Committee Report. MSC to receive the report and 
to cons1der each position separately. 

For the pos~~on of President: Debe Taylor, AR MSC 
For the pos~~on of Vice President: Joanne King, NC MSC 
For the pos1hon of Secretory: Debbie Burden OK MSC 
For the positions of Members ot Lorge: Carolyn Hendri~ Al 

Down Sweeney, TN 
Yvonne Brown, CA MSC 

~ot Gore presented the Registration Committee Report MSC t 
rece1ve the report. · 

0 

. MSCN t~ express appreciation to Diana Bryant for her years of ser­
VICe as at1onal Secretary. 

Debe Taylor announced that WNAC was putting together a nation­
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al cookbook. Women were encouraged to pick up forms and submit 
no more than three recipes for the cookbook. The cookbook will be 
available at the National Association in Memphis, 2002. 

MSC to adjourn. 

WNAC Missionary Service 
Rebekah Seymour led the congregational singing. Special music was 

provided by Esther Harbert. James Fo~ines, Dired?r of Foreign 0i~ions 
brought the morning message. An offenng was rece1ved, and the M1ch1gan 
WAC Ensemble brought more special music. The Annual WNAC Fell­
owship Luncheon followed the service and was held in the Cobo Center. 
Susan Tumbough spoke and introduced Yolanda, a believer from Spain. 
Yolanda came to know the Lord through the ministry of our missionary 
efforts in that cou ntry. She brought greetings and words of encourage­
ment to the banquet attendees. Melissa Turnbough interpreted for Yolanda. 

CommiHee Reports 
Credentials Committee Report 

We the Credentials Committee submit the following report: The 
following 19 state conventions have submitted reports and paid dues: 
Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, 
Kentucky, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, 
Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia. 
The following 3 districts with no state conventions have submitted 
reports and paid dues: First, Arizona; Kansas, New Mexico. The fol­
lowing 3 local groups with no district or state conventions have sub­
mitted reports and paid dues: Kennewick, Washington; St. Croix, 
Virgin Islands; Buhl, Idaho. In addition, there were 46 delegates from 
local groups who are in good standing with their representing higher 
body (district or state) and paying a representation fee of $5 each. 

Respectfully submitted, Joanne King, Chairman 
Mary Wisehart 
Shirley Jackson 

Resolutions Committee Report 
We, your Resolutions Committee, submit the following recom­

mendations to the Women Nationally Active for Christ Convention. 
We recommend that scholarships be given from the Cleo Pursell 

Foreign Student Scholarship Fund as follows: 

Item One: $1,000 for on lvorion student (to be decided by the Bible Institute leadership, 
under the direction of Clint Morgan). 
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Item Two: Sl,?OO for Osmir, a Brazilian seminary student who is preparing ~ th . 
1stry (as rec?~mended by Curt Holland). or e mm-

S l,OLObO to be dlvl.ded o.mong the eighteen seminary students at the C d f 
e anon Semmary In Pinar del Rio, Cuba. e ors o 

Item Three: 

Phyllis York, KY 
Judy Trail, AR 
Terra Smith, GA 
Neva Woody, TX 
Mattie Riley, Ml 

Appreciation Committee Report 
We the Ap ·ati c · W . h preo on ommrttee submit the following recommendati . 

e wrs to express our sincere thank t th f II . ons. 
whose efforts will make this year's co f s o de o. owrng people 

l. The Executive Committee nven ron an sessrons a success: 

2 · The WNAC staff· Ma · · w k 
Fletcher, .and Mart~~r~orr~r man, Yvonne Hampton, Sarah 

3. Our hostesses, the Michigan Women Adiv ~ Ch. . 
erouts hospita/i1y. We appreciate the fe/1;-:hip ,::~~~:~~dg~e-
cen erpreces. 

4 ·All the musicians. 
5 · Our speakers· Anne W rth gt ~ th 

Gail Smith. and D o ~~ ~~ or~ e seminar, and Pam Flannigan, 

Debbie Bu~en for ~:n~tate 'L:~de~; ro~ing. CDianla .Bryant and 
the devotion James F rl' th M~ . emrnar, oro Prnkerton for 

' o rnes, e rssronary Serv· k d 
Susan Tumbough the WNAC F II h. rce spea er, an 

R ' e ovvs rp Luncheon speaker. 
espectfully submitted, Suzanne Lewis, Chairman, IL . 

Gwen Hendrix, SC 
Paulette Scott, AL 

Registration Committee Report 
We your Registration Committee submit the foil . . I 

Number of Persons Registered: owrng portra report: 

WNAC Na~onal Officers (Standing Delegates) . . . . . . . 6 
State P!es1dents (Standing Delegates) ............. : : : : 1·5 
State F1eld Workers {Standing Delegates) 9 
State Delegates (Elected by State, District o.r ·L~~~I) : : : : : : : 1·1· 3 
Local WNAC Delegates paying representation fee of $5 46 
Total Delegates . . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · 
Visitors · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .189 
Home ani F~r~ig~ .Mi~~i~~~ri~s· : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 5i~ 
Grand Total Registered ....... : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : ;29 
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Respectfully submitted, Dot Gore, Chairman 
Susie Robinson 
Diane Conn 

Synopsis of Minutes of 
WNAC Executive CommiHee 

Sunday, July 15, 2001 

All members of the Executive Committee were present when the 
Committee met in the Pontchartroin Hotel in Detroit, Ml, for the 
National WNAC Convention. Dawn Sweeney brought the devotion 
and spoke about "turning stones," making a difference where you are. 

The Committee discussed the convention schedule, each mem­
ber's various duties for the meeting, and the proper procedure for 

dealing with the tabled motion from last year. 
Marjorie Workman gave her Executive Secretary-Treasurer's Re-

port and the following action was taken: 
Regarding CoLaborer subscription costs: MSC to wait until the 

December Executive Committee meeting to gauge the reaction to 
the upcoming $2.00 price increase and make a decision then re-

garding future price increase plans. 
MSC to ask the President, Secretary, and Executive Secretary-

Treasurer to study the rules and guidelines for the Mary Ruth Wise­
hart Student Loan Fund and make suggestions for any updates or 

changes deemed necessary. 
MSC to add a Photography category to the Creative Arts Contest. 
MSC to send recommendations from Steve Lytle concerning for­

eign student scholarships on to the Resolutions Committee. 
Discussion was held concerning the cookbook project. Debbie Burden 

agreed to oversee the process. Forms will be printed and handed out at the 
various meetings during the convention for women to use to submit recipes. 

MSC to adjourn. 

Tuesday and Wednesday, December 5-6, 2000 

Tuesday, December 5 , 3 :30 p.m. 
The Executive Committee of the Women Nationally Active for Christ met 

at the Regal Maxwell House Hotel for their annual meeting with all mem­
bers present. President Debe Ta~or opened the meeting with a devotional 
thought from "Breakfast With God," enti~ed "Facing the Impossible," and 
encouraged us to try new and different things. Debbie Burden led in prayer. 

Several women who were also attending the Leadership Conference 
were invited to join the Committee and share their thoughts and ideas 
on things they would like to see WNAC do, what things were helpful to 
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thejh~n~~!~~~u;~=~~~ i~s:~opics for seminaro, retreats, etc. 

Wednesd?y, December 6 , 8 :00 a .m . 

Com~lttee members present for the meetin 
Joanne Kmg, Diana Bryant D bb· B d g were Debe Taylor. 
Marjorie Workman. Dawn S e le ur en, Yvonne Brown, and 

D b T weeney was not prese t d 'II 
e e raylor shared a poem entitled "Wh I S n ue to I ness. 

and Yvonne Brown brought the m . ' d e~ ay I Am a Christian " 
M · · ommg evot1on ' 

aqone Workman presented he . 
resulted from her report: r report. The following action 

MSC to recommend the 2002 b d t 

~CC /o ?ccMept. the 200 1 propos~ I Tr~~ot~~e a~d~~r 
rO give OrJOne the authority to b . . .. 

MSC to raise the CoLaborer rate to $ ~bn updating the literature, and 
and $11 each per year for individual c . ;ach per year for bulk rote, 

MSC to give Mar'orie th op!es or the ~002 subscriptions. 
whether YWAC litera~ f authonty to deode in June 2001 
issue and proceed accV:rdi~~l~,s a~drrant production of a 2002 

N\SC to recommend to the bod th 
ment Fund Offering" month d ~ y at September become "Endow-
ment Fund concept to our w~~e~. oris be made to fully explain the Endow-

MSC to accept the 2001 Convention Budget. 

The 2001 Convention schedule w 
Laurie Horne will be asked to be ths ~gr~ed on a_s follows: 

choose the Worship Lead . . e udslc Coord1nator and to 
Carol Pinkerton will be ask d tpla~lst an org~nist. 

Geneva Poole as an alte~n to give the mornmg devotion with 
J K· a e. 
oanne mg will receive the offerin in th . . 

The morning message will be br g e 11.~0 a.m. serv1ce. 
James Forlines as an alternate ought by Carlisle Hanna with 

For the WNAC Fell h · · 
17 at 12:30 p.m.:o~~~~e ~~~t~on to beheld Tuesday, July 
Susan Turnbough will be the s ~n wdl give the Invocation, 
pray the benediction. pea er and Randy Bryant will 

Monday's Seminars held in the ft . 
The theme will be· "Deall'ng 'th C .~ .ernoon Will be as follows: 

· WI nt1osm " D b Ti 1 . 
Anne Worthington will be the s e k. ( e e ay.or wdl preside, 
and a panel consisting of D!eu ~·lmodeGratr~lg th~ panel), 
Flannagin Barbara Harw II r son, or Smrth, Pam 

For the WAC L~aders' Meetin e ,~n~ ~ot Gore will di~cuss the topic. 

Debbie Burden and Dian;'B a1orr.jl dWorkl man wrll preside and 
ryan wr eve op a program around 
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the theme of the importance of filing timely and correctly filled out 
reports. 

The Committee discussed plans for speakers for the Ridgecrest 2001 
Retreat. Ma~orie was instructed to contact Liz Curtis Higgs to see if she 
would be available. Possibilities for speakers for a Branson, Missouri, retreat 
included Beth Moore with Carol Kent or Emilie Bames mentioned as alter­
nate choices. Ma~orie is to continue to negotiate with Chateau on the Lake 
Resort concerning rates and possible dates in late March 2003. 

The Committee discussed the possibility of compiling a cookbook 
of recipes from FWB women. 

The meeting was dismissed. 

Report of Women Nationally Active for Christ 
to the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

in the Digest of Reports July 2001 
by Marjorie Workman, Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

"As we have therefore opportunity, let us do good unto all men, espe­
cially unto them who are of the household of faith" (Gal. 6:1 0). 

Women Active for Christ has faithfully fulfilled this command in several 
\.vays this past year. Perhaps the greatest demonstration of doing good was the 
$92,000 in gifts to the Missionary Provision Closet. Missionary after missionary 
had the privilege of going through the closet and selecting household items of 
all kinds. These gifts saved hundreds of dollars for the missionaries and helped 
to make life a Httle more enjoyable. Gifts came from everywhere--local 
churches, districts and state associations, and even home mission churches. 

Sensing a growing gap between the younger and older women serv­
ing together, WNAC published a new workbook for teens. We desire to 
reach out and mentor our young women. Our goal is to help them under­
stand and fulfill the Great Commission through their responsibilities in the 
family, in the church, in the community, and around the world. We want 
those who 11COme along behind us [to be found] faithful. " 

WNAC established the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 
to help young men in other countries prepare for the ministry in order to 
serve their own people. This past year Pastor Amiezi Paul, an Ivorian stu­
dent, received a $1 000 scholarship. Another $1000 was given to the 18 stu­
dents studying at Cedars of Lebanon Seminary in Piflar del Rio, Cuba. 

In addition to these opportunities for doing good, Women Active for 
Christ participated in Operation Saturation in various mission churches last 
September. They also gave nearly a half million dollars to missions and 
missions objectives. In fact, giving was up in every area, except to WNAC. 

Our women have not seized the opportunity to financially support the 
WNAC office adequately. This is a concern. As inflation and expenses have 
increased, we are still trying to operate on 1994's income level While gifts to 
other ministries through WNAC have increased, operational income has 
declined. We must become burdened for the home base or there will not be 
a praying (uniting together), paying (pooling together), or playing (working 
together) field. 
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For the past 19 months, Editor Rhonda MeRe olds ha 
all of us through CoLaborer magazine. But, she f~ls the c~?one we)) for 
room and has resigned to return to a teaching . . of the class­
scho~I. She thanks you for your support and encourmimstry at a Christian 
you give the sam e support ~d encouragement to ~::~t~~~e asks that 

You, _too, can do somethmg good for the women of or. 
can proVIde encouragement and support for your local .Jv~~ ~hurch. You 
the CoLaborer magazine ( the onJ Free Will 8 . . · ou can put 
~n your church budget for all your women And tist magazme for women) 
IS try of your local and national Women Ac.tive f~r~~~~ pray for the min-

(An "Y~MEN NATIO.NMLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

December 31. 2000 and 1999 
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DLN.'n & WAlL ·\U 
CERTIFIED PV!k.IC ACCOONTANTS 

THE VOlUNTEER BUlG 
SUITE 100 

319 PlUS PARK l!l.VO 
NAS,...IIIlLE TN 3nl7 1005 

1&1513e6 5100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Women Nat1onally Active for Christ 

~ 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CERTIAED PVI!l.IC ACCOUNTANTS 
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU"'TAII, TS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial posttion of the Women Nationally 
Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the National AssociatiOn of Free Will Baptists) (a nonprofit 
organization) as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities and cash flows 
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responstbility of the Organization's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opmion on these fmancial statements based on our 

audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material m1sstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test 
bas1s, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessmg the accounting principles used and sigmficant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentatiOn. We believe that our audits provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financtal position of the Women Nat1onally Active for Chr1st as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and 
the changes m its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended m conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles. 

January 23 2001 
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<An '-Y~MEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
Auxiliarv of the Nat&onal Assoc~tion of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Fmanc&al Position 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Accounts rece1vable . Note 1 
Inventory . Note 1 
Notes rece&vable, net of allowance for 
doubtful. accounts of $1,669 ($1,871 in 1999) 

Accrued mterest receivable 
Property and equipment at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation of $30 259 
($29,153 in 1999). Notes 1 & 2 ' 

Cap1talized lease . Note 3 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue . Note 9 

Total liabilities 

Commitments . Notes 5 & 7 

Net assets 
Unrestncted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restncted 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

-2-
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2000 
$198,858 

6,345 
9,918 

8,367 
2,377 

11,583 

~2a:z.~~a 

$ 41,636 
32.992 
77,62B 

5,461 
140,759 
13.600 

llH!.82Q 

~J1448 

1999 
$166.109 

6.914 
12,240 

10,091 
2,105 

14,093 
5.248 

S2I7,20P 

$ 19,854 
37.731 
57,585 

18,713 
128,269 

12,233 
159,215 

$217.200 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the Nat&onal Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

J.!nre stricte d 
Revenue and other support: 

Dues and fees 
Des&gnated contributions 
Magazme and literature sales 
Convention and retreat income 
Guts and offerings 
Interest mcome 
Recovery of bad debts 
Net assets released from restnct10ns: 
Satisfaction of program restnctions 

Total revenue and other support 

Exnenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects 
Continwng education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2000 

$ 64,877 
314,735 

83,821 
17,998 
75,660 

2,834 
1,686 

1.315 

522.922 

101,197 
28,722 
39,860 
10,996 
21,272 
12,640 
3,833 

24,600 
4,681 

311 
2,510 
5,648 

642 
106 

1,206 
1,336 

315,217 
1.401 

576,17B 
($ 13,252) 

11:!99 

$ 66,573 
299,520 

85,962 
14,273 
62,273 

2,479 

227 

231.737 

98,866 
28,798 
29,758 

5,828 
23,406 
12,161 

4,597 
24,600 

3,988 
305 

3,078 
491 
708 
160 
898 

2,643 
299,147 

2.311 
24!. 7!12 
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~?MEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
<An Ayy1harv of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

<Continued) 

Temporanly restncted 
Guts and offerings 
Interest mcome 
Net assets released from restrictions: 
Sa tisfactton of program restnctions 

Increase (decrease) m temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Gifts and offerings 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets · beginning of year 

Net assets · end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financ1al statements. 

·4· 
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2000 

$ 7,244 
6,561 

( 1.315) 

12.490 

967 

967 

205 

159.615 

~l~~U!2C 

1999 

$ 8,371 
6,122 

( 657) 

13,836 

917 

917 

4.744 

154.871 

Slrl9,615 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Assocjatjon of Free Wtll Baptist§) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Qperatmg actiVJttes . 
Increase (decrease) m net assets 
AdJustment to r econcile increase in net assets to 

net cash proVlded by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Write off of bad debts 
Changes in operating assets and liabtlilies: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts rece1vable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Jnyesting activities 
Purchase of equipment 
Collection of loans receivable 
New loan made 
Redemption of certificate of deposit 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2QOQ 

$ 205 

2,510 
5,648 

( 202) 

569 
2,322 

( 272) 
21,782 

( !,739) 
3Q,823 

1,926 

1.926 

32,749 

166,109 

$198 858 

1999 

$ 4,744 

3,078 
491 

1,155 
( 2,640) 
( 223) 
( 12,090) 
( 6~!2) 
( 6,17Q) 

( 3,714) 
4,076 

( 3,400) 
70,0QO 

66.962 

60,792 

105,317 

~166,1C9 



Note 1 · 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Fmancml Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Organization and summary of sigmficant accoyntmg pol1cies 

The Women Nationally Act1ve for Christ IS a nonprofit orgaruzat10n and an 
auxiliary of the National Association of Free W11l Baptists, Inc. located m Antioch • 
Tennessee. The purpose of the Orgamzation is to publish the Free Will Baptists' 
magazine for women, to receive and disburse funds for miSSIOnaries and provide other 
services to Free Will Baptist women. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
donor contnbutions, dues and fees, and magazme sales. 

The Organization is exempt from federalmcome tax under sect10n 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Assoc1ation of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated busmess mcome for 2000 and 1999. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting prinCiples; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recogruzed when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recogruzed when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the FinanCial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Fmancial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial positiOn 
and activities accordmg to three classes of net assets; unrestncted net assets, 
temporanly restricted net assets, and permanently restncted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparat1on of fmanc1al statements m conformity w1th generally accepted 
accounting principles mcludes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

·6· 
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Sote 1 · 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST . 
(An Auxi~ the National Association of Free W 11l Bapttsts) 

Notes to the Finapcial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Qrgamzahon and summary of stgmficant accountmg polic1es · Contmued 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contrtbutions in accordan~e with the 
commendations of the Financial Accountmg Standards Board m SFAS No. 116, 

~ccountmg for Contributions Rece1ved and Contributwns Ma~e. In accordance w1th 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as _unrestr1cted,_ temporanly 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the ex1stence or nature of 

any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an mcrease in temp~ra_rily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nat';ll'~ of the restr1ct10n. Whe~ a. 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated ttme restnctwn ends or purpos~ restrtctlon 

1s accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestncted net 
assets and reported in the statements of act1v1ties as net assets released from 

restrictions. 

Property. eouipment, and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
property and equipment in excess of $500 with a useful life of at l~ast two years. 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets 

generally as follows: 
Equipment 5. 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 

unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and notes receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for the purchase of 
magazmes and literature. These churches and individuals are located all across the 

United States. 

The Orgaruzation loans money to B1ble college students for the payment of 
college tUitiOn. The student is required to stgn a note for the money. These notes are 
uncollateralized. These students are located across the Uruted States. There are 
numerous loans with varying mterest rates and matunty dates. Accordmgly, the fa1r 
value of these notes approx1mates the carrying value net of the allowance for doubtful 

accounts. 

Management cons1ders accounts recetvable to be full! collect1ble; accordmgly, no 
allowance for doubtful accounts ts required for accounts rece1v~ble. Man~gement 
considers the notes receivable that are overdue to be only pa~tially collectlble and 

9 accordingly has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts m the amount of $1,66 

($1,871 10 1999). 

-7-
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Note 1. 

Note 2 · 

Note 3 · 

Note 4. 

~?MEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Aux!hary of the National Associat10n of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to th e Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Orgamzation and summary of significant accountmg pohCieS. Continued 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all htghly hquid mvestments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (fi rst m, first out method) or market. 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Capitalized lease 

2000 
$ 41,843 

( 30.260) 

$ 11,583 

1999 
$43,247 

( 29,154) 

$ 14.093 

T~e National Association of Free Will Bapt1sts, Inc. purchased an office building to 
~ouse vanous departments and agencies of the denomination. The Organization entered 
mto .an agreeme?t to lease space in this new building and agreed to contribute to the debt 
serVJce co.sts dw:ng the construction period and to continue until the debt is retired. The 
cons~uction penod costs of $9,822 were cap1talized 10 1991 and were to be amortized over 
the life of. the de~t. The debt was retired during the year and accordingly the remaining 
construction penod costs were amortized dunng the year. Amortization expense for the 
years amounted to $5,648 ($491 in 1999). 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

Student Loan 
Foreign scholarship 
Free Will Baptist College Organ Fund 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to: 

Endowment Trust 

·8· 
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2000 
$117,751 

9,317 
13.691 

$140,759 

s 13 600 

1999 
$109,743 

8,515 
10.011 

$128 269 

s 12 633 

Note 5 · 

Note 6 · 

Note 7. 

Note 8 · 

Note 9. 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary :Jtb;National Associatjon of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2000 and 1999 

Lease 

The Organization entered mto a lease agreement on October 1. 1990 with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. The term of 
the lease expires when all mortgages on the buuding are satisfied; the mortgage was 
retired this year. The orgaruzation entered mto a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. 
The term of the lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31. 2000, then beginning September 1, 
2000 the lease became a year-to-year lease. The rent expense for the years amounted to 
$24,600 ($24,600 for the year ended December 31, 1999). 

Pension plan 

The Organization participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Associat1on of Free Will Baptists. The plan is 
a defined contribution plan. The Orgamzation contributes 5% of gross salary for all 
employees with five or more years of service and 3% of gross salary for employees w1th 
less than five years of service. Employees are allowed to contribute to the plan but are. 
not required to contribute. Pension expense for the year s amounted to $4,473 ($4,004 m 
1999). Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a lump sum distribution or purchase one of 

several types of annuity accounts. 

Commitments 

The Women Nationally Acbve for Chnst has pledged its equipment as collater al 
on a mortgage n ote that the Nat1onal Associabon of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has with the 
Church Extension Loan Fund. This mortgage was ret1red durmg the year . 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Organization maintams cash deposits at a financial institution loca~d in 
the United States. Accounts at the institution are insured by the Federal Depos1t 
Insurance Corporation up to $100,000. At December 31, 2000 the excess amount over 
the federally insured limit was $-0· ($-0· in 1999). 

The Organization also has $137,305 ($110,871 in 1999) on deposit with the Free 

WiiJ Baptist Foundation. These funds are uninsured. 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue resulted from magazme subscnptions rece1ved for 2001 1ssues. 

.g. 
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Note 10-

~9MEN NATIO_NALLYACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
<An Auxiliary of the Natwnal Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financia l S tatemen ts 
December 31. 2000 a nd 1999 

Fair values of financial instrumen ts 

f t!he_ follo~ing methods and assumptions were used by the Organization · 
es tma mg tts fau value disclosures for financial mstruments: 

10 

Cash. accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable, payables, and 
deferr~d rev~n_ue: The carrying amoun ts reported in the statement of 

t
fihnanc_tal posttlOn approximate fau values because of t he short maturities of 

ose mstruments. 

Notes ~eceivable: B~sed on current interest rates, the car rying value 
~~~~~xrmates the fau value of the notes receivable at December 31, 2000 a nd 

·10-
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Gifts to Missions/Missionary Objectives 
January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000 

Cash Gifts 
Foreign Missions 

Sent Direct 
Home Missions 

Sent Direct (Not Available) 
State Projects 
Bible Colleges 
Or. Wisehart Student Loan Fund 
Other Gifts 

Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 
Mission Objectives 

Provision Closet 
WNAC Operating Expense 

General Fund Offering 
Emphasis Offering 
Endow ment Fund 
Rest of Family Offering 
Dues 

Non Cash Gifts 
Provision Closet 

Total Cash and Non-cash Gifts 

141 ,123.73 
29,135.79 

112,787.63 

1,802.51 
25,261 .70 

99,081.74 
20,231 .58 
10,872 .74 

967.00 
2,658.42 

64,352.00 

170,259.52 

34,431 .10 
12,817.86 

2,106.85 
27,064.21 

19,649.38 

72,310.26 
$550,508.55 

2000 Top Ten Contributors to WNAC 

General Fund Offering Emphasis Offering Combined 

l. Tennessee 3,557.30 1. Tennessee 2,470.55 1. Tennessee $6,027.85 

2. Arkansas 3,088.92 2. North Carolina 2,246.14 2. Arkansas 4,414.45 

3. North Carolina 1,952.27 3. Arkansas 1,325.53 3. North Carolina 4,198.41 

4. Missouri 1,695.97 4. Missouri 1,099.57 4. Missouri 2,78554 

5. Georgia 1,593.50 5. South Carolina 669.90 5. Georgia 2,180.50 

6. Oklahoma 1,493.82 6. Georgia 587.00 6. Oklahoma 1,932.13 

7. California 1,178.93 7. Oklahoma 448.31 7. Virginia 1,550.96 

8. Virginia 1,108.47 8. Virginia 442.49 8. California 1,468.43 

9. Ohio 1,058.97 9. Alabama 415.00 9. Ohio 1,219.47 

10. Illinois n2.oo 10. California 389.50 10. Alabama 1,067.50 
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WNAC Salary Breakdown 

2000 2001 2002 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

Salary $33,395.00 $34,395.00 $35,770.80 
Social Security/Medicare 2,555.00 2,631 .22 2,736 46 
Retirement 1,670.00 1,719.75 1,788.54 
Insurance 3,010.20 3,778.98 4,574.50 

Travel/Life 283.20 272.40 295.99 
Hospital 2,524.80 3,257.77 4,028.64 
Dental 202.20 248.81 249.87 

Christmas Bonus 642.00 661.44 687.90 
Total Salary and Benefits $41,272.20 $43,186.39 $45,558.20 
Executive Assistant 

Salary $24,489.00 $25,489.00 $26,508.56 
Social Security/Medicare 1,874.00 1,949.91 2,027.90 
Retirement 1,225.00 1,274.45 1,325.42 
Insurance 2,920.20 3,718.98 4,515.84 

Life 193.20 212.40 237.33 
Hospital 2,524.80 3,257.77 4,028.64 
Dental 202.20 248.81 249.87 

Christmas Bonus 1Zl .QO 42Q.] z SQ2.Z8 
Total Salary and Benefits $30,979.20 $32,922.51 $34,887.50 
Editor 

Salary $22,135.00 $23,135.00 $24,060.40 
Social Security/Medicare 1,693.32 1,769.83 1,840.62 
Retirement 664.05 694.05 721.81 
Insurance 2,920.20 3,718.98 4,515.84 

Life 193.20 212.40 237.33 
Hospital 2,524.80 3,257.77 4,028.64 
Dental 202.40 248.81 249.87 

Christmas Bonus 425.67 444.90 462.70 
Total Salary and Benefits $27,838.24 $29,762.76 $31,601.37 
Bookkeeper 

Salary $19,217.00 $20,217.00 $21,025.68 
Social Security/Medicare 1,470.00 1,546.60 1,608.46 
Retirement 960.00 1,010.85 1,051.28 
Insurance 2,920.20 3,718.98 4,515.84 

Life 193.20 212.40 237.33 
Hospital 2,524.80 3,257.77 4,028.64 
Dental 202.20 248.81 249.87 

Christmas Bonus 370.00 388.79 404.34 
Total Salary and Benefits $24,937.20 $26,882.22 $28,605.60 

Total $140,652.67 
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Women Nationally Active for Christ 

Suggested Budget 
For the Year Ending December 2002 

Estimated Income: 
General Fund Offering 
Convention Offering 
Convention Expense Gift 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
literature Sales 
Magazine Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 
Rest of the Family Offering 
WNAC Emphasis Offering 

Total inflows 

Estimated Expenses: 
Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 
Employee Retirement 
Health and l ife Insurance 
Christmas Bonus 

Insurance--General & Workers' Compensation 
legal and Professional Services 
Convention Expense 
Executive Committee Expense 
CoLaborer Magazine expense 

Mailing 
Miscellaneous 
Printing 
Postage 

Miscellaneous Expense 
Office Rent 
Office Suppl ies and Materials 
Telephone 
Postage 
Printing 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Travel and Promotion 
Continuing Education 
Equipment (additions and repairs) 
Special Projects 

Total outflows 

Overall Total : 
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8,213.44 
4 ,887.05 

18, 122.02 
2,064.72 

4 ,200.00 
500.00 

36,000.00 
4,000.00 

PO Box5002 
Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

$ 36,000.00 
2,000.00 
8 ,000.00 

600.00 
78,000.00 

9,503.00 
13,000.00 
89,000.00 

4 ,500.00 
4 ,300.00 

14,000.00 
$258,903.00 

$107,365.44 
33,287.23 

1,000.00 
4,200.00 
8,000.00 
5,500.00 

44,700.00 

2,000.33 
24,600.00 

3,500.00 
4 ,000.00 
4 ,500.00 
4,500.00 
1,500.00 

250.00 
4,500.00 
2,000.00 
3,000.00 

500.00 
$258,903.00 

$ 0 .00 

-

The General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free W ill Baptists 

met Monday, July 16, 2001, in the Columbus Ballroom of the Marriott Ho tel, 
Detroit, Michigan. As a result of this m eeting, we offer the following infor­
mation and recommendations: 

I . We heard the reports of the Executive Office, WNAC, Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Free W ill Baptist Bible College, Foreign Missions 
Department, Sunday School and Church Training Department, Home 
Missions Department, Board of Retirem ent, Master 's Men Department, 
Commission for Theological Integrity, Media Commission, Music 
Commission and Historical Commission. We recommend that the 
reports be received and the budgets adopted as each is given. 

2. We recommend adoption of the Master 's Men Department's request to 
withdraw from participating in the Rest of the Family Offering effective 
2002, and that they be given permission to designate Father 's Day as 
Master 's Men Emphasis Day. The Master 's Men will ask churches to 
receive a special offering on Father 's Day. 

3. We recommend Charlotte, North Carolina, as the site for the 201 1 convention 

4. We recommend that the Treatise be changed by rem oving the spe­
cific am ount for representation fees so that w hen dollar amounts 
change the Treatise will not have to be revised. The following para­
graph would replace Section 4 on page 59 of the Treatise: 

Each affiliated state association, or its equivalent, shall be entitled 
to live (5) lay delegates to the National Association upon the pay­
ment of a representation fee per church established by the National 
Association. Each "district" association affiliated directly with the 
National Association shall be entitled to three (3) lay delegates upon 
the payment of a representation fee per church established by the 
National Association. Each local church which is affiliated either 
directly or indirectly, under any of the provisions for membership is 
entitled to one (1) lay delegate, upon the payment of a representa­
tion fee per church established by the National Association. 

5. We recommend that the Music Commission be authorized to publish 
a new Free Wlll Baptist hymn book and that the Executive Committee 
give oversight to the project. 
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Credentials Committee Report 
W~, the Crede~tials Committee, have examined the letters from 

followmg states, districts and local churches and found them t b ~e 
order as presented below. 

0 
e In 

1. From the following state associations which are entitled to be re 
resented by five delegates: Alabama Arkansas California Flo ·f 
G~o~gi<:t, I.dah?, llli~ois, Indiana, Kansas, K~ntucky, Michi~~· 
MISSI~Sippi, Missoun, . N?r.th Caroli~a, Ohio, Oklahoma, South 
Carolma, Tennessee, VIrgmia, West VIrginia and Texas. 

2. From the following ~strict associations entitled to be represented 
by three delegates: Arizona, Atlantic Canada, Colorado Mid-AUanti 
New Jersey, New Mexico, Northeast and Northwest.* ' c, 

*Northwest owes representations fees for its churches. 

3. From the follo~ local churches entitled to be represented by one 
delegate.: ~awan, Montana, Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands, Wisconsin 
and Lowsiana 

4. We re_c~rnmend that the delegates from the state associations, district 
assOCia~ons and ~ocal churches listed above be seated for this session, 
along With all therr other delegates w ho are properly registered. 

5. W e re_co~end that alll~y delegates entitled to represent by virtue 
of their positions on standing boards be seated if properly registered. 

6. We recommend that the delegates from the Northwest District be 
seated based on assurance for full payment of representation fees. 

Submitted by Your Credentials Committee 

Glen Johnson (VA) - Chairman 
Ernest Harrison (OK) 
Carl Vallance (WV) 
Tim York (KY) 
J. L. Gore (MS) 
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Nominating Committee Report 
Home Missions Board 

Replacing Ronnie Adkins (TN) ......... Ron Parker (LA) 
Replacing Matt Upton (CA) ............ Matt Upton (CA) 
Replacing Earl Hendrix (SC) .......... .Jerry Atwell (MS) 
Replacing J.D. Norris (VA) ............. Bobby Shepherd (AR) 

2007 

Board of Retirement 
Replacing Bobby Bowers (SC) ......... Bobby Bowers (SC) 
Replacing Jack Daniel (GA) ........... Craig Cook (TN) 
Replacing Wayman Fields (AL) . . ...... .Jack Ward (NC) 

2008 

Master's Men Board 
Replacing Jerry Atwell (MS) ........... Roy Copeland (OK) 
Replacing Johnny Fowlkes (AR) ........ Charles Walden (MS) 
Replacing Wayman Ray (OK) ....... . .. Rudy Taylor (MI) 

2009 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Trustees 
2004 Replacing Larry Powell (TN) ........... Billy Hanna (GA) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
2006 Replacing Paul Harrison (TN) .......... Danny Dwyer (AL) 

Media Commission 
2002 Replacing Bill Gardner (TN) ........... Kevin Norris (MI) 
2006 Replacing Ron Hunter (TN) ............ Ron Hunter (TN) 

Music Commission 
2007 Replacing Bill Gardner (TN) ........... Todd Parrish (SC) 
2006 Replacing Scott BuHman (OK) ......... Scott Bullman (OK) 

Historical Commission 
2006 Replacing Thomas Marberry (TX) ...... .Joe McKnight (SC) 

General Board 
2004 ( To be elected in 2001 ) 

Alab ama (replacing Ri ck Cash) ........ Ri ck Cash 
Arizona ( replacing George Harvey) ..... Charles Marsh all 
Arkansas ( replacin g David Joslin) ... . .. David Joslin 
Atlantic Can ada ( replacing Fred Hanson) Fred Han son 
California ( replacin g Do ice McAliste r) ... Do ice McAlister 
Colo rado (replac ing Mark Thom as) ..... Mark Thom as 
Florida ( replacing Tim Owen) ......... Tim Owen 
Georgia ( replacing William Smith) ..... W illiam Smith 
Idah o ( replacin g Earl Jenkins) ......... Earl Jenkins 
Illi no is ( replacing Ernie Lewis) ........ Ernie Lewis 

Executive Committee 
2007 Replacing David Joslin (AR) ...... . .... David Joslin (AR) 

Replacing Doice McAlister (CA) ... . .... Doice McAlister (CA) 
Replacing Rick Cash (AL) ........... . . Rick Cash (AL) 

General Officers 
(To be elected in 200 I ) 

Moderator: Replacing Carl Cheshier (OK) . ... Carl Cheshier (OK) 
Assistant Moderator : Replacing Tim York (KY) ...... . . Tim York (KY) 

Clerk: Replacing Keith Burden (OK) .... Keith Burden (OK) 
Assistant Clerk: Replacing John Hibbard (CA) ... .John Hibbard (CA) 
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Resolutions Committee Report 
Resolution # J 

In light of the ongoing problems and struggles in the areas of abortion and 
euthanasia, and the recent advent of medical technology which allows the 
research of fetal stem cells, human cloning, and other embryonic research, we 
recommend the following: 

o. To affirm the position that all human life begins at conception, (Psalm 139: 13-1 6). 
b. To affirm the position that abortion is the killing of the developing, unborn baby and violates God's Word 

as previously stated. 
t To affirm the position that life is o continuum from conception until God's appointed time of deoth fOI' 

every human being (Hebrews 9:27) and that there is no such thing as o life not worthy to be lived as it 
relates to the issues stated in this resolution. 

d. To affirm the position that all stem cell research, human cloning, and all other embryonic research vio­
lates the scriptural prindples of life at conception because the embryo is destroyed after conception dur­
ing these procedures. 

e. That every Christian pray, stay informed, and engage in the political process by writing their stole and 
notional leaders expressing their moral objections concerning the issues stated in this resolution. 

Resolution #2 
Whereas, six Free Will Baptist national agencies (Executive Office, Home and 

Foreign Missions Departments, Master's Men, Free Will Baptist Bible College, 
and the Sunday School and Church Training Department) print magazines or 
newsletters and distribute them to the denominational constituency, and 

Whereas, five of these national magazines/newsletters are mailed free to 
subscribers (AIM, Heartbeat, Moster/s Men Newsletter; Bible College Bulletin, and 
Outreach) while one is mailed to a paid subscription list (Contact), and, 

Whereas, the cost of producing, printing and moiling these publications 
contir)ues to rise each year, 

Therefore, to avoid needless duplicating of mailing lists, and in the interest 
of denominational stewardship, departmental cooperation and a spirit of unity, 

Be it resolved that the National Association moderator appoint a five-person 
Publications Committee from the ranks of those knowledgeable in the field of pub­
lishing, from various states, to study the feasibility of printing one enlarged notional 
monthly magazine with sections in the publication that incorporate material from each 
national agency, that the publication be mailed complimentary to subscribers, and, 

Be it further resolved that the national agencies provide the Publication 
Committee pertinent information relating to their publication's financial costs 
and editorial schedules. 

Be it finally resolved that the Publications Committee report its findings and make 
recommendations to the delegates at the July 21-25, 2002, session of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists in 1-kmphis, Tennessee. 

Resolution #3 
We recommend that the body of this National Association of Free Will Baptists 

give the Michigan State Association of Free Will Baptists, the steering committee, 
pastors and churches a rising vote of appreciation for a great job of hosting the 
65th annual National Association of Free Will Baptists in Detroit, Michigan. 

David Sutton (OK)- Chairman 
Charles Thigpen (TN ) 
Edwin Hayes (OH) 
David Williford (FL) 
Jay Baines (Mid-Atlantic) 
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Free Will Baptist National Convention 
Registration Report 

The 2001 Detroit Convention registered the following: 

National Convention ................... . . 3,011 
Board/Commission Members . .46 
State Delegates ........ . ..... 71 
Local Church Delegates ....... 34 
Foreign Missionaries .......... 27 
Home Missionaries ........... 64 
Ordained Deacons .......... 1 00 
Ordained Ministers .......... 504 
Licensed Ministers ........... 19 
Visitors . . ............... . 2, 146 

Women Nationally Active For Christ .......... 755 
National Officers ............. 6 
State Presidents . ... . ........ 15 
State Field Workers ........... 9 
State Delegates .. ........... 11 8 
Local WNAC Delegates ... . .. .4 7 
Missionaries . . .............. 31 
Visitors . . ... . .... . ........ 529 

National Youth Conference .. . ............. I ,265 

Total Registered ...... . ......... .. 5,031 
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2001 National Youth Conference Report 
The 2001 NationaJ Youth Conference met for its 43rd annual conference 

in Detroit, Michigan, July 15- 19. The theme of "Go ... No Reserves ... No 
Retreats ... No Regrets, was emphasized in many ways. A totaJ of 1,265 par­
ticipants were registered 

A total of 544 competitive entries were conducted during the four-day 
conference, with a totaJ of 1 ,265 young people participating in the competi­
tive activities. A complete Jist of NYC winners will be sent to each state office. 

Worship services were conducted for Preschool (ages 3-5), with an aver­
age of 60 attending, Children (1st-3rd grade) and Tweeners (4th-Qth 
grade) with an average of 200 attending, and Youth (7th-12th grade) with 
an average of 1,200 attending. The speakers for Sunday morning through 
Tuesday nights were Raymond Riggs, Susan Turnbough, Mark Roberts and 
James Forlines. Over 250 decisions were made, including several for salva­
tion, the first of which was reported on Sunday evening, that of my daughter. 

Over 400 students participated in Impact Detroi~ our area service projects. 
Projects included the Detroit Food Bank, a blood drive and inner-city Bible 
School programs. Individuals and entire youth groups joined the projects. 

A total of 31 workshops were presented during the conference for 
children, youth, children's workers and youth workers. 

We will not leave the city of Detroit untouched! Rather, we leave hav­
ing shown the light of Christ to a needy city. We also leave with many 
people knowing that Christ makes a difference in the lives of our students. 

The 35th annual National Youth Conference is scheduled for Memphis, 
Tennessee in July 2002 where our theme will be "24/7-All His Wiys, All My Days." 

Dean Jones 
NYC Director 
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Educational Task Force Report 
The Educational Task Force met January 5-6, 200 1, in Nashville, and heard 

reports from three committees: the Survey Committee (Tim Eaton, chairman), 
the College and Seminary Committee (Randy Sawyer, chairman) and the 
funding Committee (Dan Parker, chairman). All Task Force members were 
present except representatives from Southeastern Free Will Baptist College. 

Tun Eaton distributed the Suroey Committee's proposed survey-the Free 
Will Baptist Higher Education Survey, designed to survey Free Will Baptist young 
people. A number of suggestions from Task Force members were incorporat­
ed into the survey. The Task Force approved the finalized survey. The survey will 
be done online and through a mailing to Free Will Baptist young people. 

Randy Sawyer presented the College and Seminary Committee's recom­
mendation that the 1977 Graduate Study Committee survey be used to survey 
denominational constituents. Task Force members offered a number of sug­
gestions that were incorporated into the survey to modify and update il The 
survey will be sent to pastors, national personnel, state leaders, college stu­
dents and faculty members, laity, national convention attendees (including 
National Youth Conference adults) and college alumni associations. 

Daniel Parker presented the Funding Committee's report. The report 
consisted of a directory of grant agencies and an article from Hillsdale 
College in Michigan titled, "How Government Hinders Educational Funding." 

Douglas Simpson and Matt Pinson were authorized to prepare a brief 
bibliography of Christian higher education. All members were asked to 
read Arthur Holmes' book, The Idea of a Christian College, as well as a 
position paper from Columbia International University. 

The Educational Task Force is scheduled to meet in the spring of 2002 
to examine and evaluate data from the surveys and finalize its reports 
which will be presented to delegates at the 2002 Free Will Baptist national 
convention in Memphis, Tennessee. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Melvin Worthington, Chairman 
Matthew Pinson, Clerk 
William Davidson 
Douglas Simpson 
Carl Cheshier 
Tim Eaton 
Randall Sawyer 
Thomas Marberry 
Tom Malone 
Milton Fields 
Ed Hyatt 
Wendell 'Milley 
Marco Gonzales 
Billy Bevan 
A. B. Brown 
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Obituary Committee Report 
The following names were submitted in sympathy and precious 

memory of their lives, labor and love for our Lord Jesus Christ. 

Arkansas Marvin Bates, minister 
J. W Blanks, minister James McCarty, minister 
Rupert E. Pixley, minister Bert Miller, minister 

California Robert Mead, minister 
Joe Mooneyham, minister Hershel Nabors, deacon 

Florida Billy Williams, deacon 
William Compton, mjnister Lloyd Pack, deacon 

Illinois Kay Moore, deacon 
Loyd Crain, minister Oklahoma 
Melvin Knott, minister Ernie Hale, minister 
Jonathan Thigpen, minister Don Adams, deacon 

Kentucky South Carolina 
Robert Parsons, minister Julius Vause, minister 

Mexico L. H. Clayton, minister 
James Munsey, minister Tennessee 
Felix Zuniga, minister Horace Teague, minister 

Missouri BiJI Gardner, minister 
C. R. "Shorty" Thompson, minister Texas 
Larry Cockman, minister Alvin Hallbrook, minister 
Jeff Bennet~ minister West Virginia 
Michael W Sanstra, minister Jimmy Browning, minister 
Opal Jefferies, minister Joseph Mahone, minister 
Henry Williams, deacon Vernon Spears, minister 
Carl Sisco, deacon Herman Berry, minister 

North Carolina Burnie Crabtree, minister 
James Childers, minister Earl Pennington, minister 
Winford Roland, minister James Smith, minister 
J. C. Lynn, minister Gaylord Shrewsbury, minister 
Will Hall, minister Thelmer Robertson, minister 
Harold O'Dear, minister Sestell Toppins, minister 

Ohio Reads Selby, minister 
Eldon Ross, minister Volena Wilson, missionary 
Charles Baldwin, minister Poe McCartney, deacon 

Obituary Committee 
Sigbee Dilda (SC)--Chairman 
Richard Bowers (AL) 
John Hibbard (CA) 
Fred Hanson (Atlantic Canada) 
Mike Jones (SC) 
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Budget Committee Report 
The Notional Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc., has approved in this 

convention the following budgets for 2 002 : 

Executive Office (Includes:) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 
Administrative ........... $ 411 ,000.00 
Contact . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93, 1 OS .OO 
Convention . . . . . . . . . . . . . 240,0S6.30 

Free Will Baptist Bible College ..... ........... . 
(Includes $1 ,200,000.00 in unrestricted gihs) 

Foreign Missions ... ... .................... . 
(Does not include Vision and other projects totaling $2,604,500.00) 

Home Missions ........................... . 
Moster's Men . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Retirement and Insurance ................... . 
Free Will Baptist Foundation ............ . .... . 
Sunday School and Church Training ............ . 
Commission for Theological Integrity ........... . 
Historical Commission ...................... . 
M . c . . USIC ommiSSIOn ........................ . 
Media Commission .... .................... . 

744, 161 .30 

4 ,78S,OS8.00 

7,S66,248. 77 

5,000,000.00 
194,362.00 
373,344.00 
120,000.00 

3,S29,403.90 
8,2SO.OO 
4 ,800.00 

34,060.00 
200,000.00 

T ota I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 22,SS9,687 .97 

All these ministries receive funds through the Together Way Plan except for 
the Sunday School and Church Train ing Department which is self-sustaining. 

The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through the Together 
Way Plan be allocated to the national ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive Office Administrative Budget above designated 
gifts, not to exceed 45% of cooperative gifts. 

2. Disburse the balance of cooperative gifts to the following national min-
istries according to these percentages: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23.0% 
Foreign Missions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 .0% 
Home Missions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0% 
Retirement and Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14.0% 
Master's Men . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 4 . 0% 
Free Will Baptist Foundation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 .0% 
Commission for Theological Integrity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . O.S% 
H' t . I C . . 0 S0 ' IS onca omm 1Ss1on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . t o 
M . C . . 0 S0 ' USIC ommiSSIOn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 

Media Commission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . O.S% 
T ota I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 00.0% 

Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 
Tom Malone, President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
James Forl ines, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
l~rry Powell, General Director of Home Missions Deportment 
Bdl Evans, General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
Tom Dooley, General Director of Master's Men Department 
Alton loveless, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training Department 
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Alabama 14 13 165 163 
Arizona 1 1 8 8 
Arkansas 15 15 220 209 
California 8 8 55 52 
Canada 1 1 10 10 
Colorado 1 1 6 3 
Florida 9 9 72 70 
Georgia 10 10 122 121 
Howon 1 1 
Idaho 2 2 7 7 
lllinors 6 6 43 40 
lndrano 3 1 20 10 
Kansas 2 2 9 9 
Kentucky 10 10 147 139 
Louisiana 1 1 
Mil-Atbrftkfn. 1 1 8 6 
Mexico 4 29 
Michigan 6 4 45 38 
Mississippi 3 3 51 42 
Missouri 18 18 184 175 
Montano 1 I 
New Jersey 1 1 2 2 
New MeXICo 1 1 4 4 
North Corolino 8 8 191 160 
Nortll005I AsY:x. 1 1 3 3 
NortiMest AsY:x. 1 1 5 s 
Ohio 19 19 150 147 
Oklo homo 22 242 225 
Puerto Rrco 2 1 
South Corolmo 7 7 123 123 
South Dakota 1 
Tennessee 9 9 223 185 
Texas 7 5 46 42 
Virgin Islands 1 1 
Virginia 8 8 92 76 
West Virginia 21 21 180 180 
Wisconsrn 1 1 
Totals 219 186 2,470 2,260 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 2000 
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60 103 87 51 355 18,881 815 446 
7 1 6 2 58 283 37 14 

107 113 88 102 815 20.443 1 229 489 
50 5 46 9 337 2 904 211 127 
3 7 4 6 19 280 31 13 
6 6 13 204 26 21 

41 31 45 26 272 5,972 419 288 
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346 62 539 4 5 5 1,061,100 

48 66 48,834,160 11 ,309 2, 482 1,101 166 

17 19 19 267100 7 941 407 "7 4 !I 1 2 ~00 000 

fonado ~ 1 1401 m 341 79 7 1 

3 500 000 

Colorado 
3 1 1 5 590,868 150 

2,812 609 490 173 121 14 127 5 2 2 1 
150 000 florida 30 40 15,905,681 

4 931 1 009 694 11 1 ~4 71 394 7 1 7 43 58 30815918 · Georata 
1 1 3 500 000 61 35 2 

Idaho 300 18 11 1 5 1 3 3 1 157 000 
19 15 1H?7000 7197 ~~-7~417~~rr1~~1.7~R~~9~~~~7~~----~ 

40 16 3 

I 1 w. 11.0 47 11 10 4 4 

Kenlurkv 16 6 16.648 720 7 7!11 I 403 470 9!1 1R4 7~ 385 7 1 

266 
loul\iano 1 13 

lAd-Aim fl'>.<lx 5 3 2 3 2 5 000 52 4 6 1 12 2 

Mexico 
Mrchigon 9 11 13,525,000 1,825 100 234 34 67 4 51 3 1 
MiS!>IS~DDI 19 14 6019 700 2 261 596 218 118 64 10 133 1 2 2 1 
Mrssouri 37 42 37,567 671 9 410 1101 812 188 264 48 328 4 3 4 2 

MontonoL-4---t---!-J1~50!.QOOQQ0t-_]3Q_O t--+--f--lf--lr+-:rlt-t-TTT--l 
New Jersev 1 59 10 4 2 

650 000 

North Carolina 102 65 39 562 902 14 306 1 304 1 487 378 298 102 535 12 14 13 

'L.' tAM I 3 

lL...J. IA<w 1 

Ohio 30 20 37,292 061 8,656 168 528 147 
mlohomo 354 52 505 4 7 7 1 3 750000 62 62 69 944 398 19 722 2 527 1217 247 
Puerto Rico 250 000 70 2 1 

1 725 000 201 16 94 4 4 3 2 South Coraline 57 40 89 530 000 4 957 334 323 158 

Tennessee 41 69 44077783 14132 1459 979 199 366 39 834 4 3 3 3 1 
17 10 11919 94~ 1179 171 700 711 r:.7 7fi 71. 

Vrrarn Islands 1 1 2 350 000 177 16 8 3 2 1 1 1 
14 10 20400420 3641 380 446 65 167 24 206 2 1 2 1 

West Virainio 17 13 16,508 575 7 783 526 755 153 436 22 388 1 1 1 

Wr~onsrn 1 450 000 29 1 
Totals 642 612 567,440,010 132,462 16,542 11,375 2,551 4,104 570 5,534 57 57 67 12 4 13,336,100 
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